
 

 
12879562.1  

 

COMBINED QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE 

EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2016 REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM 

1400 29
TH

 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
Website Address:   www.sacrt.com 

(29th St. Light Rail Station/Bus  38, 67, 68) 

 

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement 

Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento 

Regional Transit District.  This single, combined agenda designates which 

items will be subject to action by which board(s).  Members of each board may 

be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during 

individual closed sessions. 

 

ROLL CALL  ATU Retirement Board:  Directors: Li, Morin, Niz, De La Torre  
       Alternates: Jennings, Lee 
 
   IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Ohlson, Burdick 
       Alternates: Jennings, Gallow 
 
   AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Devorak 
       Alternates: Jennings, Robison 
 
   AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett 
       Alternates: Jennings, Kent 
 
   MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Lonergan, Thorn    
       Alternates: Jennings, Sanchez-Ochoa 
 

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on 
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to 
the discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public 
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents 
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very 
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them. 

  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 31, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

2. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 14, 2016 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

3.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

 

 

                                                              
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Agenda   



 

 
12879562.1  

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

      

4. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 31, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

5. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 14, 2016 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

     

      

6. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
September 30,  2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

      

7. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 31, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

8. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 14, 2016 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

     

      

9. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 for the ATU Pension Plan (ATU). (Bernegger) 

    

      

10. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 31, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

11. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 14, 2016 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

     

      

12. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 for the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

13. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 31, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

14. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the September 14, 2016 Quarterly 
Retirement Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

15. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan 
(AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

    

 

NEW BUSINESS 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

16. Information: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) 
for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the 
International Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

17. Information: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI 
EAFE Funds by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU, 
IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended 
September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

18. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Reports for the ATU, 
IBEW and Salaried Employee Funds for Quarter Ended September 30, 
2016. (Bernegger) 

    

      

19. Resolution: Selection of a Common Chair and Vice Chair for Retirement Board 
Meetings (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    



 

 
12879562.1  

      

20. Information:  Update on Staff Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension 
Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

21. Information: AB 1234 Local Government Ethics Training (ALL). (Bonnel)     

      

22. Resolution: Approving Disability Retirement Application of William Barbour (ATU). 
(Bonnel) 

    

      

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURN 

 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of the 
Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest 
to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.   
 

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held.  An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional Transit’s 
building at 1400 – 29th Street and posted to RT’s website at www.sacrt.com.  

 

Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human Resources 
Manager at 916-556-0280 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board Meeting. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for public 
inspection at 1400 29th Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry. 



Item 13

1
11716923.1

Sacramento Regional Transit District
MCEG Retirement Board Meeting

Wednesday, August 31, 2016
MEETING SUMMARY

ROLL CALL

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as
follows: Directors Li, Morin, Sanchez-Ochoa and Alternate Thorn were present. Alternate
Jennings was absent.

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District
Retirement Boards.

By MCEG Resolution No. 16-02-171 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE
AGENDA

None.

New Business:

1.  Resolution: Approving a Contract with Hanson Bridgett LLP To Provide Legal Services
for ATU, IBEW, and Salaried Retirement Plans (ALL). (Bonnel)

Donna Bonnel provided information on the proposed Hanson Bridgett LLP contract.

AEA Director Drake asked if the proposed contract document has been prepared. Ms. Bonnel
noted that we do not have a contract at the moment. The procurement analyst handling the
contract has been out. Another member of Procurement staff will be handling the contract in her
absence. Ms. Bonnel noted that there is an agreement between staff and Hanson Bridgett on
contract terms, including related to one exception to the agreement provided in the Request for
Proposals, and there is also an agreement on the fees.  Staff will now need to customize the
sample agreement form.

Alternate Thorn asked how the proposed contract amount compares to the previous contract.
Ms. Bonnel noted that the current contract is about $16,000/month plus work orders. The new
contract would increase to about $19,000/month plus work orders. Work orders are estimated to
be three per year at $25,000 each. The contract is about 1.5 million over the five year period
with the option of two one-year extensions. Ms. Bonnel noted that the contract not-to-exceed
amount is slightly less than the current run rate.

Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1. Director Li seconded the motion. The motion failed by roll
call vote: Ayes: Li and Morin. Noes: Director Sanchez-Ochoa and Alternate Thorn.



Item 13

2
11716923.1

Donna Bonnel asked the MCEG Retirement Board members if they had any questions.
Alternate Thorn remarked that there were no questions. Donna Bonnel asked if the MCEG
Retirement Board could provide details on why they voted no. At Ms. Bonnel's request, Hanson
Bridgett Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften and Anne Hydorn left the room at 9:14 a.m.

Director Sanchez-Ochoa remarked that the proposed fees are too high. This perspective is
based upon her observation of Hanson Bridgett’s fees and work orders over the past eight
years.

Director Thorn also noted that in comparison to the rates charged by a few attorneys he knows,
he feels the rates are too high.

Ms. Bonnel provided additional information on the Procurement Committee’s process and
considerations. Ms. Bonnel noted that Hanson Bridgett reduced their initial fee request and met
one of the other proposer's fees without knowledge of their fees. Hanson Bridgett’s fees are
now within $500/month of the other two proposers. Director Sanchez-Ochoa noted that she was
aware of this because she was a part of the negotiations. Ms. Bonnel remarked that Hanson
Bridgett does a tremendous amount of work for the Retirement Boards. This retainer is viewed
by Hanson Bridgett as a broad based support of the administrative team and that they are a
tremendous partner to the team that administers the Pension Plans.

Ms. Bonnel asked if it was the desire of the MCEG Board to find its own counsel. Director
Sanchez-Ochoa noted that she is not saying that was her desire. Ms. Bonnel noted that all other
Boards voted to retain Hanson Bridgett. Ms. Bonnel asked if the MCEG Board would like to re-
bid its portion of the work. Director Sanchez-Ochoa noted that it was her desire not to vote for
this contract.

Director Thorn noted that he also feels the Retirement Boards are spending too much on legal
services and that the numbers didn’t work for him. Director Thorn asked if any of the other
Boards would like to reconsider.

IBEW Director Ohlson asked if it would be possible for the Boards to hire an attorney full-time.
Ms. Bonnel noted that as addressed previously, from the District’s perspective, it is not possible
to hire an attorney as an employee of the District without breaching conflict of interest rules
under California law as well as uphold their obligations to the State Bar of California. This is
based upon the attorney handling District projects part-time and pension projects part-time.
Also, when benchmarking was performed, staff found no other agency with an attorney that
splits their time as the Boards requested.

Jamie Adelman noted that if we transitioned to a single attorney, employed by the District, we
would lose the depth of knowledge provided by a law firm; we are not going to get a single
person that is an expert in multiple fields. Therefore, in addition to the District’s attorney, we
would have to hire out for specific issues.

Director Li noted that the Boards authorized staff to go through the procurement process and
found that Hanson Bridgett was the best candidate. He then asked if the MCEG Board has any
solutions or recommendations?

Director Thorn noted that as a Board Alternate, he was not involved in the discussions.

Ms. Adelman noted that it is the policy of the Boards that the Chair of each Board select a
member from their represented group to be involved in the procurement process. The



Item 13

3
11716923.1

Procurement Committee was comprised of an appointee from each of the five Boards, as well
as a representative from Human Resources and a representative from Finance.

Ms. Bonnel noted that each Board had representation on the Procurement Committee and that
the procurement was certified as appropriate. All of the Board appointees, as well as the
representative from Human Resources and the representative from Finance met and reviewed
the received bids. The two other proposers were appropriate but all representatives of the
Boards, as well as the representative from Human Resources and the representative from
Finance, voted unanimously to move forward with negotiations with Hanson Bridgett. The
negotiations were from a rate standpoint and Hanson Bridgett reduced their rate significantly
from what they initially proposed. Staff moved forward with negotiations on the single contract
exception. All negotiations were concluded the week of August 22, 2016.

Director Li asked for  Hanson Bridgett’s hourly rate. Ms. Bonnel noted that the rate per hour
varies based upon who is working on the project and that due to the monthly retainer it did not
matter. Hanson Bridgett’s retainer covers a broad scope of projects, eight in total.

Director Li asked if the contract amount reflected was the not-to-exceed amount. Ms. Bonnel
responded in the affirmative.

Director Li asked for the actual cost paid to Hanson Bridgett is last few years. Ms. Bonnel noted
that Tim McGoldrick in Finance performed an analysis on Hanson Bridgett’s current run rate and
found that the proposed (revised) run rate appeared to be completely appropriate.

Ms. Bonnel noted that the four other Boards voted yes and have been provided the opportunity
to ask additional questions; additional opposition was not received. Ms. Bonnel asked the
MCEG Board about its position and what instruction to staff. Director Sanchez-Ochoa asked
when the current contract expires? Ms. Bonnel noted that the Boards are currently in a four
month contract extension that expires in 30 days. Director Sanchez-Ochoa reiterated that she
does not feel comfortable voting for this contract due to the high fees.

Brent Bernegger asked the MCEG Board what would be a good fee amount, and what is the
MCEG Board looking for from a fee perspective? Director Sanchez-Ochoa noted that there are
a couple of factors to consider. She feels more of Hanson Bridgett’s non-retainer work should
be retainer work; discussion ensued.

Brent Bernegger asked if it would please the MCEG Retirement Board if staff were to go back
and request that Hanson Bridgett increase the scope? Director Sanchez-Ochoa noted that for
the contract cost, she would like it to cover everything.

ATU Director Niz asked if the firm is supposed to perform defined duties. Ms. Bonnel responded
that staff has a solid scope that all three firms bid on. Pension Staff created the scope six years
ago, it was approved by the District. The scope was reviewed again by the District this time and
it was approved to move forward. District legal staff performed a peer review and approved the
scope. Director Sanchez-Ochoa noted that she tried to change the scope but was instructed to
follow the scope in the Hanson Bridgett contract.  Ms. Bonnel noted that staff can ask Hanson
Bridgett if they would be willing to move some of the more common tasks into the retainer
scope. She does not know if they would be willing to budge due to the reduction in their bid
amount.

Ms. Bonnel reminded the Boards that the Hanson Bridgett contract is due to expire in 30 days
and that based upon Hanson Bridgett’s professionalism it would be unlikely that they wouldn’t



Item 13

4
11716923.1

extend it. Nonetheless, another request for proposal would take an additional six months. The
procurement was certified as accurate and accepted by the Procurement Department. There is
not a reason to go to bid again if there is not an error in the procurement. Ms. Bonnel noted that
if there is still continued opposition from the Board and they do not want to discuss it further
during this meeting, they will need to meet with staff because this would become a critical
project. Ms. Bonnel noted that the next Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting is scheduled for
September 14, 2016.

Director Morin provided additional comments and noted that he heard the points previously
provided by the MCEG board and others and noted that this procurement went through the
standard procurement process. Director Morin implored that the MCEG Board move ahead and
support this contract. He remarked that he thinks it is a good, prudent decision that is defensible
by everyone on the Board. Director Li noted that he agreed with Director Morin due to the fact
that this item went through the standard procurement process. If there were any questions, they
could have been presented during the procurement process.

Director Thorn remarked that if another vote was called he would reconsider his vote. Director
Thorn made the following statement:

“Essentially this would be a seven year contract. I urge whoever is still on this board in five
years to re-evaluate whether you option for those extensions at five years. I think the rate,
personally…and I apologize for coming in late. My intention was not to throw a monkey wrench
in this but I needed to vote based upon what my conscious told me. I think that we are spending
too much money. However, Andy (Director Morin) your points are well taken, we did follow a
process. I don’t think the net was cast wide enough with the procurement but that’s history now.
So, I think we made a mistake when we did that, we should have cast a wider net. However,
putting the Boards and our retirement plans in a position of not having a law firm representing
us, potentially in thirty days is not a tenable situation. So, I would be willing to reconsider if you
call another vote.”

Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried by
roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, Morin and Alternate Thorn. Abstained: Director Sanchez-Ochoa
Noes: None.

Ms. Bonnel requested that Finance include what Hanson Bridgett reports as their over/under
charges on the retainer in future financial reports. These details will be included on financial
reports as of the December 2016 meeting.

Director Thorn remarked that he thought that was a great idea.

Ms. Bonnel thanked the MCEG Board for the dialogue and flexibility.

Ms. van Hoften and Ms. Hydorn returned to the meeting room.

2.  Resolution: Amending the Contract with JP Morgan to Adopt Performance-Based
Pricing for International Equity Fund Management (ALL). (Bernegger)

Jamie Adelman provided information on the request to amend the contract with JP Morgan to
adopt performance-based pricing for international equity fund management.



Item 13

5
11716923.1

Ms. Adelman reported that at their June 15, 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board Meeting, the
Retirement Boards put JP Morgan on “watch." Per the Retirement Boards' Statement of
Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines, when an investment manager is placed on the
Watch List, the manager's performance is monitored in more depth by the Retirement Boards
and their investment consultant on a quarterly and annual basis for a minimum of two years.
The Retirement Boards can choose to terminate a manager at any time based on the
recommendation and/or consultation of the investment consultant or staff, or as deemed
necessary by the Boards.

In July 2016, Andrew Knapp and Kit Rodrigo of JP Morgan reached out to staff to discuss JP
Morgan’s performance over the past three years. During these discussions, staff informed JP
Morgan that they had officially been placed on watch by the Retirement Boards and that the
Retirement Boards had instructed Callan Associates to perform a search for a replacement
International Equity fund manager. JP Morgan appreciated the forthrightness of staff and offered
performance-based pricing to help ease the cost of investment with the manager.

Under the performance-based pricing model, there would be two fees, 1) the base fee and 2) a
performance rate. The base fee would be charged on a quarterly basis and would equate to 15
BPs per annum. The performance rate would be equal to 20% of the fund's outperformance
over the MSCI EAFE Index benchmark (after subtraction of the 15 BP base fee) over a three-
year term, and would be assessed annually for the first three years, then quarterly thereafter.

Ms. Adelman noted that it would be a significant savings for the Boards moving forward. JP
Morgan did not place a time restraint on this amendment. This presents the Boards with the
opportunity to take advantage of the cost savings and replace JP Morgan in six months if
deemed necessary.

Director Morin moved to adopt Item 2. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 2 was carried
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Sanchez-Ochoa, Li, Morin and Alternate Thorn.
Noes: None.

3.  Resolution: Authorization Execution of Plan Trust Documents (ALL). (Bonnel)

Jamie Adelman provided information on the request to authorize execution of plan trust
documents.

Legal Counsel Anne Hydorn with Hanson Bridgett advised that the Pension Plans have 150
days to take all IRS-approved correction actions required to maintain their tax-qualified status.
Evidence of the corrections must be documented and made available in the event of an audit.

Alternate Thorn asked if there was any risk of not meeting the October 7, 2016 deadline.

Ms. Hydorn responded in the affirmative. Ms. Hydorn noted that the IRS accepted the proposed
corrections that the District submitted. If the 150 day deadline for performance of the corrections
is not met for any one or more of the Plans, such Plan(s) would not be tax compliant. The vote
today is the last step in this process.

Director Morin moved to adopt Item 3. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 3 was carried
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Sanchez-Ochoa, Li, Morin and Alternate Thorn.
Noes: None.



Item 13

6
11716923.1

Ms. Bonnel thanked pension staff, legal counsel, and District staff for their collaborative efforts
to complete the tax qualification letter process.

4.  Motion: Public Record Act Request/ Brown Act Training (ALL). (Bonnel)

Legal Counsel Shayna van Hoften with Hanson Bridgett presented a training on the Public
Records Act and Brown Act open government laws, and was available for questions.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

None.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Jamie Adelman reported that the Pension Plans are now invested with AQR as of August 1,
2016. AQR is the Small Cap International Manager that was selected by the Boards in
February.

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned by Assistant Secretary
Bonnel at 10:15 a.m.

________________________________________
Mark Lonergan, Chair

ATTEST:

Roger Thorn, Secretary

By:___________________________________
Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary



Item 14 

1 
  11716923.1 
 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
MCEG Retirement Board Meeting 
Wednesday, September 14, 2016 

MEETING SUMMARY 
 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:03 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Li, Morin and Lonergan were present. Director Thorn, Alternate Sanchez-
Ochoa and Alternate Jennings were absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By MCEG Resolution No. 16-02-171 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting. 
  
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE 
AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
13. Motion:   Approving the Minutes for the June 15, 2016 Quarterly Retirement Board 

Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 
 
14. Motion:   Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 

2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 
 
15. Motion:   Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2017 Meeting Calendar 

(MCEG). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Items 13 through 15. Director Li seconded the motion. Items 13 
through 15 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Lonergan, Li, and Morin. 
Noes: None. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
The order of New Business items was adjusted to ensure all of the items requiring action 
would be addressed in case members had to leave resulting in loss of a quorum.  The 
revised order was: 16-17, 20, 22, 18-19, 21.                
 
 
16. Resolution: Selection of a Common Vice Chair for Retirement Board Meetings (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 



Item 14 

2 
  11716923.1 
 

   
Donna Bonnel presented Item 16 for approval. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt the resolution approving Henry Li as Common Vice Chair.  
Director Li seconded the motion. Item 16 was carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: 
Directors Lonergan, Li and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
17. Resolution: Election of Officers of the Management and Confidential Employee Group 

Retirement Board (MCEG). (Bonnel) 
   
Donna Bonnel presented Item 17 for approval. 
 
Director Morin moved to approve a resolution appointing Director Lonergan as Chair, Director Li 
as Vice Chair and Director Thorn as Secretary. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 17 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Directors Lonergan, Li and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
20. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 
2016 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2016 and to be available for questions. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 20. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 20 
was carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Directors Lonergan, Li and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
22. Resolution: Approving Service Retirement for Mike Wiley (MCEG). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the request to approve service retirement for Mike Wiley. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 22. Director Li seconded the motion. Item 22 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote. Directors Lonergan, Li and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
18. Information: Investment Performance Review by Atlanta Capital for the ATU/IBEW and 

Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Domestic Small Cap Equity 
Asset Class for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Michael Jaje from Atlanta Capital to provide a review of domestic 
small cap investments and be available for questions. 
 
Director Morin left at 9:23 a.m. and returned at 9:25 a.m. 
 
AEA Director Drake asked how he should read the bar chart reflected in Attachment 1, Page 8, 
and if the figure of 11.7 shows differences as compared to the Index. Mr. Jaje responded in the 
affirmative. 
 
AEA Director Drake asked where the excess returns came from. Mr. Jaje noted that from the 
Summer of 2015 through February 11, 2016, the small cap markets were down 20-25%. In that 



Item 14 

3 
  11716923.1 
 

period, Atlanta Capital protected well and captured about 55% of the down market. He noted 
that when you don’t lose as much, you don’t have to run as hard when things turn up again. 
 
 
19. Information: Investment Performance Review by Robeco Boston Partners for the 

ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Domestic 
Large Cap Equity Class for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2016 (ALL). 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Carolyn Margiottii from Boston Partners to provide a review of 
domestic large cap investments and be available for questions. 
 
 
Director Li left at 10:05 a.m., leading to loss of a quorum for the MCEG  Board, thereby 
ending the meeting. 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    Mark Lonergan, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Roger Thorn, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Action 10/05/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016
for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 11/22/2016
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016
for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Unaudited Financial Statements

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
September 30, 2016.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist
of a Statement of Fidcuciary Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended September 30,
2016 (Attachment 2), and a year-to-date Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
(Attachment 3).

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the
amounts in the following categories: cash, money market, and securities.  This statement also
provides amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position includes activities in the following
categories: investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses,
benefit contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives
and Policy Guidelines for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the
Retirement Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance
with the approved rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
15



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 2 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Action 10/05/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 30,
2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Director is required to report asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly
meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for one or more of the following reasons:

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due
to the District.  A payable or receivable net amount of the monthly required contribution
(required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by the annual
actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the Salaried Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the
three months ended September 30, 2016. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary
of Plan activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension
contributions to the Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.
This schedule also lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended
September 30, 2016.  The Salaried Plan received $239,966.39 from the District as the result of
the net cash activity between the pension plan expenses and the required pension
contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the Salaried Plan’s Asset Allocation as of September 30,
2016.  This statement shows the Salaried Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted
allocation percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report
and the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports
differ in that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the
pension fund’s inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The
“Net Difference” amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different
valuations for the same securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report
classifies gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff
classifies gains from trades and litigation income in the Pension Plan’s unaudited Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of
“Interest, Dividend, & Other Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees.  Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended September
30, 2016 as compared to their benchmarks.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
   15



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 3 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Action 10/05/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended September 30,
2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well
as any transfer of employees or plan assets from the ATU or IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan
during the three months ended September 30, 2016.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
15





















REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Information 10/05/16

Subject: Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for the ATU,
IBEW and Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Emerging Markets Asset
Class for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 11/22/2016
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Investment Performance Review by Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) for the ATU, IBEW and
Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Emerging Markets Asset Class for the Quarter
Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information only.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Retirement funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines (Policy) adopted by each Retirement Board (Board). The Board shall meet
at least every eighteen (18) months with each investment manager to review the performance
of its investment, the adherence to the Policy, and any material changes to its organization.
The Policy also establishes the Retirement Funds’ asset allocation policy and the asset
classes in which the Plans funds are invested.  The asset classes established by the Policy are
(1) Domestic Large Capitalization Equity, (2) Domestic Small Capitalization Equity, (3)
International Large Capitalization Equity, (4) International Small Capitalization Equity, (5)
International Emerging Markets, and (6) Domestic Fixed-Income.

DFA is the Retirement Boards’ International Emerging Markets fund manager. DFA will be
presenting performance results for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, shown in
Attachment 1, and answering any questions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
   16



Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension 
Funds 
December 14, 2016 

Ted Simpson, CFA, Vice President 

This information is provided for registered investment advisors and institutional investors and is not intended for public use.  
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
Consider the investment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses of the Dimensional funds carefully before investing. For this and other 
information about the Dimensional funds, please read the prospectus carefully before investing. Prospectuses are available by calling Dimensional 
Fund Advisors collect at (512) 306-7400 or at us.dimensional.com/prospectus.  
Dimensional funds are distributed by DFA Securities LLC. 

#17625-1011 

 



Performance data shown represents past performance and is no guarantee of future results. Current performance may be higher or lower than the performance shown. The 
investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. To obtain 
the most current month-end performance data, visit us.dimensional.com. 
1. Includes dividends, interest, and realized/unrealized gains and losses. 
See “Appendix: Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures” to learn how to obtain complete information on performance, investment objectives, risks, advisory fees, and expenses of Dimensional’s funds. 

Relationship Summary: 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Funds 

#17595-1011 

2 

Investment Summary
As of October 31, 2016

Market Value

EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO $13,693,635

Statement of Asset Changes

Starting Balance 
11/01/2015 Contributions Withdrawals

Appreciation/ 

(Depreciation)1
Ending Balance 

10/31/2016

EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO $11,570,678 $658,995 — $1,463,962 $13,693,635

The following changes took place in the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees account for the period of 
November 1, 2015 to October 31, 2016:



Agenda 1. Dimensional 

2. Investment Philosophy 

3. Emerging Markets Core Equity 
Portfolio 

4. Appendix 

 
 



Dimensional 
 



Firm Update 

5 

As of September 30, 2016  

#48225-0915 

  

Organizational Updates  
• More than 1,000 employees firmwide; $445 billion in assets under management. 

• Dimensional Chairman and Co-CEO David Booth received the “Manager Lifetime Achievement” award from Institutional 
Investor. The magazine described David as a leader who “shaped Dimensional into a manager that refined academic theories 
and applied them so investors could profit in the real world.” 

Upcoming Events 
• Institutional Luncheon: March 2017 (San Francisco) 

• Investment Forum: Summer 2017 (Santa Monica) 

• Institutional Symposium: April 24-26, 2017 (Austin) 

Recently Published Articles 
• Capturing Value: Why Less Can Be More—Many different variables have been suggested as measures of relative price. The 

evidence suggests that earnings-to-price, cash flow-to-price, sales-to-price, or a blend of these metrics do not contain 
additional information about expected returns beyond that contained in book-to-market and profitability. 

• Relative Price and Expected Stock Returns in International Markets—The weak performance of the value premium observed 
across regions outside the US over the past decade is most likely the result of normal levels of volatility in the realized premium. 

• The Value of Aligning Investments and Risk Management to Your Goals—A primary goal of retirement planning is to provide 
consumption in retirement using accumulated savings. A key risk is uncertainty about how much consumption can be sustained. 
Managing this uncertainty requires measuring investment performance in units aligned with the goal. 

• The US Department of Treasury and Corporate Bond Liquidity—A 2015 paper by Dimensional concluded there was no 
convincing evidence of a reduction in liquidity in the corporate bond market and that the market is evolving to overcome its 
dependence on the traditional dealer model. The US Department of the Treasury recently reached a similar conclusion. 



Dimensional Fund Advisors 

6 

Putting financial science to work for clients 

There is no guarantee strategies will be successful.  

#17624-1011 

We use information in market prices throughout our investment process 
to build solutions that pursue higher expected returns. 

We add value by identifying relevant dimensions of expected returns 
and continually balancing the tradeoffs among competing premiums, 
diversification, and costs. 

We work with clients to understand their long-term needs and  
to add to their success. 

  



Leading Financial Economists and Researchers 

7 

As of September 30, 2016. 
1. Provide consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. 
2. “Dimensional’s US Mutual Fund Board” refers to The DFA Investment Trust Company, DFA Investment Dimensions Group Inc., Dimensional Investment Group Inc. and Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund Inc.  
3. "Dimensional” refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, 
Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd. 

#52793-0516 

  
  

   
  

Academics on Dimensional Fund Advisors LP’s Board 

Eugene Fama1, PhD, Nobel laureate  University of Chicago 

Kenneth French1, PhD  Dartmouth College 

Academics Who Serve as Independent Directors on Dimensional’s 
US Mutual Fund Board2 

George Constantinides, PhD University of Chicago 

John Gould, PhD University of Chicago 

Edward Lazear, PhD Stanford University 

Roger Ibbotson, PhD Yale University 

Myron Scholes, PhD, Nobel laureate Stanford University 

Abbie Smith, PhD University of Chicago 

Academics Providing Ongoing Consulting Services to Dimensional 

Robert Merton1, PhD, Nobel laureate Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

Robert Novy-Marx, PhD University of Rochester 

Sunil Wahal, PhD Arizona State University  

Leaders of Dimensional’s3  
Internal Research Staff 

Eduardo Repetto, PhD, Director,  
Co-Chief Executive Officer,  
and Co-Chief Investment Officer 

Gerard O’Reilly, PhD, Co-Chief Investment 
Officer and Head of Research  

Stanley Black, PhD, Vice President 

Wes Crill, PhD, Vice President 

James Davis, PhD, Vice President 

Massi De Santis, PhD, Vice President 

Marlena Lee, PhD, Vice President 

Savina Rizova, PhD, Vice President 

Dave Twardowski, PhD, Vice President 

 



Experienced Teams Help Ensure Consistency 
 

8 

High degree of practitioners’ knowledge and experience across market cycles 

As of September 30, 2016. 
1. Dimensional Fund Advisors LP Investment Committee. 
Locations with offices operated by Dimensional. "Dimensional" refers to the Dimensional entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd.,  
DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd.  

  

Investment  
Committee1 

Portfolio  
Management Trading 

Average 23 Years of Industry Experience Average 13 Years of Industry Experience 
 

Average 13 Years of Industry Experience 
 

David Booth, Chairman and  
Co-Chief Executive Officer 

Eduardo Repetto, Director,  
Co-Chief Executive Officer, and  
Co-Chief Investment Officer 

Joseph Chi, Investment Committee 
Chairman and Co-Head of  
Portfolio Management 

Robert Deere, Investment Director  
and Senior Portfolio Manager  

Jed Fogdall, Co-Head of  
Portfolio Management 

Henry Gray, Head of Global  
Equity Trading 

Joseph Kolerich,  
Senior Portfolio Manager 

Gerard O’Reilly, Co-Chief Investment Officer 
and Head of Research  

David Plecha, Global Head of  
Fixed Income 

Karen Umland, Head of Investment 
Strategies Group and Senior  
Portfolio Manager 
 

Austin 
Jed Fogdall, Co-Head of  
Portfolio Management 

Senior Portfolio Managers:  
Arun Keswani, Joseph Kolerich,  
Mary Phillips, Joel Schneider,  
Lukas Smart 

Portfolio Managers:  
William Collins-Dean, Emily Cornell, 
Gavin Crabb, Damian Dormer,  
Joseph Hohn, Alan Hutchison,  
Pamela Noble, Althea Trevor 

Charlotte 
Portfolio Managers: 
Marcus Axthelm, David Kershner, 
Travis Meldau  

Santa Monica 
Joseph Chi, Co-Head of  
Portfolio Management 

Robert Deere, Investment Director  
and Senior Portfolio Manager 

David Plecha, Global Head  
of Fixed Income 

Senior Portfolio Managers:  
Daniel Ong, Allen Pu, Grady Smith,  
Karen Umland 

Portfolio Managers:  
Mitch Firestein, John Hertzer,  
David Shao, Brian Walsh 

London 
Arthur Barlow, Chairman, 
Managing Director, and  
Senior  Portfolio Manager 

Nathan Lacaze, Senior Portfolio 
Manager 

Portfolio Managers:  
Paul Foley, Alexander Fridman,  
Didier Haenecour, Adam Ward,  
Jim Whittington, Joy Yang 

Sydney 
Bhanu Singh, Head of Asia Pacific 
Portfolio Management and  
Senior Portfolio Manager 

Robert Ness, Senior Portfolio 
Manager 

Portfolio Managers:  
Murray Cockerell, Stephen Garth, 
Slava Platkov, David Quinn, 
Gillian Wilson, Craig Wright 

Singapore 
Portfolio Managers:  
Jason Ha, Stephen Quance 

Tokyo 
Kotaro Hama, Portfolio Manager 

Austin 
Senior Traders: David LaRusso, Christian Gunther,  
Christopher Rink, Scott Van Pelt 

Traders: Joel Mitter, Erhan Oktay,                 
Robert Richardson, Elizabeth Van Pelt 

Charlotte 
Senior Traders: Richard Mar, Polly Weiss 

Santa Monica 
Henry Gray, Head of Global Equity Trading 

Ryan Wiley, Head of Americas Trading 

Le Tran, Senior Trader 

Claudette Higdon, Trader 

London 
John Romiza, Head of International Trading 

Mark Butterworth, Senior Trader 

Traders: William Letheren, Frances Ritter, 
James Simpson, Archit Soni 

Sydney 
Jason Lapping, Head of Asia Pacific Trading 

Sam Willis, Senior Trader 

Traders: Jian Du, David Vrolyk 

Singapore 
Traders: Jonathan Smith, Hayato Yonemori 
 
 

#53690-0716 



Global Investment Team,  
One Dynamic Process  

9 

In USD. Dimensional Fund Advisors LP founded in 1981. Global AUM  and number of employees as of September 30, 2016.  
Locations with offices operated by Dimensional. “Dimensional” refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund 
Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd. 

Vancouver 

Santa Monica 
Austin 

Singapore 

Sydney 

Tokyo 

Investment Personnel 

Client Service 

More than 1,000 employees globally 

$445B in global AUM 

Founded in 1981 

  
  

  
 

Toronto 

Melbourne 

London 
Amsterdam 

Berlin 

Charlotte 



Developed  
ex US 
Equities 
19.0% 

US 
Equities 
34.0% 

Emerging  
Markets  
14.1% 

Fixed  
Income 
21.1% 

#17624-1011 

Dimensional Global Investment Solutions 

10 

$445 billion in global AUM as of September 30, 2016 

“Dimensional” refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional 
Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd.  
All assets in US dollars. Numbers may not total 100% due to rounding.  

Other $24.8  

Real Estate $14.6  

Commodities $1.5  

Global Balanced $8.4  

Target Date $0.3  

US $151.1  

All Cap Core $47.1  

All Cap Value $5.6  

Growth $1.4  

Large Cap $14.4  

Large Cap Value $23.6  

SMID Cap Value $14.6  

Small Cap $20.0  

Small Cap Value $17.6  

Micro Cap $6.9  

Fixed Income $93.9  

US $51.5  

US Tax-Exempt $5.2  

Non-US & Global  $32.7  

Inflation-Protected $4.5  

Emerging Markets $62.6  

All Cap Core $23.5  

Value $27.4  

Large Cap $6.0  

Small Cap $5.8  

Global  
Balanced 
1.9% 

Global  
Equity 
6.2% 

REITs & 
Commodities 
3.6% 

Global Equity $27.7  

All Cap/Large Cap $18.5  

Value $6.6  

Small/SMID Cap $2.6  

Developed ex US $84.5  

All Cap Core $24.0  

All Cap Value $3.6  

Growth $0.4  

Large Cap $7.0  

Large Cap Value $17.2  

Small Cap $16.8  

Small Cap Value $15.5  

(in billions) 

  



Investment Philosophy 
 



Dimensions of Expected Returns 

12 

Expected returns are driven by prices investors pay and cash flows they expect to receive 

To be considered a  
dimension of expected return,   
a premium must be: 

• Sensible 

• Persistent 

• Pervasive 

• Robust 

• Cost-effective 

 

DIMENSIONS POINT TO SYSTEMATIC DIFFERENCES IN EXPECTED RETURNS 

Diversification does not eliminate the risk of market loss.  
1. Relative price as measured by the price-to-book ratio; value stocks are those with lower price-to-book ratios.  
2. Profitability is a measure of current profitability, based on information from individual companies’ income statements.  

E
Q

U
IT

IE
S

 

Company Size  
Small cap premium – small vs. large companies 

Market  
Equity premium – stocks vs. bonds 

Relative Price1 

Value premium – value vs. growth companies 

Profitability2 

Profitability premium – high vs. low profitability companies 

#47151-0815 

  



Dimensions of Expected Returns 

13 

Illustrative index performance: Annualized compound returns (%) in US dollars 

Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by book.  
Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with the management of an actual portfolio. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Index returns are 
not representative of actual portfolios and do not reflect costs and fees associated with an actual investment. Actual returns may be lower. See “Index Descriptions” in the appendix for descriptions of Dimensional and 
Fama/French index data. Eugene Fama and Ken French are members of the Board of Directors for and provide consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. The S&P data are provided by Standard & Poor’s Index 
Services Group. MSCI data © MSCI 2016, all rights reserved.  

#17867-1011 

 
  

HIGH 

R
el

at
iv

e 
P

ri
ce

 
P

ro
fi

ta
b

ili
ty

 
Si

ze
 

1928–2015 

1996–2015 

1975–2015 

EMERGING MARKETS STOCKS US STOCKS DEVELOPED EX US MARKETS STOCKS 

12.00 
9.72 

S&P 500  
Index 

Dimensional 
US Small 
Cap Index  

Fama/French  
International  
Growth Index 

Fama/French  
International  
Value Index 

Dimensional  
Emerging  
Markets High  
Profitability Index 

Dimensional  
Emerging  
Markets Low 
Profitability Index 

SMALL LARGE SMALL LARGE SMALL LARGE 

LOW HIGH 

LOW 

LOW HIGH LOW HIGH 

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW 

1928–2015 

Fama/French  
US Growth 
Index 

Fama/French  
US Value  
Index 

1970–2015 

MSCI World  
ex USA Index 
(gross div.)  

Dimensional  
Intl. Small  
Cap Index 

1964–2015 

Dimensional  
US High 
Profitability Index 

Dimensional  
US Low 
Profitability Index 

MSCI  
Emerging  
Markets Index 
(gross div.)  

Dimensional  
Emerging 
Markets Small  
Cap Index 

1989–2015 

1992–2015 

Dimensional  
International High  
Profitability Index 

Dimensional  
International Low  
Profitability Index 

1989–2015 

Fama/French  
Emerging  
Markets Growth  
Index 

Fama/French  
Emerging  
Markets Value  
Index 

14.48 
9.45 

11.78 9.53 

12.42 
8.98 

13.82 
8.59 

12.96 
9.28 

12.55 
8.20 7.90 

2.72 

9.01 

2.83 



Yearly Observations of Premiums 

14 

Equity, size, relative price, and profitability: Emerging Markets 

Equity premium: Fama/French Emerging Markets Index minus one-month US Treasury Bills. Size premium: Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Cap Index minus MSCI Emerging Markets Index (gross dividends). Relative price premium: 
Fama/French Emerging Markets Value Index minus Fama/French Emerging Markets Growth Index. Profitability premium: Dimensional Emerging Markets High Profitability Index minus the Dimensional Emerging Markets Low Profitability 
Index. Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense, scaled by book. Dimensional indices use Bloomberg data. Fama/French indices provided by Ken French. MSCI data copyright 
MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. Index descriptions available upon request. Eugene Fama and Ken French are members of the Board of Directors for and provide consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. Indices are not 
available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with the management of an actual portfolio. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.  

  

M
A

R
K

ET
m

in
us

 B
IL

LS
SM

A
LL

 C
A

P
m

in
us

 L
A

R
G

E 
C

A
P

V
A

LU
E

m
in

us
 G

R
O

W
TH

H
IG

H
 P

R
O

F
m

in
us

 L
O

W
 P

R
O

F

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-60%
-30%

0%
30%
60%
90%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-60%
-30%

0%
30%
60%
90%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-60%
-30%

0%
30%
60%
90%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-60%
-30%

0%
30%
60%
90%

P
re

m
iu

m
s



Historical Observations of Five-Year Premiums 

15 

Equity, size, relative price, and profitability: Emerging Markets 

Five-year rolling equity premium is computed as the five-year annualized compound return on the Fama/French Emerging Markets Index minus the five-year annualized compound return of one-month US Treasury Bills. Five-year rolling size 
premium is computed as the five-year annualized compound return on the Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Cap Index minus the five-year annualized compound return on the MSCI Emerging Markets Index (gross dividends). Five-year 
rolling relative price premium is computed as the five-year annualized compound return on the Fama/French Emerging Markets Value Index minus the five-year annualized compound return on the Fama/French Emerging Markets Growth 
Index. The five-year rolling profitability premium is computed as the five-year annualized compound return on the Dimensional Emerging Markets High Profitability Index minus the five-year annualized compound return on the Dimensional 
Emerging Markets Low Profitability Index. Dimensional indices use Bloomberg data. Fama/French indices provided by Ken French. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. Index descriptions available upon request. Eugene Fama 
and Ken French are members of the Board of Directors for and provide consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses 
associated with the management of an actual portfolio. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.  

  

M
A

R
K

ET
m

in
us

 B
IL

LS
SM

A
LL

 C
A

P
m

in
us

 L
A

R
G

E 
C

A
P

V
A

LU
E

m
in

us
 G

R
O

W
TH

H
IG

H
 P

R
O

F
m

in
us

 L
O

W
 P

R
O

F

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-20%

0%

20%

40%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-20%

0%

20%

40%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-20%

0%

20%

40%

P
re

m
iu

m
s

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
-20%

0%

20%

40%

P
re

m
iu

m
s



Emerging Markets Core Equity 
Portfolio 



Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio 

17 

Using an integrated approach to add value across all aspects of the investment process 

• Structured based on systematic 
expected premiums: 

– Market 

– Company size 

– Relative price (value) 

– Profitability 

• Offers broad sector and 
security diversification 

• Balances competing premiums 
and manages implementation 
costs by using a disciplined 
and patient trading strategy 

 

 

Number of names shown are as of September 30, 2016. Holdings are subject to change.  
Number of countries shown include approved markets for investment as of the most recent published prospectus, February 29, 2016. Additional countries may be designated as approved markets for future investment.  

#17868-1011 

 
 



Portfolio Construction:  
Security Selection and Weighting 

18 

Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio 

• A total market solution 
focused on the dimensions of 
expected returns in a cost-
effective way 

• Increased emphasis on higher  
expected return securities:  

– Lower relative price 

– Higher profitability 

– Lower market cap 

 

 
1. Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by book. 
Holdings are subject to change. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved.  

#17869-1011 

HIGH 

LOW 

LOW 

 
PROFITABILITY1 

LA
R

G
E

 
SM

A
LL

 
S

IZ
E

 

HIGH 

RELATIVE PRICE 

As of 9/30/2016
Weighted Average 

Market Cap (millions)
Aggregate

Price-to-Book
Weighted Average  

Profitability

Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $30,958 1.43 0.28

MSCI Emerging Markets Index $61,029 1.55 0.28

 
 



Refining the Universe 

19 

Considerations and potential exclusions 

Considerations and potential exclusions apply to securities Dimensional determines to fall within these categories at the time of potential purchase. This is not a complete list of all possible considerations and potential exclusions and is 
subject to change in all respects.  
1. Not applicable to all strategies; also may not apply to certain companies organized as REITs.  

#21234-0112 

Structural 

• REITs1 

• Highly regulated utilities1 

 

 

 

 

Event Driven 

• Merger or target  
of acquisition 

• Upcoming 
announcements 

• Share classes with 
foreign restrictions and 
with significant premiums 

• Recent IPO 

• Bankruptcy 

• Extraordinary events 

 

Ongoing 

• Listing requirements 

• Limited operating history 

• Insufficient data 

• Insufficient float  
or liquidity 

 

 

 

  



Managing Momentum  

20 

We incorporate momentum when making buy and sell decisions 

Stock returns may exhibit 
momentum: 

• Stocks with large relative 
underperformance tend  
to have negative excess  
returns in the next period. 

• Stocks with large relative 
outperformance tend to  
have positive excess returns  
in the next period. 

Charts for illustrative purposes only. 

#17600-1011 

PAST FUTURE PAST FUTURE TODAY TODAY 

R
E

L
A

T
IV

E
 R

E
T

U
R

N
 

Delay buys of  
securities otherwise 
eligible for purchase. 

Delay sells of  
securities otherwise 
eligible for sale. 

NEGATIVE MOMENTUM POSITIVE MOMENTUM 

  



Trading Costs Matter 

21 

Our approach helps minimize the total costs of trading 

  

#47027-0715 

Commissions,  
custody fees,  
exchange fees 

Bid-ask spread,  
market impact 

We deal with explicit costs 
by keeping commissions  
as low as possible without 
sacrificing overall execution. 

Trading Costs = + Implicit Costs Explicit Costs 

Implicit costs are more 
challenging to measure  
and must be estimated. 
They can potentially be 
large. We apply a trading 
philosophy that emphasizes 
patience and flexibility. 

Low turnover by  
design keeps overall  
trading costs down. 

  



Integrated Portfolio Implementation 

22 

Efficiently balancing expected premiums with the costs of turnover on a daily basis 

• We continuously evaluate  
the portfolio: 

– Buy/sell decisions consider 
expected daily premiums vs. 
transactions costs. 

– Spread trading over time to 
minimize market impact. 

• Our process is built to focus on 
higher expected returns every 
day while considering costs. 

 

#17600-1011 

  



Characteristics 

23 

As of September 30, 2016  

1. Operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by book. 
Holdings are subject to change. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. 

#17595-1011 

EMERGING MARKETS
 CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO

MSCI Emerging
Markets Index

MARKET CHARACTERISTICS

Total Value of Eligible Universe (millions) $4,410,721 $4,081,230

Number of Holdings 4,406 833

SIZE CHARACTERISTICS

Wtd. Average Market Cap (millions) $30,958 $61,029

Median Market Cap (millions) $456 $5,791

VALUATION CHARACTERISTICS

Aggregate Price-to-Book 1.43 1.55

Wtd. Average Dividend-to-Price 2.45% 2.45%

PROFITABILITY CHARACTERISTICS

Wtd. Average Profitability1 0.28 0.28

 
 



Sector Allocations 

24 

As of September 30, 2016 

Numbers may not total 100% due to rounding. Sectors defined by MSCI. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. The REITs industry, a member of the Financials sector, is shown separately to illustrate its exclusion from certain 
funds. 

#17600-1011 

EMERGING MARKETS CORE
EQUITY PORTFOLIO

MSCI Emerging 
Markets Index 

PORTFOLIO WEIGHTS (%)

Financials 23.3 25.8

Information Technology 18.6 23.9

Consumer Discretionary 11.8 10.6

Materials 9.9 6.4

Industrials 9.7 5.9

Consumer Staples 8.7 7.9

Energy 6.0 7.3

Telecommunication Services 4.4 6.1

Utilities 3.9 2.9

Health Care 3.8 2.6

REITs — 0.5

Other 0.0 —

 
 



Country Allocations 

25 

As of September 30, 2016 

Holdings are subject to change. Numbers may not total 100% due to rounding and/or de minimis country exclusions. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved.   
Does not include de minimis country exposure that may occur due to corporate actions or similar events. 

#17624-1011 

 
 

EMERGING MARKETS
CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO

MSCI Emerging
Markets Index

Korea 15.1 14.8

China 15.0 27.0

Taiwan 15.0 12.1

India 13.3 8.5

Brazil 9.4 7.4

South Africa 8.2 7.2

Mexico 4.3 3.7

Malaysia 3.8 2.7

Indonesia 3.4 2.7

Thailand 3.3 2.2

Turkey 1.7 1.2

Philippines 1.6 1.3

Poland 1.5 1.1

Chile 1.4 1.1

Russia 1.4 3.7

Colombia 0.5 0.5

Hungary 0.3 0.3

Greece 0.3 0.3

Czech Republic 0.2 0.2

Peru 0.1 0.4

Egypt 0.1 0.2

UAE — 0.9

Qatar — 0.9

PORTFOLIO WEIGHTS (%)



Holdings are subject to change. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. 

Top 10 Holdings 
As of October 31, 2016 

26 

#17595-1011 

Security Weight % Security Weight %

Samsung Electronics Co Lt 2.9 Samsung Electronics Co Lt 4.0
Taiwan Semiconductor Manu 2.3 Tencent Holdings Ltd 3.7
Tencent Holdings Ltd 1.5 Taiwan Semiconductor Manu 3.6
Itau Unibanco Holding SA 1.2 Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 2.8
Petroleo Brasileiro SA 1.0 Naspers Ltd 1.8
China Construction Bank C 0.9 China Mobile Ltd 1.7
Hon Hai Precision Industr 0.8 China Construction Bank C 1.5
China Mobile Ltd 0.8 Baidu Inc 1.2
Banco Bradesco SA 0.7 Industrial & Commercial B 1.1
Industrial & Commercial B 0.6 Hon Hai Precision Industr 1.0
Total 12.6 Total 22.4

EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO MSCI EMERGING MARKETS INDEX



Emerging Markets Environment 

27 

MSCI Emerging Markets IMI (net dividends) 

Companies are classified as small, mid, and large by computing breakpoints based on total market capitalization in each country or region. Within the US, large is defined as the largest 70% of market cap, mid is the next 20%, and small is 
the smallest 10%. Within the non-US developed markets, large is the largest 70% of market cap, mid is the next 17.5%, and small is the smallest 12.5%.  Within emerging markets, large is the largest 70% of market cap, mid is the next 15%, 
and small is the smallest 15%.  Designations between value, neutral, and growth are constructed in each country or region based on price to book ratios. Value is defined as the 30% of market cap with the lowest price to book ratios, neutral 
is the next 40%, and growth is the highest 30%. Return is the compounded monthly group return for the specified time periods. MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. Indices are not available for direct investment. Their 
performance does not reflect the expenses associated with the management of an actual portfolio. 

YEAR TO DATE: OCTOBER 31, 2016

Value Neutral Growth

Large 24.49% 12.34% 14.32%

Mid 22.85% 12.08% 2.29%

Small 22.44% 11.23% -1.36%

1 YEAR AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2016

Value Neutral Growth

Large 14.90% 4.98% 10.14%

Mid 14.12% 4.97% -1.83%

Small 16.80% 7.57% -3.04%

       

CUMULATIVE RETURNS SINCE ACCOUNT 1ST FULL MONTH: JUNE 1, 2013—OCTOBER 31, 2016

Value Neutral Growth

Large -4.77% -7.65% 12.93%

Mid -4.46% -10.55% -2.17%

Small -0.25% -3.98% -2.18%



Performance 

28 

As of October 31, 2016 

Performance data shown represents past performance and is no guarantee of future results. Performance includes reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. Current 
performance may be higher or lower than the performance shown. The investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when 
redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. To obtain the most current month-end performance data, visit us.dimensional.com. 
1. Returns for periods shorter than one year are not annualized.  
MSCI data copyright MSCI 2016, all rights reserved. Indices are not available for direct investment. See “Appendix: Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures” to learn how to obtain complete information on performance, investment 
objectives, risks, advisory fees, and expenses of Dimensional’s funds. 

#17595-1011 

Account Value

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 
TRANSIT DISTRICT

$13,693,635

 

Calendar Year 
Returns (%)

EMERGING MARKETS
CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO

MSCI Emerging Markets 
Index (net dividends)

2006 30.95 32.14

2007 37.49 39.42

2008 -50.66 -53.33

2009 83.58 78.51

2010 23.62 18.88

2011 -20.65 -18.42

2012 20.49 18.22

2013 -2.64 -2.60

2014 -0.91 -2.19

2015 -14.86 -14.92

Annualized Returns1 (%)
Year to 

Date 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 6/13
 Account
 1st Full 
Month

Since 5/05
 Portfolio

 1st Full 
Month

EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO 18.52 11.87 -0.85 1.69 4.76 -0.05 7.94

MSCI Emerging Markets Index (net dividends) 16.30 9.27 -2.05 0.55 3.49 -0.71 7.28



Appendix 
 



Fees 

30 
1. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in 
effect through 2/28/2017. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 

#17868-1011 

Net Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross)  
Expense Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio1 0.62 0.62 0.55 

 



Client Service Team 
Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Funds 

31 

Stephen A. Clark 
Head of Global Institutional, North America,  
and Vice President 
18 Years Investment Experience 
15th Year with Firm 
Previous Employment: US Bancorp Piper Jaffray 
Education: MBA, University of Chicago Booth  
School of Business; BS, Bradley University  

 
 

Ted Simpson, CFA 
Vice President 
15 Years Investment Experience 
14th Year with Firm 
Previous Employment: Mattel, Salomon Brothers 
Education: MBA, Northwestern University;  
AB, Princeton University 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yassie Entekhabi 
Senior Associate  
6 Years Investment Experience 
1st Year with Firm 
Previous Employment: Kayne Anderson Capital Advisors, J.P. 
Morgan 
Education: MBA, UCLA Anderson School of Management; BA, 
Claremont McKenna College 

 
 
Jennifer Sutherland 

Senior Associate  
8 Years Investment Experience 
1st Year with Firm 
Previous Employment: Deutsche Bank,  
Man Investments 
Education: BS, New York University 
 
 

Weideng He 
Associate  
6 Years Investment Experience 
2nd Year with Firm 
Previous Employment: Barclays Capital 
Education: MS, University of Southern California; 
BA, Waseda University 



Presenter’s Biography 

32 

Ted Simpson, CFA 
Vice President 

Ted Simpson, a vice president on the Institutional Services team, is responsible for developing and maintaining 
relationships with public pension funds, foundations, endowments, Taft-Hartley plan sponsors, and corporate 
pension and defined contribution plans. 

Since joining Dimensional in 2002, Ted has held a number of positions within the firm. He began as a marketing 
consultant before taking a leadership role in the firm's defined contribution market initiative. Later, Ted got 
involved with Dimensional's consultant relations effort and eventually helped manage the group. Most recently, 
he has shifted his attention to working directly with clients. 

Prior to joining Dimensional, Ted worked for Salomon Brothers, Legal & General, Mattel, Lion Nathan, and a 
fee-only RIA. He earned an MBA in marketing, strategy, and organizational behavior from the Kellogg School of 
Management at Northwestern University, and a BA in politics and economics from Princeton University. Ted is a 
CFA Charterholder and holds FINRA licenses 24, 7, and 63. 

 



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

33 

#28230-0912 

  

Performance data shown represents past performance. Past 
performance is no guarantee of future results, and current 
performance may be higher or lower than the performance shown. 
The investment return and principal value of an investment will 
fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may be 
worth more or less than their original cost. To obtain performance 
data current to the most recent month end, access our website at 
us.dimensional.com.  
 
Consider the investment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses 
of the Dimensional funds carefully before investing. For this and 
other information about the Dimensional funds, please read the 
prospectus carefully before investing. Prospectuses are available by 
calling Dimensional Fund Advisors collect at (512) 306-7400 or at 
us.dimensional.com/prospectus. Dimensional funds are distributed by 
DFA Securities LLC. 
 
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP is an investment advisor registered with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission.  
 

Risks include loss of principal and fluctuating value. Investment value 
will fluctuate, and shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less 
than original cost.  
 
Small and micro cap securities are subject to greater volatility than 
those in other asset categories. 
 
International and emerging markets investing involves special risks 
such as currency fluctuation and political instability. Investing in 
emerging markets may accentuate these risks.  
 
Sector-specific investments focus on a specific segment of the market, 
which can increase investment risks.  
 
Fixed income securities are subject to increased loss of principal during 
periods of rising interest rates. Fixed income investments are subject to 
various other risks, including changes in credit quality, liquidity, 
prepayments, call risk, and other factors. Municipal securities are 
subject to the risks of adverse economic and regulatory changes in their 
issuing states. 
 
Real estate investment risks include changes in real estate values and 
property taxes, interest rates, cash flow of underlying real estate assets, 
supply and demand, and the management skill and creditworthiness of 
the issuer. 
 
Sustainability funds use environmental and social screens that may limit 
investment opportunities for the fund. 
 
Commodities include increased risks, such as political, economic, and 
currency instability, and may not be suitable for all investors. The 
Portfolio may be more volatile than a diversified fund because the 
Portfolio invests in a smaller number of issuers and commodity sectors. 
 
The fund prospectuses contain more information about investment 
risks. 

  



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

34 

1. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
2. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
3. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This portion of the contractual fee waiver and/or 
expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been adjusted to reflect the Feeder Portfolio's new investment management agreement, effective July 21, 2015, and includes 
an investment management fee payable by the Feeder Portfolio and an investment management fee payable by the Master Fund. For any period when the Feeder Portfolio is invested in other funds managed by the Advisor (collectively, 
"Underlying Funds"), the Advisor has contractually agreed to permanently waive the Feeder Portfolio’s direct investment management fee to the extent necessary to offset the proportionate share of any Underlying Fund’s investment 
management fee paid by the Feeder Portfolio through its investment in such Underlying Fund. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
4. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees of the Portfolio. The contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 

#28230-0912 

  

As of September 30, 2016  
Average Annual Total Returns (%) Symbol 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Since  
Inception 

Net  
Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross) 
Expense  
Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Inception  
Date 

US Equity Portfolios 

US Core Equity 1 Portfolio1,2 DFEOX 13.93 16.41 7.46 7.67 0.19 0.19 0.17 9/15/2005 

US Core Equity 2 Portfolio1,2 DFQTX 13.58 16.41 7.07 7.40 0.22 0.22 0.20 9/15/2005 

US Vector Equity Portfolio1,2 DFVEX 12.90 16.25 6.56 7.07 0.32 0.32 0.30 12/30/2005 

US Micro Cap Portfolio1 DFSCX 14.65 16.83 7.23 11.83 0.52 0.52 0.50 12/23/1981 

US Small Cap Portfolio1 DFSTX 13.82 16.84 8.21 10.39 0.37 0.37 0.35 3/19/1992 

US Small Cap Value Portfolio1 DFSVX 13.57 16.45 6.36 11.60 0.52 0.52 0.50 3/2/1993 

US Small Cap Growth Portfolio1,2 DSCGX 11.61 — — 13.24 0.40 0.40 0.35 12/20/2012 

US Targeted Value Portfolio1,2 DFFVX 14.05 16.75 6.95 11.33 0.37 0.37 0.35 2/23/2000 

US Large Cap Value Portfolio3  DFLVX 15.08 17.76 6.50 9.94 0.27 0.37 0.35 2/19/1993 

US Large Cap Growth Portfolio1,2 DUSLX 14.25 — — 13.94 0.20 0.20 0.17 12/20/2012 

US Large Company Portfolio1,4 DFUSX 15.41 16.30 7.25 5.11 0.08 0.09 0.06 9/23/1999 

US Large Cap Equity Portfolio1,2 DUSQX 13.98 — — 11.11 0.19 0.19 0.15 6/25/2013 

Enhanced US Large Company Portfolio1  DFELX 15.87 16.54 7.50 8.17 0.24 0.24 0.20 7/2/1996 



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

35 

1. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
2. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
3. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been adjusted to reflect the Feeder Portfolio's new investment management agreement, effective July 21, 2015, and includes 
an investment management fee payable by the Feeder Portfolio and an investment management fee payable by the Master Fund. For any period when the Feeder Portfolio is invested in other funds managed by the Advisor (collectively, 
"Underlying Funds"), the Advisor has contractually agreed to permanently waive the Feeder Portfolio’s direct investment management fee to the extent necessary to offset the proportionate share of any Underlying Fund’s investment 
management fee paid by the Feeder Portfolio through its investment in such Underlying Fund. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
4. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been restated to reflect current fee components. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, 
assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
5. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense 
assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been restated to reflect current fee components. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 

#28230-0912 

  

As of September 30, 2016  
Average Annual Total Returns (%) Symbol 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Since  
Inception 

Net  
Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross) 
Expense  
Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Inception  
Date 

Non-US Equity Portfolios 

International Core Equity Portfolio1,2 DFIEX 9.94 8.44 2.81 4.38 0.38 0.38 0.35 9/15/2005 

International Vector Equity Portfolio1,2 DFVQX 10.94 8.58 — 4.20 0.50 0.50 0.45 8/14/2008 

International Small Company Portfolio1,2 DFISX 13.71 10.45 4.91 6.89 0.54 0.54 0.40 9/30/1996 

International Small Cap Value Portfolio1  DISVX 10.46 11.47 4.64 7.44 0.69 0.69 0.65 12/29/1994 

International Small Cap Growth Portfolio1,2 DISMX 14.37 — — 10.15 0.55 0.67 0.50 12/20/2012 

International Value Portfolio3 DFIVX 6.10 5.88 0.93 5.83 0.43 0.63 0.60 2/15/1994 

International Large Cap Growth Portfolio1,2 DILRX 8.72 — — 5.60 0.30 0.34 0.25 12/20/2012 

Large Cap International Portfolio1 DFALX 7.26 7.28 2.10 5.39 0.29 0.29 0.25 7/17/1991 

Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio1,2 DFCEX 18.15 4.13 5.42 7.54 0.62 0.62 0.55 4/5/2005 

Emerging Markets Small Cap Portfolio3  DEMSX 20.73 6.94 7.59 11.56 0.73 0.93 0.85 3/5/1998 

Emerging Markets Value Portfolio3  DFEVX 19.78 2.24 4.14 9.90 0.56 0.66 0.60 4/1/1998 

Emerging Markets Portfolio3 DFEMX 17.46 3.49 4.67 6.64 0.57 0.67 0.60 4/25/1994 

World ex US Value Portfolio1,2 DFWVX 9.47 5.52 — 3.29 0.53 0.75 0.47 8/23/2010 

World ex US Targeted Value Portfolio 4 DWUSX 14.71 — — 7.57 0.64 0.64 0.58 11/1/2012 

World ex US Core Equity Portfolio5 DFWIX 11.63 — — 2.76 0.47 0.49 0.40 4/9/2013 



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

36 

1. Assumed highest marginal tax rate in effect for capital gains and ordinary income. Income from funds managed for tax efficiency may be subject to an alternative minimum tax and/or any applicable state and local taxes. 
2. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses.   
3. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
4. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been adjusted to reflect the Feeder Portfolio's new investment management agreement, effective July 21, 2015, and includes 
an investment management fee payable by the Feeder Portfolio and an investment management fee payable by the Master Fund. For any period when the Feeder Portfolio is invested in other funds managed by the Advisor (collectively, 
"Underlying Funds"), the Advisor has contractually agreed to permanently waive the Feeder Portfolio’s direct investment management fee to the extent necessary to offset the proportionate share of any Underlying Fund’s investment 
management fee paid by the Feeder Portfolio through its investment in such Underlying Fund. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 

#28230-0912 

  

As of September 30, 2016  
Average Annual Total Returns (%) Symbol 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Since  
Inception 

Net  
Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross) 
Expense  
Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Inception  
Date 

Tax Managed Portfolios1 

Tax-Managed US Small Cap Portfolio
2 

DFTSX 13.44 16.86 6.97 9.24 0.52 0.52 0.50 12/15/1998 

   After Taxes on Distributions 11.82 16.24 6.48 8.93 

   After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 8.49 13.59 5.59 7.91 

Tax-Managed US Targeted Value Portfolio2 DTMVX 11.11 17.45 6.44 9.98 0.44 0.44 0.42 12/11/1998 

   After Taxes on Distributions 9.67 16.52 5.70 9.40 

   After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 7.05 14.08 5.13 8.57 

Tax-Managed US Equity Portfolio2,3 DTMEX 14.55 16.13 7.20 7.46 0.22 0.22 0.20 9/25/2001 

   After Taxes on Distributions 13.75 15.62 6.81 7.14 

   After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 8.34 12.95 5.77 6.17 

Tax-Managed US Marketwide Value Portfolio4 DTMMX 12.64 17.67 6.63 7.13 0.37 0.57 0.55 12/14/1998 

   After Taxes on Distributions 11.84 17.19 6.25 6.79 

   After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 7.24 14.27 5.29 5.91 

Tax-Managed International Value Portfolio2 DTMIX 6.16 5.65 1.07 5.12 0.53 0.53 0.50 4/16/1999 

   After Taxes on Distributions 4.81 4.96 0.43 4.56 

   After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 3.62 4.52 1.20 4.43 

TA US Core Equity 2 Portfolio2,3 DFTCX 13.42 16.44 — 6.29 0.24 0.24 0.22 10/4/2007 

    After Taxes on Distributions 12.67 15.85 — 5.88 

    After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 7.69 13.22 — 4.97 

TA World ex US Core Equity Portfolio2,3 DFTWX 11.39 7.32 — 1.94 0.45 0.45 0.40 3/6/2008 

    After Taxes on Distributions 10.32 6.75 — 1.51 

    After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares 6.56 5.80 — 1.60 



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

37 

1. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
2. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees of the Portfolio. The contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017.  
3. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
4. The Portfolio is a new portfolio, so the expense information is based on anticipated fees and expenses for the first full fiscal year. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the 
Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
5. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense 
assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio" has been restated to reflect current fee components. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
6. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense 
assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The “Total Operating Expense Ratio” has been adjusted to reflect the decrease in the management fee payable by the Portfolio from 0.30% to 0.10%, effective March 12, 2015. 
The “Net Expense Ratio” has been adjusted to reflect an amendment to the Amended and Restated Fee Waiver and Expense Assumption Agreement for the Portfolio with the Advisor effective as of February 28, 2015, which reduced the 
expense limitation amount for the Portfolio. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 

  

As of September 30, 2016  
Average Annual Total Returns (%) Symbol 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Since  
Inception 

Net  
Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross) 
Expense  
Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Inception  
Date 

Fixed Income Portfolios          
One-Year Fixed Income Portfolio

1
  DFIHX 0.67 0.52 1.67 4.77 0.17 0.17 0.15 7/25/1983 

Short-Term Government Portfolio
1,2

 DFFGX 1.40 1.20 2.92 5.19 0.19 0.19 0.17 6/1/1987 
Short-Term Extended Quality Portfolio

1,3
 DFEQX 2.76 2.02 — 3.39 0.22 0.22 0.20 3/4/2009 

California Short-Term Municipal Bond Portfolio
1,3

 DFCMX 1.08 0.95 — 1.88 0.22 0.22 0.20 4/2/2007 
Short-Term Municipal Bond Portfolio

1,2
 DFSMX 1.08 0.83 1.82 1.85 0.22 0.22 0.20 8/20/2002 

Short-Duration Real Return Portfolio
1,3

 DFAIX 3.79 — — 0.78 0.24 0.23 0.20 11/5/2013 
Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio

1
  DFGFX 0.70 0.63 1.82 3.23 0.18 0.18 0.15 2/9/1996 

Selectively Hedged Global Fixed Income Portfolio
1,3

 DFSHX 5.89 0.84 — 1.07 0.17 0.17 0.15 1/9/2008 
Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio

1
  DFGBX 2.91 2.35 3.64 5.49 0.27 0.27 0.25 11/6/1990 

Municipal Real Return Portfolio
1,3

 DMREX 4.36 — — 0.71 0.27 0.35 0.20 11/4/2014 
Municipal Bond Portfolio

1,3
 DFMPX 3.05 — — 2.81 0.23 0.37 0.20 3/10/2015 

California Intermediate-Term Municipal Bond Portfolio
1,3

 DCIBX 2.89 — — 2.89 0.23 0.23 0.20 11/29/2011 
NY Municipal Bond Portfolio

4
 DNYMX 2.82 — — 3.31 0.25 0.25 0.20 6/16/2015 

Intermediate-Term Municipal Bond Portfolio
1,3

 DFTIX 3.04 — — 2.02 0.23 0.23 0.20 3/1/2012 
Targeted Credit Portfolio

4
 DTCPX 3.58 — — 2.78 0.20 0.23 0.19 5/20/2015 

Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio 
1
 DFIGX 4.58 2.78 5.07 6.50 0.12 0.12 0.10 10/19/1990 

Intermediate-Term Extended Quality Portfolio
1,3

 DFTEX 8.04 4.58 — 4.93 0.22 0.22 0.20 7/20/2010 
Investment Grade Portfolio

5
 DFAPX 5.47 3.42 — 4.37 0.22 0.22 0.20 3/7/2011 

Inflation-Protected Securities Portfolio
1,3

 DIPSX 6.67 2.00 4.71 4.79 0.12 0.12 0.10 9/18/2006 
LTIP Portfolio

6 
DRXIX 20.57 — — 1.95 0.15 16.11 0.10 3/7/2012 

World ex US Government Fixed Income Portfolio
1,3

 DWFIX 8.83 — — 5.62 0.20 0.22 0.18 12/6/2011 

Commodities Portfolio 

Commodity Strategy Portfolio1,3 DCMSX 0.08 -7.79 — -7.99 0.34 0.34 0.30 11/9/2010 



Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures 

38 

1. Expense information as of 10/31/2015. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
2. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees of the Portfolio. The contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
3. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2017. 
4. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016.  The ''Management Fee'' and ''Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses'' have been adjusted to reflect the decrease in the management fee payable by the Portfolio from 
0.35% to 0.25% effective as of February 28, 2015.  The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will 
remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
5. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain instances, assume certain expenses of the Portfolio. The Fee Waiver and Expense Assumption Agreement 
for the Portfolio will remain in effect through February 28, 2017. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio'' has been adjusted to reflect the decrease in the management fee payable by the Portfolio from 0.27% to 0.20% effective as of February 28, 
2015. The "Total Operating Expense Ratio'' has also been restated to reflect current fee components. The "Net Expense Ratio” has been adjusted to reflect an amendment to the Fee Waiver and Expense Assumption Agreement for the 
Portfolio with the Advisor effective as of February 28, 2015, which reduced the expense limitation amount for the Portfolio. The “Net Expense Ratio” for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2015 was 0.27%. The fund's prospectus contains more 
information on fees and expenses. 
6. Expense information as provided in the prospectus, dated 2/28/2016. "Net Expenses Ratio” has been adjusted to reflect an amendment to the Fee Waiver and Expense Assumption Agreement for the Portfolio with the Advisor effective as 
of February 28, 2016, which reduced the expense limitation amount for the Portfolio. The “Total Operating Expense Ratio” of the Portfolio did not reach the previous expense limitation amount during the fiscal 
year ended October 31, 2015. The Fee Waiver and Expense Assumption Agreement remain in effect through 2/28/2017. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses. 
7. The Portfolio is a new portfolio, so the expense information is based on anticipated fees and expenses for the current fiscal year. The Advisor has agreed to waive certain fees and, in certain circumstances, assume certain expenses of the 
Portfolio. This contractual fee waiver and/or expense assumption agreement will remain in effect through 2/28/2018. The fund's prospectus contains more information on fees and expenses.  

  

As of September 30, 2016  
Average Annual Total Returns (%) Symbol 1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Since  
Inception 

Net  
Expense 
Ratio (%) 

Total (Gross) 
Expense  
Ratio (%) 

Management 
Fee (%) 

Inception  
Date 

Global Portfolios 

Global Allocation 25/75 Portfolio
1,2 

DGTSX 5.42 4.54 4.16 4.43 0.26 0.43 0.20 12/24/2003 

Global Allocation 60/40 Portfolio
1,2 

DGSIX 10.05 8.82 5.17 6.15 0.29 0.52 0.25 12/24/2003 

Global Equity Portfolio
1,2 DGEIX 13.13 13.15 5.56 7.60 0.31 0.60 0.30 12/24/2003 

Selectively Hedged Global Equity Portfolio1,3 DSHGX 12.41 — — 10.02 0.40 0.66 0.30 11/14/2011 

World Core Equity Portfolio1,3 DREIX 12.77 — — 9.17 0.35 0.65 0.30 3/7/2012 

Real Estate Portfolios 

Real Estate Securities Portfolio1,3 DFREX 19.99 15.77 6.06 10.53 0.18 0.19 0.17 1/5/1993 

International Real Estate Securities Portfolio4 DFITX 13.58 10.97 — 0.66 0.29 0.29 0.25 3/1/2007 

Global Real Estate Securities Portfolio5 DFGEX 17.74 13.83 — 6.13 0.24 0.38 0.20 6/4/2008 

Social and Sustainability Portfolios 

US Sustainability Core 1 Portfolio6 DFSIX 13.45 16.36 — 8.64 0.25 0.32 0.29 3/12/2008 

International Sustainability Core 1 Portfolio6 DFSPX 8.01 7.90 — 1.43 0.42 0.48 0.42 3/12/2008 

US Social Core Equity 2 Portfolio1,2 DFUEX 13.37 15.66 — 5.37 0.29 0.29 0.25 10/1/2007 

International Social Core Equity Portfolio1,3 DSCLX 10.07 — — 6.14 0.46 0.46 0.37 11/1/2012 

Emerging Markets Social Core Equity Portfolio1,3 DFESX 19.31 3.93 5.02 5.00 0.65 0.65 0.55 8/31/2006 

Social Fixed Income Portfolio
7 

DSFIX — — — 1.59 0.27 0.42 0.20 4/5/2016 



Index Descriptions 

39 
 
 

The Dimensional Indices have been retrospectively calculated by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP and did not exist prior to their index inceptions dates. Accordingly, results shown during the periods prior to each Index’s index inception date 
do not represent actual returns of the Index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested index performance is hypothetical and is provided for informational purposes only to indicate historical 
performance had the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results assume the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. 

Dimensional US Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in March 2007 and is 
compiled by Dimensional. It represents a market-capitalization-weighted index of 
securities of the smallest US companies whose market capitalization falls in the 
lowest 8% of the total market capitalization of the Eligible Market. The Eligible 
Market is composed of securities of US companies traded on the NYSE, NYSE MKT 
(formerly AMEX), and Nasdaq Global Market. Exclusions: Non-US companies, REITs, 
UITs, and investment companies. From January 1975 to the present, the index also 
excludes companies with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the 
small cap universe. Profitability is measured as operating income before 
depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by book. Source: CRSP 
and Compustat. The index monthly returns are computed as the simple average of 
the monthly returns of 12 sub-indices, each one reconstituted once a year at the end 
of a different month of the year. The calculation methodology for the Dimensional 
US Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to include profitability as a 
factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

Dimensional US High Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in January 
2014 and represents an index consisting of US companies. It is compiled by 
Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability groups from high to 
low. Each group represents one-third of the market capitalization. Similarly, stocks 
are sorted into three relative price groups. The intersections of the three profitability 
groups and the three relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on 
profitability and relative price. The index represents the average return of the three 
high-profitability subgroups. It is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured 
as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense 
scaled by book. Source: CRSP and Compustat. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dimensional US Low Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in January 
2014 and represents an index consisting of US companies. It is compiled by 
Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability groups from high to 
low. Each group represents one-third of the market capitalization. Similarly, stocks 
are sorted into three relative price groups. The intersections of the three profitability 
groups and the three relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on 
profitability and relative price. The index represents the average return of the three 
low-profitability subgroups. It is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured 
as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense 
scaled by book. Source: CRSP and Compustat. 

Dimensional International Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in April 
2008 and is compiled by Dimensional. July 1981–December 1993: It Includes non-
US developed securities in the bottom 10% of market capitalization in each eligible 
country. All securities are market capitalization weighted. Each country is capped at 
50%. Rebalanced semiannually. January 1994–Present: Market-capitalization-
weighted index of small company securities in the eligible markets excluding those 
with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the small cap universe. 
Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization 
minus interest expense scaled by book. The index monthly returns are computed as 
the simple average of the monthly returns of four sub-indices, each one 
reconstituted once a year at the end of a different quarter of the year. Prior to July 
1981, the index is 50% UK and 50% Japan. The calculation methodology for the 
Dimensional International Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to 
include profitability as a factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

 

 

 

   
  

 
   
  

  
 

  



Index Descriptions 

40 

The Dimensional Indices have been retrospectively calculated by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP and did not exist prior to their index inceptions dates. Accordingly, results shown during the periods prior to each Index’s index inception date do 
not represent actual returns of the Index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested index performance is hypothetical and is provided for informational purposes only to indicate historical performance had 
the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results assume the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. Eugene Fama and Ken French are members of the Board of Directors for and provide 
consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. 

Dimensional International Low Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in 
January 2013 and represents an index consisting of non-US developed companies. 
It is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability 
groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 
capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 
price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 
relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 
The index represents the average return of the three low-profitability subgroups. 
The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as operating 
income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by 
book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional International High Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in 
January 2013 and represents an index consisting of non-US developed companies. 
It is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability 
groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 
capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 
price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 
relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 
The index represents the average return of the three high-profitability subgroups. 
The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as operating 
income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by 
book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets Low Profitability Index was created by 
Dimensional in April 2013 and represents an index consisting of emerging markets 
companies and is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three 
profitability groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 
capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 
price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 
relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 
The index represents the average return of the three low-profitability subgroups. 
The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as operating 
income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by 
book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets High Profitability Index was created by 
Dimensional in April 2013 and represents an index consisting of emerging markets 
companies and is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three 
profitability groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 
capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 
price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 
relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 
The index represents the average return of the three high-profitability subgroups. 
The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as operating 
income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by 
book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in 
April 2008 and is compiled by Dimensional. January 1989–December 1993: 
Fama/French Emerging Markets Small Cap Index. January 1994–Present: 
Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Index Composition: Market-capitalization-
weighted index of small company securities in the eligible markets excluding those 
with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the small cap universe. 
Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization 
minus interest expense scaled by book. The index monthly returns are computed as 
the simple average of the monthly returns of four sub-indices, each one 
reconstituted once a year at the end of a different quarter of the year.  
Source: Bloomberg. The calculation methodology for the Dimensional Emerging 
Markets Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to include profitability 
as a factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

 

   
  

 
   
  

  
 

  



Index Descriptions 

41 

Results shown during periods prior to each Index’s index inception date do not represent actual returns of the respective index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested index performance is hypothetical 
and is provided for informational purposes only to indicate historical performance had the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results assume the reinvestment of dividends  
and capital gains. Eugene Fama and Ken French are members of the Board of Directors for and provide consulting services to Dimensional Fund Advisors LP. 

Fama/French US Value Index: Provided by Fama/French from CRSP securities data. 
Includes the lower 30% in price-to-book of NYSE securities (plus NYSE Amex 
equivalents since July 1962 and Nasdaq equivalents since 1973). 

Fama/French US Growth Index: Provided by Fama/French from CRSP securities 
data. Includes the higher 30% in price-to-book of NYSE securities (plus NYSE Amex 
equivalents since July 1962 and Nasdaq equivalents since 1973). 

Fama/French International Value Index: 2008–present: Provided by Fama/French 
from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy of MSCI EAFE + Canada 
countries in the lower 30% price-to-book range. 1975–2007: Provided by 
Fama/French from MSCI securities data. 

Fama/French International Growth Index: 2008–present: Provided by Fama/French 
from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy of MSCI EAFE + Canada 
countries in the higher 30% price-to-book range. 1975–2007: Provided by 
Fama/French from MSCI securities data. 

Fama/French Emerging Markets Value Index: 2009–present: Provided by 
Fama/French from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy using IFC 
investable universe countries. Companies in the lower 30% price-to-book range; 
companies weighted by float-adjusted market cap; countries weighted by country 
float-adjusted market cap; rebalanced monthly. 1989–2008: Provided by 
Fama/French from IFC securities data. IFC data provided by International  
Finance Corporation. 

Fama/French Emerging Markets Growth Index: 2009–present: Provided by 
Fama/French from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy using IFC 
investable universe countries. Companies in the higher 30% price-to-book range; 
companies weighted by float-adjusted market cap; countries weighted by country 
float-adjusted market cap; rebalanced monthly. 1989–2008: Provided by 
Fama/French from IFC securities data. IFC data provided by International  
Finance Corporation.  

 

    
  

 
   
  

  
 

  



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Information 10/05/16

Subject: Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE Funds by
State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Funds for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 11/22/2016
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Investment Performance Review of the S&P 500 Index and MSCI EAFE Funds by State Street
Global Advisors (SSgA) for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Funds for the
Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information only.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Retirement funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines (Policy) adopted by each Retirement Board (Board). The Board shall meet
at least every eighteen (18) months with each investment manager to review the performance
of its investment, the adherence to the Policy, and any material changes to its organization.
The Policy also establishes the Retirement Funds’ asset allocation policy and the asset
classes in which the Plans' funds are invested.  The asset classes established by the Policy
are (1) Domestic Large Capitalization Equity, (2) Domestic Small Capitalization Equity, (3)
International Large Capitalization Equity, (4) International Small Capitalization Equity, (5)
International Emerging Markets, and (6) Domestic Fixed-Income.

SSgA is the fund manager for the Retirement Boards’ Domestic Large Capitalization Equity
S&P 500 Index Fund, as well as the Retirement Boards’ International Large Capitalization
Equity MSCI EAFE Index Fund. SSgA will be presenting performance results, for both funds,
for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, shown on Attachment 1, and answering any
questions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
  17



CMINST-14496 

Patrick J. Hearne 

Arman Palian 

 

December 14, 2016 

Sacramento Regional Transit 

District Employees 

This material is solely for the private use of Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees and is not intended for public dissemination. 



Insurance 4% 

Cash Sec Lending 3% 

Official Institution 14% 

$2.4 Trillion in Assets Under Management* 
 

As of September 30, 2016. 
* AUM reflects approx. $40.29 billion (as of September 30, 2016) with respect to which State Street Global Markets, LLC (SSGM) serves as marketing agent; SSGM and State Street Global Advisors are affiliated. 
1 Official Institutions is a client type that includes all plan type assets including DB and DC. 

11 GLSTND-2765 

APAC 12% 

US 73% 

Passive Equity 
55% 

Cash 14% 

MACS 5% 

Active Fixed Income 3% Active Equity 3% 

Defined Contribution 14% 

Clients1 

by % of AUM 

Defined Benefit 23% 

Not for Profit 3% 

Intermediary 20% 

Other 11% 

Passive Fixed 
Income  

13% 

Alternatives & Other 7% 

EMEA 15% 

CTF ERISA Commingled 20% 

Location 
by % of AUM 

Asset Class 
by % of AUM 

Cash Direct 
Commingled 7% 

Private Fund 1% 

US Mutual Fund 5% 

ETF 20% 

Non US Commingled 5% 

SMA 50% Vehicle 
by % of AUM 



Business Leadership Team 
 

As of September 30, 2016. 

13 GLSTND-2765 

Ronald P. O’Hanley 
President & CEO 

Marc Brown 
Chief Administrative  
Officer 

Jim Ross 
Chairman of Global  
SPDR  

Nick Good 
Co-Head of Global  
SPDR 

Mike Karpik 
Head of Europe,  
Middle East & Africa 

Lochiel Crafter 
Head of Asia Pacific 

Rory Tobin 
Co-Head of Global  
SPDR 

Steve Lipiner 
Chief Financial  
Officer 

Kem Danner 
Head of Human  
Resources 

Matt Steinaway 
Chief Risk Officer 

Alyssa Albertelli 
Chief Compliance  
Officer  

Phillip S. Gillespie 
General Counsel 

Cyrus Taraporevala  
Head of Global  
Product & Marketing 

Barry FX Smith 
Head of Americas  
Institutional Client Group 



Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees  

17 CMINST-14496 

Source: SSGA. 
* Includes dividends, interest, and realized/unrealized gains and losses. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. 

Investment Summary 
As of September 30, 2016 

 Market Value 

State Street MSCI EAFE Index NL Fund $9,248,739  

State Street S&P 500 Flagship NL Fund 41,641,388  

Total $50,890,127  

Statement of Asset Changes 
The following changes took place in the Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees account for the  
period of October 01, 2015 to September 30, 2016: 

Market Value 
10/01/2015  Contributions Withdrawals 

Change in  
Market Value* 

Market Value 
9/30/2016  

State Street MSCI EAFE Index NL Fund $20,473,044  —  $(12,201,601) $977,296  $9,248,739  

State Street S&P 500 Flagship NL Fund 37,177,586  —  (1,253,249) 5,717,051  41,641,388  

Total $57,650,630  —  $(13,454,850) $6,694,347  $50,890,127  



Source: SSGA.  
† The calculation method for value added returns may show rounding differences. 
Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. 
Return periods of less than one year are not annualized. The performance figures contained herein are provided on a gross and net of fees basis, gross of fees do not and net of fees do reflect the deduction  
of advisory or other fees which could reduce the return. The performance includes the reinvestment of dividends and other corporate earnings and is calculated in US dollars.  
 Index returns reflect capital gains and losses, income, and the reinvestment of dividends. 

Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees  

CMINST-14496 

Summary of Performance 
Following are the gross and net returns for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees portfolios versus  
the corresponding benchmarks as of September 30, 2016: 

One 
Month 

Three 
Months 

Year to 
Date 

Last 12 
Months 

Three 
Years 

Five  
Years 

Since 
Inception 

State Street MSCI EAFE Index NL Fund    June/2012 

Total Returns   1.26%  6.48%  2.06%  6.88%  0.79% N/A  7.66% 

MSCI EAFE® Index  1.23  6.43  1.73  6.52  0.48 N/A  7.34 

Difference†  0.03  0.05  0.33  0.36  0.31 N/A  0.32 

Total Returns [Net]   1.25  6.46  1.99  6.78  0.69 N/A N/A 

MSCI EAFE® Index  1.23  6.43  1.73  6.52  0.48 N/A N/A 

Difference†  0.02  0.03  0.26  0.26  0.21 N/A N/A 

State Street S&P 500 Flagship NL Fund             June/2012 

Total Returns  0.02  3.88  7.87  15.50  11.21 N/A  14.07 

S&P 500®  0.02  3.85  7.84  15.43  11.16 N/A  14.01 

Difference†  0.00  0.03  0.03  0.07  0.05 N/A  0.06 

Total Returns (Net)  0.02  3.87  7.83  15.44  11.16 N/A N/A 

S&P 500®  0.02  3.85  7.84  15.43  11.16 N/A N/A 

Difference†  0.00  0.02  -0.01  0.01  0.00 N/A N/A 

18 



Table of Contents 

1. State Street Global Advisors: Firm Overview 

2. Account Summary 

3. Global Equity Beta Solutions Overview 

4. Portfolio Review for MSCI EAFE® Index Strategy 

5. Portfolio Review for S&P 500® Index Strategy 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A: GIPS® Presentations 

Appendix B: Important Disclosures 

Appendix C: Biographies 

The information contained in this document is current as of the date presented unless otherwise noted.  

2 CMINST-14496 



State Street Global Advisors 
Firm Overview 

GLSTND-2765 

 

3 



State Street 

4 GLSTND-2765 

 
1 State Street and McKinsey Global Institute, June 30, 2015. 
2 AUM reflects approx. $40.29 billion (as of September 30, 2016) with respect to which State Street Global Markets, LLC (SSGM) serves as marketing agent; SSGM and State Street Global Advisors are affiliated. 

Responsible for 11% of the world’s assets1 —  

with four businesses under one strong global enterprise 

STATE STREET 
State Street Global Markets 
Research & Trading 

State Street Global Exchange 
Data & Analytics 

State Street Global Services 
Asset Servicing 

State Street Global Advisors 
Asset Management 

Delivering new insights into  

risk management and  

investment strategy 

• Aligning research and 

advisory, portfolio 

performance and risk 

analytics, information  

and data management  

to deliver innovation  

• Customized and flexible  

multi-asset class products  

and services 

Maintaining the inventory of  

client capital and dividends/ 

interest owing products 

• Assets under custody  

and administration of  

US$29 trillion as of  

September 30, 2016 

• One of the world’s leading 

investment service providers 

• Fund accounting and 

administration, custody, 

investment operations 

outsourcing, recordkeeping, 

performance and analytics,  

and transfer agency services 

Research and trading solutions  

that can improve the efficient 

use of client capital 

• Global leader in investment 

research, trading and  

securities lending 

• Providing liquidity across  

36 international markets,  

with approximately  

US$3.23 trillion 

in lendable assets as of 

September 30, 2016 

• US$23.5 trillion in foreign 

exchange and interbank 

volume traded in 2015 

Developing investment 

strategies that aim to make the 

best use of client capital 

• Proven experience, with  

US$2.4 trillion in assets  

under management2  

as of September 30, 2016 

• Investment management 

strengths spanning active, 

passive, smart-beta, 

alternatives and multi-asset 

solutions (including Outsourced 

Chief Investment Officer) 



State Street Global Advisors 

5 GLSTND-2765 

As of September 30, 2016. 
1 Pensions and Investments Research Center, December 31, 2015. Updated Annually. 

2 AUM reflects approx. $40.29 billion (as of September 30, 2016) with respect to which State Street Global Markets, LLC (SSGM) serves as marketing agent; SSGM and State Street Global Advisors are affiliated. 
3 Locations can be found in the following countries: Australia, Belgium, Canada, United Arab Eremites (Dubai), France, Germany, Hong Kong, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Netherlands, Singapore, Switzerland, 
United Kingdom, and United States.  

The third largest asset manager in the world — well positioned to leverage  

State Street’s global scale, infrastructure and relationships 

STATE STREET 
State Street Global Markets 
Research & Trading 

State Street Global Exchange 
Data & Analytics 

State Street Global Services 
Asset Servicing 

State Street Global Advisors 
Asset Management 

#3 global asset manager1 

$2.3 trillion2 in assets  

2850+ clients  

13 million DC participants 

63 countries with clients 

9 investment centers 

14 product domiciles 

24-hour global trading  

capability  

2800+ employees  

around the world  Global locations of State Street Global Advisors3 



Why Clients Choose State Street Global Advisors 
 

6 GLSTND-2765 

Global Insights &  
Experience 
We have the size, scale and global 
perspectives to develop innovative 
solutions to changing markets 

Collaboration &  
Outcome Focus 
We collaborate with the world’s largest,  
most sophisticated investors and  
financial professionals to co-create 
solutions to help them reach  
their goals 

Fiduciary Mindset 
Putting our clients’ long-term  
interests ahead of our own has  
been part of State Street’s culture  
for more than 200 years 

Comprehensive  
Capabilities 
We offer a comprehensive set of 
capabilities spanning active,  
passive, smart beta, alternatives,  
and multi-asset solutions 



Our Investment Philosophy 
 

7 GLSTND-2765 

Understanding  
the multiple 
dimensions  
of a client’s long-term 

objectives and 

liabilities is key to 

creating successful 

investment outcomes 

Asset allocation 
is the primary driver of  

long-term returns:  

• Investors need efficient 

access to a broad 

universe of capital 

market exposures 

• Focus should be on 

underlying risks, not  

asset class labels 

Markets 
are not always efficient  

due to behavioral biases, 

informational 

inefficiencies and limits 

to arbitrage, leading to 

opportunities  

for excess return 

Capital- &  
risk-efficient 
portfolios  
can be achieved through  

a thoughtful and precise 

combination of market  

risk, factor risk, 

idiosyncratic risk and 

manager skill 

WE BELIEVE: 



The New Investment Reality 
 

8 GLSTND-2765 

Depressed 
Interest 
Rates 
Search for yield 
more challenging  
 

Lower-for-Longer  
Growth 
Lower return targets or take 
on more risk 

Rethink portfolio approaches 
to diversification and growth  

Growing Risks  
to the  
Downside 
Manage volatility and 
drawdown risk as 
capital recovery 
takes longer 

Costs Play 
Greater Role  
in Outcomes 
More systematic and 
capital-efficient solutions 

Investor Challenges and Needs 



The New Investment Reality 
 

For illustrative purposes only. The information on this page should not be considered a recommendation to invest in a particular sector or to buy or sell any security shown. It is not known whether the sectors or 
securities shown will be profitable in the future. The information provided does not constitute investment advice and it should not be relied on as such. It should not be considered a solicitation to buy or an offer 
to sell a security. It does not take into account any investor’s particular investment objectives, strategies, tax status or investment horizon. You should consult your tax and financial advisor. Diversification does 
not ensure a profit or guarantee against loss. 

9 GLSTND-2765 

Portfolio Expected Return 

Portfolio Standard Deviation (SD) 

Expected Return/SD 

Portfolio Interest Rate Duration 

         7.0% 

           8.1% 

 0.9% 

   3.3% 

         7.0% 

                   13.2% 

0.5% 

   3.3% 

Global  
Developed 
Equities  
40% 

US Bonds/LB 
Aggregate 

60% 

Global  
Factor-Tilted 
Equities 
47.5% 

Global Developed 
Active Equities 
15% 

US Long Credit Bond 
17.5% 

Emerging 
Market Bonds 

10% 

Private Equity 
10% 

High Yield Bonds 
10% 

Increased Portfolio Complexity in a Challenging Return Environment 



Capabilities 
 

10 GLSTND-2765 

Asset Allocation & Portfolio Solutions Management 

• Equity/Fixed Income 

• Value 

• Volatility 

• Momentum 

• Size 

• Quality 

• Term spread 

• Carry 

• Multi-factor 

• Equity 

• Fixed Income 

– Credit 

– Rates 

• Real Assets 

• Currency 

• Cash 

• Fundamental Equity 

• Fixed Income 

• Quantitative Equity 

• Currency 

• Cash 

• Private Equity 

• Private Real Estate 

• Hedge Funds 

• Commodities 

• Risk Premia 

Outsourced CIO 

Comprehensive Suite of Solutions 



2016  
• GE Asset 

Management Acquisition 

• First proprietary Index — the 
SSGA Gender Diversity Index 

2015  
• First S&P 500 fossil-fuel-free 

ETF in partnership with the  
US Natural Resources  
Defense Council 

2014  
• UK defined contribution  

target date funds 

2012  
• First actively managed senior 

loan ETF in partnership with 
Blackstone/GSO 

2011  

• Custom portfolio solutions 
team established 

2010  
• Bank of Ireland Asset 

Management Acquisition 

Our History of Innovation 
 

12 GLSTND-2765 

1979 
• First non-US fund  

1978 

• State Street Global  
Advisors established 

1984  
• Active quantitative strategy 

team established 

1999 
• First ever Asia ex-Japan ETF  

• Pioneers multi-asset class, 
LDI strategies  

1998  
• First family of sector ETFs 

1993  
• World’s first ever ETF in 

partnership with the 
American Stock Exchange 

1990  
• London and Hong Kong  

offices open 

2008  

• Managed volatility  
strategies launched 

2005  
• First local Chinese ETF  

in partnership with China  
Asset Management  

2004  
• First-gold backed ETF  

in partnership with  
World Gold Council 

2003  
• First local ETF in Taiwan  

2002 
• First local ETF in Singapore 

2001  
• First ETF in Australia  

2000 
• Team established to serve 

Official Institutions 

Constantly evolving and building on  

over 200 years of heritage 



14 

As of September 30, 2016. 

Global Investment Team 

Rick Lacaille 
Global CIO 

Chris Rice 
Global Head of  
Trading 

Steve Meier 
CIO, Global Fixed Income, 
Currency & Cash 

Dan Farley 
CIO, Investment  
Solutions Group 

Lynn Blake 
CIO, Global Equity  
Beta Solutions 

Ted Gekas 
CIO, Active  
Quantitative Equities  

Lori Heinel 
Deputy Global CIO 

Don Torey 
CIO, Alternative  
Investments  

Paul Colonna 
CIO, Active Fundamental 
Equity & Fixed Income 

Ralph Layman 
Vice Chairman 

Bill Street 
Head of Investments,  
EMEA  
Dual Manager  
Mike Karpik 

Kevin Anderson 
Head of Investments,  
APAC 
Dual Manager  
Loch Crafter 

Hideki Takayama 
CIO, Japan 
Dual Manager  
Koji Yamamoto 

GLSTND-2765 



STT Management Risk & Capital Committee (MRAC) 
Senior oversight and decision-making body for risk and capital issues,  
and ensures the alignment of State Street’s strategy, budget,  
risk appetite, balance sheet and capital 

Governance Structure 

As of November 1, 2016. 

15 GLSTND-2765 

Risk Committee 
Responsible for ensuring the alignment of strategy, risk appetite and 
risk management standards (corporate-wide) 
 

Subcommittees: 
• Liquidity 
• Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR) 
• Global Regulatory Oversight (GROC) 

Executive Management  
Group (EMG) 

Consultative and decision-making body  
responsible for strategic planning,  
business goal and financial tracking,  
overall firm governance and  
talent management 

Key Governance Committees 

Global Investments  
Committee 

Responsible for the firm’s investment 
philosophy and processes,  
investment strategies, approach to  
new markets and instruments and 
relationships with counterparties 

Subcommittees: 
• Technical  
• Proxy Review 
• Counterparty Credit 

• Trade Management Oversight 
• Investment Strategy Review 
• Alternatives Investment Oversight  
• Securities Lending 

Global Product  
Committee 

Responsible for the creation of  
products based on the firm’s  
investment strategies 

Subcommittees: 
• North America Product 
• EMEA Product 

• APAC Product 
• Sub-Advisory Oversight  

Global Fiduciary  
Committee 

Responsible for addressing fiduciary  
matters across the firm and  
oversight of the firm’s collective 
investment funds 

Subcommittees: 
• EMEA Fiduciary 

• APAC Fiduciary 
• Canada Fiduciary 
• Independent Fiduciary 

• Global Disclosure & Communications 

Global Operations and  
Compliance Committee 

Responsible for the firm’s operating  
infrastructure compliance functions 

Subcommittees: 
• Global Operations 
• Global Compliance 
• North American Valuation 

• Alternatives Valuation 
• EMEA Valuation 
• APAC Valuation  

• Global Operational Risk: EMEA, APAC 
• Client Information & Delivery 
• IT Steering 

• Enterprise Information  
Management Leadership 

—Risk policy approvals/Material risk reporting Strategic counsel/Reporting— 

Reporting/Risk escalation— 

Reporting/Alignment 



Account Summary 

16 CMINST-14496 



Global Equity Beta Solutions Overview 
  

19 GLSTND-2155 



Potential Benefits of Indexing 

20 GLSTND-2155 

Source: SSGA. 
Please see Important Disclosures at the end of this presentation for additional information. 

Lower 
Management 

Fees 

CAPM 
Theory 

Reduced 
Turnover & 
Transaction 

Costs 

Lower Bias & 
Concentration Risk 

Real Results: 
SPIVA 
Report 

Portfolio 

There are a number of 
potential benefits to passive 
investing, both theoretical 
and empirical  

Capital Asset 
Pricing Model 

Lower Management 
Fees 

Turnover & 
Transaction Costs 

Lower Bias & 
Concentration Risk 

S&P SPIVA Report 

The optimal portfolio 
is the market portfolio 

Often lower 
management fees 
than active 

Can offer cost-
efficiencies of lower 
turnover and 
transaction costs 

Avoids manager biases 
and concentration risk 

Performance of active 
versus S&P indices 



What we do 

• Seek to deliver returns that our clients want and expect at the lowest possible implementation cost  

How we strive to do it better 

• Experienced, tenured team of portfolio managers 
– GEBS team in six investment centers worldwide 

– Market-leading infrastructure and proprietary portfolio 
construction tools  

• Size and scale 
– Significant asset base and economies of scale 

– Substantial liquidity and diversity of client  
accounts (flows) 

• Modular approach to product lineup 
– Flexible, customizable solutions 

– Breadth of commingled funds available 

• Innovative, client-tailored solutions 
– Traditional beta, ETFs, rules-based and factor tilted indexing strategies 

– Strong, proprietary research capability 

Philosophy and Competitive Advantages 

    

21 GLSTND-2460 

Source: SSGA as of September 30, 2016. 

Total Team Assets Under Management 
$1.35 Trillion (USD) as of September 30, 2016 

Emerging 
Markets Equity 

$51,714 M 

US Equity 
$742,729 M 

International and  
Global Equity 
$551,293 M 



Global Equity Beta Solutions  

As of August 22, 2016. 
* Does not manage assets for the Global Equity Beta Solutions team. 
Certified Financial Planner Board of Standards Inc. owns the certification marks CFP®, CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER™  
and federally registered CFP (with flame design) in the US, which it awards to individuals who successfully complete CFP Board’s  
initial and ongoing certification requirements. 

22 GLSTND-2703 

Mike Feehily, CFA 
 John Tucker, CFA 

Americas 

David Arrighini, CFA 
Americas 

TEMC 

Jennifer Bender, PhD* 
Head of Research 

Lynn Blake, CFA 
Global CIO, Global Equity Beta Solutions  

Global Trading — 31 Global Traders 

Operations — 150+ Dedicated Professionals 

Data Group — 13 Dedicated Professionals 

Relationship with State Street Corporation 

Susan Darroch 
APAC ex-Japan 

Sydney 

Nobuya Endo, CFA  
Tokyo 

Chantal Hillman 
Andrew Howson 

Alexander King, CFA  
Lillian Poon, CFA 

David Chai 
Hong Kong 

Mark Hui, CFA 
Michelle Ip 

Kwok-Shing Yip, CPA 

Shunsuke Ichinose, CMA 
Masaki Ishikawa, CFA, CMA 
  Hitomi Miwa, CMA  

Emerging Market Equities  
Tom Coleman, CFA 

EAFE Equities 
Dwayne Hancock, CFA 

US Equities  
Karl Schneider, CAIA 

David Swallow, CFA 
Dan TenPas, CFA 

Eric Viliott, CFA, CFP® 

Olga Winner, CFA 
Teddy Wong 

TJ Blackburn, PhD* 
Xiaole Sun* 

Taie Wang, CFA* 
Sara Yuan* 

Shayne White* 
Systems 

Temitayo Akinsanya* 
Dan Smith* 

Theresa Holland* 
Executive Assistant 

Canadian Equities 
Emiliano Rabinovich, CFA 

Juan Acevedo 
Amy Cheng 
David Chin 

Ray Donofrio 
Mike Finocchi 

Payal Gupta 
Lisa Hobart 

Ted Janowsky, CFA 
Melissa Kapitulik 

Mark Krivitsky 

Chuck LeVine 
Kala O’Donnell 

Keith Richardson 
Amy Scofield 

Portfolio Specialists 
 

Scott Pittsley* 
Nicholas Trager* 

 

Portfolio Strategists 

Ana Harris, CFA* 

Natalie Waller 
London 

Christopher Flood, CFA, ASIP 

 
Mark Davey, CFA 

Nina Doneva 
James Fielding 

Gwennael Freydt, CFA 
Richard Hamilton 

Ozan Vechi 
Ross James, CFA 

Dominic Klee 
Matt McCarthy, CFA 

 

Bertrand Gouez 
Frederic Jamet 

Paris 

Ludovic Brancourt 
Selim Dekali, CFA 

Anne Schwartz 

Richard Hannam, ASIP 
EMEA 

Boston 

Rakhi Kumar* 
Head of Corporate Governance 

Jenna Young* 
Michael Younis* 

Julian Harding 
Core Research 



US Index Assets Under Management 

$742,729 Million as of September 30, 2016 

International and Global Equity AUM 
$551,293 Million as of September 30, 2016 

Emerging Markets Equity AUM 
$501,7114 Million as September 30, 2016* 

S&P Indexes 
$554,461 M 

Dow Jones/ 
DJ IndexesSM 

$28,542 M 

Russell Indexes 
$135,080 M 

MSCI  
$10,697M 

Other 
$13,949 M 

MSCI  
Strategies 
$383,037 M 

Other  
(Nasdaq…) 
$47,042 M 

S&P Strategies 
$27,707 M FTSE Strategies 

$73,095 M 

Dow Jones 
Strategies 
$20,411 M 

A Leading Manager of Global Indexed Assets 

  
 

Total Passive Equity Assets Under Management: $1.35 Trillion (USD) as of September 30, 2016  

23 GLSTND-2460 

Source: SSGA as of September 30, 2016. 
* Exclusive of Emerging Markets Equities invested in other MSCI-benchmarked strategies such as MSCI ACWI and MSCI ACWI ex US. 
“ FTSE®”, “FT-SE®” and “Footsie®” are trade marks of the Exchange and FT and are used by FTSE under license. “All-World”, “All-Share”, “All-Small” and “FTSE4Good” are trademarks of FTSE. 
All Standard & Poor’s Indexes are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. Dow Jones and Dow Jones Indices are service marks of Dow Jones & Company, Inc. and have 
been licensed for use for certain purposes by State Street Global Advisors (SSGA). Russell Investment Group is the source and owner of the trademarks, service marks and copyrights related to the 
Russell Indexes. Russell Indices are trademarks of Russell Investment Group. The MSCI Indexes are trademarks of MSCI Inc. 

S&P Strategies  
$2,323 M 

MSCI 
Strategies 
$43,495 M 

 Other Emerging Markets 
Indices 

$1,290 M 

FTSE 
Strategies  
$4,607 M 



Bloomberg 
Commodity Index 

$345 M 

S&P MLP 
$31M 

Smart Betas and Alternative Asset Betas 

24 GLSTND-2460 

Source: SSGA as of September 30, 2016. 
Dow Jones and Dow Jones Indices are service marks of Dow Jones & Company, Inc. 
S&P GSCI® is a trademark of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. and has been licensed for use by Goldman, Sachs & Co. 
S&P/IFCI Liquidity Tier EM Index is a trademark of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC., and has been licensed for use by State Street Bank and Trust.  
“Dow Jones,” “UBS” “Commodity and Long-Term Commodity IndexSM” are service marks of Dow Jones & Company, Inc. and UBS AG 
The Macquarie Global Infrastructure 100 Index is a trademark of Macquarie  
“SPDR®” is a registered trademark of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”) and has been licensed for use by State Street Corporation.  
All Standard & Poor’s Indexes are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. 
The MSCI Indexes are trademarks of MSCI Inc. 

Total Smart Betas and Alternative Asset Betas AUM:  

$125,299 Million (USD) as of September 30, 2016 
Rules-Based and Factor-Tilting Strategies, Low-Volatility Equity, Commodities,  

REITs & Additional Alternative Asset Classes 

Bloomberg Roll Select Commodity Index 
$2,181M 

Global Infrastructure 
$1,423 M 

S&P GSCI 
$478 M 

Buy Write 
$616 M 

Alternative  

Weightings & Low 

Volatility Equity Assets 

Under Management 

$92,746 Million 
as of September 30, 2016 

Equal Weighted 
$17,174 M 

Risk Weighted 
$272 M 

Fundamentally  
Weighted 
$9,182 M 

Yield/Dividend  
Weighted 
$22,535 M 

Price 
Weighted 
$12,545 M 

Value  
Weighted 
$6,814 M 

Volatility  
Weighted 
$9,730 M 

Other Factor  
Weighted 
$4,973 M 

Multi-Factor 
$9,521 M 

Alternatives  

Asset Class Betas Assets 

Under Management 

$32,553 Million 
as of September 30, 2016 

Natural  
Resources 
$3,133 M 

REITs 
22,191 M 

Emulation  
Strategies 
$626 M 

Other 
$1,528 M 



Equity Exposure in Any Market Segment 

25 GLSTND-2521 

Large Cap/Broad Market Medium/Small Cap  Style/Sector  Smart Beta/Commodities/ESG 

US Equity 

Dow Jones Industrial Average 

Dow Jones US Total Stock Market Index 

Dow Jones US Large-Cap Total Market Index 

MSCI US Index 

MSCI US Investable Market 2500 Index 

Russell 1000® Index 

Russell 3000® Index 

Russell Top 200 Index 

Russell Top 50 Index 

S&P 100® Index 

S&P 500® Index  

S&P 500® Buyback Index  

S&P 500® Index Futures Strategy 

NASDAQ 100 Stock Index 

Dow Jones Completion Total Stock Market Index 

MSCI USA Small Cap Index 

Russell 2000® Index 

Russell 2000® Index Futures Strategy 

Russell 2500® Index 

Russell MidCap Index 

Russell Small Cap Completeness Index 

S&P MidCap 400® Index 

S&P SmallCap 600® Index 

 

S&P 500 Growth/Value Indices 

S&P Mid Cap 400® Growth/Value Indices 

S&P Small Cap 600® Growth/Value Indices 

S&P Select Sector Indices 

S&P Industry Indices 

Russell 1000® Growth/Value Indices 

Russell 2000® Growth/Value Indices 

Russell 2500 Growth Index 

Russell Mid Cap Growth Index 

Russell Top 200 Value Index 

MSCI MidCap Growth Index 

MSCI MidCap Value Index 

 

Bloomberg Commodity and Roll Select Indices 

FTSE RAFI US 1000 Index 

Russell 1000 & 2000 Low Volatility Indices 

Russell 3000® Screened Index 

Russell Fundamental US Index 

Russell Defensive Indices 

S&P 500® Equal Weighted Index  

S&P 500® Screened Index 

S&P 1500 Momentum and Value Tilt Indices 

S&P GSCI Index 

S&P High Yield Dividend Aristocrats Index 

S&P MLP Index 

SSGA Managed Volatility Strategy 

SSGA Multi Factor Strategies 

SSGA Quality Tilted Strategy 

SSGA Rules-Based Strategies 

SSGA Valuation Tilted Strategy 

Intl and 
Developed 
Equity 

Dow Jones Global Stock Market Index 

FTSE Country Funds 

MSCI ACWI Indices 

MSCI ACWI Investable Market Index 

MSCI Country Funds 

MSCI EAFE Index 

MSCI EAFE Index Futures Strategy 

MSCI Euro/Europe Indices 

MSCI North America Index 

MSCI Pacific Index 

MSCI Pacific ex-Japan Index 

MSCI Regional Funds 

MSCI World Indices 

Russell/Nomura PRIMETM Index 

S&P Developed ex-US LargeMidCap Index 

S&P Developed ex-US BMI Index 

S&P Country Funds 

S&P EPAC LargeMidCap Index 

STOXX Indices 

MSCI Australia Small Cap Index  

MSCI Canada Small Cap Index 

MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index 

MSCI New Zealand Small Cap Index  

MSCI ACWI ex-USA Small Cap Index 

Russell/Nomura Japan Small Cap Index 

S&P Developed Asia Pacific Small Cap Index 

S&P Developed Europe Mid East Africa Small Cap Index 

S&P International Mid Cap Index 

S&P International Small Cap Index  

MSCI EAFE Sector Indices 

MSCI World Growth ex-US Index 

S&P Developed ex-US BMI Sector Indices 

FTSE RAFI All World 3000 Index 

FTSE RAFI Developed 1000 Index 

MSCI ACWI Alternatively Weighted Indices 

MSCI ACWI Low Carbon Target Index 

MSCI EAFE and World Quality Mix Indices 

MSCI Regional Screened Indices 

MSCI World Equal Weighted Index 

MSCI World Minimum Volatility Index 

MSCI World Natural Resources Index 

Russell Fundamental Developed Large  
Company Index 

Russell Fundamental Global ex-US Index 

S&P Global LargeMidCap Commodities and 
Resources Index  

S&P Global Infrastructure Index 

S&P Global Natural Resources Index 

S&P International Dividend Opportunities Index 

SSGA Global Managed Volatility Strategies 

SSGA Global Multi Factor Strategies 

SSGA Global Valuation Tilted Strategies 

Emerging 
Markets 
Equity 

FTSE Emerging Markets Index 

MSCI Emerging Market Indices 

MSCI EM Beyond BRIC Index 

S&P Regional and Country Indices 

S&P Emerging BMI Indices 

SSGA Frontier Markets 

MSCI Emerging Markets Small Cap Index 

S&P Emerging Markets Small Cap Index 

 

FTSE RAFI Emerging Markets Index 

MSCI Emerging Markets Minimum Volatility Index 

MSCI Emerging Markets Quality Mix 

MSCI Emerging Markets Value Weighted Index 

S&P Emerging Markets Dividend  
Opportunities Index 

SSGA Emerging Markets Managed Volatility Strategy 



SSGA’s Portfolio Management Philosophy — Passive Equities 

26 GLSTND-2155 

Source: SSGA. 

• Our objective is to deliver to each client the 
returns and characteristics of the 
target index 

• We use the most appropriate 
methodology aimed at achieving 
this objective 

• We believe in teamwork and we promote a 
culture of sharing best practices 

• There is accountability and each fund 
has a lead Portfolio Manager as the primary 
decision maker 

• We believe that a cost-efficient, broad 
market exposure will help clients achieve their 
investment objectives 

• We use a globally consistent investment 
management platform to manage portfolios 

• Through research, we innovate and aim to 
deliver the best possible solution for our clients 

• Commitment to process improvements 
and technology enhancements 



Portfolio Management Process Overview 

27 GLSTND-2155 

Source: SSGA. 
Please see Important Disclosures at the end of this presentation for additional information. 

Portfolio 
Construction 

Monitoring/ 
Analysis 

Risk 
Management 

Portfolio Construction 

• Complete and accurate representation of benchmark index 

• Replication whenever possible with optimization available  
as needed 

• Efficient execution of trades and precise processing  
of information 

 
Monitoring/Analysis 

• Daily monitoring of portfolio positions and characteristics 
versus benchmark index 

• Assess impact of potential changes in index and client  
flows in portfolio 

• Review of performance and trade cost analysis 
 

Risk Management 

• Risk defined as under- or over-performance to the benchmark 

• Pre and post-trade compliance checks 

• Review of ex-ante and ex-post tracking error 

• Daily holdings recon and cash flow verification/notification 
 



Portfolio Management and Support Systems Update 

Portfolio Management and Trading Systems Receive Ongoing Development 

• Tools 3.1 
– Developed and supported within portfolio management group 

– Designed with input from all portfolio management sites 

– Key improvements include: 

• Straight-through processing (STP) to Trading desk 

• User interface and PM workflow 

• Cash handling 

• Dashboard for management information 

 

• Trade Portal 2.0 
– Interface between portfolio management systems and  

Trading Desk 

– Allows the validation of multiple instrument types in the  
same basket 

– Improved speed of processing 

– Basket creation and tracking 

Source: SSGA. 

28 GLSTND-2155 



Adding Value & Preserving Wealth: Portfolio Events 

Indices artificially assume zero costs. 
In reality, there are a number of 
potential costs and fees. 

Index Adjustments  
& Rebalances: 

• Require trading to realign with 
the index 

Inflows and Outflows: 

• Purchases or sales to either invest 
new cash or free up liquidity  

Corporate Actions: 

• Non-index names are generally 
removed and income is invested 

Identifying the opportunity… 

Source: SSGA. 
Please see Important Disclosures at the end of this presentation for additional information. 

29 GLSTND-2155 

SSGA looks to preserve wealth 
wherever possible and pass any 
savings on to the client 

Crossing: 
• Internally cross buys and sells to 

avoid market trades 

Trading Strategically: 

• Limited pre- and post-trading while 
controlling for tracking risk 

• ADRs/GDRs for illiquid names 

• Cash equitized with less 
expensive futures 

Value-add Opportunities: 

• Securities lending 

• Proper handling of M&A events and 
rights issues 

How SSGA can help… 



SSGA Size and Internal Liquidity May Lead to Transaction  
Cost Savings 

30 GLSTND-2155 

1 Based on actual client order flow trading activity in the S&P 500® Defined Contribution Commingled Fund. 
2 Based on actual client order flow trading activity in the Bi-Monthly EAFE ERISA Commingled Funds. 
3 Based on actual client order flow trading activity in the Bi-Monthly Emerging Markets Non-ERISA Qualified Commingled Fund. 
4 In-kind transfers are redemptions/contributions made via security transfers.  
* For calendar years 2013-2015. It is not known whether similar results have been achieved after 2015.  
** SSGA Market Cost Estimates which include commissions, bid/ask spread, market impact, and taxes/fees. Hypothetical savings are based upon estimates and reflect subjective judgments and assumptions. 
These results were achieved by means of a mathematical formula and do not reflect the effect of unforeseen economic and market factors on decision-making. The hypothetical savings are not necessarily 
indicative of future performance, which could differ substantially.  
† This represents average savings across all aggregate trading over the period and there is no guarantee that a particular client transaction will experience  
the same level of savings. Any savings is contingent upon other activity taking place on a given transaction day. Had other funds been selected, different results of transaction cost savings 
would have been achieved. 

US Market Case Study1 

Transaction Type Trade Value % of Total Trade T-Costs (%) 

Market Trades (Includes Futures/ECNs/Algorithmic Trades)  $15.9 billion  14.8%  0.01% 

In-kinds4/Internal Crossing/Unit Crossing $91.4 billion  85.2  0.00 

Totals* $107.3 billion  100.0  0.00 

Estimated Open Market Trading Costs**  0.08 

Transaction Cost Savings†  0.08% 

Transaction Type Trade Value % of Total Trade T-Costs (%) 

Market Trades (Includes Futures/ECNs/Algorithmic Trades)  $9.2 billion  26.7%  0.06% 

In-kinds4/Internal Crossing/Unit Crossing $25.2 billion  73.3  0.01 

Totals* $34.4 billion  100.0  0.02 

Estimated Open Market Trading Costs**  0.25 

Transaction Cost Savings†  0.23% 

Non-US Developed Case Study2 

Transaction Type Trade Value % of Total Trade T-Costs (%) 

Market Trades (Includes Futures/ECNs/Algorithmic Trades)  $9.7 billion  45.3%  0.27% 

In-kinds4/Internal Crossing/Unit Crossing $11.7 billion  54.7  0.01 

Totals* $21.4 billion  100.0  0.12 

Estimated Open Market Trading Costs**  0.40 

Transaction Cost Savings†  0.28% 

Emerging Markets Case Study3 



Historical Index Migration Trade Crossing 
 
 
 

 

• Due to SSGA’s internal liquidity and breadth of products, there is an opportunity to reduce transaction costs 
around many index change events 

 

• Turnover due to index changes for our S&P 500, S&P 400 and Russell Small Cap Completeness Funds totaled over 
$29.7 billion for the combined years 2011–2014 

 

• “Migration trades” of securities moving between indices totaled $12.8 billion from 2011–2014 and over $10.4 
billion was crossed internally. This represents an approximate crossing rate for the period of 81%. 

 

• Estimated costs to trade a full slice of US large cap stocks in the open market is 10 bps while it costs about 20 bps 
for US mid/small cap stocks 

 

• Savings passed on to our clients are estimated to be at least $15.5 million1 from 2011 to 2014 

S&P 500 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Impact and spread cost estimates are based on calculations provided by vendor tools that specialize in these estimations but are proprietary to the vendor. Commissions, taxes, and other explicit cost estimates 
are based on standard schedules published within SSgA but may vary from the results experienced in actual trading.  

2 Weighted average by total applicable migration trade volume for the calendar years 2011-2014. Includes certain migration and add/drop trades among large cap indices (i.e. S&P 500) and mid/small cap indices 
(i.e. S&P 400 and Russell Small Cap Completeness. Analysis includes trades of sufficient size to merit a coordinated group trade among the Boston based Portfolio Managers.  
As of December 2015, updated annually. Source: SSGA.  

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

2011 2012 2013 2014

S&P 500 S&P 400

31 GLSTND-2522 

 

Average Historical Migration Trade Crossing2  

2011–2014 

 

Index-level Turnover 

2011–2014 

 

 

Crossed 
68% 

Traded 
32% 

Crossed 
100% 

S&P 400/Russell Small 



Historical Russell Reconstitution Trade Crossing 
 
 

 

• Due to SSGA’s internal liquidity and breadth of products, there is an opportunity to reduce transaction costs 
around many index change events 

 

• Turnover due to rebalancing for the annual Russell Reconstitution totaled $49.6 billion for the combined  
years 2013–2016 

 

• Over $26.3 billion was crossed internally. This represents an average crossing rate for the period of 53.17%. 
 

• Estimated costs to trade a full slice of US large cap stocks in the open market is 10 bps while it costs about 20 bps 
for US mid/small cap stocks 

 

• Savings passed on to our clients are estimated to be at least $29 million1 from 2013 to 2016 

 

 

Source: GEBS Team. 
1 Impact and spread cost estimates are based on calculations provided by vendor tools that specialize in these estimations but are proprietary to the vendor. Commissions, taxes, and other explicit cost estimates 
are based on standard schedules published within SSgA but may vary from the results experienced in actual trading.  

 

32 GLSTND-2522 

 

 

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

Average turnover 2013–2016 Average percent crossed 2013–2016 



Research Capabilities 

33 GLSTND-2155 

Source: SSGA. 

Commitment to Research-Driven Process 

Our Areas of Focus: 

Investment themes 

• What investors should be  

thinking about 

• How the investment landscape  

is changing 

Research examples: 

• The passive perspective on  

valuation errors 

• Passive investing versus indexing 

• Rethinking the market portfolio 

• Problems with manager  

universe data 

• The equity risk premium 

• True costs of active management 

• Fundamentals-based Indexing 

Understanding the 

Investment 

opportunity set 

• Benchmark characteristics 

• Benchmark dynamics 

• Ways to manage exposure 

Research examples: 

• Benchmark comparisons 

• Index change analysis 

• New passive applications: hedge 

funds, commodities and wealth  

weighted benchmarks 

Better portfolio 
management 

• Seeks to minimize costs 

• Seeks to minimize risk  
versus benchmark 

Research examples: 

• Transaction cost analysis 

• Implementation tools — full replication, 
sampling and optimization 



Positive Trends in Indexing 

We believe indexing is a vital component of equity exposure 

Broad Trends 

• Continued growth in assets and continued evidence of active to passive flows 

• Clients continue to broaden passive exposure (away from domestic allocations and into regional/global)  

• Convergence of methodologies across index providers — better predictability in outcomes 

Smart Beta and Alternative Indices 

• Low-volatility equity strategies (US, Global, and Emerging Markets exposure) 

• Rules-based, multi-factor and factor-tilt indexing strategies (e.g., quality, momentum, and value)  

More Focused ETFs 

• Industry funds, sector funds, style funds 

• Smaller shops opening funds with quasi-active indices, leverage, or distinct weighting schemes 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Portfolios 

• Continued interest in divestment mandates that seek conventional benchmark returns and characteristics 

• Innovative indices constructed with positive screens (e.g., US Community Investing IndexTM,  
Dow Jones Sustainability World Index, MSCI ACWI Low Carbon Target Index) 

34 GLSTND-2155 

Source: SSGA as of September 30, 2015. 
The US Community Investing Index is a trademark of the F.B. Heron Foundation and has been licensed for use by State Street Global Advisors. The Products are not sponsored, endorsed, sold or 
promoted by F.B. Heron Foundation and F.B. Heron Foundation makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in the Products. 
Please see Important Disclosures at the end of this presentation for additional information. 



Why SSGA for Index Management? 

SSGA’s Competitive Strengths 

As of June 30, 2016. Updated annually. 
* There is no guarantee that cost savings will be achieved. 

35 GLSTND-2693 

Stable and Tenured Team • Over 35 years of dedicated index management 

• An average of 15 years industry experience across the global portfolio management team 

Minimizing Costs • Potential cost-savings through crossing opportunities* 

• Modular approach utilizing sizeable, seasoned, commingled fund portfolios 
 

Customized Investment Strategies • Listen, understand and respond to client needs and challenges 

Timely Research and Guidance • Researchers dedicated to practical as well as strategic and theoretical issues 

Strong and Lasting 
Client Relationships 

• Trusted to manage over 1,700 client portfolios globally against over 500 indices 



Portfolio Review for  
MSCI EAFE® Index Strategy 
  

36 GLSTND-2721 



SSGA Global Index Experience 

• SSGA has been investing in developed market strategies since 1979 and emerging market strategies 
since 1991 

• Currently managing over $603 billion in assets benchmarked to Global Indices 

 

37 GLSTND-2460 

Source: SSGA as of September 30, 2016. 
FTSE Indexes are trademarks of the London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited, and are used by FTSE International Limited under license. “All-World”, “All-Share” and “All-Small” 
are trademarks of FTSE International Limited. The MSCI Indexes are trademarks of MSCI, Inc. Standard & Poor’s S&P Indexes are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services. LLC. 

S&P 
Developed 
 $27,706 M 

MSCI 
Developed 

 $383,037 M 

FTSE 
Developed 
 $73,095 M 

Dow Jones 
Developed 
 $20,411 M 

Other 
Developed 
 $47,042 M 

Emerging 
Markets 

$51,714 M 



MSCI EAFE® Index Strategy Overview 

MSCI EAFE Markets 
Australia 
Austria 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany  
Hong Kong 
Ireland 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
New Zealand 
Norway 
Portugal 
Singapore 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
 

Objective: Seeks to match the returns and characteristics of the 
MSCI EAFE® Index as closely as practicable, before expenses 
over the long term 

• MSCI EAFE Index Strategy 
– Replication with additive offsets 

– Daily fund for DC Plans  

– Bi-monthly fund to maximize crossing opportunities 

– May use exchange traded index futures to achieve equity exposure 

 

• MSCI EAFE Benchmark: Broad-based international index 
– Consists of approximately 926 securities across 21 countries  

outside the US and Canada 

– Seeks to capture 85% of each sector in each market 

– Quarterly reconstitution 

– Five year average (2011015—ح) historical turnover: 2.92% 

 

38 

Source: SSGA, MSCI. 
As of December 31, 2015. Updated Annually. 
Although some investments may exhibit certain characteristics of leverage transactions, SSGA will not borrow money or use derivatives for the MSCI EAFE Strategy in a manner that SSGA considers to have the 
purpose of creating investment leverage. Investments made by SSGA to hedge or reduce risk will not be considered to have been made for the purpose of creating investment leverage; SSGA generally will 
determine whether an investment has the effect of creating investment leverage by evaluating the effect of the investment on the exposure and risk profile of the Strategy's portfolio as a whole. 

GLSTND-2721 



Potential Cost-Effective Trading 

79% of the MSCI EAFE Index Strategy’s cash flows traded at low or no cost* 
  

39 GLSTND-2150 

Source: SSGA. 
* For the 3 most recent calendar years as of the slide creation date, 2013–2015. Data based on the weighted average results (by order volume) of one or more of SSGA’s commingled funds.  
 There is no guarantee that a particular client transaction will experience the same level of low cost trading. 
1 Unit crosses are transactions where client contributions/redemptions in a commingled fund are matched with offsetting client contributions/redemptions in the same commingled fund. 
2 Internal crosses are equity transactions for one SSGA managed fund that are matched, where possible, with offsetting equity transactions from other eligible SSGA managed funds. 
Low cost trading percentages are calculated by subtracting agency trades from total trades and then dividing by total trades. 
Hypothetical savings are based upon estimates and reflect subjective judgments and assumptions. These results were achieved by means of a  
mathematical formula and do not reflect the effect of unforeseen economic and market factors on decision-making. The hypothetical savings are not  
necessarily indicative of future savings, which could differ substantially.  
Investing involves risk including the risk of loss of principal. 

Total Order Flows: $61 Billion, 2013–2015 

Internal Cross2 
11% 

Futures 
10% 

Unit Cross1 

57% 

Agency 
  21% 



MSCI EAFE® Index Composite 

Qtr YTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years 
Since 

Inception† 

MSCI EAFE Composite  6.45%  1.98%  6.78%  0.71%  7.64%  2.07%  8.74% 

MSCI EAFE Index  6.43  1.73  6.52  0.48  7.39  1.82  8.55 

Difference*  0.02  0.25  0.27  0.24  0.25  0.25  0.19 

40 GLSTND-2721 

Source: SSGA. 
† Inception date: January 1985. 
* The value added returns may show rounding differences. 
The performance shown is of a composite consisting of all discretionary accounts using this investment strategy. There is no minimum account size required for inclusion in the composite.  
New funds or accounts are added to the composite upon the first full month of operation and closed funds or accounts are removed from the composite upon the last full month of operation.  
The above information is considered supplemental to the GIPS presentation for this Composite, which can be found in the Appendix or was previously presented. A GIPS presentation is also available upon 
request. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Performance returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Returns are expressed gross of management fees. Some members 
of the composite may accrue administration fees. The performance includes the reinvestment of dividends and other corporate earnings and is calculated in US dollars.  
The index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses.  
The index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. 
S:EAFE/C: gP-EAFE 

11.38 

-43.16 

32.05 

7.97 

-11.92 

17.63 

23.02 

-4.67 
-0.58 

1.98 

11.17 

-43.38 

31.78 

7.75 

-12.14 

17.32 

22.78 

-4.90 
-0.81 

1.73 

-50.00

-40.00

-30.00

-20.00

-10.00

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 YTD

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

MSCI EAFE Composite MSCI EAFE Index

Gross annualized returns for the period ending September 30, 2016 (USD) 



Daily MSCI EAFE® Index Composite 

Qtr YTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years Since Inception† 

Daily MSCI EAFE Composite 6.50% 2.09% 6.91% 0.73% 7.89% 2.08% 4.80% 

MSCI EAFE Index 6.43 1.73 6.52 0.48 7.39 1.82 4.65 

Difference* 0.07 0.36 0.39 0.25 0.50 0.26 0.15 

41 GLSTND-2721 

Source: SSGA. 
† Inception date: November 1993. 
* The value added returns may show rounding differences. 
The performance shown is of a composite consisting of all discretionary accounts using this investment strategy. There is no minimum account size required for inclusion in the composite.  
New funds or accounts are added to the composite upon the first full month of operation and closed funds or accounts are removed from the composite upon the last full month of operation.  
The above information is considered supplemental to the GIPS presentation for this Composite, which can be found in the Appendix or was previously presented. A GIPS presentation is also available upon 
request. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Performance returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Returns are expressed gross of management fees. Some members of the 
composite may accrue administration fees. The performance includes the reinvestment of dividends and other corporate earnings and is calculated in US dollars. The index returns are unmanaged and do not 
reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses. The index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. S:EAFE/C: gP-DEAFE 

11.34 

-43.21 

32.17 

8.10 

-11.93 

17.68 
23.00 

-4.68 
-0.61 

2.09 

11.17 

-43.38 

31.78 

7.75 

-12.14 

17.32 
22.78 

-4.90 
-0.81 

1.73 

-50.00

-40.00

-30.00

-20.00

-10.00

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 YTD

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

Daily MSCI EAFE Composite MSCI EAFE Index

Gross annualized returns for the period ending September 30, 2016 (USD) 



Global Equity Market Overview as of June 30, 2016 

  

• US markets posted gains in Q2 despite challenging factors 
– One of the notable developments driving markets in May was the re-emergence of expectations the US Federal Reserve (Fed) would 

contemplate raising rates during the middle of 2016, something that had been given scant probability at the beginning of the month 

– Once the unexpected Brexit ‘leave’ vote result was confirmed on the morning of June 24th, the resulting uncertainty took the likelihood of any 
Fed tightening for the rest of 2016 down close to zero and even an increase in through the end of 2017 was priced at less than one third 

– The revised Q1 2016 GDP report released on May 27th showed that corporate profits declined 14% at an annualized rate over the prior two 
quarters, contributing to weaker contemporaneous and likely future capital spending 

– Proving that there is still an abundance of caution in the market in 2016, assets that may be considered defensive in many circumstances have 
been among the best absolute performers 

• International markets were challenged through out Q2 
– Investors in 2016 have so far navigated a storm of additional uncertainties including softening economic growth and policy missteps in China, a 

degree of disenchantment in the ability of global central banks to influence market outcomes and now a vote by Britain on June 23rd to exit its 
43 year membership in the European Union 

– After selling off aggressively to kick off the year through the second week of February, global equities clawed back into positive territory for the 
year through June 23rd, only to see those gains extinguished when the surprise outcome of the ‘Brexit’ vote was learned on June 24th, leaving 
the MSCI World Index down 1.7% before rebounding smartly to put the index back in positive territory on a year-to-date (YTD) basis as of June 
30th 

• Large, mid and small caps saw increases in Q2 
– The S&P 500 Index ended the second quarter with 2.46% return  

– Mid and small cap stocks did not perform much either. The S&P 400 Index gained approximately 3.99% for the quarter and the Russell 2000 
Index gained 3.40%. 

– The Russell 1000 Growth Index slightly increased 0.19% in the second quarter, while the Russell 1000 Value Index increased 3.91% 

• Developed Markets outside the US faced a decline in Q2, while Emerging Markets once again posted gains 
– The MSCI EAFE Index was down 1.46% in the first quarter (in US Dollars), with Financials and Consumer Discretionary dragging down the index.  

– The MSCI Emerging Markets Index slightly increased 0.66% during the first quarter (in US dollars) 

42 GLSTND-2693 

Source: SSGA. 
Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses.  
Index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. 
The information provided does not constitute investment advice and it should not be relied on as such. All material has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable. There is no 
representation or warranty as to the accuracy of the information and State Street shall have no liability for decisions based on such information. 
It is not possible to invest directly in an index. All the index performance results referred to are provided exclusively for comparison purposes only. It should not be assumed that they represent the 
performance of any particular investment. 



Performance Analysis by Country as of September 30, 2016 

 Top 5 Country Contributors to Index Bottom 5 Country Contributors to Index 

8.60 

10.08 

3.98 

7.91 

6.39 

1.98 

0.87 

0.79 

0.60 

0.60 

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00 12.00

Japan

Germany

United Kingdom

Australia

France

Percent 

Total return Q3 2016 Contribution to index Q3 2016

-6.27 

-1.97 

-0.15 

35.22 

6.28 

-0.12 

-0.01 

0.00 

0.00 

0.01 

-10.00 0.00 10.00 20.00 30.00 40.00

Denmark

Israel

Singapore

China

Portugal

Percent 

Total return Q3 2016 Contribution to index Q3 2016

43 GLSTND-2721 

Source: FactSet, SSGA. 
Country reporting based on MSCI Global Equity indexes and SSGA (Securities classified by MSCI as Hong Kong are classified by SSGA as China). Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Performance 
returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Countries shown are as of the date indicated and are subject to change. Index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or 
expenses. Index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. 

MSCI EAFE® Index returned 6.43% in Q3 2016 



Sector Weights and Top Ten Holdings 

Source: FactSet, SSGA. 
Sector reporting based on MSCI/S&P Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS). 
The Holdings and Sector Weights shown are as of the date indicated and, are subject to change. This information should not be considered a recommendation to invest in any particular sector or buy or sell any 
security shown. It is not known whether the securities or sectors shown will be profitable in the future. 

44 GLSTND-2721 

 

Top Ten Holdings for MSCI EAFE® Index Sector Weights for MSCI EAFE® Index 

19.16 

14.08 

12.82 

12.22 

11.39 

7.50 

5.54 

4.83 

4.80 

3.99 

3.68 

22.29 

12.95 

11.59 

12.83 

11.99 

6.63 

4.67 

4.39 

4.99 

3.83 

3.86 

0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00

Financials

Industrials

Consumer Staples

Consumer Discretionary

Health Care

Materials

Information Technology

Energy

Telecommunication Services

Real Estate

Utilities

Percent 

9/30/2016 9/30/2015

Security Name 9/30/2016 % 

Total  11.72 

NESTLE SA-REG 2.04 

NOVARTIS AG-REG 1.42 

ROCHE HOLDING AG-GENUSSCHEIN 1.41 

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP 1.23 

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 1.20 

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC 0.97 

BP PLC 0.88 

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV SA/NV 0.85 

TOTAL SA 0.86 

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-A SHS 0.86 

Security Name 9/30/2015 % 

Total  12.51 

NESTLE SA-REG 2.07 

NOVARTIS AG-REG 1.78 

ROCHE HOLDING AG-GENUSSCHEIN 1.58 

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP 1.36 

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 1.26 

SANOFI 0.95 

NOVO NORDISK A/S-B 0.90 

BAYER AG-REG 0.90 

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC 0.88 

TOTAL SA 0.83 



MSCI 2016 May Semi-Annual Index Review 

• MSCI’s May Semi-Annual Index Review updates the indices based on changes in market structure due to performance, 
IPOs, de-listings and corporate events 

– Effective date: May 31, 2016; MSCI completed the second half inclusion of foreign listed companies which were added at half their free 
float adjusted market capitalization in Nov 2015 to China, Hong Kong, Israel, and the Netherlands 

– This year the May one-way turnover was approximately 0.9% for the MSCI World Index, 1.3% for the MSCI EAFE® Index, and 4.2% for the 
MSCI EM IndexSM 

– For the MSCI World IndexSM, there were 28 additions (12 were US stocks) and 20 deletions (9 were US stocks)  

– The three largest additions to the MSCI World Index, measured by full company market cap, were: Abn Amro (Netherlands), Hydro One 
(Canada), and Schaeffler (Germany) 

– For the MSCI EM IndexSM, there were 15 additions and 17 deletions  

– The three largest additions to the MSCI EM Index, measured by full company market cap, were: Lg Household (Korea), Bajaj Finance 
(India), Phosagro GDR (Russia) 

• MSCI’s June 2016 Annual Market Classification Review 

– MSCI again delayed adding China A-shares to its global benchmarks pending a few remaining market accessibility: 1. issues regarding 
beneficial ownership, 2. trading suspensions, 3. quota allocations and capital restrictions 

– MSCI indicated that their announcement regarding when they will include China A-shares in the MSCI Emerging Markets Index could 
happen outside of the regular Annual Market Classification Review schedule 

– Pakistan will be reclassified to EM status in May 2017  

– MSCI will monitor the Saudi Arabia equity market before considering it for inclusion to the annual review list. However, standalone 
indices were made available as of June 1, 2015. 

– Peru will remain in the EM Index but will proceed with reclassification to FM if Peru falls short of the 3 minimum constituent requirement 

– Argentina was added to 2017 Market Classification review for potential move to EM status 

– Korea was not included to the 2017 Review 

– Nigeria was removed from FM status and reclassified as a stand-alone market 

GLSTND-2681 

Source: SSGA 
The MSCI Indices are trademarks of MSCI, Inc.  
Please go to the MSCI website for more information about the Indexes. 

45 



Portfolio Review for  
S&P 500® Index Strategy 
  

46 GLSTND-2678 



S&P 500® Index Strategy Overview 

Objective: Seeks to match the returns and characteristics of the S&P 500 Index 
as closely as practicable, before expenses over the long term 

• S&P 500 Index Strategy 
– Replication with additive offsets 

– Daily openings 

– May use exchange traded index futures to achieve equity exposure 

 

• S&P 500 Index: Exposure to 500 leading companies in leading industries 
– Large-cap equity covering about 80% of US market  

– Float-adjusted market capitalization  

– Continuous reconstitution 

– Five year average (2011–2015) annual historical turnover: 3.93% 

47 GLSTND-2678 

Source: SSGA, S&P. 
As of June 30, 2016. Updated Annually. 
Although some investments may exhibit certain characteristics of leverage transactions, SSGA will not borrow money or use derivatives for the S&P 500 Index Strategy in a manner that SSGA 
considers to have the purpose of creating investment leverage. Investments made by SSGA to hedge or reduce risk will not be considered to have been made for the purpose of creating investment 
leverage; SSGA generally will determine whether an investment has the effect of creating investment leverage by evaluating the effect of the investment on the exposure and risk profile of the 
Strategy's portfolio as a whole. 
Standard & Poor's S&P Indices are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. 
Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 



Potential Cost-Effective Trading 

90% of the S&P 500 Index Strategy’s cash flows traded at low or no cost* 

48 GLSTND-2678 

Source: SSGA. 
* For the 3 most recent calendar years as of the slide creation date, 2013–2015. Data based on the weighted average results (by order volume) of one or more of SSGA’s commingled funds.  
 There is no guarantee that a particular client transaction will experience the same level of low cost trading. 
1 Unit crosses are transactions where client contributions/redemptions in a commingled fund are matched with offsetting client contributions/redemptions in the same commingled fund. 
2 Internal crosses are equity transactions for one SSGA managed fund that are matched, where possible, with offsetting equity transactions from other eligible SSGA managed funds. 
Low cost trading percentages are calculated by subtracting agency trades from total trades and then dividing by total trades. 
Hypothetical savings are based upon estimates and reflect subjective judgments and assumptions. These results were achieved by means of a mathematical formula and do not reflect the  
effect of unforeseen economic and market factors on decision-making. The hypothetical savings are not necessarily indicative of future savings, which could differ substantially. 

Total Order Flows: $125.4Billion 2013–2015 

Futures 
3% 

Unit Cross1 

74% 

Agency 
10% 

 Algo Trades 
3% 

Internal Cross2 
10% 



S&P 500® Index Composite  

49 GLSTND-2678 

Source: SSGA. 
† Inception date: January 1, 1986. 
* The value added returns may show rounding differences. 
The performance shown is of a composite consisting of all discretionary accounts using this investment strategy. There is no minimum account size required for inclusion in the composite.  
New funds or accounts are added to the composite upon the first full month of operation and closed funds or accounts are removed from the composite upon the last full month of operation.  
The above information is considered supplemental to the GIPS presentation for this Composite, which can be found in the Appendix or was previously presented. A GIPS presentation is also available  
upon request. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Performance returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Returns are expressed gross of management fees.  
Some members of the composite may accrue administration fees. The performance includes the reinvestment of dividends and other corporate earnings and is calculated in US dollars.  
The index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses. The index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income.  
It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 
S:SP5/C:gPASP500 
CM11 

Gross annualized returns for the period ending September 30, 2016 (USD) 

Qtr  YTD  1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years Since Inception† 

S&P 500 Index Composite  3.87%  7.86%  15.47%  11.19%  16.40%  7.28%  10.40% 

S&P 500 Index  3.85  7.84  15.43  11.16  16.37  7.24  10.38 

Difference*  0.02  0.02  0.04  0.03  0.03  0.05  0.03 

4.94 

15.81 

5.53 

-36.93 

26.54 

15.12 

2.14 

16.04 

32.43 

13.71 

1.43 

7.86 
4.91 

15.79 

5.49 

-37.00 

26.46 

15.06 

2.11 

16.00 

32.39 

13.69 

1.38 

7.84 

-50.00

-40.00

-30.00

-20.00

-10.00

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 YTD

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

S&P 500 Composite Standard & Poor's 500 Index



Global Equity Market Overview as of June 30, 2016 

  • US markets posted gains in Q2 despite challenging factors 
– One of the notable developments driving markets in May was the re-emergence of expectations the US Federal Reserve (Fed) would contemplate raising 

rates during the middle of 2016, something that had been given scant probability at the beginning of the month 

– Once the unexpected Brexit ‘leave’ vote result was confirmed on the morning of June 24th, the resulting uncertainty took the likelihood of any Fed tightening 
for the rest of 2016 down close to zero and even an increase in through the end of 2017 was priced at less than one third 

– The revised Q1 2016 GDP report released on May 27th showed that corporate profits declined 14% at an annualized rate over the prior two quarters, 
contributing to weaker contemporaneous and likely future capital spending 

– Proving that there is still an abundance of caution in the market in 2016, assets that may be considered defensive in many circumstances have been among 
the best absolute performers 

• International markets were challenged through out Q2 
– Investors in 2016 have so far navigated a storm of additional uncertainties including softening economic growth and policy missteps in China, a degree of 

disenchantment in the ability of global central banks to influence market outcomes and now a vote by Britain on June 23rd to exit its 43 year membership in 
the European Union 

– After selling off aggressively to kick off the year through the second week of February, global equities clawed back into positive territory for the year through 
June 23rd, only to see those gains extinguished when the surprise outcome of the ‘Brexit’ vote was learned on June 24th, leaving the MSCI World Index down 
1.7% before rebounding smartly to put the index back in positive territory on a year-to-date (YTD) basis as of June 30th 

• Large, mid and small caps saw increases in Q2 
– The S&P 500 Index ended the second quarter with 2.46% return  

– Mid and small cap stocks did not perform much either. The S&P 400 Index gained approximately 3.99% for the quarter and the Russell 2000 Index  
gained 3.40%. 

– The Russell 1000 Growth Index slightly increased 0.19% in the second quarter, while the Russell 1000 Value Index increased 3.91% 

• Developed Markets outside the US faced a decline in Q2, while Emerging Markets once again posted gains 
– The MSCI EAFE Index was down 1.46% in the first quarter (in US Dollars), with Financials and Consumer Discretionary dragging down the index.  

– The MSCI Emerging Markets Index slightly increased 0.66% during the first quarter (in US dollars) 

50 GLSTND-2693 

Source: SSGA. 
Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses.  
Index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. 
The information provided does not constitute investment advice and it should not be relied on as such. All material has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable. There is no 
representation or warranty as to the accuracy of the information and State Street shall have no liability for decisions based on such information. 
It is not possible to invest directly in an index. All the index performance results referred to are provided exclusively for comparison purposes only. It should not be assumed that they represent the 
performance of any particular investment. 



Performance Analysis by Sectors as of September 30, 2016 

S&P 500® Index returned …  

51 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: Factset. 
Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Performance returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. 
Sectors shown are as of the date indicated and are subject to change. This information should not be considered a recommendation to invest in a particular sector or to buy or sell any security 
shown. It is not known whether the sectors or securities shown will be profitable in the future.  
Index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses.  
Index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. Investors cannot invest directly in an index. 
Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 is a registered trademark of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. 
Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

3.85% for 3Q 2016 15.43% over past 12 months 

12.86 

6.80 

3.94 

2.98 

1.01 

2.26 

3.71 

-2.09 

-5.60 

-5.91 

-2.63 

2.51 

0.82 

0.39 

0.38 

0.18 

0.15 

0.11 

-0.06 

-0.16 

-0.21 

-0.26 

-10.00 -5.00 0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00

Information Technology

Financials

Industrials

Consumer Discretionary

Health Care

Energy

Materials

Real Estate

Telecommunication Services

Utilities

Consumer Staples

Percent 

Total return Q3 2016 Contribution to index Q3 2016

22.82 

19.14 

15.77 

10.98 

18.96 

9.80 

26.82 

22.25 

17.37 

5.97 

17.58 

4.44 

1.89 

1.72 

1.60 

1.41 

1.31 

0.72 

0.64 

0.62 

0.57 

0.51 

0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00

Information Technology

Industrials

Consumer Staples

Health Care

Energy

Consumer Discretionary

Telecommunication Services

Materials

Utilities

Financials

Real Estate

Percent 

Total return 12 months ending 9/30/2016

Contribution to index 12 months ending 9/30/2016



Sector Weights and Top Ten Holdings 

52 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: SSGA, FactSet. 
The holdings and sectors shown are as of the date indicated and are subject to change. This information should not be considered a recommendation to invest in any particular sector or buy or sell 
any security shown. It is not known whether the securities or sectors shown will be profitable in the future. 
Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 is a registered trademark of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. 
It is not possible to invest directly in an index Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

Top ten holdings for S&P 500® Index  Sector weights for S&P 500® Index 

Security Name 9/30/2016 % 

Total 18.13 

APPLE INC 3.25 

MICROSOFT CORP 2.39 

EXXON MOBIL CORP 1.93 

AMAZON.COM INC 1.76 

JOHNSON & JOHNSON 1.72 

FACEBOOK INC-A 1.59 

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC-CL B 1.46 

GENERAL ELECTRIC CO 1.42 

AT&T INC 1.33 

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 1.28 

Security Name 9/30/2015 % 

Total 17.25 

APPLE INC 3.72 

MICROSOFT CORP 2.09 

EXXON MOBIL CORP 1.83 

JOHNSON & JOHNSON 1.53 

GENERAL ELECTRIC CO 1.51 

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC-CL B 1.44 

WELLS FARGO & CO 1.42 

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 1.33 

FACEBOOK INC-A 1.20 

AT&T INC 1.18 

21.24 

14.68 

12.78 

12.53 

9.88 

9.73 

7.28 

3.28 

3.06 

2.90 

2.64 

20.44 

15.00 

13.89 

13.03 

9.95 

9.69 

6.94 

3.15 

2.67 

2.82 

2.43 

0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00

Information Technology

Health Care

Financials

Consumer Discretionary

Consumer Staples

Industrials

Energy

Utilities

Real Estate

Materials

Telecommunication Services

Percent 

9/30/2016 9/30/2015



Top and Bottom Contributors to Performance — Q3 2016 

53 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: FactSet. 
Sector reporting based on MSCI/S&P Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS). 
Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Index returns are unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses.  
Index returns reflect all items of income, gain and loss and the reinvestment of dividends and other income. 
The holdings and sectors shown are as of the date indicated and are subject to change. This information should not be considered a recommendation to invest in any particular sector or buy or sell 
any security shown. It is not known whether the securities or sectors shown will be profitable in the future. 
A list showing every holding’s contribution to the overall index performance during the quarter, as well as the calculation methodology, is available upon request. 
Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 is a registered trademark of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. 
It is not possible to invest directly in an index Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

Top five S&P 500® Index contributors 

Company Ending Weight Total Return (Gross of Fees) Contribution to Return Sector 

Apple Inc. 3.25 18.89 0.54 Information Technology 

Microsoft Corporation 2.39 13.27 0.29 Information Technology 

Amazon.com, Inc. 1.76 17.00 0.26 Consumer Discretionary 

Facebook, Inc. Class A 1.59 12.24 0.18 Information Technology 

Alphabet Inc. Class A 1.26 14.29 0.16 Information Technology 

Bottom five S&P 500® Index contributors 

Company Ending Weight Total Return (Gross of Fees) Contribution to Return Sector 

Bristol-Myers Squibb Company 0.48 -26.69 -0.17 Health Care 

Exxon Mobil Corporation 1.93 -6.08 -0.13 Energy 

General Electric Company 1.42 -5.18 -0.08 Industrials 

Verizon Communications Inc. 1.13 -5.98 -0.07 Telecommunication Services 

AT&T Inc. 1.33 -4.97 -0.07 Telecommunication Services 



Index Change Analysis — S&P 500® Index 

2016 
• 55 additions/deletions so far in 2016 

• 44 additions/deletions were due to acquisition activity, 1 addition of a new share class, and 10 were due to 
securities being more representative of the mid-cap index (lack of representation) 

• S&P 500 now contains 505 positions (but still 500 companies) after the additions of News Corp and Twenty-
First Century Fox Class B shares, Google, Under Armour, and Discovery Communications Class C shares 

54 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: Standard & Poor's®. 
Index changes are as of the date indicated, are subject to change, and should not be relied upon as current thereafter. 
The information contained above is for illustrative purposes only. None of the information contained herein constitutes a recommendation by SSGA or a solicitation of any other offer to buy or sell 
any securities. The information is not intended to provide investment advice. SSGA does not guarantee the suitability or potential value of any particular investment. 
It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

15 

3 

7 
4 5 

3 

10 10 

3 

9 
7 

18 

18 

20 

10 9 
6 

12 

16 

26 

36 

27 

16 
13 12 11 

20 

14 

30 

44 

2 
4 

0

10

20

30

40

50

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

S&
P

 5
0

0
 In

d
e

x 
C

h
an

ge
s 

Lack of representation Corporate actions Share Class



Index Change Analysis — Historical — S&P 500® Index 

55 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: Standard & Poor's®. 
Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

Number of changes per year and cap-weighted turnover 

24 

31 

48 

41 

58 

30 

24 

9 

19 20 

31 

39 
37 

26 

16 

21 
18 

38 

30 

54 55 

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 YTD 2016

Turnover (%) 4.58 4.92 9.46 6.16 8.91 4.43 3.82 1.45 3.10 5.73 4.54 5.21 3.87 4.48 3.73 3.64 4.37 3.27 3.05 5.32 



Index Change Analysis — 2016 — S&P 500® Index  

56 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: Standard & Poor's®. 
The information contained above is for illustrative purposes only. None of the information contained herein constitutes a recommendation by SSGA or a solicitation of any other offer to buy or sell 
any securities. The information is not intended to provide investment advice. SSGA does not guarantee the suitability or potential value of any particular investment. 
Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

Date Company Status 

1/5/16 Airgas Inc Drop 

1/5/16 Fossil Group Inc Drop 

1/19/16 Chubb Corp old Drop 

2/1/16 Broadcom Corp A Drop 

2/1/16 Precision Castparts Corp Drop 

2/22/16 Plum Creek Timber Co Drop 

3/4/16 CONSOL Energy Inc Drop 

3/7/16 Keurig Green Mountain Inc Drop 

3/30/16 Ensco PLC - CL A Drop 

3/30/16 Pepco Holdings Inc Drop 

4/4/16 Cameron International Corp Drop 

4/18/16 Tenet Healthcare Drop 

4/25/16 GameStop Corp A Drop 

5/3/16 The ADT Corp. Drop 

5/13/16 SanDisk Corp Drop 

5/16/16 Vistana Signature Experiences SPIN Drop 

5/17/16 Ingevity Corp Drop 

5/18/16 Time Warner Cable Inc Drop 

5/31/16 Coca-Cola Enterprises Drop 

6/3/16 Baxalta Inc Drop 

6/24/16 Cablevision Systems Co A Drop 

Date Company Status 

1/5/16 Digital Realty Trust Add 

1/5/16 Willis Group Holdings PLC Add 

1/19/16 Extra Space Storage Inc Add 

2/1/16 Citizens Financial Group Inc Add 

2/1/16 Federal Realty Invt Trust Add 

2/22/16 Concho Resources Inc Add 

3/4/16 American Water Works Co Inc Add 

3/7/16 UDR Inc Add 

3/30/16 Centene Corp Add 

3/30/16 Hologic Inc Add 

4/4/16 Foot Locker Inc Add 

4/8/16 Under Armour Inc-C Add 

4/18/16 Ulta Salon Cosmetics & Fragr Add 

4/25/16 Global Payments Inc Add 

5/3/16 Acuity Brands Inc Add 

5/13/16 Alaska Air Group Inc Add 

5/13/16 Vistana Signature Experiences SPIN Add 

5/16/16 Ingevity Corp Add 

5/23/16 LKQ Corp Add 

5/31/16 Gallagher Arthur J. & Co Add 

6/3/16 TransDigm Group Add 

6/24/16 Fortune Brands Home & Security Inc Add 



Index Change Analysis — 2016 — S&P 500® Index  

57 GLSTND-2678 

As of September 30, 2016. 
Source: Standard & Poor's®. 
The information contained above is for illustrative purposes only. None of the information contained herein constitutes a recommendation by SSGA or a solicitation of any other offer to buy or sell 
any securities. The information is not intended to provide investment advice. SSGA does not guarantee the suitability or potential value of any particular investment. 
Please see Important Disclosures in the Appendix. 

Date Company Status 

7/1/16 AGL Resources Drop 

7/1/16 TECO Energy Inc Drop 

7/6/16 Columbia Pipeline Group Drop 

9/6/16 Johnson Controls Inc Drop 

9/8/16 EMC Corp Drop 

9/23/16 Starwood Hotel & Resort World 

Date Company Status 

7/1/16 Albemarle Corp Add 

7/1/16 Alliant Energy Corp Add 

7/5/16 Fortive Corp Add 

9/6/16 Mettler-Toledo Intl Add 

9/8/16 Charter Communications Inc A Add 

9/23/16 Cooper Companies Inc Add 



Appendix A: GIPS® Presentations 
  

58 CMINST-14496 

 



Firm Definition: For the purpose of complying with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®), the 
firm ("SSGA-Global") is defined as all portfolios managed across the global offices of State Street Global Advisors 
(SSGA) and SSGA Funds Management, Inc., with the exception of business units which are held out to the 
marketplace as distinct business entities – Fiduciary Advisory Solutions (formerly known as the Office of the 
Fiduciary Advisor [OFA]) and Charitable Asset Management (CAM). Prior to 1/1/2011, SSGA-Global also excluded 
its wrap fee business (Intermediary Business Group [IBG]) and assets accounted for on a book value basis (global 
cash and stable value assets). In January 2011, SSGA acquired the Bank of Ireland Asset Management Limited 
(now known as SSGA Ireland Limited), a GIPS® Compliant firm. On 1/1/2012 SSGA Ireland Limited assets were 
merged into SSGA-Global. 
Composite Description: The Composite seeks to achieve the Investment Objective described below using the 
Investment Strategy described below. 
Compliance Statement: SSGA‐Global claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards 
(GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with GIPS. SSGA-Global claims compliance 
with the GIPS standards from January 1, 2000. The period prior to January 1, 2000 (where shown) is not in 
compliance, as not all actual fee-paying portfolios are in a composite. SSGA‐Global has been independently 
verified for the periods January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2014. The verification report is available upon 
request. Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction 
requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm‐wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are designed 
to calculate and present performance in compliance with the GIPS standards. Verification does not ensure the 
accuracy of any specific composite presentation. In January 2015, the GIPS Firm name changed from “SSgA-
Global” to “SSGA-Global”. 
List Available: A complete list of the firm’s composites and their descriptions is available upon request. 
Creation Date: The composite was created on 01/01/09. 
Benchmark Description: The benchmark for the composite is the S&P 500®. Index returns are unmanaged and 
do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses but include all items of income, gain, and loss. 
Currency: Performance is presented in USD. 
Use of Subadvisors: This composite contains portfolios that were managed on a sub-advised basis for the period 
from 01/09/02 to 31/08/08. 
Use of Subadvisors: None. 
Fees: Returns are expressed gross of management fees. The results do not reflect the deduction of investment 
management fees. Some members of this composite may accrue administration fees. The client's return will be 
reduced by the management fee. For example, if an annualized gross return of 10% was achieved over a 5-year 
period and a management fee of 1% per year was charged and deducted annually, then the resulting total return 
would be reduced from 61% to 54%. 
Fee Schedule: Management fees are 0.050% of the first $50,000,000; 0.040% of the next $50,000,000; and 
0.020% thereafter. The minimum annual management fee for commingled funds is $10,000. The minimum 
annual management fee for separately managed accounts is $75,000. Management fees may be adjusted based 
upon specific client requirements. 
Derivatives Use: SSGA may use futures and other derivatives from time to time in the management of the 
Strategy generally as a temporary substitute for cash investments or for hedging purposes and not with the 
purpose of creating investment leverage. 
Calculation Methodology: Additional information is available upon request regarding the firm’s policies and 
procedures for calculating and reporting performance results as well as valuation procedures. 
Annualized Returns: All returns for periods greater than one year have been annualized. 
Dispersion: Asset-Weighted standard deviation is calculated using the annual returns of the accounts that were 
included in the composite for all periods of the year. 
Significant Events: In November 2007, on the departure of the North America CIO Sean Flannery, Global asset 
class CIOs were appointed (Alistair Lowe, Asset Allocation and Currency CIO; Mark Marinella, Fixed Income CIO; 
Steve Meier, Cash CIO and Arlene Rockefeller, Equities CIO). In May 2010, Lynn Blake assumed the role as global 
head of Index Equity following the retirement of Paul Brakke. In July 2014, on the departure of Maria Dwyer, 
Matt Steinaway was named interim Chief Risk Officer. Matt replaced Maria Dwyer, who was appointed to the 
leadership team of the Office of Regulatory Initiatives Oversight. In November 2014, David Saulnier was 
appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing Matt Steinaway. Matt Steinaway resumed his position as 
Head of Global Cash Management. In March 2015, Timothy Corbett was appointed Head of Global Investment 
Risk replacing Fred Gjerstad who has since left the firm. In March 2015, Ronald O' Hanley was appointed CEO 
and President of State Street Global Advisors replacing Scott Powers who retired. In June 2015, Greg Ehret was 
named President continuing to report to Ron O’Hanley, chief executive officer of SSGA. In August 2015, Matt 
Steinaway was appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing David Saulnier who has since left the firm. Pia 
McCusker assumed Matt's role as Head of Global Cash Management. In December 2015, Ronald O' Hanley, Chief 
Executive Officer of SSGA, re-assumed the role of President of the company upon the departure of Greg Ehret. 
Steven Lipiner was appointed Chief Financial Officer replacing Keith Crawford who was appointed head of global 
mergers and acquisitions. 
Past and Future Performance: Historic performance is not necessarily indicative of actual future investment 
performance, which could differ substantially. 

GIPS® Report: S&P 500 Index Composite 
As of December 31, 2015 

gPASP500  
* 5 portfolios or less 
** Less than 3 years 
Quarterly and YTD returns are not annualized 
Investment Objective: The Strategy seeks an investment return that approximates as closely as practicable, before 
expenses, the performance of its benchmark index (the "Index") over the long term. 
Investment Strategy: The Strategy is managed using a "passive" or "indexing" investment approach, by which SSGA 
attempts to match, before expenses, the performance of the Index. SSGA will typically attempt to invest in the equity 
securities comprising the Index, in approximately the same proportions as they are represented in the Index. Equity 
securities may include common stocks, preferred stocks, depository receipts, or other securities convertible into common 
stock. The Strategy may purchase securities in their initial public offerings ("IPOs"). In some cases, it may not be possible or 
practicable to purchase all of the securities comprising the Index, or to hold them in the same weightings as they represent 
in the Index. In those circumstances, SSGA may employ a sampling or optimization technique to construct the portfolio in 
question. From time to time securities are added to or removed from the Index. SSGA may sell securities that are 
represented in the Index, or purchase securities that are not yet represented in the Index, prior to or after their removal or 
addition to the Index. The Strategy may at times purchase or sell index futures contracts, or options on those futures, or 
engage in other transactions involving the use of derivatives, in lieu of investment directly in the securities making up the 
Index or to enhance the Strategy's replication of the Index return. The Strategy's return may not match the return of the 
Index. 
Withholding Taxes Differences: None. 
Exchange Rates Differences Between Composite & Benchmark: None. 
Minimum Asset Level for Inclusion: 0. 

Quarter YTD 
1  

Year 
3  

Years 
5  

Years 
10  

Years 

Since 
Inception 
 Jan 1986 

S&P 500 Index Composite 7.06 1.43 1.43 15.16 12.60 7.35 N/A 

S&P 500® 7.04 1.38 1.38 15.13 12.57 7.31 N/A 

Year S&P 500 Index Composite S&P 500® 

2015 1.43 1.38 

2014 13.71 13.69 

2013 32.42 32.39 

2012 16.04 16.00 

2011 2.14 2.11 

2010 15.12 15.06 

2009 26.54 26.46 

2008 -36.93 -37.00 

2007 5.53 5.49 

2006 15.81 15.79 

Footnotes Gross Returns 

Year 
No. of 

Portfolios  
Composite 
Dispersion 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard Deviation 

— Composite 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard 

Deviation — 
Benchmark 

Total Assets at 
End  

of Period 
(USD) 

% of 
Firm’s 
Assets 

Total Firm 
Assets  

(USD mil) 

2015 20 0.04 10.48 10.47 62,069,196,320 2.84 2,183,429 

2014 20 0.03 8.97 8.97 67,773,578,217 2.84 2,383,493 

2013 20 0.04 11.93 11.94 67,232,162,274 2.95 2,279,237 

2012 20 0.04 15.08 15.09 55,499,052,765 2.74 2,023,842 

2011 18 0.01 18.69 18.71 62,152,623,788 3.52 1,768,142 

2010 14 0.02 21.84 21.85 58,677,181,141 3.86 1,518,977 

2009 16 0.06 19.62 19.63 56,064,423,967 4.12 1,360,125 

2008 12 0.02 15.07 15.08 63,317,399,770 6.67 949,988 

2007 11 0.07 7.68 7.68 105,871,246,711 8.49 1,246,382 

2006 12 0.10 6.82 6.82 105,498,089,610 9.83 1,073,038 

59 



Firm Definition: For the purpose of complying with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®), the 
firm ("SSGA-Global") is defined as all portfolios managed across the global offices of State Street Global 
Advisors (SSGA) and SSGA Funds Management, Inc., with the exception of business units which are held out to 
the marketplace as distinct business entities – Fiduciary Advisory Solutions (formerly known as the Office of 
the Fiduciary Advisor [OFA]) and Charitable Asset Management (CAM). Prior to 1/1/2011, SSGA-Global also 
excluded its wrap fee business (Intermediary Business Group [IBG]) and assets accounted for on a book value 
basis (global cash and stable value assets). In January 2011, SSGA acquired the Bank of Ireland Asset 
Management Limited (now known as SSGA Ireland Limited), a GIPS® Compliant firm. On 1/1/2012 SSGA 
Ireland Limited assets were merged into SSGA-Global. 
Composite Description: The Composite seeks to achieve the Investment Objective described below using the 
Investment Strategy described below. 
Compliance Statement: SSGA‐Global claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards 
(GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with GIPS. SSGA-Global claims compliance 
with the GIPS standards from January 1, 2000. The period prior to January 1, 2000 (where shown) is not in 
compliance, as not all actual fee-paying portfolios are in a composite. SSGA‐Global has been independently 
verified for the periods January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2014. The verification report is available upon 
request. Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction 
requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm‐wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are 
designed to calculate and present performance in compliance with the GIPS standards. Verification does not 
ensure the accuracy of any specific composite presentation. In January 2015, the GIPS Firm name changed 
from “SSgA-Global” to “SSGA-Global”. 
List Available: A complete list of the firm’s composites and their descriptions is available upon request. 
Creation Date: The composite was created on 01/01/09. 
Benchmark Description: The benchmark for the composite is the MSCI EAFE® Index. Index returns are 
unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses but include all items of income, gain, 
and loss. 
Currency: Performance is presented in USD. 
Use of Subadvisors: None. 
Fees: Returns are expressed gross of management fees. The results do not reflect the deduction of investment 
management fees. Some members of this composite may accrue administration fees. The client's return will 
be reduced by the management fee. For example, if an annualized gross return of 10% was achieved over a 5-
year period and a management fee of 1% per year was charged and deducted annually, then the resulting 
total return would be reduced from 61% to 54%. 
Fee Schedule: Management fees are 0.080% of the first $50,000,000; 0.060% of the next $50,000,000; and 
0.050% thereafter. The minimum annual management fee for commingled funds is $25,000. The minimum 
annual management fee for separately managed accounts is $125,000. Management fees may be adjusted 
based upon specific client requirements. 
Derivatives Use: SSGA may use futures and other derivatives from time to time in the management of the 
Strategy generally as a temporary substitute for cash investments or for hedging purposes and not with the 
purpose of creating investment leverage. 
Calculation Methodology: Additional information is available upon request regarding the firm’s policies and 
procedures for calculating and reporting performance results as well as valuation procedures. 
Annualized Returns: All returns for periods greater than one year have been annualized. 
Withholding Taxes Differences: None. 
Exchange Rates Differences Between Composite & Benchmark: None. 
Minimum Asset Level for Inclusion: 0. 
Significant Events: In November 2007, on the departure of the North America CIO Sean Flannery, Global asset 
class CIOs were appointed (Alistair Lowe, Asset Allocation and Currency CIO; Mark Marinella, Fixed Income 
CIO; Steve Meier, Cash CIO and Arlene Rockefeller, Equities CIO). In May 2010, Lynn Blake assumed the role as 
global head of Index Equity following the retirement of Paul Brakke. In July 2014, on the departure of Maria 
Dwyer, Matt Steinaway was named interim Chief Risk Officer. Matt replaced Maria Dwyer, who was 
appointed to the leadership team of the Office of Regulatory Initiatives Oversight. In November 2014, David 
Saulnier was appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing Matt Steinaway. Matt Steinaway resumed his 
position as Head of Global Cash Management. In March 2015, Timothy Corbett was appointed Head of Global 
Investment Risk replacing Fred Gjerstad who has since left the firm. In March 2015, Ronald O' Hanley was 
appointed CEO and President of State Street Global Advisors replacing Scott Powers who retired. In June 
2015, Greg Ehret was named President continuing to report to Ron O’Hanley, chief executive officer of SSGA. 
In August 2015, Matt Steinaway was appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing David Saulnier who 
has since left the firm. Pia McCusker assumed Matt's role as Head of Global Cash Management. In December 
2015, Ronald O' Hanley, Chief Executive Officer of SSGA, re-assumed the role of President of the company 
upon the departure of Greg Ehret. Steven Lipiner was appointed Chief Financial Officer replacing Keith 
Crawford who was appointed head of global mergers and acquisitions. 
Past and Future Performance: Historic performance is not necessarily indicative of actual future investment 
performance, which could differ substantially. 
  

GIPS® Report: MSCI EAFE Index Composite 
As of December 31, 2015 

gP-EAFE  
* 5 portfolios or less 
** Less than 3 years 
Quarterly and YTD returns are not annualized 
Investment Objective: The Strategy seeks an investment return that approximates as closely as practicable, before 
expenses, the performance of its benchmark index (the "Index") over the long term. 
Investment Strategy: The Strategy is managed using a "passive" or "indexing" investment approach, by which SSGA attempts to 
match, before expenses, the performance of the Index. SSGA will typically attempt to invest in the equity securities comprising 
the Index, in approximately the same proportions as they are represented in the Index. Equity securities may include common 
stocks, preferred stocks, depository receipts, or other securities convertible into common stock. Equity securities held by the 
Strategy may be denominated in foreign currencies and may be held outside the United States. The Strategy may purchase 
securities in their initial public offerings ("IPOs"). In some cases, it may not be possible or practicable to purchase all of the 
securities comprising the Index, or to hold them in the same weightings as they represent in the Index. In those circumstances, 
SSGA may employ a sampling or optimization technique to construct the portfolio in question. From time to time securities are 
added to or removed from the Index. SSGA may sell securities that are represented in the Index, or purchase securities that are 
not yet represented in the Index, prior to or after their removal or addition to the Index. The Strategy may at times purchase or 
sell index futures contracts, or options on those futures, or engage in other transactions involving the use of derivatives, in lieu 
of investment directly in the securities making up the Index or to enhance the Strategy's replication of the Index return. The 
Strategy's return may not match the return of the Index. 
Dispersion: Asset-Weighted standard deviation is calculated using the annual returns of the accounts that were included in 
the composite for all periods of the year. 
  

Quarter YTD 
1  

Year 
3  

Years 
5  

Years 
10 

Years 

Since 
Inception Jan 

1985 

MSCI EAFE Index Composite 4.71 -0.58 -0.58 5.25 3.85 3.28 N/A 

MSCI EAFE® Index 4.71 -0.81 -0.81 5.01 3.60 3.03 N/A 

Year MSCI EAFE Index Composite MSCI EAFE® Index 

2015 -0.58 -0.81 

2014 -4.67 -4.90 

2013 23.02 22.78 

2012 17.63 17.32 

2011 -11.92 -12.14 

2010 7.97 7.75 

2009  32.05 31.78 

2008 -43.16 -43.38 

2007 11.38 11.17 

2006 26.63 26.34 

Footnotes Gross Returns 

Year 
No. of 

Portfolios  
Composite 
Dispersion 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard Deviation 

— Composite 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard Deviation 

— Benchmark 

Total Assets at End  
of Period 

(USD) 

% of 
Firm’s 
Assets 

Total Firm 
Assets  

(USD mil) 

2015 8 0.15 12.45 12.46 30,222,391,500 1.38 2,183,429 

2014 7 0.13 13.00 13.03 29,428,863,233 1.23 2,383,493 

2013 7 0.15 16.22 16.25 29,266,714,685 1.28 2,279,237 

2012 8 0.16 19.29 19.37 29,108,751,239 1.44 2,023,842 

2011 8 N/A 22.40 22.43 25,311,047,591 1.43 1,768,142 

2010 * N/A 26.20 26.23 22,035,409,578 1.45 1,518,977 

2009 7 N/A 23.59 23.58 18,390,630,133 1.35 1,360,125 

2008 6 N/A 19.23 19.24 12,171,065,237 1.28 949,988 

2007 11 N/A 9.40 9.43 7,169,417,726 0.58 1,246,382 

2006 16 N/A 9.29 9.33 15,287,568,251 1.42 1,073,038 

60 



Firm Definition: For the purpose of complying with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®), the 
firm ("SSGA-Global") is defined as all portfolios managed across the global offices of State Street Global 
Advisors (SSGA) and SSGA Funds Management, Inc., with the exception of business units which are held out to 
the marketplace as distinct business entities – Fiduciary Advisory Solutions (formerly known as the Office of 
the Fiduciary Advisor [OFA]) and Charitable Asset Management (CAM). Prior to 1/1/2011, SSGA-Global also 
excluded its wrap fee business (Intermediary Business Group [IBG]) and assets accounted for on a book value 
basis (global cash and stable value assets). In January 2011, SSGA acquired the Bank of Ireland Asset 
Management Limited (now known as SSGA Ireland Limited), a GIPS® Compliant firm. On 1/1/2012 SSGA 
Ireland Limited assets were merged into SSGA-Global. 
Composite Description: The Composite seeks to achieve the Investment Objective described below using the 
Investment Strategy described below. 
Compliance Statement: SSGA‐Global claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards 
(GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with GIPS. SSGA-Global claims compliance 
with the GIPS standards from January 1, 2000. The period prior to January 1, 2000 (where shown) is not in 
compliance, as not all actual fee-paying portfolios are in a composite. SSGA‐Global has been independently 
verified for the periods January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2014. The verification report is available upon 
request. Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction 
requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm‐wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are 
designed to calculate and present performance in compliance with the GIPS standards. Verification does not 
ensure the accuracy of any specific composite presentation. In January 2015, the GIPS Firm name changed 
from “SSgA-Global” to “SSGA-Global”. 
List Available: A complete list of the firm’s composites and their descriptions is available upon request. 
Creation Date: The composite was created on 1 Jan 09. 
Benchmark Description: The benchmark for the composite is the MSCI EAFE Index. Index returns are 
unmanaged and do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses but include all items of income, gain, 
and loss. 
Currency: Performance is presented in USD. Use of Subadvisors: None. 
Fees: Returns are expressed gross of management fees. The results do not reflect the deduction of investment 
management fees. Some members of this composite may accrue administration fees. The client's return will 
be reduced by the management fee. For example, if an annualized gross return of 10% was achieved over a 5-
year period and a management fee of 1% per year was charged and deducted annually, then the resulting 
total return would be reduced from 61% to 54%. 
Fee Schedule: Management fees are 0.100% of the first $50,000,000; 0.080% of the next $50,000,000; and 
0.070% thereafter. The minimum annual management fee for commingled funds is $25,000. The minimum 
annual management fee for separately managed accounts is $125,000. Management fees may be adjusted 
based upon specific client requirements. 
Derivatives Use: SSGA may use futures and other derivatives from time to time in the management of the 
Strategy generally as a temporary substitute for cash investments or for hedging purposes and not with the 
purpose of creating investment leverage. 
Calculation Methodology: Additional information is available upon request regarding the firm’s policies and 
procedures for calculating and reporting performance results as well as valuation procedures. 
Annualized Returns: All returns for periods greater than one year have been annualized. Withholding Taxes 
Differences: None. 
Exchange Rates Differences Between Composite & Benchmark: None. Minimum Asset Level for Inclusion: 0. 
Dispersion: Asset-Weighted standard deviation is calculated using the annual returns of the accounts that 
were included in the composite for all periods of the year. 
Significant Events: In November 2007, on the departure of the North America CIO Sean Flannery, Global asset 
class CIOs were appointed (Alistair Lowe, Asset Allocation and Currency CIO; Mark Marinella, Fixed Income 
CIO; Steve Meier, Cash CIO and Arlene Rockefeller, Equities CIO). In May 2010, Lynn Blake assumed the role as 
global head of Index Equity following the retirement of Paul Brakke. In July 2014, on the departure of Maria 
Dwyer, Matt Steinaway was named interim Chief Risk Officer. Matt replaced Maria Dwyer, who was 
appointed to the leadership team of the Office of Regulatory Initiatives Oversight. In November 2014, David 
Saulnier was appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing Matt Steinaway. Matt Steinaway resumed his 
position as Head of Global Cash Management. In March 2015, Timothy Corbett was appointed Head of Global 
Investment Risk replacing Fred Gjerstad who has since left the firm. In March 2015, Ronald O' Hanley was 
appointed CEO and President of State Street Global Advisors replacing Scott Powers who retired. In June 
2015, Greg Ehret was named President continuing to report to Ron O’Hanley, chief executive officer of SSGA. 
In August 2015, Matt Steinaway was appointed as Chief Risk Officer for SSGA, replacing David Saulnier who 
has since left the firm. Pia McCusker assumed Matt's role as Head of Global Cash Management. In December 
2015, Ronald O' Hanley, Chief Executive Officer of SSGA, re-assumed the role of President of the company 
upon the departure of Greg Ehret. Steven Lipiner was appointed Chief Financial Officer replacing Keith 
Crawford who was appointed head of global mergers and acquisitions. 
Past and Future Performance: Historic performance is not necessarily indicative of actual future investment 
performance, which could differ substantially. 

GIPS® Report: Daily MSCI EAFE Index Composite 
As of December 31, 2015 

gP-DEAFE  
* 5 portfolios or less 
** Less than 3 years 
Quarterly and YTD returns are not annualized 
Investment Objective: The Strategy seeks an investment return that approximates as closely as practicable, before 
expenses, the performance of its benchmark index (the "Index") over the long term. 
Investment Strategy: The Strategy is managed using a "passive" or "indexing" investment approach, by which SSGA 
attempts to match, before expenses, the performance of the Index. SSGA will typically attempt to invest in the equity 
securities comprising the Index, in approximately the same proportions as they are represented in the Index. Equity 
securities may include common stocks, preferred stocks, depository receipts, or other securities convertible into common 
stock. Equity securities held by the Strategy may be denominated in foreign currencies and may be held outside the United 
States. The Strategy may purchase securities in their initial public offerings ("IPOs"). In some cases, it may not be possible or 
practicable to purchase all of the securities comprising the Index, or to hold them in the same weightings as they represent 
in the Index. In those circumstances, SSGA may employ a sampling or optimization technique to construct the portfolio in 
question. From time to time securities are added to or removed from the Index. SSGA may sell securities that are 
represented in the Index, or purchase securities that are not yet represented in the Index, prior to or after their removal or 
addition to the Index. The Strategy may at times purchase or sell index futures contracts, or options on those futures, or 
engage in other transactions involving the use of derivatives, in lieu of investment directly in the securities making up the 
Index or to enhance the Strategy's replication of the Index return. The Strategy's return may not match the return of the 
Index. 

Quarter YTD 
1  

Year 
3  

Years 
5  

Years 
10  

Years 

Since 
Inception  
Nov 1993 

Daily MSCI EAFE Index Composite 4.72 -0.61 -0.61 5.23 3.85 3.27 N/A 

MSCI EAFE® Index 4.71 -0.81 -0.81 5.01 3.60 3.03 N/A 

Year Daily MSCI EAFE Index Composite MSCI EAFE® Index 

2015 -0.61 -0.81 

2014 -4.68 -4.90 

2013 23.00 22.78 

2012 17.68 17.32 

2011 -11.93 -12.14 

2010 8.10 7.75 

2009 32.17 31.78 

2008 -43.21 -43.38 

2007 11.34 11.17 

2006 26.48 26.34 

Footnotes Gross Returns 

Year 
No. of 

Portfolios  
Composite 
Dispersion 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard Deviation 

— Composite 

3 Yr Annualized 
Standard Deviation 

— Benchmark 

Total Assets at End  
of Period 

(USD) 

% of 
Firm’s 
Assets 

Total Firm 
Assets  

(USD mil) 

2015 * N/A 12.47 12.46 3,365,805,185 0.15 2,183,429 

2014 * N/A 13.02 13.03 1,642,052,469 0.07 2,383,493 

2013 * N/A 16.60 16.25 1,381,195,855 0.06 2,279,237 

2012 * N/A 19.62 19.37 1,548,347,979 0.08 2,023,842 

2011 * N/A 22.87 22.43 1,697,293,512 0.10 1,768,142 

2010 * N/A 26.40 26.23 2,847,496,783 0.19 1,518,977 

2009 * N/A 23.81 23.58 3,791,345,722 0.28 1,360,125 

2008 * N/A 19.25 19.24 6,760,949,024 0.71 949,988 

2007 * N/A 9.41 9.43 12,780,277,470 1.03 1,246,382 

2006 * N/A 9.28 9.33 10,084,035,301 0.94 1,073,038 

61 



Appendix B: Important Disclosures  
  

62 CMINST-14496 

 

 



MSCI Index Disclaimer 

MSCI Indices are trademarks of MSCI Inc. Any financial products referred to herein are not sponsored, endorsed, or promoted by MSCI, and MSCI bears no 
liability with respect to any such financial products or any index on which such financial products are based. The fund documents contain a more detailed 
description of the limited relationship MSCI has with SSGA and any related financial products. Source: MSCI: Neither MSCI nor any other party involved in or 
related to compiling, computing or creating the MSCI data makes any express or implied warranties or representations with respect to such data (or the 
results to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability 
or fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any of such data. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, any of its affiliates or any 
third party involved in or related to compiling, computing or creating the data have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any 
other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. No further distribution or dissemination of the MSCI data is 
permitted without MSCI’s express written consent. 

 

63 CMINST-14496 

 



Index Trademark Attribution 

  
The MSCI Indexes are trademarks of MSCI, Inc. 

Standard & Poor’s S&P Indices are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC. 

Russell Investment Group is the source and owner of the trademarks, service marks and copyrights related to the Russell Indexes.  

Russell is a trademark of Russell Investment Group. 

64 CMINST-14496 



Important Risk Disclosures 

   
Investing involves risk including the risk of loss of principal. 

The whole or any part of this work may not be reproduced, copied or transmitted or any of its contents disclosed to third parties without SSGA's express written consent. 

All information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but its accuracy is not guaranteed. There is no representation or warranty as to the current accuracy, 
reliability or completeness of, nor liability for, decisions based on such information and it should not be relied on as such. 

On July 1, 2016 State Street Corporation, the parent company of State Street Global Advisors acquired the asset management and advisory services business conducted by 
GE Asset Management 

65 CMINST-14496 

  



Important Disclosures 

66 CMINST-14496 

Equity securities are volatile and can decline significantly in response to broad market and economic conditions. 

Investing in foreign domiciled securities may involve risk of capital loss from unfavorable fluctuation in currency values, withholding taxes, from differences in 
generally accepted accounting principles or from economic or political instability in other nations.  

Investments in emerging or developing markets may be more volatile and less liquid than investing in developed markets and may involve exposure to economic 
structures that are generally less diverse and mature and to political systems which have less stability than those of more developed countries. 

Investing in commodities entail significant risk and is not appropriate for all investors. Commodities investing entail significant risk as commodity prices can be 
extremely volatile due to wide range of factors. A few such factors include overall market movements, real or perceived inflationary trends, commodity index 
volatility, international, economic and political changes, change in interest and currency exchange rates. 

Investments in small/mid sized companies may involve greater risks than in those of larger, better known companies. 

ETFs trade like stocks, are subject to investment risk, fluctuate in market value and may trade at prices above or below the ETFs net asset value.  
Brokerage commissions and ETF expenses will reduce returns. 

Standard & Poor’s, S&P and SPDR are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (S&P); Dow Jones is a registered trademark of Dow Jones 
Trademark Holdings LLC (Dow Jones); and these trademarks have been licensed for use by S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC (SPDJI) and sublicensed for certain purposes 
by State Street Corporation. State Street Corporation’s financial products are not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by SPDJI, Dow Jones, S&P, their respective 
affiliates and third party licensors and none of such parties make any representation regarding the advisability of investing in such product(s) nor do they have any 
liability in relation thereto, including for any errors, omissions, or interruptions of any index. 

All the index performance results referred to are provided exclusively for comparison purposes only. It should not be assumed that they represent the performance 
of any particular investment. 



Important Disclosures 

Investing in futures is highly risky. Futures positions are considered highly leveraged because the initial margins are significantly smaller than the cash value of 
the contracts. The smaller the value of the margin in comparison to the cash value of the futures contract, the higher the leverage. There are a number of 
risks associated with futures investing including but not limited to counterparty credit risk, currency risk, derivatives risk, foreign issuer exposure risk, sector 
concentration risk, leveraging and liquidity risks. 

Companies with large market capitalizations go in and out of favor based on market and economic conditions. Larger companies tend to be less volatile than 
companies with smaller market capitalizations. In exchange for this potentially lower risk, the value of the security may not rise as much as companies with 
smaller market capitalizations. 

Investments in mid/ small-sized companies may involve greater risks than in those of larger, better known companies. 

This document provides summary information regarding the Strategy. This document should be read in conjunction with the Strategy's Disclosure 
Document, which is available from SSGA. The Strategy Disclosure Document contains important information about the Strategy, including a description of 
a number of risks. 

Derivative investments may involve risks such as potential illiquidity of the markets and additional risk of loss of principal. 

The S&P 500 Index is a product of S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC (“SPDJI”), and has been licensed for use by SSGA. Standard & Poor’s®, S&P® and S&P 500® are 
registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”).  

Web: www.ssga.com 

© 2016 State Street Corporation — All Rights Reserved 

Tracking Code: CMINST-14496 

Expiration Date: 12/31/2016 

67 CMINST-14496 



Appendix C: Biographies 

68 CMINST-14496 



Biographies 

Patrick J. Hearne Arman Palian 

Patrick is a Principal of State Street Global Advisors and a Senior Client Service 

Manager responsible for managing institutional client relationships in the 

Northeast region of the United States. 

Prior to his current role, Patrick was a Senior Product Analyst within the Consultant 

Relations Department at State Street Global Advisors. He was responsible for new 

business development through the completion of Requests for Proposals for 

passive equity strategies. He also provided marketing and product support to the 

Consultant Relations, Sales and Relationship Management Teams. Prior to his role 

as a product analyst, Patrick was a Database Analyst within the Consultant 

Relations Group at State Street Global Advisors. 

Patrick graduated from the Northeastern University with a Bachelor of  

Science in Business Administration and Finance. He holds the FINRA series  

7 and 63 registrations. 

 

Arman is a Principal of State Street Global Advisors and a Client Service 

Manager responsible for managing institutional client relationships across 

the United States. 

Prior to his current role, Arman was a member of the SSGA Client  

Support Team where he worked with clients on general inquiries and  

trade placement. 

Arman earned a Bachelor's of Science in Business Administration with  

a concentration in finance from Suffolk University. 

 

69 CMINST-14496 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Action 10/05/16

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL).
(Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 11/22/2016
Chief Financial Officer, Acting Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Pension funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines adopted by each Retirement Board.  Attached are the two investment performance
reports prepared by the Boards’ pension investment consultants.    The first report is the Third
Quarter 2016 Market Update (Attachment 1) and the second is the Investment Measurement
Service Quarterly Review as of September 30, 2016 (Attachment 2).  These reports provide a
detailed analysis of the performance of each of the investment managers retained by the
Retirement Boards to manage the Retirement Funds for the quarter ended September 30,
2016. The second report compares the performance of each investment manager with
benchmark indices, other fund managers of similarly invested portfolios and other indices.

Investment Compliance Monitoring
In accordance with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Investment Policy), State Street Bank
performs daily investment compliance monitoring on the Plans’ three (3) actively managed
funds. As of September 30, 2016, there were no compliance warnings or alerts to be reported;
therefore, the investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy. The final attached
report includes the monitoring summary (Attachment 3).

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
18



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

12/14/16 Retirement Action 10/05/16

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and
Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2016
(ALL). (Bernegger)

The table below provides an overview of the quarter performance, quarter ending September
30, 2016 – gross of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU, IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/

(Losses)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value 3.48% 4.55% $1,771,194 -
S&P 500 Index (large cap value) S&P 500 3.85% 3.88% $1,574,416 $(537,564)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 9.05% 2.60% $570,144 (260,205)
Brandes  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $66 -
JPMorgan  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE 6.43% 8.53% $1,816,393 -

MSCI EAFE Index (international equities) MSCI EAFE 6.43% 6.48% $899,468 (12,201,601)

AQR (small cap international equities) MSCI EAFE SC - - $200,060 12,201,601

Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM 9.15% 8.09% $1,003,710 137,839

Metropolitan West (fixed income) Barclays Agg. 0.46% 0.80% $708,071 (277,837)

Totals 3.87% 3.50% $8,543,522 $(937,767)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark

The table below provides an overview of the year to date performance, as of September 30,
2016 – net of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU, IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/(Loss)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value 16.20% 10.34% $3,801,993 $-
S&P 500 Index (large cap value) S&P 500 15.43% 15.45% $5,665,678 (1,253,248)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 15.47% 15.41% $3,018,616 (710,906)
Brandes  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $(2,050) -
JPMorgan  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE 6.52% 8.26% $1,756,891 -
MSCI EAFE Index (international equities) MSCI EAFE 6.52% 6.77% $959,282 (12,201,601)
AQR (small cap international equities) MSCI EAFE SC - - $200,060 12,201,601
Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM 17.21% 18.08% $1,987,511 755,895
Metropolitan West (fixed income) Barclays Agg. 5.19% 4.85% $4,121,326 (1,680,489)

Totals 10.46% 9.33% $21,509,307 $(2,888,748)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
18



Sacramento Regional 
Transit District

Third Quarter 2016
Market Update

December 14, 2016

Anne Heaphy
SF Fund Sponsor Consulting

Uvan Tseng, CFA
SF Fund Sponsor Consulting



2Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Economic Commentary

● The US economy remains slow but steady. The second quarter GDP was revised modestly higher to +1.4%, boosted by robust 
consumer spending. Fed policymakers now expect growth for all of 2016 to be 1.8%, down from the June expectation of 2.0%.

● The job market remained steady, with job growth averaging 192,000 in the third quarter. Unemployment ticked up slightly to 5.0%,
given the increase in labor force. Wages showed signs of improvement, rising 2.6% over the last twelve months; up from August’s 
2.4% but down slightly from July's 2.7% which had been the highest in seven years.

● The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) remained muted, up1.5% for the trailing one year period.  Less Food 
and Energy, CPI-U was up 2.2% for the 12 months ended September 30, 2016.

Third Quarter 2016

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Quarterly Real GDP Growth (20 Years)

9697 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Inflation Year-Over-Year

CPI (All Urban Consumers) PPI (All Commodities)



3Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Asset Class Performance   

YTD as of 12/13/16:

S&P 500: 

Russell 2000: 

MSCI EAFE: 

MSCI EM: 

BC Aggregate: 

BC TIPS: 

Periods Ended September 30, 2016

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

for Periods Ended September 30, 2016
Asset Class Performance 

Last Quarter Last Year Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

R
et

ur
ns

S&P 500 Russell 2000

MSCI:EAFE MSCI:EM Gross

BC Aggregate BB Barclays:US TIPS Index

3.9

15.4
16.4

7.2

9.0

15.5 15.8

7.1
6.4 6.5

7.4

1.8

9.2

17.2

3.4
4.3

0.5

5.2

3.1

4.8

1.0

6.6

1.9

4.5



4Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

U.S. Equity
Third Quarter 2016

Source: Russell Investment Group

Third Quarter Index Returns

Russell 3000: 4.40%

S&P 500: 3.85%

Russell Mid Cap: 4.52%

Russell 2000: 9.05%

Information Technology

Materials

Financials

Industrials

Consumer D iscretionary

Energy

Health Care

Consumer Staples

Telecommunications

Utilities

3.45%

-2.45%

2.93%

4.73%

2.44%

4.60%

12.82%

4.85%

-4.72%

-5.64%

Russell 3000 Sector Returns

Source: Russell Investment Group

9697 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Rolling One-Year Relative Returns (versus Russell:1000 Index)

0.0 - Russell 1000
-1.0 - Russell 1000 Growth

1.1 - Russell 1000 Value



5Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

U.S. Equity Style Returns

● Last Quarter: Growth outperformed value across the market cap spectrum but small cap was the clear winner 
from a size perspective.

● Trailing Year: Value came out ahead over the last 12 months and large cap generally performing better than mid 
and small cap.

Periods Ended September 30, 2016

Represents 3 best 
performing asset 
classes in time period

Represents 3 worst 
performing asset 
classes in time period

Represents 3 middle 
performing asset 
classes in time period

Large Cap Core is represented by the Russell Top 200 Index, Large Cap Value is represented by the Russell Top 200 Value Index and Large Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Top 200
Growth Index. Mid Cap Core is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Index, Mid Cap Value is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Value Index and Mid Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Mid
Cap Growth Index. Small Cap Core is represented by the Russell 2000 Index, Small Cap Value is represented by the Russell 2000 Value Index and Small Cap Growth is represented by the Russell
2000 Growth Index.

Value Core Growth Value Core Growth

Large Large 

Mid Mid 

Small Small 9.2%

Annualized 1 Year Returns

15.7% 15.2% 14.8%

17.3% 14.3% 11.2%

3Q 2016

3.1% 3.8% 4.6%

4.5% 4.5% 4.6%

18.8% 15.5% 12.1%8.9% 9.1%



6Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Non-US Equity
Third Quarter 2016

Source: MSCISources: Callan, MSCI

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI Europe

MSCI Japan

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

Regional Quarterly Performance (U.S. Dollar)

7.00%

6.29%

9.15%

5.40%

8.60%

8.18%

Country Total

Australia 7.91%

Austria 16.66%

Belgium 5.00%

Denmark -6.27%

Finland 7.42%

France 6.36%

Germany 10.01%

Hong Kong 11.92%

Ireland 7.42%

Israel -1.97%

Italy 2.21%

Japan 8.60%

Netherlands 9.11%

New Zealand 12.44%

Norway 6.28%

Portugal 6.28%

Singapore -0.15%

Spain 9.32%

Sweden 7.48%

Switzerland 2.62%

U.K. 3.98%

7.31%

0.18%

1.37%

1.76%

1.00%

9.71%

8.99%

3.49%

0.47%

0.71%

1.89%

23.81%

3.35%

0.20%

0.64%

0.15%

1.27%

3.04%

2.82%

8.97%

18.87%

Currency

2.77%

1.16%

1.16%

1.07%

1.16%

1.16%

1.16%

0.03%

1.16%

2.64%

1.16%

1.31%

1.16%

2.11%

4.70%

1.16%

-1.29%

1.16%

-1.11%

0.50%

-2.83%

Local

5.00%

15.32%

3.80%

-7.26%

6.19%

5.14%

8.75%

11.89%

6.20%

-3.96%

1.04%

7.20%

7.96%

10.12%

1.51%

5.07%

1.13%

8.07%

8.68%

2.12%

7.00%

Weight

Quarterly Return Attribution for EAFE (U.S. Dollar)

● The MSCI ACWI ex USA (+7.0%) rallied, supported by the quarter’s risk-on 
theme from dwindling Brexit anxieties and exceptionally low volatility, a 
result of accommodative central bank policies and steady economic growth. 

● Emerging Markets (+9.2%) were the top performers, besting its developed 
counterparts in the MSCI World ex USA (+6.3%). 

● Southeast Asia and the Pacific enjoyed a buoyant quarter as well. 
Japanese equities propelled 8.6% due to new central bank policies and a 
fresh stimulus package. 



7Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Fixed Income
Third Quarter 2016

Source: Bloomberg Source: Bloomberg

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Maturity (Years)

U.S. Treasury Yield Curves

September 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 September 30, 2015

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

3Q06 3Q07 3Q08 3Q09 3Q10 3Q11 3Q12 3Q13 3Q14 3Q15 3Q16

Historical 10-Year Yields

U.S. 10-Year Treasury Yield 10-Year TIPS Yield

Breakeven Inflation Rate

● The Fed stayed the course - leaving the rate unchanged - citing a desire for further evidence of continued economic 
recovery. However, the high level of disagreement is noteworthy, as it sets the stage for a possible rate hike in November 
and an even higher chance of a rate hike after that in December. 

● Driven by Brexit-induced concerns, the yield on the benchmark 10-year Treasury note hit a record low of 1.37% in July; 
however, it rose for the remainder of the quarter and closed at 1.60%. 

● The curve continued its flattening trend in anticipation of eventual Fed rate hikes. Spread sectors outperformed US 
Treasuries as spreads tightened. 



Sacramento Regional 
Transit District

Total Fund Overview



9Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

RT Asset Allocation
As of September 30, 2016

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Dif f erence Dif f erence
Large Cap Equity          82,347   32.7%   32.0%    0.7%           1,824
Small Cap Equity          22,260    8.8%    8.0%    0.8%           2,129
Intl Dev eloped Equity          44,758   17.8%   19.0% (1.2%) (3,053)
Emerging Equity          13,679    5.4%    6.0% (0.6%) (1,419)
Domestic Fixed Income         88,591   35.2%   35.0%    0.2%             518
Total        251,635 100.0% 100.0%



10Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Total Fund
Performance Attribution

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended September 30, 2016

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 4.21% 3.85% 0.12% (0.00%) 0.12%
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 2.60% 9.05% (0.57%) 0.05% (0.52%)
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% 0.80% 0.46% 0.13% (0.03%) 0.10%
International Dev eloped E17% 19% 6.79% 6.43% 0.06% (0.04%) 0.02%
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 8.09% 9.15% (0.06%) (0.04%) (0.09%)

Total = + +3.49% 3.87% (0.32%) (0.05%) (0.37%)

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 13.23% 15.43% (0.69%) (0.01%) (0.70%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 16.33% 15.47% 0.03% 0.04% 0.07%
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% 5.14% 5.19% (0.03%) (0.18%) (0.21%)
International Dev eloped E18% 19% 7.23% 6.52% 0.13% (0.01%) 0.12%
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 18.81% 17.21% 0.06% (0.09%) (0.02%)

Total = + +9.71% 10.46% (0.50%) (0.25%) (0.74%)



11Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Total Fund
Performance as of September 30, 2016

Performance vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 22-1/2
Year Years

(42)
(11)

(51)
(24)

(67)(63)

(29)
(52)

(25)
(58)

(6)

(51)

(22)
(55)

(6)

(72)

10th Percentile 3.88 11.12 6.94 11.01 9.18 6.35 7.29 8.61
25th Percentile 3.70 10.43 6.40 10.23 8.63 6.04 6.86 8.22

Median 3.45 9.73 5.82 9.20 8.13 5.53 6.56 7.90
75th Percentile 3.18 8.90 5.34 8.40 7.23 5.09 6.08 7.37
90th Percentile 2.74 7.88 4.23 7.69 6.68 4.42 5.86 6.14

Total Fund 3.49 9.72 5.50 9.86 8.62 6.56 6.93 8.86

Target 3.87 10.46 5.59 9.13 7.89 5.53 6.43 7.45



12Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Total Fund
Manager Asset Allocation

September 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value

Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $104,607,667 $(797,769) $3,915,754 $101,489,682

 Large Cap $82,347,424 $(537,564) $3,345,610 $79,539,377
Boston Partners 40,706,020 0 1,771,194 38,934,826
SSgA S&P 500 41,641,404 (537,564) 1,574,416 40,604,552

 Small Cap $22,260,244 $(260,205) $570,144 $21,950,305
Atlanta Capital 22,260,244 (260,205) 570,144 21,950,305

International Equity $58,436,598 $137,839 $3,919,697 $54,379,062

  International Dev eloped Equity $44,757,846 $0 $2,915,987 $41,841,859
Brandes 9,292 0 66 9,226
JP Morgan 23,098,150 0 1,816,393 21,281,757
SSgA EAFE 9,248,743 (12,201,601) 899,468 20,550,876
AQR 12,401,661 12,201,601 200,060 -

  Emerging Equity $13,678,752 $137,839 $1,003,710 $12,537,203
DFA Emerging Markets 13,678,752 137,839 1,003,710 12,537,203

Fixed Income $88,590,711 $(277,837) $708,071 $88,160,477
Metropolitan West 88,590,711 (277,837) 708,071 88,160,477

Total Plan - Consolidated $251,634,977 $(937,767) $8,543,522 $244,029,222



13Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Quarterly Performance Review 

Total Fund
Manager Returns as of September 30, 2016

*Current quarter target = 35% BB Barclays  Agg, 32% S&P 500, 19% MSCI EAFE, 8% Russell 2000, and 6% MSCI Emerging Markets Index 

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years
Domestic Equity 3.86% 13.88% 9.75% 16.98% 13.54%

  Custom Benchmark** 4.84% 15.48% 10.36% 16.31% 13.09%

 Large Cap Equity 4.21% 13.23% 9.66% 16.81% -
Boston Partners 4.55% 10.94% 8.10% 16.85% 12.62%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 3.48% 16.20% 9.70% 16.15% 12.34%
SSgA S&P 500 3.88% 15.50% 11.23% - -
  S&P 500 Index 3.85% 15.43% 11.16% 16.37% 13.17%

 Small Cap Equity 2.60% 16.33% 10.11% 17.59% -
Atlanta Capital 2.60% 16.33% 10.11% 17.59% -
  Russell 2000 Index 9.05% 15.47% 6.71% 15.82% 12.49%

International Equity 7.04% 9.54% 0.52% 6.77% 3.75%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 7.03% 8.85% 0.39% 7.09% 4.03%

 International Developed Equity 6.79% 7.23% 0.46% - -
JP Morgan 8.53% 9.01% 0.64% 8.12% 5.12%
SSgA EAFE 6.48% 6.88% 0.77% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.43% 6.52% 0.48% 7.39% 4.24%

 Emerging Equity 8.09% 18.81% 1.13% - -
DFA Emerging Markets 8.09% 18.81% 1.13% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 9.15% 17.21% (0.21%) 3.39% 2.61%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.80% 5.14% 4.10% 4.32% 5.96%
Met West 0.80% 5.14% 4.10% 4.32% 5.96%
  BC Aggregate Index 0.46% 5.19% 4.03% 3.08% 4.10%

Total Plan 3.49% 9.72% 5.50% 9.86% 8.62%
  Target* 3.87% 10.46% 5.59% 9.13% 7.89%



September 30, 2016

Sacramento Regional Transit District

Retirement Plans

Investment Measurement Service

Quarterly Review

The following report was prepared by Callan Associates Inc. ("CAI") using information from sources that include the following: fund trustee(s); fund

custodian(s); investment manager(s); CAI computer software; CAI investment manager and fund sponsor database; third party data vendors; and other outside

sources as directed by the client. CAI assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed, by

any information providers external to CAI. Reasonable care has been taken to assure the accuracy of the CAI database and computer software. Callan does

not provide advice regarding, nor shall Callan be responsible for, the purchase, sale, hedge or holding of individual securities, including, without limitation

securities of the client (i.e., company stock) or derivatives in the client’s accounts. In preparing the following report, CAI has not reviewed the risks of individual

security holdings or the conformity of individual security holdings with the client’s investment policies and guidelines, nor has it assumed any responsibility to do

so. Advice pertaining to the merits of individual securities and derivatives should be discussed with a third party securities expert. Copyright 2016 by Callan

Associates Inc.



Table of Contents
September 30, 2016

Executive Summary 1

Capital Markets Review 3

Combined Plan

Actual vs Target Asset Allocation 26

Quarterly Total Plan Attribution 27

Cumulative Total Plan Attribution 28

Total Fund Performance 30

Asset Class Ranking 31

Historical Asset Allocation 32

Asset Growth Summary 34

Investment Manager Performance 35

Domestic Equity

Domestic Equity 41

Large Cap 44

SSgA S&P 500 47

Boston Partners 51

Atlanta Capital 60

International Equity

International Equity 70

SSgA EAFE 75

JP Morgan 81

DFA Emerging Markets 89

Domestic Fixed Income

Metropolitan West Asset Management 97

Definitions 102

Callan Research/Education 105

Disclosures 108



E
x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

Executive Summary



*Current quarter target = 35% BB Barclays  Agg, 32% S&P 500, 19% MSCI EAFE, 8% Russell 2000, and 6% MSCI Emerging 
Markets Index  
 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Executive Summary for Period Ending September 30, 2016 

 
 
 
Asset Allocation 
 

         
 
Performance 

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years  

 
 
Recent Developments 
N/A 
 
 
Organizational Issues 
N/A 
 
 
Manager Performance 
 
  Peer Group Ranking 

Manager Last Year Last 3 Years Last 7 Years 
Boston Partners 74 75 29 
Atlanta Capital 28 16 [14] 
JP Morgan 37 77 70 
DFA 54 [31] [26] 
MetWest 84 80 4 

Brackets indicate performance linked with manager's composite

Watch List 
 JP Morgan 
 
 
Items Outstanding 
N/A 

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

Total Plan 3.49% 9.72% 5.50% 9.86% 8.62%
  Target* 3.87% 10.46% 5.59% 9.13% 7.89%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%



C
a

p
ita

l M
a

rk
e

ts
 R

e
v
ie

w

Capital Markets Review



 

Στιχκερ Σηοχκ  

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Μαρκετσ mαινταινεδ 

ηεαλτηψ λιθυιδιτψ ιν τηε 

τηιρδ θυαρτερ. Πριϖατε 

εθυιτψ φυνδραισινγ φελλ, βυτ ψεαρ−το−

δατε νυmβερσ αρε ϖερψ χλοσε το λαστ 

ψεαρ�σ. Τηε νυmβερ οφ νεω βυψουτ 

ινϖεστmεντσ ινχρεασεδ σλιγητλψ, βυτ 

ϖεντυρε χαπιταλ ινϖεστmεντσ φελλ. Ανδ 

τηε ΙΠΟ ωινδοω φορ βυψουτσ ανδ ςΧ 

ρεmαινεδ οπεν, ιφ ϕυστ α χραχκ. 

 

Χαλm Αφτερ τηε Στορm   

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Γλοβαλ στοχκ mαρκετσ ηιτ 

ηιγησ ασ ανξιετιεσ αβουτ 

τηε Βρεξιτ ϖοτε δωινδλεδ; 

εϖεν ευροζονε mαρκετσ διδ ωελλ 

ασ ιτ βεχαmε χλεαρ τηατ τηε Υ.Κ.�σ 

δεχισιον το λεαϖε τηε Ευροπεαν 

Υνιον ωουλδ νοτ βε χαταστροπηιχ. 

Χονσιστεντ ωιτη ινϖεστορσ� ρισκ−ον 

mενταλιτψ, εmεργινγ mαρκετσ ουτ−

παχεδ τηειρ δεϖελοπεδ πεερσ.

 

Χαν�τ Στοπ τηε Φεελινγ 

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ

Ηεδγε φυνδσ σηοωεδ 

mοδεστ ρετυρνσ δυρινγ 

τηε θυαρτερ, ωιτη εmεργ−

ινγ mαρκετσ τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ 

στρατεγψ. Χηοππψ mαρκετσ χαυγητ 

managed-futures funds a bit lat-
φοοτεδ. Ιν Χαλλαν�σ δαταβασε, τηε 

mεδιαν Χαλλαν Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ 

ΦΟΦ (+4.26%) ουτπαχεδ τηε Χαλλαν 

Αβσολυτε Ρετυρν ΦΟΦ (+2.10%).

DΧ Παρτιχιπαντσ  

Σεεκ Χοϖερ

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ

DΧ πλαν βαλανχεσ ιν−

χρεασεδ 1.67% ιν τηε 

σεχονδ θυαρτερ, αχχορδ−

ινγ το τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ�. 

Αλτηουγη τηε Ινδεξ ροσε 1.90%, ταρ−

γετ δατε φυνδσ ουτπαχεδ ιτ, γαινινγ 

2.02%. Unusually, money lowed 
ουτ οφ DΧ πλανσ, βψ 23 βασισ ποιντσ, 

ρατηερ τηαν ιντο τηεm ασ τψπιχαλλψ 

ηαππενσ.

Ρετυρνσ Τακε α  

Συmmερ ςαχατιον

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ

Βοτη τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπ−

ερτψ Ινδεξ (+1.77%) ανδ 

τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Οπεν Ενδ 

Diversiied Core Equity Index 

(+1.83%) τυρνεδ ιν τηειρ ωορστ περ−

formances since the irst quarter of 
2010. Γλοβαλ ΡΕΙΤσ διδ βεττερ τηαν 

Υ.Σ. ΡΕΙΤσ; ωορριεσ οϖερ α Φεδ ρατε 

ηικε αππεαρεδ το βε στρονγερ τηαν 

τηε ποστ−Βρεξιτ φαλλουτ.

Wιτη α Λιττλε Ηελπ 

Φροm Μψ Φριενδσ

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ

Τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ�σ 

ωορστ περφορmερ, ενδοω−

mεντσ ανδ φουνδατιονσ, 

βεατ οτηερ φυνδ τψπεσ ιν τηε τηιρδ 

θυαρτερ ωιτη α 3.69% γαιν. Λαστ 

θυαρτερ�σ χηαmπσ, χορπορατε φυνδσ, 

inished last. Surprisingly, small 
φυνδσ βεατ λαργε ανδ mεδιυm φυνδσ.

Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Βροαδ Μαρκετ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ 

Τηιρδ Θυαρτερ 2016

Cash (90-Day T-Bills)

U.S. Equity (Russell 3000)

Non-U.S. Equity (MSCI ACWI ex USA)

Emerging Equity (MSCI Emerging Markets)

U.S. Fixed (Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate)

Non-U.S. Fixed (Bloomberg Barclays Global ex US)

Real Estate (NCREIF Property)

Hedge Funds (CS HFI)

Commodities (Bloomberg)

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Bloomberg, Citigroup, Credit Suisse Hedge Index, Merrill Lynch, 

MSCI, NCREIF, Russell Investment Group

0.46%

1.03%

1.77%

1.74%

0.10%

-3.86%

4.40%

6.91%

9.03%

 

Σελλ ιν Μαψ? Νο Wαψ!    

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Τηε Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ ηιτ α 

νεω ηιγη ανδ ροσε εϖερψ 

mοντη δυρινγ τηε τηιρδ 

θυαρτερ, ενδινγ υπ 3.85%. Σmαλλ 

χαπιταλιζατιον χοmπανιεσ ουτπερ−

φορmεδ λαργε χαπ (Ρυσσελλ 2000 

Ινδεξ +9.05% ϖσ. Ρυσσελλ 1000 

Ινδεξ +4.03%), ωηιλε γροωτη ουτ−

παχεδ ϖαλυε ιν αλλ χαπιταλιζατιονσ.

 

Οχτοβερ Συρπρισε 

ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ

Ρεαλ ΓDΠ γρεω α συρπρισ−

ινγλψ στρονγ 2.9% ιν τηε 

τηιρδ θυαρτερ, τηε βεστ ρατε 

ιν τωο ψεαρσ. Βυτ τηε δαψσ οφ χον−

συmερσ δριϖινγ τηε εξπανσιον αρε 

λικελψ βεηινδ υσ, αλτηουγη ινϖεστ−

mεντσ ιν νονρεσιδεντιαλ χονστρυχ−

τιον ροσε αφτερ εαρλιερ ωεακνεσσ.

6
Π Α Γ Ε

2
Π Α Γ Ε

19
Π Α Γ Ε

 

Ηυτ, Ηυτ ... Ηικε!

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ

Τηε ψιελδ ον τηε βενχη−

mαρκ 10−ψεαρ Τρεασυρψ 

νοτε ηιτ α ρεχορδ λοω οφ 

1.37% ιν ϑυλψ, βυτ ενδεδ τηε τηιρδ 

θυαρτερ σλιγητλψ ηιγηερ. Ηιγη ψιελδ 

χορπορατεσ ωερε τηε στρονγεστ 

περφορmερ, ωηιλε Τρεασυριεσ ενδεδ 

τηε θυαρτερ ιν τηε ρεδ. Ινϖεστmεντ−

γραδε χορπορατε βονδ ισσυανχε σετ 

α ρεχορδ.

9
Π Α Γ Ε

4
Π Α Γ Ε

Γλοβε−Τροττινγ  

φορ Ψιελδ

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ 

Σοϖερειγν βονδ mαρκετσ 

στρενγτηενεδ δυρινγ τηε 

τηιρδ θυαρτερ, ωιτη εmεργ−

ινγ mαρκετ βονδσ ουτmυσχλινγ τηε 

δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετσ ασ ινϖεστορσ 

σουγητ ψιελδ. Μαϕορ χυρρενχιεσ ωερε 

mιξεδ ασ τηε Βριτιση πουνδ συφφερεδ 

φολλοωινγ τηε Βρεξιτ. Ανδ τηερε ισ 

νοω οϖερ ∃12 τριλλιον οφ νεγατιϖε− 

ψιελδινγ δεβτ γλοβαλλψ.

15
Π Α Γ Ε

12
Π Α Γ Ε

20
Π Α Γ Ε

21
Π Α Γ Ε

17
Π Α Γ Ε

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ Χαπιταλ 

Μαρκετ  
Ρεϖιεω



2

Οχτοβερ Συρπρισε 

ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ |  ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ

Ρεαλ γροσσ δοmεστιχ προδυχτ (ΓDΠ) γρεω 2.9% ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρ−

τερ, mυχη στρονγερ τηαν εξπεχτεδ, προϖιδινγ α πλεασαντ συρπρισε 

in a year illed with unpleasant ones. Third-quarter growth was 
βψ φαρ τηε στρονγεστ τηισ ψεαρ ανδ τηε βεστ θυαρτερλψ ρατε ιν τωο 

ψεαρσ. Περσοναλ χονσυmπτιον ηασ βεεν δριϖινγ γροωτη ιν τηε Υ.Σ. 

φορ τηε παστ σεϖεραλ ψεαρσ, βυτ ωηιλε χονσυmπτιον αχχουντεδ φορ 

half of the growth in the third quarter, its inluence weakened.

Οτηερ τηιρδ−θυαρτερ συρπρισεσ ινχλυδεδ: α ρεϖερσαλ ιν νονρεσιδεν−

tial ixed investment; continued growth in software and infor−
mατιον προχεσσινγ; αν υπτιχκ ιν φεδεραλ γοϖερνmεντ σπενδινγ; 

στρενγτη ιν εξπορτσ; ανδ α ρετυρν το ινϖεντορψ ινϖεστmεντ. Dραγσ 

χαmε φροm α δεχλινε ιν ρεσιδεντιαλ ινϖεστmεντ ανδ ωεακνεσσ ιν 

στατε ανδ λοχαλ γοϖερνmεντ σπενδινγ, αλονγ ωιτη αν ινχρεασε ιν 

ιmπορτσ, ωηιχη αρε α νεγατιϖε ιν τηε χαλχυλατιον οφ ΓDΠ.

Πολιτιχαλ ανδ εχονοmιχ σηοχκσ�Χηινα�σ ινδυστριαλ ρεχεσσιον, 

Βρεξιτ, τηε Υ.Σ. ελεχτιον�ηαϖε ινχρεασεδ υνχερταιντψ ανδ ηαm−

περεδ γλοβαλ γροωτη, mακινγ mανψ βυσινεσσεσ ινχρεασινγλψ ρισκ 

αϖερσε. Αδδ τηε υνχερταιντψ στεmmινγ φροm τηε γλοβαλ mονεταρψ 

πολιχψ εξπεριmεντ στιλλ υνδερωαψ�νοτ τηε λεαστ οφ ωηιχη ινϖολϖεσ 

τηε γυεσσινγ γαmε ρεγαρδινγ τηε Φεδ�σ ιντερεστ ρατε πολιχψ�ανδ 

εξπεχτατιονσ φορ Υ.Σ. γροωτη σουρεδ ασ τηε ψεαρ υνφολδεδ.

Real GDP came in very weak in the irst quarter and disappointed 
αγαιν ιν τηε σεχονδ, χοινχιδινγ ωιτη τηε Βρεξιτ ϖοτε ιν λατε ϑυνε 

ωηεν τηε Υ.Κ. χηοσε το λεαϖε τηε Ευροπεαν Υνιον. Χονσενσυσ 

εξπεχτατιονσ φορ τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ ηαδ ΓDΠ γροωτη φαλλινγ βελοω 

2%, εϖεν διππινγ το 1.5% ασ ρεχεντλψ ασ Σεπτεmβερ. Ηοωεϖερ, 

τηε ϕοβ mαρκετ ρεmαινεδ σουνδ, χονσυmερ σεντιmεντ σταψεδ 

βυοψαντ, ανδ τηε αντιχιπατεδ τυρναρουνδσ ιν ινϖεντορψ ανδ νον−

residential ixed investment actually materialized.

Τηε δαψσ οφ χονσυmερ σπενδινγ δριϖινγ τηισ εξπανσιον αρε 

λικελψ βεηινδ υσ. Χονσυmπτιον σλοωεδ φροm α ροβυστ 4.3% γαιν 

ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ το 2.1% ιν τηε τηιρδ; τηισ ωιλλ λικελψ βε τηε 

νορm γοινγ φορωαρδ. Χονσυmερσ ενϕοψεδ α ρεαλ σηοτ ιν τηε αρm 

φροm στρονγ ϕοβ γαινσ φορ σεϖεραλ ψεαρσ ανδ α �διϖιδενδ� φροm 

λοω χοmmοδιτψ πριχεσ. Τηε Υ.Σ. εχονοmψ χρεατεδ αν αϖεραγε 

of 178,000 jobs per month through the irst three quarters of 
2016. Wηιλε σολιδ, τηισ ισ α δεχελερατιον φροm τηε 211,000 ρατε 

in the irst nine months of 2015. Although support from the job 
mαρκετ ανδ χοmmοδιτψ πριχεσ ισ ωανινγ, ηουσεηολδσ αρε στιλλ 

beneiting from increases in real wages, disposable incomes, 
ανδ ασσετ ϖαλυεσ. 

Highly anticipated reversals in inventory and nonresidential ixed 
ινϖεστινγ προϖιδεδ mεανινγφυλ γαινσ το τηε εχονοmψ ιν τηε τηιρδ 

02 039697 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Θυαρτερλψ Ρεαλ ΓDΠ Γροωτη (20 Ψεαρσ)

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

PPI (All Commodities)CPI (All Urban Consumers)

02 0397 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Inlation Year-Over-Year

Source: Bureau of  Labor Statistics

Source: Bureau of  Economic Analysis



3Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

θυαρτερ. Τηε Υ.Σ. ηασ συφφερεδ τηρουγη αν εξτενδεδ ινϖεντορψ 

χορρεχτιον, χαυσινγ αν ουτσιζεδ ιmπαχτ ον οϖεραλλ γροωτη: ινϖεν−

τορψ χοντραχτιον χυτ 1.2% φροm ΓDΠ γροωτη ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρ−

ter, the ifth straight quarterly hit. Inventory investment turned 
τηε χορνερ, αδδινγ 0.6% το τηιρδ−θυαρτερ ΓDΠ. Αφτερ α σιξ−θυαρτερ 

χολλαπσε, ινϖεστmεντ ιν mινινγ ανδ πετρολευm στρυχτυρεσ βεγαν 

το ρεϖιϖε ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ, ανδ τηε δριλλινγ ριγ χουντ βουνχεδ 

υπ φροm αν αλλ−τιmε λοω ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Τηισ ινϖεστmεντ ιν 

τηε ενεργψ σεχτορ, αλονγ ωιτη γαινσ ιν οτηερ τψπεσ οφ στρυχτυρεσ, 

pushed nonresidential ixed investment up 3.1%.

Σιmιλαρ γαινσ ελυδεδ ρεσιδεντιαλ χονστρυχτιον, ηοωεϖερ, ωηερε 

demand appears robust, but supply and inancing constraints 
αρε ηαmπερινγ τηε ρεχοϖερψ. Ρεαλ ρεσιδεντιαλ ινϖεστmεντ ηαδ 

been making progress for ive years, but fell 7.7% in the sec−

ονδ θυαρτερ ανδ 6.2% ιν τηε τηιρδ. Dεmανδ φορ ηουσινγ αππεαρσ 

το βε σολιδ, βυτ σαλεσ οφ βοτη εξιστινγ ανδ νεω ηοmεσ φελλ δυρ−

ινγ τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ. Ποτεντιαλ ηοmεβυψερσ αρε στιλλ ηαmπερεδ 

by restricted access to mortgage inancing, and homebuilders 
ινχρεασινγλψ ρεπορτ χηαλλενγεσ το ηιρινγ χραφτ λαβορ φορ προϕεχτσ.

Τηε Φεδ ρεφραινεδ φροm ραισινγ ιντερεστ ρατεσ οϖερ τηε συmmερ, 

χονχερνεδ αβουτ εχονοmιχ υνχερταιντψ ανδ νεγατιϖε σεντιmεντ 

ιν τηε χαπιταλ mαρκετσ. Τηε mαρκετσ νοω εξπεχτ τηε Φεδ το ραισε 

τηε σηορτ−τερm φεδεραλ φυνδσ ρατε 25 βασισ ποιντσ ιν Dεχεmβερ, 

ανδ περηαπσ τωιχε mορε ιν 2017, βυτ τηεσε αρε φεωερ ινχρεασεσ 

τηαν πρεϖιουσλψ πρεδιχτεδ. Ιν αδδιτιον, τηε λονγ−τερm εθυιλιβριυm 

φεδεραλ φυνδσ ρατε ταργετ ηασ βεεν χυτ φροm 3% το 2.6%.

Αρε χεντραλ βανκσ αρουνδ τηε γλοβε ρυννινγ ουτ οφ αmmυνιτιον? 

Ρατηερ τηαν α δεαρτη οφ αmmυνιτιον, ιτ σεεmσ τηε εφφεχτιϖενεσσ 

οφ mονεταρψ πολιχψ ισ διmινισηινγ ανδ ωιτη ιτ τηε χρεδιβιλιτψ οφ χεν−

τραλ βανκσ. Αφτερ τηε Γρεατ Ρεχεσσιον, χεντραλ βανκερσ σηοωεδ 

α ρεmαρκαβλε ωιλλινγνεσσ το τρψ υνορτηοδοξ πολιχιεσ, ινχλυδινγ 

θυαντιτατιϖε εασινγ (ΘΕ) ανδ νεγατιϖε ιντερεστ ρατεσ. Βυτ περσισ−

τεντ βανκινγ προβλεmσ (παρτιχυλαρλψ ιν Ευροπε ανδ ϑαπαν) ηαϖε 

mαδε ΘΕ λεσσ εφφεχτιϖε, ασ χεντραλ βανκ φυνδσ αρε υσεδ το ρεβυιλδ 

bank balance sheets rather than for lending. In addition, tight is−

χαλ πολιχιεσ ηαϖε οφφσετ ποτεντιαλ γαινσ φροm mονεταρψ στιmυλυσ. 

Ανδ αλλ ρεγιονσ ηαϖε σεεν α δροπ ιν προδυχτιϖιτψ γροωτη, ρεδυχ−

ing the effectiveness of monetary or iscal stimulation. 

Τηε Λονγ−Τερm ςιεω  

2016

3ρδ Θτρ

Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχ. 31, 2015

Ινδεξ Ψεαρ 5 Ψρσ 10 Ψρσ 25 Ψρσ

U.S. Equity
Ρυσσελλ 3000 4.40 0.48 12.18 7.35 10.03

Σ&Π 500 3.85 1.38 12.57 7.31 9.82

Ρυσσελλ 2000 9.05 −4.41 9.19 6.80 10.50

Non-U.S. Equity
ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ 6.43 −0.81 3.60 3.03 5.40

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 9.03 −14.92 −4.80 3.61 �

Σ&Π εξ−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ 7.98 5.92 5.51 5.33 6.80

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ 0.46 0.55 3.25 4.51 6.15

90−Dαψ Τ−Βιλλ 0.10 0.05 0.07 1.24 2.93

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γ/Χ 1.24 −3.30 6.98 6.45 8.08

Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖερνmεντ 0.59 −5.54 −1.30 3.05 5.37

Ρεαλ Εστατε

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 1.77 13.33 12.18 7.76 8.05

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ −1.43 3.20 11.96 7.41 12.13

Αλτερνατιϖεσ

ΧΣ Ηεδγε Φυνδ 1.74 −0.71 3.55 4.97 �

Χαmβριδγε ΠΕ∗ � 8.50 12.41 11.50 15.59

Βλοοmβεργ Χοmmοδιτψ −3.86 −24.66 −13.47 −6.43 �

Γολδ Σποτ Πριχε −0.27 −10.46 −5.70 7.41 4.02

Inlation � ΧΠΙ−Υ 0.17 0.73 1.53 1.86 2.30

*Private equity data is time-weighted return for period. Most recent quarterly data not available.

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Bloomberg, Citigroup, Credit Suisse, FTSE, MSCI, 

NCREIF, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge, Bureau of  

Economic Analysis.

Ρεχεντ Θυαρτερλψ Εχονοmιχ Ινδιχατορσ

3Θ16 2Θ16 1Θ16 4Θ15 3Θ15 2Θ15 1Θ15 4Θ14

Εmπλοψmεντ Χοστ�Τοταλ Χοmπενσατιον Γροωτη 2.3% 2.3% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.6% 2.2%

Νονφαρm Βυσινεσσ�Προδυχτιϖιτψ Γροωτη 0.6%∗ −0.6% −0.6% −1.7% 2.0% 3.1% −0.8% −1.7%

ΓDΠ Γροωτη 2.9% 1.4% 0.8% 0.9% 2.0% 2.6% 2.0% 2.3%

Μανυφαχτυρινγ Χαπαχιτψ Υτιλιζατιον 75.0% 74.9% 75.3% 75.4% 75.6% 75.5% 75.5% 76.0%

Χονσυmερ Σεντιmεντ Ινδεξ (1966=100)  90.3  92.4  91.5  91.3  90.8  94.2  95.5  89.8 

*Estimate.

Sources: Bureau of  Economic Analysis, Bureau of  Labor Statistics, Federal Reserve, IHS Economics, Reuters/University of  Michigan.



4

Wιτη α Λιττλε Ηελπ Φροm Μψ Φριενδσ 

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ |  Κιττψ Λιν

Ιν α σηαρπ σηιφτ φροm λαστ θυαρτερ, ενδοωmεντσ ανδ φουνδατιονσ 

τυρνεδ αρουνδ ανδ περφορmεδ βεττερ τηαν αλλ οτηερ ινστιτυτιοναλ 

φυνδ τψπεσ, ωιτη α mεδιαν +3.69% ρετυρν. Χορπορατε φυνδσ, 

λαστ θυαρτερ�σ βεστ περφορmερ, βρουγητ υπ τηε ρεαρ ατ +3.28%. 

Τηε mεδιαν ρετυρν φορ αλλ φυνδ τψπεσ ωασ +3.44%, αχχορδινγ το 

Χαλλαν�σ δαταβασε.

Ιντερεστινγλψ, τηε ρανκινγσ σηιφτεδ σλιγητλψ ωηεν λοοκινγ ατ τηε 

τοπ 10% οφ ρετυρνσ. Ενδοωmεντσ ανδ φουνδατιονσ στιλλ τοππεδ 

τηε λιστ (+4.25%), βυτ Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ φυνδσ ρανκεδ λαστ (+3.94%). 

Στιλλ, χορπορατε φυνδσ ανδ Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ φυνδσ ηαϖε δονε βεστ 

οϖερ λονγερ τιmε περιοδσ. Χορπορατεσ αρε ον τοπ οϖερ τηε λαστ 

15 ψεαρσ (+6.89% αννυαλιζεδ) ωηιλε Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ φυνδσ εδγεδ 

them out over the last ive years (+9.84%).

Τηε ουτπερφορmανχε φροm ενδοωmεντσ/φουνδατιονσ στεmmεδ 

φροm τηειρ �φριενδσ� ιν τηε στοχκ mαρκετ: νον−Υ.Σ εθυιτιεσ. Τηε 

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ−ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ γαινεδ 6.91% ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρ−

τερ, χοmπαρεδ το +4.03% φορ τηε Ρυσσελλ 1000 Ινδεξ. Τηατ 

χαmε δεσπιτε τηε σηοχκ οφ τηε Υ.Κ.�σ Βρεξιτ ϖοτε το λεαϖε τηε 

Ευροπεαν Υνιον.

Τηε υνδερπερφορmανχε φροm χορπορατε φυνδσ στεmmεδ φροm 

higher allocations to U.S. ixed income; in fact, both U.S. and 
non-U.S. ixed income markets continued to show lacklus−

τερ περφορmανχε (Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ: 

+0.46%, Χιτι Νον−Υ.Σ. Wορλδ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ινδεξ: 

+0.59%). Τηε δεχισιον οφ χεντραλ βανκσ ιν Ευροπε ανδ ϑαπαν 

νοτ το χυτ ρατεσ ανδ τηε υπχοmινγ Υ.Σ. ελεχτιον mαψ ηαϖε χον−

τριβυτεδ το τηε δισαπποιντινγ ρετυρνσ φορ βοτη ιν τηε θυαρτερ. Ασ 

ixed income markets look less attractive these days, corporate 
φυνδσ ινχρεασεδ τηειρ αλλοχατιον οφ χαση χοmπαρεδ το τηε πρεϖι−

ουσ θυαρτερ.

Βψ σιζε, ρετυρνσ ϖαριεδ mυχη λεσσ. Βοτη λαργε (mορε τηαν ∃1 

βιλλιον ιν ασσετσ) ανδ mεδιυm φυνδσ (∃100 mιλλιον το ∃1 βιλλιον) 

γαινεδ 3.43%, βυτ συρπρισινγλψ σmαλλ φυνδσ (λεσσ τηαν ∃100 mιλ−

λιον) ουτπαχεδ βοτη, ατ +3.47%. Οϖερ τηε λονγ ηαυλ λαργε φυνδσ 

ωερε τηε χηαmπσ, +7.05% οϖερ 15 ψεαρσ ϖερσυσ +6.58% φορ 

mεδιυm φυνδσ ανδ +6.35% φορ σmαλλ φυνδσ.

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Φυνδ Σπονσορ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Πυβλιχ Φυνδσ 3.43 6.65 9.63 6.12 9.30 5.66 6.72

Χορπορατε Φυνδσ 3.28 7.64 10.22 6.29 9.22 5.91 6.89

Ενδοωmεντσ/Φουνδατιονσ 3.69 6.13 8.81 4.99 8.52 5.39 6.54

Ταφτ−Ηαρτλεψ 3.32 6.49 9.45 6.74 9.84 5.58 6.26

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Source: Callan. Callan’s database includes the following groups: public deined beneit, corporate deined beneit, endowments/foundations, and Taft-Hartley plans. Approxi-

mately 10% to 15% of  the database constituents are Callan’s clients. All database group returns presented gross of  fees. Past performance is no guarantee of  future results. 

Reference to or inclusion in this report of  any product, service, or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, ailiation, or endorsement of  such product, 

service, or entity by Callan.

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

  Public Corporate Endow/Fndn Taft-Hartley
  Database Database Database Database

 10th Percentile 4.01 4.05 4.25 3.94

 25th Percentile 3.74 3.68 3.99 3.65

 Median 3.43 3.28 3.69 3.32

 75th Percentile 3.07 2.75 3.29 3.02

 90th Percentile 2.60 1.82 2.86 2.65

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Ρετυρνσ φορ τηε Θυαρτερ

Source: Callan



5Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ (Χοντινυεδ)

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

1.7%
3.2%
3.5%

Public

3.43%*

34.2%

15.2%

27.3%

1.8%

2.6%

6.5%

1.1%

3.7%
4.0%

5.0%

1.5%

Endowment/

Foundation

3.69%*

33.8%

17.1%

20.4%

2.6%

1.0%

0.7%

7.5%

2.0% 9.4%

1.7%

Taft-Hartley

3.32%*

0.4%

Corporate

3.28%*
1.0%

2.3%

1.5% 0.6%

35.1%

26.0%

10.5%

1.6%

4.8%

12.1%

4.5%

13.1%

2.6%

27.4%

40.0%

2.6%
0.7%
0.8%

3.9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

14 15 16

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον

Χαλλαν Πυβλιχ Φυνδ Dαταβασε Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον (10 Ψεαρσ)

Source: Callan. Callan’s database includes the following groups: public deined beneit, corporate deined beneit, endowments/foundations, and Taft-Hartley plans. Approxi-

mately 10% to 15% of  the database constituents are Callan’s clients. All database group returns presented gross of  fees. Past performance is no guarantee of  future results. 

Reference to or inclusion in this report of  any product, service, or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, ailiation, or endorsement of  such product, 

service, or entity by Callan.

*Latest median quarter return.

Note: charts may not sum to 100% due to rounding.

Source: Callan



6

Source: Russell Investment Group 

Σελλ ιν Μαψ? Νο Wαψ!  

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Μαρκ Wοοδ, ΧΦΑ 

Τηε Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ χλιmβεδ το ιτσ αλλ−τιmε ηιγη οφ 2,193 ον 

August 15 and inished the quarter up 3.85%, ending in posi−
τιϖε τερριτορψ φορ τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ ιν α ροω. Τηε εαρλψ δαψσ οφ 

τηε θυαρτερ ωερε χηαραχτεριζεδ βψ α στρονγ ρεβουνδ ιν εθυιτψ 

mαρκετσ φολλοωινγ τηε λατε ϑυνε ϖοτε ιν τηε Υ.Κ. το λεαϖε τηε 

Ευροπεαν Υνιον (Βρεξιτ). Μαρκετ ϖολατιλιτψ (ασ mεασυρεδ βψ 

ςΙΞ) σπικεδ ιν τηε ιmmεδιατε αφτερmατη βυτ ρετρεατεδ ϕυστ 

ασ θυιχκλψ ασ ινϖεστορσ αβσορβεδ τηε σηοχκ. Τηε σωιφτ πιϖοτ, 

χουπλεδ ωιτη οπτιmισm οϖερ Υ.Σ. εχονοmιχ προσπεχτσ ανδ 

εασινγ φεαρσ ον Χηινα, λεδ το α ρισκ−ον ενϖιρονmεντ. ϑυλψ προ−

δυχεδ τηε στρονγεστ ρετυρνσ οφ τηε θυαρτερ αχροσσ mαρκετ χαπ−

ιταλιζατιονσ; Αυγυστ ανδ Σεπτεmβερ τραδεδ ιν α ναρροω (βυτ 

υλτιmατελψ ποσιτιϖε) ρανγε ασ mαρκετσ αντιχιπατεδ τηε Φεδ�σ 

ιντερεστ ρατε δεχισιον ιν mιδ−Σεπτεmβερ, ωηιχη ωασ το φορεγο 

α ρατε ηικε. Φορειγν δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετ ινδιχεσ ουτπερφορmεδ 

τηε Σ&Π 500 ανδ, χονσιστεντ ωιτη τηε θυαρτερ�σ ρισκ−ον τηεmε, 

εmεργινγ mαρκετσ ωερε τηε τοπ περφορmερσ.

Σιζε ωασ τηε σινγλε βιγγεστ δετερmιναντ οφ περφορmανχε. 

Σmαλλερ χοmπανιεσ διδ βεττερ�mιχρο, σmαλλ, ανδ mιδ−χαπι−

ταλιζατιον χοmπανιεσ ουτπαχεδ λαργε−χαπ στοχκσ (Ρυσσελλ 

Μιχροχαπ Ινδεξ: +11.25%, Ρυσσελλ 2000 Ινδεξ: +9.05%, 

Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ Ινδεξ: +4.52%, ανδ Ρυσσελλ 1000 Ινδεξ: 

+4.03%). Αδδιτιοναλλψ, αφτερ τωο στρονγ θυαρτερσ ϖαλυε υνδερ−

περφορmεδ γροωτη ιν αλλ χαπιταλιζατιονσ (Ρυσσελλ 2000 ςαλυε 

Ινδεξ: +8.87% ανδ Ρυσσελλ 2000 Γροωτη Ινδεξ: +9.22%). 

Τηε δισπερσιον ιν στψλε ρετυρνσ ωασ ναρροω αχροσσ mαρκετ 

χαπιταλιζατιονσ, ωιτη τηε ωιδεστ (110 βπσ) ιν λαργε χαπ (Ρυσσελλ 

1000 Γροωτη mινυσ Ρυσσελλ 1000 ςαλυε). Dεφενσιϖε ανδ 

ηιγη−διϖιδενδ ψιελδ εξποσυρεσ σολδ οφφ δυρινγ τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ 

βυτ ηαϖε περφορmεδ ωελλ ψεαρ−το−δατε δυε το τηε ινχρεασεδ 

γλοβαλ εχονοmιχ υνχερταιντψ εαρλιερ ιν 2016. 

Russell 1000 Russell 2000

UtilitiesConsumer 

Staples

Health CareEnergyConsumer 

Discretionary

Materials & 

Processing

Producer 

Durables

Financial 

Services

Technology

13.2%

18.0%

5.2%

7.5%
9.0%

4.1%

10.4%

3.4%
5.0%

2.6%

12.2%

1.6%

13.6%

-2.7%
-1.9%

-5.3% -4.8%

4.2%

Εχονοmιχ Σεχτορ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε 

Note: As of  the fourth quarter of  2015, the Capital Market Review reports sector-speciic returns using the Russell Global Sectors (RGS) classiication system rather than the 

Global Industry Classiication Standard (GICS) system. RGS uses a three-tier classiication system containing nine sectors; GICS uses a four-tier system containing 11 sectors.



7Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

Sector performance relected the shift in risk attitudes. Among 
τηε ωορστ−περφορmινγ σεχτορσ ιν τηε Σ&Π 500 δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ 

ωερε Υτιλιτιεσ (−0.7%), Χονσυmερ Σταπλεσ (−0.7%), ανδ Τελεχοm 

(+1.0%)�αλλ σεχτορσ ασσοχιατεδ ωιτη λοωερ ϖολατιλιτψ ανδ ηιγηερ 

διϖιδενδ ψιελδσ. Αφτερ α στρονγ περφορmανχε ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρ−

τερ, Ενεργψ ρετρεατεδ, ποστινγ α 1.9% λοσσ φορ τηε θυαρτερ. Τηε 

mορε γροωτη−οριεντεδ, ρισκ−ον σεχτορσ, Τεχηνολογψ (+7.9%) ανδ 

Ηεαλτη Χαρε (+4.9%), ωερε τηε τοπ περφορmερσ. Ιν α νεω δεϖελ−

οπmεντ, ΡΕΙΤσ ανδ οτηερ λιστεδ ρεαλ εστατε χοmπανιεσ ωερε 

εξτραχτεδ φροm τηε Φινανχιαλσ σεχτορ ανδ ελεϖατεδ το α νεω Ρεαλ 

Estate sector in the Global Industry Classiication Standard 
(ΓΙΧΣ). Τηε νεω σεχτορ, ρεπρεσεντινγ 3.1% οφ τηε Σ&Π 500, ηαδ 

a tough start, inishing down 2.1%.

Τηε Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ mαρκετ χοντινυεδ το ρισε, εϖεν ασ ινϖεστορ 

σεντιmεντ ωαϖερεδ βετωεεν ποσιτιϖε ανδ νεγατιϖε οϖερ τηε 

course of the quarter. Active managers continue to ind it a dif−
icult environment to outperform as macro factors dominated 
πριχε αχτιϖιτψ ανδ περφορmανχε ιν εθυιτψ mαρκετσ. 

  Large Cap Large Cap Small Cap  Small Cap
  Growth Style Value Style  Growth Style Value Style

 10th Percentile 8.20 5.87 12.32 9.71

 25th Percentile 6.29 4.81 10.46 8.60

 Median 5.28 3.78 7.85 7.64

 75th Percentile 4.18 3.20 6.83 6.26

 90th Percentile 2.45 2.03 5.69 5.52

   R1000 Growth R1000 Value  R2000 Growth  R2000 Value

 Benchmark  4.58 3.48 9.22 8.87

0%

5%

10%

15%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

02 0397 98 99 00 01
-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Russell 1000 Growth Russell 1000Russell 1000 Value

16

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ  (ϖσ. Ρυσσελλ 1000)

U.S. Equity Index Characteristics as of September 30, 2016

Σ&Π 500 Ρυσ 3000 Ρυσ 1000 Ρυσ Μιδχαπ Ρυσ 2500 Ρυσ 2000

Νυmβερ οφ Ισσυεσ 507 2,955 994 794 2,459 1,961

Wτδ Αϖγ Μκτ Χαπ (∃βν) 134.8 112.6 121.7 12.6 4.0 1.8

Πριχε/Βοοκ Ρατιο 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.4 2.1 2.0

Φορωαρδ Π/Ε Ρατιο 16.9 17.4 17.2 18.9 19.2 19.8

Dιϖιδενδ Ψιελδ 2.1% 2.0% 2.0% 1.7% 1.6% 1.5%

5−Ψρ Εαρνινγσ (φορεχαστεδ) 12.5% 12.5% 12.5% 11.2% 12.0% 13.5%

Sources: Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.

Source: Russell Investment Group Sources: Callan, Russell Investment Group



8

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Large Cap Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Λαργε Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 4.55 5.71 12.77 10.64 16.13 7.39 7.80

Ρυσσελλ 3000 4.40 8.18 14.96 10.44 16.36 7.37 7.61

Ρυσσελλ 1000 4.03 7.92 14.93 10.78 16.41 7.40 7.48

Σ&Π 500 3.85 7.84 15.43 11.16 16.37 7.24 7.15

Λαργε Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 5.28 3.69 11.27 10.85 16.24 8.94 7.55

Ρυσσελλ 1000 Γροωτη 4.58 6.00 13.76 11.83 16.60 8.85 7.35

Λαργε Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 3.78 7.61 13.71 8.99 15.88 6.54 8.08

Ρυσσελλ 1000 ςαλυε 3.48 10.00 16.20 9.70 16.15 5.85 7.46

Mid Cap Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Μιδ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 4.98 7.80 11.05 9.88 16.81 8.65 10.96

Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ 4.52 10.26 14.25 9.70 16.67 8.32 10.44

Μιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 4.05 4.30 6.98 6.98 14.55 8.62 9.53

Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ Γροωτη 4.59 6.84 11.24 8.90 15.85 8.51 9.66

Μιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 4.82 9.73 13.35 9.30 16.62 8.48 10.99

Ρυσσελλ Μιδχαπ ςαλυε 4.45 13.72 17.26 10.49 17.38 7.89 10.72

Small Cap Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σmαλλ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 7.62 10.07 14.32 8.51 17.63 8.55 11.31

Ρυσσελλ 2000 9.05 11.46 15.47 6.71 15.82 7.07 9.26

Σmαλλ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 7.85 6.52 8.73 5.47 15.82 9.13 9.81

Ρυσσελλ 2000 Γροωτη 9.22 7.48 12.12 6.58 16.15 8.29 8.90

Σmαλλ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 7.64 12.74 15.90 7.92 17.11 8.05 11.63

Ρυσσελλ 2000 ςαλυε 8.87 15.49 18.81 6.77 15.45 5.78 9.38

Smid Cap Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σmιδ Χαπ Χορε Στψλε 6.32 9.21 12.42 7.64 16.34 9.96 �

Ρυσσελλ 2500 6.56 10.80 14.44 7.77 16.30 7.95 10.07

Σmιδ Χαπ Γροωτη Στψλε 6.03 4.73 8.39 6.01 15.25 9.23 9.85

Ρυσσελλ 2500 Γροωτη 6.98 6.95 11.02 7.43 16.20 8.82 9.52

Σmιδ Χαπ ςαλυε Στψλε 6.39 12.17 14.71 7.37 16.23 8.56 11.41

Ρυσσελλ 2500 ςαλυε 6.18 14.51 17.68 8.05 16.29 6.92 10.17

Ρυσσελλ 3000 Σεχτορσ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Χονσυmερ Dισχρετιοναρψ 3.50 4.52 8.99 9.57 19.01 10.11 �

Χονσυmερ Σταπλεσ −2.67 7.48 15.77 13.92 15.95 11.57 �

Ενεργψ 2.87 17.69 16.60 −4.26 4.72 3.84 �

Φινανχιαλ Σερϖιχεσ 5.44 4.35 10.18 9.69 17.97 0.87 �

Ηεαλτη Χαρε 2.40 0.92 9.82 14.21 20.52 10.82 �

Ματεριαλσ & Προχεσσινγ 4.98 16.18 25.84 7.17 14.12 6.94 �

Προδυχερ Dυραβλεσ 4.61 10.99 18.76 9.54 17.48 7.29 �

Τεχηνολογψ 13.49 13.07 22.76 16.28 17.08 10.27 �

Υτιλιτιεσ −5.31 17.12 21.88 11.87 12.44 7.07 �

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.

Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)



9Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Χαλm Αφτερ τηε Στορm 

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Ιρινα Συσηχη

Φολλοωινγ τωο ηιγηλψ ϖολατιλε θυαρτερσ, τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ οφ 2016 

βυχκεδ τηε τρενδ�ϖολατιλιτψ ωασ εξχεπτιοναλλψ λοω ασ ινϖεστορσ 

αππεαρεδ χοmπλαχεντ αβουτ χοντινυεδ αχχοmmοδατιϖε χεντραλ 

βανκ πολιχιεσ ανδ στεαδψ, αλβειτ σλοω, εχονοmιχ γροωτη. Α ρισκ−

ον ραλλψ λεδ το στοχκ mαρκετ ηιγησ ασ ανξιετιεσ αβουτ τηε Υ.Κ.�σ 

Βρεξιτ ϖοτε το εξιτ τηε Ευροπεαν Υνιον δωινδλεδ.

Ιν τηισ ενϖιρονmεντ, τηε ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ ροσε 6.91%. 

Ιν χοντραστ το τηε πρεϖιουσ θυαρτερ, εχονοmιχαλλψ σενσιτιϖε σεχ−

τορσ φαρεδ βεστ, παρτιχυλαρλψ Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ (+15.50%) 

ανδ Ματεριαλσ (+12.56%). Ηεαλτη Χαρε ωασ τηε ονλψ σεχτορ ιν 

τηε ρεδ (−1.96%), αλτηουγη ιτσ δεφενσιϖε χουντερπαρτσ, Υτιλιτιεσ 

(+0.20%) ανδ Τελεχοmmυνιχατιονσ (+0.43%), φαλτερεδ ασ ωελλ. 

Χονσιστεντ ωιτη τηε θυαρτερ�σ ρισκ−ον τηεmε, εmεργινγ mαρκετσ 

(ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ: +9.03%) ουτπαχεδ τηειρ 

δεϖελοπεδ πεερσ (ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ: +6.29%), εϖεν 

εξχλυδινγ Χαναδα (ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ Ινδεξ: +6.43%). Τηε ΜΣΧΙ 

ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ ςαλυε Ινδεξ (+7.79%) οϖερχαmε τηε ΜΣΧΙ 

ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Γροωτη Ινδεξ (+6.06%) for the irst time since 
τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 2014. Σmαλλ−χαπ στοχκσ σηοτ υπ ιντο τηε 

βλαχκ (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ: +7.91%), inish−

ινγ νεαρ τηε τοπ αmονγ mαϕορ νον−Υ.Σ. ινδιχεσ. 

Εθυιτψ mαρκετσ αχροσσ Ευροπε χρασηεδ φολλοωινγ τηε υνεξ−

πεχτεδ ϖοτε φορ Βρεξιτ βυτ ρεγαινεδ γρουνδ θυιχκλψ ασ ιτ βεχαmε 

χλεαρ τηατ τηε αφτερmατη οφ τηε ρεφερενδυm ωασ νοτ ιmmεδιατελψ 

χαταστροπηιχ. Βριτιση Πριmε Μινιστερ Dαϖιδ Χαmερον ρεσιγνεδ 

ανδ ωασ ρεπλαχεδ βψ Τηερεσα Μαψ, ωηο πλεδγεδ τηατ τηε Υ.Κ. 

ωουλδ γο τηρουγη ωιτη εξιτινγ τηε Ευροπεαν Υνιον, βυτ νοτ 

ηαστιλψ. Τηε Βανκ οφ Ενγλανδ σπρανγ ιντο αχτιον το συππορτ τηε 

εχονοmψ, ανδ τηε Ευροπεαν Χεντραλ Βανκ οφφερεδ ρεασσυρανχε 

τηατ ιτ τοο ωουλδ ωορκ το βολστερ γροωτη. Τηε ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε 

Ινδεξ χλιmβεδ 5.40%, ωιτη τηε στρονγ περφορmερσ ινχλυδινγ 

Αυστρια (+16.66%), Γερmανψ (+10.01%), Σπαιν (+9.32%), τηε 

Νετηερλανδσ (+9.11%), ανδ εϖεν τηε Υ.Κ. (+3.98%). Τηειρ 

ϖιγορ ωασ αττριβυτεδ το βεττερ−τηαν−εξπεχτεδ εαρνινγσ φροm 

Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ γιαντσ, ιmπροϖινγ χοmmοδιτψ πριχεσ, 

rallying inancial stocks, and a swell of M&A activity. European 

  Γλοβαλ Εθ Νον−Υ.Σ. Εθ Εmγ Μκτ Νον−Υ.Σ. 
  Στψλε Στψλε  Στψλε ΣΧ Στψλε

 10τη Περχεντιλε 9.08 8.96 10.98 10.28 
 25τη Περχεντιλε 7.17 7.80 10.17 9.03
 Μεδιαν 5.75 6.77 9.23 7.99
 75τη Περχεντιλε 4.53 5.77 8.16 7.06
 90τη Περχεντιλε 3.20 4.47 5.42 5.79

   ΜΣΧΙ ΜΣΧΙ ΜΣΧΙ  ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ
  ΑΧWΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Εmγ Μκτσ εξ ΥΣΑ ΣΧ 

 Βενχηmαρκ  5.30 6.91 9.03 7.91

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Health Care stocks stumbled (-3.09%) due to intensiied global 
σχρυτινψ δυρινγ τηε Υ.Σ. ελεχτιον; Dενmαρκ, ωηερε α λαργε ηεαλτη 

χαρε χοmπανψ mακεσ υπ αππροξιmατελψ 20% οφ τηε χουντρψ�σ 

ινδεξ, ωασ παρτιχυλαρλψ ηαρδ ηιτ, δροππινγ 6.27%.

Southeast Asia and the Paciic enjoyed a buoyant quarter as 
ωελλ; τηε MSCI Paciic Index ωασ υπ 8.46%. ϑαπανεσε εθυι−

τιεσ ραλλιεδ δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ, ασχενδινγ 8.60% δυε το νεω 

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

02 0397 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Japanese yen U.K. sterling euro*

16

Swiss franc

Μαϕορ Χυρρενχιεσ� Χυmυλατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (ϖσ. Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Sources: Callan, MSCI

* German mark returns before 1Q99 

Source: MSCI



10

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

χεντραλ βανκ πολιχιεσ ανδ α φρεση στιmυλυσ παχκαγε. Αδδιτιοναλλψ, 

Χονσυmερ Dισχρετιοναρψ, ΙΤ, ανδ Ματεριαλσ στοχκσ συργεδ δυε το 

στρονγ εαρνινγσ γροωτη ιν σεϖεραλ γαmινγ ανδ αυτοmοβιλε χοm−

πανιεσ. Αυστραλια (+7.91%) ανδ Νεω Ζεαλανδ (+12.44%) αλσο 

περφορmεδ ωελλ ασ mεγαβανκσ ανδ χοmmοδιτιεσ γαινεδ γρουνδ. 

Εmεργινγ mαρκετσ σηοτ υπ ιν τηε αχχοmmοδατιϖε mαχροεχο−

νοmιχ ενϖιρονmεντ (ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ινδεξ: +9.03%). 

Τηε τοπ σεχτορ ωασ ΙΤ, συργινγ 16.08%. Τηε στοχκσ οφ σmαρτ−

πηονε mανυφαχτυρερσ ανδ τεχηνολογψ χοmπονεντ συππλιερσ 

σοαρεδ, βοοστινγ τηε Ασιαν mαρκετσ, ινχλυδινγ Ταιωαν (+11.70%) 

ανδ Σουτη Κορεα (+10.98%). Χηινα ωασ ονε οφ τηε βιγγεστ βεν−

eiciaries (+13.92%), thanks to its burgeoning internet giants. 
Λατιν Αmεριχα ωασ ρελατιϖελψ σλυγγιση τηισ θυαρτερ (+5.37%) βυτ 

ωασ προππεδ υπ βψ Βραζιλ, ωηιχη σηοτ υπ ανοτηερ 11.31%, σκψ−

ροχκετινγ 62.90% ψεαρ−το−δατε. Ηοπεσ φορ εχονοmιχ χηανγε ρυν 

ηιγη υνδερ Μιχηελ Τεmερ, ωηο ρεπλαχεδ τηε ιmπεαχηεδ Dιλmα 

 EM EAFE

Quarter Year

ACWI ex USA

UtilitiesHealth CareMaterialsInformation
Technology

Turkey

Philippines

Israel

Denmark

China

Egypt

New Zealand

Austria

Source: MSCI

16.1%

14.8%
15.5%

10.2%

15.8%

12.6%

2.3%

--2.4%

21.6%

15.4%

13.9%

8.6%

-7.7%

-6.3%

-2.0%

-15.3%

7.1%

-5.3%

6.1%

-5.3%

-2.0%

0.9%

32.8%

12.4%

0.1% 0.2%

16.7%

4.5%

W
o

rl
d

 e
x
-U

S
A

E
M

W
o

rl
d

 e
x
-U

S
A

E
M

B
e

s
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

W
o

rs
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

Best Performers Worst Performers

Θυαρτερλψ ανδ Αννυαλ Χουντρψ Περφορmανχε Σναπσηοτ

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ: Στρονγ ανδ Στρυγγλινγ Σεχτορσ 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ φορ Νον−Υ.Σ. Dεϖελοπεδ Χουντριεσ 

Equity Index

Χουντρψ
  

 (ΥΣ∃)
 (Λοχαλ 

Χυρρενχψ)
Λοχαλ 

Χυρρενχψ Wειγητ∗

Αυστραλια 7.91% 5.00% 2.77% 5.13%

Αυστρια 16.66% 15.32% 1.16% 0.13%

Βελγιυm 5.00% 3.80% 1.16% 0.96%

Χαναδα 4.85% 6.10% −1.18% 6.72%

Dενmαρκ −6.27% −7.26% 1.07% 1.23%

Φινλανδ 7.42% 6.19% 1.16% 0.70%

Φρανχε 6.36% 5.14% 1.16% 6.81%

Γερmανψ 10.01% 8.75% 1.16% 6.31%

Ηονγ Κονγ 11.92% 11.89% 0.03% 2.45%

Ιρελανδ 7.42% 6.20% 1.16% 0.33%

Ισραελ −1.97% −3.96% 2.64% 0.50%

Ιταλψ 2.21% 1.04% 1.16% 1.33%

ϑαπαν 8.60% 7.20% 1.31% 16.70%

Νετηερλανδσ 9.11% 7.96% 1.16% 2.35%

Νεω Ζεαλανδ 12.44% 10.12% 2.11% 0.14%

Νορωαψ 6.28% 1.51% 4.70% 0.45%

Πορτυγαλ 6.28% 5.07% 1.16% 0.10%

Σινγαπορε −0.15% 1.13% −1.29% 0.89%

Σπαιν 9.32% 8.07% 1.16% 2.13%

Σωεδεν 7.48% 8.68% −1.11% 1.97%

Σωιτζερλανδ 2.62% 2.12% 0.50% 6.29%

Υ.Κ. 3.98% 7.00% −2.83% 13.23%

*Weight in the MSCI ACWI ex USA Index

Sources: MSCI, Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s.

Ρουσσεφφ ασ πρεσιδεντ. Ρυσσια (+8.43%) διδ νοτ mισσ ουτ ον 

τηε ραλλψ. Ηοωεϖερ, τηε Πηιλιππινεσ, Τυρκεψ, ανδ Μαλαψσια ωερε 

all in the red as political turmoil continued to aflict the coun−

τριεσ (−5.33%, −5.26%, ανδ −1.52%, ρεσπεχτιϖελψ). Μεξιχο αλσο 

δωινδλεδ 2.24% ασ τηε πεσο φελλ 5% αγαινστ τηε δολλαρ.

Source: MSCI

Source: MSCI



11Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Global Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Global Equity Style 5.75 5.48 11.23 6.25 12.38 5.57 7.80

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ 4.87 5.55 11.36 5.85 11.63 4.47 6.29

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ 5.30 6.60 11.96 5.17 10.63 4.34 6.47

Non-U.S. Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Στψλε 6.77 3.14 7.94 2.16 8.75 3.20 7.81

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ 6.29 3.12 7.16 0.33 6.89 1.88 5.96

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ 6.91 5.82 9.26 0.18 6.04 2.16 6.56

Regional Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

ΜΣΧΙ Χηινα 13.92 8.58 12.95 3.90 8.24 7.78 13.08

ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε εξ ΥΚ 6.03 −0.36 2.90 0.01 8.17 1.53 6.02

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν 8.60 2.54 12.13 3.33 7.36 1.05 4.27

ΜΣΧΙ ϑαπαν (λοχαλ) 7.20 −13.68 −5.19 4.42 13.38 −0.49 3.15

MSCI Paciic 8.46 5.26 14.74 2.31 7.31 2.50 6.08

MSCI Paciic (local) 6.97 −7.17 0.77 4.39 11.86 0.99 4.47

MSCI Paciic ex Japan 8.18 10.86 20.05 0.42 7.07 5.85 10.99

MSCI Paciic ex Japan (local) 6.52 7.03 13.34 4.95 10.29 5.31 8.55

ΜΣΧΙ Υνιτεδ Κινγδοm 3.98 0.80 1.53 −1.80 5.99 1.40 5.02

ΜΣΧΙ Υνιτεδ Κινγδοm (λοχαλ) 7.00 14.37 18.39 5.68 9.91 5.15 5.89

Εmεργινγ/Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετ Στψλε 9.23 16.44 18.41 0.81 4.83 5.23 12.93

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 9.03 16.02 16.78 −0.56 3.03 3.94 11.55

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ (λοχαλ) 7.59 11.30 12.96 4.33 6.95 5.94 11.97

ΜΣΧΙ Φροντιερ Μαρκετσ 2.65 2.16 0.91 −0.17 4.64 −0.26 �

Global/Non-U.S. Small Cap Equity Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ Στψλε 7.99 4.51 11.38 6.12 12.77 6.33 12.20

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ Σmαλλ Χαπ 7.24 9.70 14.34 6.18 13.38 6.30 10.31

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ Σmαλλ Χαπ 7.28 9.66 14.21 5.67 12.47 6.59 10.52

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 8.00 7.26 13.50 4.15 9.72 4.11 9.97

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 7.91 7.70 13.38 3.52 8.60 4.58 10.47

*Returns less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Callan, MSCI.

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

13.92%

6.29%

8.60%

8.18%

6.91%

5.40%

MSCI Japan

MSCI Europe

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI China

9.03%

Ρολλινγ Ονε−ψεαρ Ρελατιϖε Ρετυρνσ (ϖσ. ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ)

02 0397 98 99 00 01

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

MSCI Pacific MSCI World ex USAMSCI Europe

16

Ρεγιοναλ Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Source: MSCI

Source: MSCI



12

Ηυτ, Ηυτ ... Ηικε! 

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Ρυφαση Λαmα

Φορ τηε θυαρτερ, τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Ινδεξ 

γρεω 5.55% ωηιλε τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Υ.Σ. Αγγρεγατε 

Ινδεξ mαναγεδ το ρισε α mερε 0.46%. 

Dριϖεν βψ Βρεξιτ−ινδυχεδ χονχερνσ, τηε ψιελδ ον τηε βενχη−

mαρκ 10−ψεαρ Τρεασυρψ νοτε ηιτ α ρεχορδ λοω οφ 1.37% ιν ϑυλψ; 

ηοωεϖερ, ιτ ροσε φορ τηε ρεmαινδερ οφ τηε θυαρτερ ανδ χλοσεδ ατ 

1.60%. Wηιλε τηε Φεδ λεφτ τηε φεδεραλ φυνδσ ρατε υνχηανγεδ ιν 

τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ, ιτσ αννουνχεmεντ ωασ νοτεωορτηψ βεχαυσε 

οφ τηε ηιγη λεϖελ οφ δισαγρεεmεντ; τηε τηρεε δισσεντινγ ϖοτεσ 

ωερε τηε mοστ σινχε Dεχεmβερ 2014. Βασεδ ον φεδεραλ φυνδσ 

φυτυρεσ χοντραχτσ, τραδερσ αρε βεττινγ τηερε ισ α 78% χηανχε 

οφ α ρατε ηικε ατ τηε νεξτ mεετινγ ιν Dεχεmβερ αφτερ τηε Φεδ�σ 

δεχισιον το ηολδ ρατεσ στεαδψ αγαιν ιν Νοϖεmβερ. 

Ψιελδσ ϖαριεδ αχροσσ τηε mατυριτψ σπεχτρυm δυρινγ τηε θυαρ−

τερ: Wηιλε Τρεασυρψ ρατεσ ροσε αλονγ τηε εντιρε ψιελδ χυρϖε ιν 

Αυγυστ, τηε χυρϖε στεεπενεδ ιν Σεπτεmβερ ασ τηε 2−ψεαρ φελλ 

βψ 4 βασισ ποιντσ το 0.76% ανδ τηε 30−ψεαρ ροσε βψ 8 βασισ 

ποιντσ το ενδ ατ 2.32%. Ιντερmεδιατε Τρεασυριεσ (−0.26%) ουτ−

περφορmεδ λονγ Τρεασυριεσ (−0.36%) δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ. 

Χρεδιτ σπρεαδσ τιγητενεδ δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ ανδ ψιελδσ 

ινχηεδ τοωαρδ ηιστοριχ λοωσ. Τηειρ +5.55% ρετυρν mαδε ηιγη−

ψιελδ χορπορατεσ τηε στρονγεστ περφορmερ δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ. 

Dεσπιτε ρεχορδ ισσυανχεσ ιν Αυγυστ, τηε χρεδιτ σεχτορ γαινεδ 

1.23% φορ τηε θυαρτερ ανδ ουτπερφορmεδ ΜΒΣ (+0.60%) ανδ 

ΧΜΒΣ (+0.59%). Ινδυστριαλσ βεατ Υτιλιτιεσ ανδ Φινανχιαλσ ον α 

    Core Bond Core Plus Interm Ext Maturity High Yld
   Style Style Style G/C Style Style

 10th Percentile  1.15 2.14 0.67 2.16 5.89

 25th Percentile  0.95 1.68 0.47 1.82 5.55

 Median  0.70 1.36 0.26 1.51 5.08

 75th Percentile  0.52 1.08 0.12 1.34 4.70

 90th Percentile  0.33 0.87 0.05 1.18 4.18

   Bloomberg Bloomberg Bloomberg Bloomberg Bloomberg
  Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays Barclays
 Agg Agg Interm Agg Long G/C High Yld

 Benchmark   0.46 0.46 0.16 1.24 5.55

0%

2%

4%

6%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ ΡετυρνσΥ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ Ψιελδ Χυρϖεσ

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

U.S. 10-Year Treasury Yield 10-Year TIPS Yield Breakeven Inflation Rate

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Ηιστοριχαλ 10−Ψεαρ Ψιελδσ 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Maturity (Years)

September 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 September 30, 2015

302520151050

Source: Bloomberg

Source: Bloomberg

Source: Bloomberg Barclays, Callan



13Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

δυρατιον−αδϕυστεδ βασισ. Φυρτηερ, ον α δυρατιον−αδϕυστεδ βασισ, 

χρεδιτ σεχυριτιεσ ουτπερφορmεδ Τρεασυριεσ βψ 155 βασισ ποιντσ. 

Τρεασυριεσ ενδεδ τηε θυαρτερ ιν τηε ρεδ (−0.28%). 

Ινϖεστmεντ−γραδε χορπορατε ισσυανχε τοταλεδ ∃340 βιλλιον 

φορ τηε θυαρτερ, σεττινγ α ρεχορδ. Βψ τηε ενδ οφ Σεπτεmβερ, 

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Χηαραχτεριστιχσ ασ οφ Σεπτ. 30, 2016

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Ινδιχεσ

Ψιελδ το 

Wορστ

Μοδ Αδϕ 

Dυρατιον

Αϖγ  

Ματυριτψ

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε 1.96 5.51 7.82

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Υνιϖερσαλ 2.39 5.39 7.68

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖ/Χρεδιτ 1.92 6.72 8.99

1−3 Ψεαρ 1.04 1.91 1.98

Ιντερmεδιατε 1.51 4.09 4.44

Λονγ−Τερm 3.32 15.57 24.32

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Χρεδιτ 4.04 14.04 23.92

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Χορπ Ηιγη Ψιελδ 6.17 4.05 6.33

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ ΤΙΠΣ 1.62 6.59 8.61

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι Βονδ 1−5 Ψεαρ 1.15 2.72 3.22

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνι 1−10 Ψεαρ 1.38 4.02 5.88

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνιχιπαλ 1.82 5.52 13.08

Source: Bloomberg Barclays

Excess Return versus Like-Duration TreasuriesAbsolute Return

-0.28%

0.46%

0.14%

0.59%

0.20%

0.60%

1.23%

5.55%

0.96%

Bloomberg Barclays Treasury

Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate

Bloomberg Barclays Agencies

Bloomberg Barclays MBS

Bloomberg Barclays CMBS

Bloomberg Barclays ABS

Bloomberg Barclays Credit

Bloomberg Barclays Corp. High Yield

Bloomberg Barclays US TIPS

0.00%

0.68%

0.28%

0.91%

0.26%

0.64%

1.55%

5.76%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

U.S. Credit Bellwether 10-Year Swap

Barclays High YieldMBS

ABS

CMBS ERISA

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Ινδεξ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Εφφεχτιϖε Ψιελδ Οϖερ Τρεασυριεσ

ψεαρ−το−δατε χορπορατε ινϖεστmεντ−γραδε βονδ ισσυανχε ωασ 

8% αηεαδ οφ λαστ ψεαρ�σ παχε. Ανδ τηε ρεχορδ συππλιεσ ωερε mετ 

ωιτη στρονγ δεmανδ ασ ινϖεστορσ σναππεδ υπ βονδσ. ΧΜΒΣ 

ανδ mυνιχιπαλ mαρκετσ αλσο δεmονστρατεδ ροβυστ συππλψ. Ανδ 

δεσπιτε λοω ψιελδσ ανδ ηεαϖψ ισσυανχε οφ ΧΜΒΣ σεχυριτιεσ ιν 

Σεπτεmβερ, τηεψ ουτπερφορmεδ Τρεασυριεσ βψ 91 βπσ.

Source: Bloomberg Barclays

Source: Bloomberg Barclays



14

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Βροαδ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Χορε Βονδ Στψλε 0.70 6.15 5.65 4.36 3.73 5.31 5.25

Χορε Βονδ Πλυσ Στψλε 1.36 7.16 6.55 4.61 4.55 5.77 5.91

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε 0.46 5.80 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.79 4.80

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Υνιϖερσαλ 0.96 6.69 6.11 4.27 3.62 5.00 5.12

Λονγ−Τερm Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Εξτενδεδ Ματυριτψ Χρεδιτ Στψλε 2.50 17.00 16.11 10.05 7.94 8.07 �

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Χρεδιτ 2.26 16.50 15.73 9.53 7.05 7.63 7.74

Εξτενδεδ Ματυριτψ Γοϖ/Χρεδιτ Στψλε 1.51 16.12 15.14 10.30 6.96 8.38 8.01

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γοϖ/Χρεδιτ 1.24 15.74 14.66 10.08 6.32 7.84 7.61

Ιντερmεδιατε−Τερm Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ιντερmεδιατε Στψλε 0.26 4.31 3.83 3.05 2.85 4.62 4.62

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Ιντερm Γοϖ/Χρεδιτ 0.16 4.24 3.52 2.80 2.45 4.17 4.22

Σηορτ−Τερm Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Dεφενσιϖε Στψλε 0.15 1.94 1.72 1.47 1.48 2.89 3.01

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γοϖ/Χρεδιτ 1−3 Ψρ 0.02 1.68 1.31 1.09 1.05 2.59 2.80

Βανκ Λοανσ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Βανκ Λοαν Στψλε 2.86 7.43 5.70 3.78 5.55 4.91 5.03

Χρεδιτ Συισσε Λεϖεραγεδ Λοανσ 3.10 7.46 5.35 3.60 5.30 4.24 4.79

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Στψλε 5.08 12.70 10.86 5.20 8.28 7.64 8.61

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Χορπ Ηιγη Ψιελδ 5.55 15.11 12.73 5.28 8.34 7.71 8.63

Υνχονστραινεδ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD  Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Υνχονστραινεδ Φιξεδ Στψλε 2.21 3.95 4.56 2.36 3.87 4.60 6.44

90 Dαψ Τ−Βιλλ + 3% 0.84 2.48 3.27 3.12 3.11 3.92 4.38

Σταβλε ςαλυε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σταβλε ςαλυε Στψλε 0.48 1.42 1.88 1.76 1.94 2.85 3.58

ιΜονεψΝετ Μυτυαλ Φυνδ Αϖγ 0.03 0.08 0.09 0.04 0.03 0.82 �

ΤΙΠΣ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Inlation-Linked Style 1.00 7.28 6.62 2.40 1.96 4.58 5.50

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ ΤΙΠΣ 0.96 7.27 6.58 2.40 1.93 4.48 5.39

Μυνιχιπαλ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Σηορτ Μυνιχιπαλ Στψλε −0.04 0.75 0.82 0.83 0.94 1.81 1.96

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνιχιπαλ 1−5 Ψρ −0.16 1.38 1.59 1.74 1.67 3.07 3.09

Ιντερmεδιατε Μυνιχιπαλ Στψλε −0.26 3.28 4.64 4.13 3.52 3.91 4.00

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνιχιπαλ 1−10 Ψρ −0.11 2.58 3.40 3.34 2.95 4.04 4.02

Λονγ Μυνιχιπαλ Στψλε −0.21 4.14 5.83 5.74 4.95 5.03 5.19

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνιχιπαλ −0.30 4.01 5.58 5.54 4.48 4.75 4.89

*Returns for less than one year are not annualized.

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Callan, Citigroup, Merrill Lynch

Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)



15Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Γλοβε−Τροττινγ φορ Ψιελδ

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ |  Κψλε Φεκετε

In an extraordinary effort to stimulate economic growth and inla−

τιον, τηε Βανκ οφ ϑαπαν ιντροδυχεδ α 0% ψιελδ−ταργετ φορ 10−ψεαρ 

bonds, aiming to exceed its 2% inlation objective. The central 
βανκ αλσο ιντενδσ το mαινταιν ιτσ νεγατιϖε σηορτ ρατε στανχε ιν αν 

effort to steepen the yield curve and thus help increase proit−
αβιλιτψ φορ βανκσ. Τηε βανκ�σ γοϖερνορ τερmεδ τηε νεω πολιχψ α 

�ρεινφορχεmεντ� οφ ιτσ θυαντιτατιϖε εασινγ (ΘΕ) προγραm. Χεντραλ 

βανκσ ηαϖε τψπιχαλλψ ταργετεδ σηορτ−τερm ρατεσ ιν ΘΕ προγραmσ, 

φοχυσινγ ον mατυριτιεσ οφ λεσσ τηαν α ψεαρ. Ψιελδ ον ϑαπαν�σ  

10−ψεαρ γοϖερνmεντ βονδ σεττλεδ ατ −0.09% ατ τηε ενδ οφ τηε 

θυαρτερ. 

 

Overall, the European sovereign bond market was lat as the 
Ευροπεαν Χεντραλ Βανκ λεφτ ιντερεστ ρατεσ υνχηανγεδ. Τηε 

Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ φορ Νον−Υ.Σ. Γοϖερνmεντ Ινδιχεσ

Χουντρψ

Χουντρψ 

Dεβτ (∃)

Χουντρψ 

Dεβτ

Λοχαλ  

Χυρρενχψ Wειγητ∗

Αυστραλια 3.60% 0.80% 2.77% 2.29%

Αυστρια 1.81% 0.65% 1.16% 1.74%

Βελγιυm 1.48% 0.32% 1.16% 2.93%

Χαναδα −0.67% 0.52% −1.18% 2.32%

Dενmαρκ 0.96% −0.10% 1.07% 0.82%

Φινλανδ 1.67% 0.51% 1.16% 0.67%

Φρανχε 1.37% 0.21% 1.16% 11.72%

Γερmανψ 0.98% −0.18% 1.16% 8.60%

Ιρελανδ 2.28% 1.11% 1.16% 0.95%

Ιταλψ 2.31% 1.14% 1.16% 11.07%

ϑαπαν −0.92% −2.19% 1.31% 34.89%

Μαλαψσια −0.66% 1.90% −2.51% 0.53%

Μεξιχο −4.22% 0.47% −4.67% 0.98%

Νετηερλανδσ 1.29% 0.13% 1.16% 2.70%

Νορωαψ 3.53% −1.12% 4.70% 0.30%

Πολανδ 3.81% 0.30% 3.50% 0.71%

Σινγαπορε 0.22% 1.52% −1.29% 0.45%

Σουτη Αφριχα 10.29% 3.56% 6.50% 0.55%

Σπαιν 3.39% 2.21% 1.16% 6.45%

Σωεδεν −0.63% 0.48% −1.11% 0.52%

Σωιτζερλανδ −0.08% −0.57% 0.50% 0.27%

Υ.Κ. −0.37% 2.52% −2.83% 8.54%

*Weight in the Citi Non-U.S. World Government Bond Index. 

Source: Citigroup

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε Ινδεξ ροσε 0.82% 

(+0.53% ηεδγεδ). Τηε ΕΧΒ χοmmιττεδ το α mοντηλψ ΘΕ προ−

γραm οφ βυψινγ �80 βιλλιον ιν γοϖερνmεντ βονδσ, ασσετ−βαχκεδ 

σεχυριτιεσ, ανδ χορπορατε δεβτ τηρουγη Μαρχη 2017; ηοωεϖερ, 

Πρεσιδεντ Μαριο Dραγηι αννουνχεδ α ρεϖιεω οφ τηε προγραm το 

ενσυρε ινϖεσταβλε ασσετσ ωουλδ νοτ δρψ υπ. Ψιελδ ον τηε Γερmαν 

10−ψεαρ βυνδ νοτχηεδ υπ α βασισ ποιντ το −0.12%. Τηερε ισ νοω 

οϖερ ∃12 τριλλιον οφ νεγατιϖε−ψιελδινγ δεβτ γλοβαλλψ, ωιτη ϑαπαν 

αχχουντινγ φορ νεαρλψ ηαλφ ανδ Wεστερν Ευροπε�ναmελψ Φρανχε, 

Γερmανψ, ανδ τηε Νετηερλανδσ�τηε οτηερ ηαλφ. Ινϖεστορσ� συσ−

ταινεδ ηυντ φορ ψιελδ ωασ εϖιδεντ ιν Ευροπεαν βονδ πριχινγ ασ 

περιπηερψ γοϖερνmεντ Τρεασυριεσ τενδεδ το δεχλινε mορε τηαν 

τηειρ χορε ευροζονε χουντερπαρτσ. Τηε Σπανιση ανδ Ιταλιαν 

10−ψεαρ ψιελδσ δεχλινεδ 28 βπσ ανδ 7 βπσ το 0.88% ανδ 1.91%, 

ρεσπεχτιϖελψ. Τηε ευρο ινχρεασεδ 1.16% αγαινστ τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ.

Dεσπιτε τηε εχονοmιχ ανδ πολιτιχαλ υνχερταιντψ τηε Βρεξιτ ϖοτε 

λεφτ ιν ιτσ ωακε, ωηεν Υ.Κ. ϖοτερσ χηοσε το λεαϖε τηε Ευροπεαν 

Υνιον ανδ τηε Βριτιση πουνδ πλυmmετεδ 2.83%, δατα ρελεασεδ 

showed no immediate negative effect on conidence or produc−

τιϖιτψ. Ψιελδ ον τηε 10−ψεαρ γιλτ φελλ 12 βπσ το +0.75%.

Τηε δεϖελοπινγ mαρκετσ αδϖανχεδ φορ τηε φουρτη στραιγητ 

θυαρτερ ιν σπιτε οφ mυλτιπλε πολιτιχαλ ηεαδωινδσ, ινχλυδινγ τηε 

Εmεργινγ Σπρεαδσ Οϖερ Dεϖελοπεδ (Βψ Ρεγιον)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

12 13 15 16

Emerging Americas Emerging EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa) Emerging Asia

14

Source: Bloomberg Barclays



16

ΝΟΝ−Υ.Σ. ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

ιmπεαχηmεντ οφ Βραζιλ�σ πρεσιδεντ ανδ τηε φαιλεδ Τυρκιση χουπ. 

Τηε ηαρδ χυρρενχψ ϑ.Π. Μοργαν ΕΜΒΙ Γλοβαλ Ινδεξ χλιmβεδ 

4.04%. Λοχαλ χυρρενχψ δεβτ, ασ mεασυρεδ βψ τηε ϑ.Π. Μοργαν 

GBI-EM Global Diversiied Index, τιχκεδ υπ 2.68%.  

  Global Non-U.S.  Global High Em Debt Em Debt 
  Fixed Style Fixed Style Yld Style Style (US$) Style (local)

 10th Percentile 2.18 2.71 6.54 5.34 3.33

 25th Percentile 1.73 2.11 5.92 5.04 2.72

 Median 1.08 1.16 5.42 4.63 2.45

 75th Percentile 0.74 0.87 4.97 4.23 1.97

 90th Percentile 0.38 0.23 3.81 3.48 1.66

    Barclays Barclays Barclays JPM EMBI JPM GBI-EM
  Gl Agg Gl Agg ex US High Yld Gl Div Gl Div

 Benchmark  0.82 1.03 5.3 4.04 2.68

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Χαλλαν Στψλε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Στψλε 1.08 9.70 8.88 2.39 2.15 4.91 6.14

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε 0.82 9.85 8.83 2.13 1.74 4.26 5.13

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Στψλε (ηεδγεδ) 1.05 6.96 7.26 5.52 4.95 5.44 5.64

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε (ηεδγεδ) 0.53 6.44 6.54 5.05 4.26 4.73 4.73

Ηιγη Ψιελδ Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Στψλε 5.42 13.65 12.46 3.91 7.61 7.03 9.74

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Ηιγη Ψιελδ 5.30 14.49 13.51 4.97 8.56 7.87 9.43

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Στψλε 1.16 12.95 11.41 1.52 2.01 4.48 6.26

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε εξ ΥΣ 1.03 13.09 11.67 0.75 0.70 3.82 5.41

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Εmεργινγ Dεβτ Στψλε (ΥΣ∃) 4.63 16.27 18.15 7.02 7.81 8.13 11.06

JPM EMBI Global Diversiied 4.04 14.77 16.20 8.20 7.76 7.73 9.57

Εmεργινγ Dεβτ Στψλε (λοχαλ) 2.45 16.95 16.83 −2.14 0.22 5.21 7.25

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied 2.68 17.07 17.06 −2.58 0.06 5.52 �

Εmεργινγ Dεβτ Βλενδ Στψλε 3.59 15.14 16.15 2.13 3.94 8.07 12.69

ϑΠΜ ΕΜΒΙ Γλ Dιϖ/ϑΠΜ ΓΒΙ−ΕΜ Γλ Dιϖ 3.36 16.11 16.83 2.81 3.95 6.72 �

Εmεργινγ Dεβτ Χορπορατε Στψλε 3.59 12.81 13.05 6.55 8.08 � �

ϑΠΜ ΧΕΜΒΙ 3.25 12.57 13.34 6.38 7.31 7.16 �

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. 

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Callan, JPMorgan

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Callan, JPMorgan Chase

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

GermanyU.S. Treasury U.K. Canada Japan

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Change in 10-Year Yields from 2Q16 to 3Q16 

12 bps

1 bps

-12 bps

-6 bps

13 bps

Germany

U.S. Treasury

U.K.

Canada

Japan

16

10−Ψεαρ Γλοβαλ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ψιελδσ

Source: Bloomberg



17Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Ρετυρνσ Τακε α Συmmερ ςαχατιον

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ |  Κεϖιν Ναγψ

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ Ινδεξ∗ γαινεδ 1.77% δυρινγ τηε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ (1.16% φροm ινχοmε ανδ 0.60% φροm αππρεχιατιον), ιτσ 

worst performance since the irst quarter of 2010. In addition, 
αππρεχιατιον φελλ φορ τηε σιξτη χονσεχυτιϖε θυαρτερ.

Ιν α ρεπεατ οφ τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, Ινδυστριαλ (+2.89%) ανδ Ρεταιλ 

(+1.98%) topped property sector performance, and Ofice 
(+1.26%) ανδ Ηοτελσ (+1.35%) ωερε τηε ωορστ περφορmερσ 

αγαιν. Τηε Wεστ ρεγιον λεδ τηε ωαψ (+2.19%) ωηιλε τηε Μιδωεστ 

(+1.46%) ωασ τηε ωεακεστ. Τρανσαχτιον ϖολυmε ωασ ∃9.6 βιλλιον, 

α 7% ινχρεασε οϖερ τηε πρεϖιουσ θυαρτερ ανδ α 20% ινχρεασε 

οϖερ τηε σαmε περιοδ ιν 2015. Αππραισαλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ φελλ 

το 4.48%, αν αλλ−τιmε λοω. Τηε σπρεαδ βετωεεν αππραισαλ χαπιταλ−

ιζατιον ρατεσ ανδ τρανσαχτιον χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ ωιδενεδ το 180 

βασισ ποιντσ, τηε λαργεστ σινχε τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ οφ 2009.

Οχχυπανχψ ρατεσ χοντινυεδ το χλιmβ, σεττινγ α νεω 15−ψεαρ ηιγη 

ατ 93.22%. Ρεταιλ ανδ Απαρτmεντ οχχυπανχψ ρατεσ φελλ σλιγητλψ; 

Industrial and Ofice rates increased. Apartments were the only 
προπερτψ τψπε το εξπεριενχε α δροπ ψεαρ−το−δατε. 

Τηε πρελιmιναρψ ρετυρν φορ τηε NCREIF Open End Diversiied 
Core Equity Index∗ ωασ 1.83%; 0.90% οφ τηατ ωασ ινχοmε ανδ 

0.94% φροm αππρεχιατιον. Τηισ συρπασσεδ λαστ θυαρτερ ασ τηε 

lowest since the irst quarter of 2010. Income returns stayed in 
λινε ωιτη παστ θυαρτερσ, βυτ αππρεχιατιον ρεαχηεδ ιτσ λοωεστ λεϖελ 

since the irst quarter of 2010. Low long-term interest rates have 
βεεν α στρονγ ταιλωινδ φορ Υ.Σ. ρεαλ εστατε περφορmανχε ιν ρεχεντ 

θυαρτερσ, βυτ εξπεχτατιονσ οφ α Φεδ ρατε ινχρεασε ηαϖε συχκεδ 

τηε ωινδ φροm ιτσ σαιλσ. 

Γλοβαλ ρεαλ εστατε ινϖεστmεντ τρυστσ (ΡΕΙΤσ), τραχκεδ βψ τηε 

ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ ΡΕΙΤ Ινδεξ (ΥΣD), ουτπερ−

φορmεδ τηειρ Υ.Σ. χουντερπαρτσ ανδ ποστεδ α 1.46% ρετυρν. Υ.Σ. 

ΡΕΙΤσ, ασ mεασυρεδ βψ τηε FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index, 

λοστ 1.43% φορ τηε θυαρτερ. 

Ιν τηε Υ.Σ., ΡΕΙΤσ σταρτεδ τηε θυαρτερ στρονγ, ριδινγ τηε ποστ−

Βρεξιτ βουνχε τηατ φολλοωεδ τηε Υ.Κ.�σ συρπρισε ϖοτε το λεαϖε 

τηε Ευροπεαν Υνιον. Τηε γαινσ ωουλδ νοτ λαστ, ηοωεϖερ, ασ 

mιξεδ εχονοmιχ δατα φυελεδ χονχερνσ οφ α Φεδεραλ Ρεσερϖε 

rate increase. Timber (+7.72%), Industrial (+6.67%), and Ofice 
(+3.24%) ωερε τηε στρονγεστ−περφορmινγ σεχτορσ φορ τηε θυαρτερ. 

Σπεχιαλτψ (−9.93%), Dατα Χεντερσ (−9.02%), ανδ Ρεταιλ (−2.62%) 

ωερε σοmε οφ τηε λαγγαρδσ. Σελφ−στοραγε (−12.20%) στρυγγλεδ φορ 

τηε σεχονδ στραιγητ θυαρτερ ανδ ωασ τηε ωορστ περφορmινγ σεχτορ. 

Ινϖεστορσ αππεαρεδ το βε σηιφτινγ mονεψ ιντο mορε εχονοmιχαλλψ 

σενσιτιϖε Υ.Σ. στοχκσ, ωηιχη γενεραλλψ περφορmεδ ωελλ ον τηε 

βαχκ οφ mοδεστ λονγ−τερm ψιελδ ινχρεασεσ. Αντιχιπατιον οφ α Φεδ 

ρατε ηικε αλσο προmπτεδ σοmε ινϖεστορσ το σελλ ουτ οφ χροωδεδ 

δεφενσιϖε ποσιτιονσ συχη ασ ΡΕΙΤσ ιντο mορε χψχλιχαλ στοχκσ. Ασ 

οφ Σεπτεmβερ 30, Υ.Σ. ΡΕΙΤσ ωερε τραδινγ ατ α 12.3% πρεmιυm 

το νετ ασσετ ϖαλυε, mορε τηαν α 500 βασισ ποιντ ινχρεασε οϖερ τηε 

πρεϖιουσ θυαρτερ. 

Ασ τηε δυστ σεττλεσ φροm τηε ινιτιαλ σηοχκ οφ Βρεξιτ, τηε ιmπαχτ 

ον Υ.Κ. ρεαλ εστατε ισ βεγιννινγ το βε αππαρεντ. Τρανσαχτιον 

evidence shows City of London and West End ofices were the 
mοστ αφφεχτεδ δυε το υνχερταιντψ αβουτ τηε χιτψ�σ φυτυρε ασ α 

inancial hub. Industrial assets were the least affected. Outside 
οφ τηε Υ.Κ., τηε Νορδιχ χουντριεσ ωερε τηε στρονγεστ περφορmερσ. 

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

REIT Database Global REIT DatabasePrivate Real Estate Database

02 0397 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

*Index subreturns are calculated separately from index return and may not total. Source: Callan



18

Signs that the economies of Norway and Finland may inally be 
ον τηε χυσπ οφ γροωτη ηαϖε λεδ το ρεχορδ λεϖελσ οφ ινϖεστmεντ 

ανδ ινχρεασεσ ιν προπερτψ ϖαλυε. Φρανχε αλσο περφορmεδ ωελλ 

ασ τηε εχονοmψ ρεχοϖερεδ φροm α σλυγγιση σεχονδ θυαρτερ ανδ 

employment growth propelled ofice returns upward.

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Πριϖατε Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ρεαλ Εστατε Dαταβασε (νετ οφ φεεσ) 1.62 5.85 9.34 11.64 11.74 4.58 7.33

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 1.77 6.13 9.22 11.31 11.18 7.22 8.93

ΝΦΙ−ΟDΧΕ (ϖαλυε ωτδ. νετ) 1.83 5.80 9.08 11.42 11.34 5.05 7.03

Πυβλιχ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε −1.15 9.61 17.67 14.49 16.28 7.05 12.57

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ −1.43 11.75 19.86 14.22 15.91 6.35 11.38

Γλοβαλ Πυβλιχ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε 1.36 9.06 13.66 9.14 13.77 4.73 10.87

ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ ΡΕΙΤ 1.46 10.97 15.85 8.60 13.17 4.16 10.67

Γλοβαλ εξ Υ.Σ. Πυβλιχ Ρεαλ Εστατε Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Γλοβαλ εξ−Υ.Σ. ΡΕΙΤ Dαταβασε 4.51 7.75 8.49 2.98 11.00 2.41 �

ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖ ΡΕΙΤσ εξ−Υ.Σ. 4.28 10.44 11.66 3.21 10.42 2.57 10.59

*Returns for less than one year are not annualized.

All REIT returns are reported gross in USD. 

Sources: Callan, NAREIT, NCREIF, The FTSE Group. NCREIF statistics are the product of  direct queries and may luctuate over time.

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Τρανσαχτιον ανδ Αππραισαλ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ βψ Προπερτψ Τψπε

0%

3%

6%

9%

Appraisal Capitalization RatesTransaction Capitalization Rates

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

0%

3%

6%

9%

IndustrialApartment RetailOffice

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Χολλατεραλιζεδ mορτγαγε−βαχκεδ σεχυριτιεσ (ΧΜΒΣ) ισσυανχε φορ 

τηε θυαρτερ ωασ ∃19.5 βιλλιον, α ηυγε ϕυmπ φροm τηε ∃12.1 βιλ−

λιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Wηιλε ισσυανχε ωασ υπ θυαρτερ−οϖερ−

θυαρτερ, ιτ ωασ στιλλ δοων χοmπαρεδ το τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ οφ 2015 

(∃25.3 βιλλιον). 

Source: NCREIF

Note: Transaction capitalization rate is equal weighted.

Source: NCREIF

Note: Capitalization rates are appraisal-based.



19Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Private Equity Performance Database (%) (Ποολεδ Ηοριζον ΙΡΡσ τηρουγη Μαρχη 31, 2016∗)

Στρατεγψ 3 Μοντησ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ 20 Ψεαρσ

Αλλ ςεντυρε −2.4 6.6 20.6 15.0 10.4 5.3 23.2 

Γροωτη Εθυιτψ −0.1 6.0 12.7 10.5 11.1 10.3 13.9 

Αλλ Βυψουτσ 2.1 9.7 12.8 11.5 10.9 12.3 12.7 

Μεζζανινε 3.0 8.0 9.3 10.2 9.6 8.5 9.4 

Dιστρεσσεδ 0.6 0.4 7.8 8.3 9.3 10.6 10.6 

All Private Equity 0.8 7.5 13.3 11.5 10.6 10.2 13.5 

Σ&Π 500 1.4 1.8 11.8 11.6 7.0 6.0 8.0 

Ρυσσελλ 3000 1.0 −0.3 11.2 11.0 6.9 6.4 8.0 

Private equity returns are net of  fees. 

Sources: Standard & Poor’s, Thomson/Cambridge 

*Most recent data available at time of  publication.

Στιχκερ Σηοχκ     

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Γαρψ Ροβερτσον

Τηιρδ−θυαρτερ φυνδραισινγ χοmmιτmεντσ τοταλεδ ∃38.6 βιλλιον ωιτη 

143 νεω παρτνερσηιπσ φορmεδ, Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Αναλψστ ρεπορτεδ. 

Τηε νυmβερ οφ νεω φυνδσ δροππεδ βψ 27% φροm 196 ιν τηε σεχ−

ονδ θυαρτερ, ανδ δολλαρ ϖολυmε πλυmmετεδ 62% φροm ∃102.2 βιλ−

λιον. Βυτ τηισ ψεαρ ισ τραχκινγ χλοσελψ το 2015, τραιλινγ βψ ονλψ ∃3 

βιλλιον (1%) ιν χοmmιτmεντσ ανδ 41 (6%) ιν νεω παρτνερσηιπσ. 

Τηε ινϖεστmεντ παχε βψ φυνδσ ιντο χοmπανιεσ mαινταινεδ 

mοmεντυm, αχχορδινγ το Βυψουτσ νεωσλεττερ, τοταλινγ 385 τρανσ−

αχτιονσ, υπ 8% φροm 356 ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ βυτ δοων 5% 

φροm 406 α ψεαρ αγο. Τηε αννουνχεδ αγγρεγατε δολλαρ ϖολυmε 

ωασ ∃39 βιλλιον, υπ 4% φροm ∃37.6 βιλλιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ 

and up signiicantly from the $11.6 billion a year ago. Just eight 
δεαλσ ωιτη αννουνχεδ ϖαλυεσ οφ ∃1 βιλλιον ορ mορε χλοσεδ ιν τηε 

θυαρτερ, βυτ τηατ ωασ υπ φροm σιξ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ.

Νεω ινϖεστmεντσ ιν ϖεντυρε χαπιταλ χοmπανιεσ τοταλεδ 1,796 

ρουνδσ ανδ ∃15 βιλλιον οφ αννουνχεδ ϖολυmε, αχχορδινγ το τηε 

Νατιοναλ ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ Ασσοχιατιον. Τηε νυmβερ οφ ρουνδσ 

δεχρεασεδ 11% φροm 2,026 ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, ανδ τηε δολλαρ 

ϖολυmε δροππεδ 32% φροm ∃22.1 βιλλιον. 

Ρεγαρδινγ εξιτσ, Βυψουτσ ρεπορτσ τηερε ωερε 142 πριϖατε Μ&Α 

εξιτσ οφ βυψουτ−βαχκεδ χοmπανιεσ, ωιτη 38 δεαλσ δισχλοσινγ 

Φυνδσ Χλοσεδ ϑανυαρψ 1 το Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Στρατεγψ Νο. οφ Φυνδσ Αmτ (∃mm) Περχεντ

ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ 274 32,312 17%

Βυψουτσ 171 122,487 63%

Συβορδινατεδ Dεβτ 11 3,220 2%

Dιστρεσσεδ Dεβτ 17 17,250 9%

Σεχονδαρψ ανδ Οτηερ 15 12,284 6%

Φυνδ−οφ−φυνδσ 28 6,451 3%

Τοταλσ 516 194,004 100%

Source: Private Equity Analyst

ϖαλυεσ τοταλινγ ∃27.5 βιλλιον. Τηε Μ&Α εξιτσ χουντ ωασ υπ 20% 

φροm 118 ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, ανδ τηε αννουνχεδ ϖαλυε 

ινχρεασεδ 12% φροm ∃24.6 βιλλιον. Τηερε ωερε τωο βυψουτ−

backed IPOs loating an aggregate $551.6 million, down from 
three loating $1.6 billion in the second quarter.

ςεντυρε−βαχκεδ Μ&Α εξιτσ τοταλεδ 192 τρανσαχτιονσ, ωιτη α 

δισχλοσεδ δολλαρ ϖολυmε οφ ∃13.4 βιλλιον. Τηε νυmβερ οφ πριϖατε 

σαλε εξιτσ ινχρεασεδ 19% φροm 161 ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, βυτ 

τηε αννουνχεδ δολλαρ ϖολυmε δεχλινεδ 17% φροm τηε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ�σ ∃16.1 βιλλιον. Τηερε ωερε 14 ςΧ−βαχκεδ ΙΠΟσ ιν τηε 

third quarter with a combined loat of $1 billion. For comparison, 
τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 2016 ηαδ 13 ΙΠΟσ ανδ τοταλ ισσυανχε οφ 

∃876.1 mιλλιον.

Note: Transaction count and dollar volume igures across all private equity measures are preliminary igures and are subject to update in subsequent versions of  Capital Market 

Review and other Callan publications.



20

Χαλλαν Dαταβασε Μεδιαν ανδ Ινδεξ Ρετυρνσ∗ φορ Περιοδσ ενδεδ Σεπτεmβερ 30, 2016

Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε 2.92 0.19 0.55 2.64 5.03 3.70 4.84

ΧΣ Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ 1.74 0.09 −0.03 2.53 4.25 4.21 5.81

ΧΣ Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ 1.59 −1.98 −2.02 1.17 2.12 −2.45 0.75

ΧΣ Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβιτραγε 3.83 6.16 5.54 2.14 4.01 3.98 4.55

ΧΣ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Αρβιτραγε 2.61 2.39 2.42 2.88 4.59 3.50 4.23

ΧΣ Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 2.55 3.21 3.74 5.86 7.33 5.66 6.79

ΧΣ Dιστρεσσεδ 2.75 2.71 0.91 1.59 5.43 4.20 7.02

ΧΣ Ρισκ Αρβιτραγε 2.30 5.08 5.93 1.71 2.61 3.59 3.71

ΧΣ Εϖεντ−Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 3.06 −0.51 −3.04 −0.56 3.71 4.11 6.13

ΧΣ Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ 1.88 −3.23 −1.70 3.99 6.56 4.76 6.12

ΧΣ Dεδιχατεδ Σηορτ Βιασ −12.06 −18.35 −21.86 −8.80 −15.43 −10.95 −9.05

ΧΣ Γλοβαλ Μαχρο 0.58 −0.97 −0.36 1.68 2.34 5.75 7.98

ΧΣ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ −3.23 −1.26 −2.30 6.80 0.98 4.09 4.93

ΧΣ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 4.20 4.74 7.67 3.48 4.99 4.62 8.76

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. Sources: Callan, Credit Suisse. 

Χαν�τ Στοπ τηε Φεελινγ

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ |  ϑιm ΜχΚεε

Dεσπιτε τηε σοmβερ mοοδ σπυρρεδ βψ τηε Βρεξιτ ϖοτε χλοσινγ ουτ 

the prior quarter, capital markets got back on the dance loor 
ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ. Χεντραλ βανκερσ λετ ιτ βε κνοων τηατ τηειρ 

mυσιχ οφ εασψ mονεψ πολιχιεσ ωουλδ νοτ στοπ. ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ 

Μαρκετσ (+9.03%) λεδ τηε βεατ υπωαρδ, βυτ τηε Σ&Π 500 

(+3.85%) ηιτ ανοτηερ ρεχορδ ηιγη. Ηιγηερ ινχοmε χοντινυεδ το 

βε αλλυρινγ ασ τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη Ψιελδ 

Ινδεξ ϕυmπεδ 5.55%. 

Ηιγηλιγητινγ ραω ηεδγε φυνδ περφορmανχε ωιτηουτ ιmπλεmεντα−

τιον χοστσ, τηε Χρεδιτ Συισσε Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ (ΧΣ ΗΦΙ) ροσε 

1.74% ιν τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ. Ασ α βενχηmαρκ οφ αχτυαλ ηεδγε φυνδ 

πορτφολιοσ, τηε mεδιαν mαναγερ ιν τηε Χαλλαν Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−

Φυνδσ Dαταβασε αδϖανχεδ 2.92%, νετ οφ αλλ φεεσ. 

Wιτηιν ΧΣ ΗΦΙ, τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ στρατεγψ λαστ θυαρτερ ωασ 

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ (+4.20%), συππορτεδ βψ στρονγ δεβτ ανδ 

εθυιτψ mαρκετσ αmιδ γροωινγ εχονοmιεσ. Τιγητενινγ χρεδιτ 

σπρεαδσ ανδ ιmπροϖινγ φυνδαmενταλσ συππορτεδ Χονϖερτιβλε 

Αρβ (+3.83%), Εϖεντ−Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ (+3.06%), ανδ 

Dιστρεσσεδ (+2.75%). Αιδεδ βψ στρονγ εθυιτψ ταιλωινδσ, Λονγ/

Σηορτ Εθυιτψ γαινεδ 1.88%. Χηοππψ mαρκετσ χαυγητ τηε τρενδ−

φολλοωινγ χροωδσ οφ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ (-3.23%) a bit lat-footed.

Wιτηιν Χαλλαν�σ Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε, τηε mεδιαν 

Χαλλαν Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ ΦΟΦ (+4.26%) ουτπαχεδ τηε Χαλλαν 

Αβσολυτε Ρετυρν ΦΟΦ (+2.10%). Wιτη διϖερσιφψινγ εξποσυρεσ το 

βοτη νον−διρεχτιοναλ ανδ διρεχτιοναλ στψλεσ, τηε Core Diversiied 
ΦΟΦ γαινεδ 2.91%.

  Absolute Return Core Diversified Long/Short Eq
  FOF Style FOF Style FOF Style

 10th Percentile 3.01 3.88 5.57

 25th Percentile 2.92 3.56 4.91

 Median 2.10 2.91 4.26

 75th Percentile 1.28 2.03 3.33

 90th Percentile 1.08 1.07 2.38

 T-Bills + 5% 1.32 1.32 1.32

0%

2%

4%

6%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Sources: Callan, Merrill Lynch



21Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

The Callan DC Index is an equally weighted index tracking the cash lows 
ανδ περφορmανχε οφ νεαρλψ 90 πλανσ, ρεπρεσεντινγ mορε τηαν ονε mιλλιον 

DΧ παρτιχιπαντσ ανδ οϖερ ∃135 βιλλιον ιν ασσετσ. Τηε Ινδεξ ισ υπδατεδ 

θυαρτερλψ ανδ ισ αϖαιλαβλε ον Χαλλαν�σ ωεβσιτε, ασ ισ τηε θυαρτερλψ DΧ 

Οβσερϖερ νεωσλεττερ.

DΧ πλαν βαλανχεσ ινχρεασεδ α σολιδ 1.67% ιν τηε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ, αχχορδινγ το τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ�. Βυτ παρτιχιπαντσ 

sought cover, shifting money from equities into ixed income 
ανδ σταβλε ϖαλυε. Τηισ ισ ατψπιχαλ βεηαϖιορ. Γενεραλλψ, DΧ πλαν 

παρτιχιπαντσ τενδ το φολλοω τηε mαρκετ, ηεαδινγ το εθυιτιεσ 

ωηεν τηε στοχκ mαρκετ ρισεσ.

Τυρνοϖερ�ορ νετ τρανσφερ αχτιϖιτψ λεϖελσ�ηασ αλσο βεεν 

βελοω αϖεραγε τηισ ψεαρ, χοmινγ ιν ατ 0.55% ιν τηε σεχονδ 

quarter and 0.45% in the irst. Historical turnover since incep−

τιον ισ 0.65% φορ τηε Ινδεξ.

Αλτηουγη τηε Ινδεξ ροσε σmαρτλψ φορ τηε θυαρτερ�γαινινγ 

1.90%�ταργετ δατε φυνδσ στιλλ mαναγεδ το mαργιναλλψ ουτπαχε 

τηε τψπιχαλ DΧ ινϖεστορ, γαινινγ 2.02%. Σινχε ινχεπτιον, τηε 

DΧ Ινδεξ ηασ τραιλεδ τηε Αγε 45 Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδ βψ 70 βασισ 

ποιντσ αννυαλλψ, αϖεραγινγ α 5.15% αννυαλ ρετυρν.

Money lowed out of DC plans during the quarter to the tune 
of 23 basis points. Historically, inlows (participant and plan 
σπονσορ χοντριβυτιονσ) ηαϖε αχχουντεδ φορ αππροξιmατελψ 

30% οφ τοταλ γροωτη ιν πλαν βαλανχεσ (2.24% αννυαλιζεδ). 

Αλτογετηερ, παρτιχιπαντ βαλανχεσ ηαϖε ινχρεασεδ 7.39% αννυ−

αλλψ σινχε ινχεπτιον οφ τηε Ινδεξ.

Τηε DΧ Ινδεξ�σ αλλοχατιον το ταργετ δατε φυνδσ χοντινυεδ το 

ινχρεασε ιν τηε θυαρτερ, ρεαχηινγ 26.9% οφ τοταλ DΧ ασσετσ. 

Μεανωηιλε, Υ.Σ. λαργε χαπ εθυιτψ δροππεδ το ιτσ λοωεστ αλλοχα−

τιον σινχε τηε φουρτη θυαρτερ οφ 2011.

Target date funds are the ifth most prevalent asset class in 
DΧ πλανσ (89% οφφερ τηεm), ανδ ωηεν οφφερεδ αττραχτ τηε λιον�σ 

σηαρε οφ ασσετσ, ατ 31% ον αϖεραγε.

DΧ Παρτιχιπαντσ Σεεκ Χοϖερ

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ |  Τοm Σζκωαρλα

Νετ Χαση Φλοω Αναλψσισ (Σεχονδ Θυαρτερ 2016) 

(Τοπ Τωο ανδ Βοττοm Τωο Ασσετ Γατηερερσ)

Ασσετ Χλασσ

Flows as % of
Τοταλ Νετ Φλοωσ

Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδσ 47.68%

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ 22.94%

Χοmπανψ Στοχκ −22.66%

Υ.Σ. Λαργε Χαπ −39.59%

Τοταλ Τυρνοϖερ∗∗ 0.55%

Source: Callan DC Index

Data provided here is the most recent available at time of  publication.

* DC Index inception date is January 2006.

** Total Index “turnover” measures the percentage of  total invested assets (transfers 

only, excluding contributions and withdrawals) that moved between asset classes. 

Ινϖεστmεντ Περφορmανχε∗

Γροωτη Σουρχεσ∗

��� �� ������ ���� ��	
����� �� 	
��

1.90%
2.02%

5.15%

����	
 ������� �����		������
 ��	��

	������	

2.99%

2.28%

5.85%

��������
��e

% Net Flows % Return Growth% Total Growth

7.39%

Second Quarter 2016Annualized Since 

Inception

2.24%

-0.23%

0.25%

5.15%

1.67%
1.90%

2.53%
2.28%

Year-to-date



C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 P

la
n

Combined Plan



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation
As of September 30, 2016

The top left chart shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of September 30, 2016. The top right chart shows the Fund’s target
asset allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement. The bottom chart ranks the fund’s asset allocation and the
target allocation versus the CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B).

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
33%

Small Cap Equity
9%

Intl Developed Equity
18%

Emerging Equity
5%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

Intl Developed Equity
19%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Large Cap Equity          82,347   32.7%   32.0%    0.7%           1,824
Small Cap Equity          22,260    8.8%    8.0%    0.8%           2,129
Intl Developed Equity          44,758   17.8%   19.0% (1.2%) (3,053)
Emerging Equity          13,679    5.4%    6.0% (0.6%) (1,419)
Domestic Fixed Income          88,591   35.2%   35.0%    0.2%             518
Total         251,635  100.0%  100.0%

Asset Class Weights vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B)

W
e

ig
h

ts

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

55%

Domestic Domestic Intl
Broad Eq Fixed Income Equity

(30)
(39)

(17)(18)

(12)
(6)

10th Percentile 48.03 38.30 23.65
25th Percentile 42.94 33.78 20.46

Median 36.17 27.88 17.88
75th Percentile 29.05 21.99 14.49
90th Percentile 22.48 17.03 11.16

Fund 41.57 35.21 23.22

Target 40.00 35.00 25.00

% Group Invested 96.97% 98.48% 92.42%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 26
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Quarterly Total Fund Relative Attribution - September 30, 2016

The following analysis approaches Total Fund Attribution from the perspective of relative return. Relative return attribution
separates and quantifies the sources of total fund excess return relative to its target. This excess return is separated into two
relative attribution effects: Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect. The Asset Allocation Effect represents the
excess return due to the actual total fund asset allocation differing from the target asset allocation. Manager Selection Effect
represents the total fund impact of the individual managers excess returns relative to their benchmarks.

Asset Class Under or Overweighting

(3%) (2%) (1%) 0% 1% 2%

Large Cap Equity 0.85

Small Cap Equity 0.90

Domestic Fixed Income 0.57

International Developed E (1.62 )

Emerging Equity (0.70 )

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

International Developed E

Emerging Equity

Total

Actual vs Target Returns

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

4.21

3.85

2.60

9.05

0.80

0.46

6.79

6.43

8.09

9.15

3.49

3.87

Actual Target

Relative Attribution by Asset Class

(0.8%) (0.6%) (0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4%

0.12
(0.00 )

0.12

(0.57 )
0.05

(0.52 )

0.13
(0.03 )

0.10

0.06
(0.04 )

0.02

(0.06 )
(0.04 )

(0.09 )

(0.32 )
(0.05 )

(0.37 )

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended September 30, 2016

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 4.21% 3.85% 0.12% (0.00%) 0.12%
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 2.60% 9.05% (0.57%) 0.05% (0.52%)
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% 0.80% 0.46% 0.13% (0.03%) 0.10%
International Developed E17% 19% 6.79% 6.43% 0.06% (0.04%) 0.02%
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 8.09% 9.15% (0.06%) (0.04%) (0.09%)

Total = + +3.49% 3.87% (0.32%) (0.05%) (0.37%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 27
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - September 30, 2016

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

(1.0%) (0.8%) (0.6%) (0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4%

Large Cap Equity
(0.69 )

(0.01 )
(0.70 )

Small Cap Equity
0.03
0.04

0.07

Domestic Fixed Income
(0.03 )

(0.18 )
(0.21 )

International Developed E
0.13

(0.01 )
0.12

Emerging Equity
0.06

(0.09 )
(0.02 )

Total
(0.50 )

(0.25 )
(0.74 )

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(1.0%)

(0.8%)

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

2015 2016

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 33% 32% 13.23% 15.43% (0.69%) (0.01%) (0.70%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 16.33% 15.47% 0.03% 0.04% 0.07%
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 35% 5.14% 5.19% (0.03%) (0.18%) (0.21%)
International Developed E18% 19% 7.23% 6.52% 0.13% (0.01%) 0.12%
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 18.81% 17.21% 0.06% (0.09%) (0.02%)

Total = + +9.72% 10.46% (0.50%) (0.25%) (0.74%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 28
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - September 30, 2016

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

(0.6%) (0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4% 0.6%

Large Cap Equity
(0.46 )

0.04
(0.42 )

Small Cap Equity
0.25

0.26

Domestic Fixed Income
0.02

(0.02 )

International Developed E
(0.01 )
(0.01 )
(0.02 )

Emerging Equity
0.06

0.02
0.08

Total
(0.13 )

0.03
(0.10 )

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.8%)

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

2013 2014 2015 2016

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 32% 31% 9.66% 11.16% (0.46%) 0.04% (0.42%)
Small Cap Equity 8% 7% 10.11% 6.71% 0.25% 0.00% 0.26%
Domestic Fixed Income 37% 38% 4.10% 4.03% 0.02% (0.02%) 0.00%
International Developed E18% 18% 0.46% 0.48% (0.01%) (0.01%) (0.02%)
Emerging Equity 5% 5% 1.13% (0.21%) 0.06% 0.02% 0.08%

Total = + +5.50% 5.59% (0.13%) 0.03% (0.10%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 29
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Total Fund
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Barclays Aggregate Index, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE Index, 8.0%
Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Fund’s portfolio posted a 3.49% return for the quarter placing it in the 42 percentile of the CAI Public Fund
Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) group for the quarter and in the 51 percentile for the last year.

Total Fund’s portfolio underperformed the Target by 0.37% for the quarter and underperformed the Target for the year
by 0.74%.

Performance vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 22-1/2
Year Years

(42)
(11)

(51)

(24)

(67)(63)

(29)

(52)
(25)

(58)

(6)

(51)

(22)
(55)

(6)

(72)

10th Percentile 3.88 11.12 6.94 11.01 9.18 6.35 7.29 8.61
25th Percentile 3.70 10.43 6.40 10.23 8.63 6.04 6.86 8.22

Median 3.45 9.73 5.82 9.20 8.13 5.53 6.56 7.90
75th Percentile 3.18 8.90 5.34 8.40 7.23 5.09 6.08 7.37
90th Percentile 2.74 7.88 4.23 7.69 6.68 4.42 5.86 6.14

Total Fund 3.49 9.72 5.50 9.86 8.62 6.56 6.93 8.86

Target 3.87 10.46 5.59 9.13 7.89 5.53 6.43 7.45

Relative Return vs Target

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Total Fund

CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10 12
1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

10%

11%

Total Fund

Target

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 30
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Asset Class Rankings

The charts below show the rankings of each asset class component of the Total Fund relative to appropriate comparative
databases. In the upper right corner of each graph is the weighted average of the rankings across the different asset classes.
The weights of the fund’s actual asset allocation are used to make this calculation. The weighted average ranking can be
viewed as a measure of the fund’s overall success in picking managers and structuring asset classes.

Total Asset Class Performance
One Year Ended September 30, 2016

R
e

tu
rn

s

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Plan- Plan- Intl Plan-
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed

(56)

(23)

(51)
(57)

(71)(71)

10th Percentile 16.42 14.44 15.19
25th Percentile 15.38 11.63 8.60

Median 14.24 9.60 6.27
75th Percentile 12.56 7.61 4.97
90th Percentile 11.12 5.73 3.73

Asset Class Composite 13.88 9.54 5.14

Composite Benchmark 15.49 9.11 5.19

Weighted
Ranking

60

Total Asset Class Performance
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

R
e
tu

rn
s

0%

5%

10%

15%

Plan- Plan- Intl Plan-
Dom Equity Equity  Dom Fixed

(16)
(36)

(74)(67)

(29)

(80)

10th Percentile 13.69 6.42 8.60
25th Percentile 13.31 5.60 6.59

Median 12.91 4.62 5.16
75th Percentile 12.36 3.72 4.32
90th Percentile 11.56 2.78 3.62

Asset Class Composite 13.54 3.75 5.96

Composite Benchmark 13.14 4.04 4.10

Weighted
Ranking

33

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 31
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Actual vs Target Historical Asset Allocation

The Historical asset allocation for a fund is by far the largest factor explaining its performance. The charts below show the
fund’s historical actual asset allocation, and the fund’s historical target asset allocation.

Actual Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

Target Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Emerging Markets

Small Cap Broad Eq

Large Cap Broad Eq

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.

 32
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of September 30, 2016, with
the distribution as of June 30, 2016. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net New
Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

September 30, 2016 June 30, 2016

Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value
Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $104,607,667 $(797,769) $3,915,754 $101,489,682

 Large Cap $82,347,424 $(537,564) $3,345,610 $79,539,377
Boston Partners 40,706,020 0 1,771,194 38,934,826
SSgA S&P 500 41,641,404 (537,564) 1,574,416 40,604,552

 Small Cap $22,260,244 $(260,205) $570,144 $21,950,305
Atlanta Capital 22,260,244 (260,205) 570,144 21,950,305

International Equity $58,436,598 $137,839 $3,919,697 $54,379,062

  International Developed Equity $44,757,846 $0 $2,915,987 $41,841,859
Brandes 9,292 0 66 9,226
JP Morgan 23,098,150 0 1,816,393 21,281,757
SSgA EAFE 9,248,743 (12,201,601) 899,468 20,550,876
AQR 12,401,661 12,201,601 200,060 -

  Emerging Equity $13,678,752 $137,839 $1,003,710 $12,537,203
DFA Emerging Markets 13,678,752 137,839 1,003,710 12,537,203

Fixed Income $88,590,711 $(277,837) $708,071 $88,160,477
Metropolitan West 88,590,711 (277,837) 708,071 88,160,477

Total Plan - Consolidated $251,634,977 $(937,767) $8,543,522 $244,029,222

 33
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Asset Growth

Ending September 30, 2016
($ Thousands)

Ending
Market
Value =

Beginning
Market
Value +

Net New
Investment +

Investment
Return

Total Plan
1/4 Year Ended 9/2016 251,654.1 244,029.2 (937.8) 8,562.7
1/4 Year Ended 6/2016 244,029.2 240,502.3 (684.5) 4,211.5
1/4 Year Ended 3/2016 240,502.3 238,289.7 (450.0) 2,662.6

1/4 Year Ended 12/2015 238,289.7 232,085.4 (816.4) 7,020.7
1/4 Year Ended 9/2015 232,085.4 246,970.5 (534.9) (14,350.2)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2015 246,970.5 247,920.3 (766.8) (183.0)
1/4 Year Ended 3/2015 247,920.3 243,017.9 (295.4) 5,197.8

1/4 Year Ended 12/2014 243,017.9 238,642.3 (1,001.3) 5,377.0
1/4 Year Ended 9/2014 238,642.3 241,859.7 (632.5) (2,584.9)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2014 241,859.7 235,305.8 (752.1) 7,306.0
1/4 Year Ended 3/2014 235,305.8 233,171.6 (781.9) 2,916.1

1/4 Year Ended 12/2013 233,171.6 222,071.8 (913.1) 12,012.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2013 222,071.8 212,659.5 (1,311.0) 10,723.3
1/4 Year Ended 6/2013 212,659.5 212,527.3 (1,129.6) 1,261.9
1/4 Year Ended 3/2013 212,527.3 202,131.0 (1,047.2) 11,443.5

1/4 Year Ended 12/2012 202,131.0 199,766.3 (1,446.2) 3,810.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2012 199,766.3 190,468.1 (1,283.9) 10,582.1
1/4 Year Ended 6/2012 190,468.1 196,081.9 (1,011.3) (4,602.5)
1/4 Year Ended 3/2012 196,081.9 180,738.3 (1,404.0) 16,747.5

1/4 Year Ended 12/2011 180,738.3 171,355.1 (1,398.2) 10,781.4
1/4 Year Ended 9/2016 251,654.1 244,029.2 (937.8) 8,562.7

 34
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended September
30, 2016. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended September 30, 2016

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 3.86% 13.88% 9.75% 16.98% 13.54%
  Custom Benchmark** 4.84% 15.48% 10.36% 16.31% 13.09%

 Large Cap Equity 4.21% 13.23% 9.66% 16.81% -
Boston Partners 4.55% 10.94% 8.10% 16.85% 12.62%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 3.48% 16.20% 9.70% 16.15% 12.34%
SSgA S&P 500 3.88% 15.50% 11.23% - -
  S&P 500 Index 3.85% 15.43% 11.16% 16.37% 13.17%

 Small Cap Equity 2.60% 16.33% 10.11% 17.59% -
Atlanta Capital 2.60% 16.33% 10.11% 17.59% -
  Russell 2000 Index 9.05% 15.47% 6.71% 15.82% 12.49%

International Equity 7.04% 9.54% 0.52% 6.77% 3.75%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 7.03% 8.85% 0.39% 7.09% 4.03%

 International Developed Equity 6.79% 7.23% 0.46% - -
JP Morgan 8.53% 9.01% 0.64% 8.12% 5.12%
SSgA EAFE 6.48% 6.88% 0.77% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.43% 6.52% 0.48% 7.39% 4.24%

 Emerging Equity 8.09% 18.81% 1.13% - -
DFA Emerging Markets 8.09% 18.81% 1.13% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 9.15% 17.21% (0.21%) 3.39% 2.61%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.80% 5.14% 4.10% 4.32% 5.96%
Met West 0.80% 5.14% 4.10% 4.32% 5.96%
  BC Aggregate Index 0.46% 5.19% 4.03% 3.08% 4.10%

Total Plan 3.49% 9.72% 5.50% 9.86% 8.62%
  Target* 3.87% 10.46% 5.59% 9.13% 7.89%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell
2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000
*** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013 when it becomes 78.261% MSCI EAFE,
 21.739% MSCI Emerging Markets

 35
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended September
30, 2016. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended September 30, 2016

Last Last Last Last
 10  15  20 22-1/2

Years Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 8.35% 7.97% 7.79% -
  Custom Benchmark** 7.25% 7.60% 8.01% 9.36%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 5.85% 7.46% 8.49% 9.64%
  S&P 500 Index 7.24% 7.15% 7.91% 9.39%
  Russell 2000 Index 7.07% 9.26% 8.06% 8.87%

International Equity 1.63% 6.84% 9.05% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 1.82% 5.81% 4.29% 4.68%

Domestic Fixed Income 6.34% 5.87% 6.37% -
Met West 6.34% 5.87% - -
  BC Aggregate Index 4.79% 4.80% 5.60% 5.78%

Total Plan 6.56% 6.93% 7.68% 8.86%
  Target* 5.53% 6.43% 6.76% 7.45%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell
2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 36
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

12/2015-
9/2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Domestic Equity 7.75% 0.06% 10.85% 36.44% 19.19%
  Custom Benchmark** 8.54% 0.30% 12.05% 33.61% 16.08%

 Large Cap Equity 6.88% (1.17%) 12.81% 34.96% 21.29%
Boston Partners 5.87% (3.75%) 11.87% 37.52% 21.95%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 10.00% (3.83%) 13.45% 32.53% 17.51%
SSgA S&P 500 7.87% 1.46% 13.77% 32.36% -
  S&P 500 Index 7.84% 1.38% 13.69% 32.39% 16.00%

 Small Cap Equity 11.06% 5.14% 3.49% 41.51% 11.96%
Atlanta Capital 11.06% 5.14% 3.49% 41.51% 11.96%
  Russell 2000 Index 11.46% (4.41%) 4.89% 38.82% 16.35%

International Equity 5.57% (4.17%) (3.72%) 16.66% 17.28%

 International Developed Equity 2.30% (1.17%) (4.41%) 20.27% -
JP Morgan 3.92% (1.75%) (4.28%) 18.12% 21.23%
SSgA EAFE 2.06% (0.56%) (4.55%) 22.80% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 1.73% (0.81%) (4.90%) 22.78% 17.32%

 Emerging Equity 18.87% (14.33%) (0.28%) - -
DFA Emerging Markets 18.87% (14.33%) (0.28%) - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 16.36% (14.60%) (1.82%) (2.27%) 18.63%

Domestic Fixed Income 5.50% 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%) 9.48%
Met West 5.50% 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%) 9.48%
  BC Aggregate Index 5.80% 0.55% 5.97% (2.02%) 4.21%

Total Plan 6.50% (0.97%) 5.61% 17.71% 14.80%
  Target* 6.91% (0.69%) 5.84% 16.00% 11.68%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell
2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 37
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Sponsor’s investment managersover various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black.Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset classrepresents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Domestic Equity 2.08% 15.93% 32.93% (36.27%) 6.46%
  Custom Benchmark** 0.97% 17.25% 26.65% (36.35%) 4.14%
Boston Partners 1.27% 13.61% 27.06% (32.69%) 4.02%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 0.39% 15.51% 19.69% (36.85%) (0.17%)
  S&P 500 Index 2.11% 15.06% 26.47% (37.00%) 5.49%
  Russell 2000 Index (4.18%) 26.85% 27.17% (33.79%) (1.57%)

International Equity (10.64%) 6.51% 28.99% (39.41%) 7.68%
  MSCI EAFE Index (12.14%) 7.75% 31.78% (43.38%) 11.17%

Domestic Fixed Income 6.10% 12.52% 19.88% (3.11%) 7.50%
Met West 6.10% 12.52% 19.88% (3.11%) 7.50%
  BC Aggregate Index 7.84% 6.54% 5.93% 5.24% 6.97%

Total Plan 1.22% 12.70% 26.91% (23.45%) 7.29%
  Target* 1.52% 11.85% 20.02% (23.33%) 6.92%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell
2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Custom Benchmark = 81% S&P500, 19% Russell 2000

 38
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended September
30, 2016. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended September 30, 2016

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Net of Fee Returns

Domestic Equity 3.76% - - - -
Large Cap Equity 4.13% - - - -

Boston Partners 4.41% 10.34% 7.51% 16.24% 12.08%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 3.48% 16.20% 9.70% 16.15% 12.34%
SSgA S&P 500 3.87% 15.45% 11.17% - -
  S&P 500 Index 3.85% 15.43% 11.16% 16.37% 13.17%

Small Cap Equity 2.39% - - - -

Atlanta Capital 2.39% 15.41% 9.24% 16.70% -
  Russell 2000 Index 9.05% 15.47% 6.71% 15.82% 12.49%

International Equity 6.91% - - - -
International Developed Equity 6.64% - - - -

JP Morgan 8.35% 8.26% 0.11% 7.48% 4.47%
SSgA EAFE 6.45% 6.77% 0.66% - -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.43% 6.52% 0.48% 7.39% 4.24%

Emerging Equity 7.92% - - - -

DFA Emerging Markets 7.92% 18.08% 0.50% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Idx 9.15% 17.21% (0.21%) 3.39% 2.61%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.73% - - - -

Met West 0.73% 4.85% 3.81% 4.03% 5.67%
  BC Aggregate Index 0.46% 5.19% 4.03% 3.08% 4.10%

Total Plan 3.40% 9.33% 5.14% 9.45% 8.17%
  Target* 3.87% 10.46% 5.59% 9.13% 7.89%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% BB Barclays Aggregate Idx, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 19.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell
2000 Index and 6.0% MSCI EM Gross.
** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013 when it becomes 78.261% MSCI EAFE,
 21.739% MSCI Emerging Markets

 39
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

Domestic Equity



Domestic Equity
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
The Custom Benchmark consists of 81.0% S&P 500 index and 19.0% Russell 2000 Index.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Domestic Equity’s portfolio posted a 3.86% return for the quarter placing it in the 87 percentile of the Fund Spnsr-
Domestic Equity group for the quarter and in the 56 percentile for the last year.

Domestic Equity’s portfolio underperformed the Custom Benchmark by 0.98% for the quarter and underperformed the
Custom Benchmark for the year by 1.59%.

Performance vs Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 6-1/4 Years

B(75)
A(87)

(55)

B(36)

A(56)

(23)

B(22)
A(49)

(26)

A(8)
B(29)(31)

A(14)
B(27)(33)

10th Percentile 5.96 16.42 10.83 16.87 15.37
25th Percentile 5.52 15.38 10.37 16.41 15.01

Median 4.97 14.24 9.71 15.88 14.57
75th Percentile 4.40 12.56 8.83 15.23 13.98
90th Percentile 3.75 11.12 7.87 14.47 13.10

Domestic Equity A 3.86 13.88 9.75 16.98 15.24
Russell 3000 Index B 4.40 14.96 10.44 16.36 14.97

Custom Benchmark 4.84 15.48 10.36 16.31 14.86

Relative Return vs Custom Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Domestic Equity

Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)
Annualized Six and One-Quarter Year Risk vs Return

0 50 100 150
(120%)

(100%)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

Custom Benchmark

Russell 3000 Index

Domestic Equity

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 41
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Russell 3000 Index

*Domestic Equity

*Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

23.8% (94) 26.3% (102) 16.1% (90) 66.1% (286)

4.8% (76) 6.8% (84) 7.9% (82) 19.6% (242)

1.7% (10) 7.7% (26) 4.9% (15) 14.3% (51)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

30.4% (180) 40.7% (212) 28.9% (187) 100.0% (579)

24.3% (94) 29.2% (101) 20.2% (96) 73.8% (291)

4.6% (143) 6.3% (217) 6.8% (225) 17.7% (585)

2.2% (346) 3.1% (459) 2.2% (365) 7.5% (1170)

0.3% (303) 0.4% (377) 0.3% (198) 1.0% (878)

31.5% (886) 39.0% (1154) 29.5% (884) 100.0% (2924)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

30.4%

(180)

31.5%

(886)
40.7%

(212)

39.0%

(1154)

28.9%

(187)

29.5%

(884)

Bar #1=*Domestic Equity (Combined Z: -0.11 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.09)

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.02)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

1.7 2.4

11.4
12.6

6.8
8.8 7.9

6.7

17.7

13.4 13.8 14.2 13.5

10.3

1.8
3.3

5.0
3.3

1.6

4.3

18.7
20.7

Bar #1=*Domestic Equity

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 42
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
For Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

22.6% (71) 26.2% (87) 20.2% (79) 69.0% (237)

4.6% (67) 6.6% (68) 6.0% (50) 17.2% (185)

1.6% (9) 7.2% (26) 4.6% (16) 13.4% (51)

0.1% (0) 0.2% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.3% (1)

29.0% (147) 40.2% (182) 30.8% (145) 100.0% (474)

23.7% (87) 26.1% (107) 23.5% (104) 73.3% (298)

5.4% (174) 6.2% (214) 6.5% (209) 18.1% (597)

2.3% (344) 3.0% (463) 2.4% (387) 7.6% (1194)

0.4% (303) 0.4% (353) 0.3% (210) 1.1% (866)

31.7% (908) 35.7% (1137) 32.6% (910) 100.0% (2955)

*Domestic Equity Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

*Domestic Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 43
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Large Cap
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Large Cap’s portfolio posted a 4.21% return for the quarter placing it in the 58 percentile of the CAI Large Capitalization
group for the quarter and in the 39 percentile for the last year.

Large Cap’s portfolio outperformed the S&P 500 Index by 0.36% for the quarter and underperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 2.20%.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 6-1/4 Years

(58)
(66)

(39)

(14)

(60)

(28)

(30)
(44)

(49)
(39)

10th Percentile 6.90 16.19 12.64 17.67 16.51
25th Percentile 5.60 14.45 11.26 17.03 15.52

Median 4.51 12.15 10.05 16.04 14.71
75th Percentile 3.41 10.59 8.95 15.12 13.78
90th Percentile 2.05 8.32 7.95 14.19 12.84

Large Cap 4.21 13.23 9.66 16.81 14.74

S&P 500 Index 3.85 15.43 11.16 16.37 15.06

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Large Cap

CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)
Annualized Six and One-Quarter Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20
8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

S&P 500 Index

Large Cap

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 44
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Capitalization
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

*Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

30.3% (94) 33.4% (102) 20.4% (90) 84.1% (286)

5.6% (75) 5.2% (78) 4.6% (73) 15.4% (226)

0.0% (4) 0.0% (2) 0.4% (3) 0.5% (9)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

36.0% (173) 38.6% (182) 25.5% (166) 100.0% (521)

29.3% (93) 35.2% (100) 24.0% (86) 88.5% (279)

3.7% (72) 3.8% (74) 3.9% (73) 11.4% (219)

0.1% (5) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (8)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.0% (170) 39.1% (176) 27.9% (160) 100.0% (506)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

36.0%

(173)

33.0%

(170) 38.6%

(182)

39.1%

(176)

25.5%

(166)
27.9%

(160)

Bar #1=*Large Cap (Combined Z: -0.19 Growth Z: -0.02 Value Z: 0.17)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

2.1 2.6

10.1
12.3

6.5

9.9 9.7

7.3

18.0

12.8

15.5 14.7

10.3 9.8

2.3
3.3

5.0
2.9

1.7
3.1

18.8

21.2

Bar #1=*Large Cap

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 45
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
For Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Capitalization
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*Large Cap
S&P 500 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

28.3% (70) 33.1% (87) 25.0% (78) 86.4% (235)

5.0% (65) 4.9% (61) 3.2% (42) 13.1% (168)

0.2% (4) 0.2% (2) 0.1% (1) 0.5% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.5% (139) 38.2% (150) 28.3% (121) 100.0% (410)

29.2% (86) 31.9% (104) 28.1% (93) 89.1% (283)

3.9% (81) 3.8% (76) 3.1% (54) 10.8% (211)

0.1% (4) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (7)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.1% (171) 35.7% (182) 31.2% (148) 100.0% (501)

*Large Cap Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Micro-Core

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

*Large Cap Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 46
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
SSGA believes that their passive investment strategy can provide market-like returns with minimal transaction costs.
Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio posted a 3.88% return for the
quarter placing it in the 65 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Core group for the quarter and in the 16 percentile for the
last year.

SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio outperformed the S&P 500 Index
by 0.03% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 0.07%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $40,604,552

Net New Investment $-537,564

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,574,416

Ending Market Value $41,641,404

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 4-1/4 Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(65)(65)

(16)(16)

(29)(31)

(46)(46)

(42)(44)

(40)(43)

10th Percentile 6.62 16.88 11.97 15.44 17.52 14.35
25th Percentile 5.50 14.82 11.33 14.70 16.98 13.73

Median 4.55 12.77 10.64 13.81 16.13 12.92
75th Percentile 3.30 10.67 9.43 12.92 15.17 11.79
90th Percentile 1.87 9.21 8.38 12.00 14.21 11.19

SSgA S&P 500 3.88 15.50 11.23 14.02 16.42 13.23

S&P 500 Index 3.85 15.43 11.16 13.97 16.37 13.17

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.04%)

(0.02%)

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

0.08%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

SSgA S&P 500

CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
9%

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

SSgA S&P 500 S&P 500 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 47
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)

(50%)

(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(17)(17)
(48)(51)

(47)(48)

(77)(77)

(48)(48)

(35)(36)

(42)(42)

(50)(50)

(64)(65)

10th Percentile 8.77 4.08 16.01 37.59 18.39 6.19 18.65 34.96 (31.85)
25th Percentile 7.52 2.99 15.13 35.87 17.06 4.37 16.40 32.58 (34.26)

Median 5.71 1.41 13.63 34.49 15.89 1.46 14.21 26.51 (36.36)
75th Percentile 4.81 (1.10) 12.82 32.62 14.42 (1.56) 13.41 23.00 (37.90)
90th Percentile 3.99 (2.41) 11.17 31.15 11.41 (3.63) 10.96 21.05 (40.00)

SSgA S&P 500 7.87 1.46 13.77 32.36 16.07 2.14 15.14 26.57 (36.93)

S&P 500 Index 7.84 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

SSgA S&P 500 CAI Large Cap Core

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(39)

(36)

10th Percentile 1.28 14.50
25th Percentile 0.37 13.42

Median (0.33) 12.69
75th Percentile (1.75) 11.20
90th Percentile (2.50) 10.44

SSgA S&P 500 0.05 13.12

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(1)

(31)
(1)

10th Percentile 0.57 1.10 0.48
25th Percentile 0.25 1.03 0.22

Median (0.17) 0.97 (0.06)
75th Percentile (0.65) 0.85 (0.45)
90th Percentile (1.04) 0.79 (0.58)

SSgA S&P 500 1.49 1.01 1.30

 48
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(48)
(51)

(39)
(36)

(43)(43)

(54)(54)

(27)(28)

(58)(58)

10th Percentile 107.67 18.87 3.09 18.52 2.27 0.22
25th Percentile 92.99 17.76 2.86 15.99 2.13 0.11

Median 79.09 16.38 2.67 13.18 1.94 (0.00)
75th Percentile 63.37 15.46 2.42 10.99 1.78 (0.14)
90th Percentile 33.66 14.80 1.90 10.09 1.66 (0.26)

*SSgA S&P 500 80.13 16.89 2.72 12.57 2.12 (0.05)

S&P 500 Index 78.83 16.98 2.72 12.52 2.11 (0.04)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Information Technology
21.6

21.2
22.5

Health Care
14.5
14.7

15.7

Financials
12.9
12.8
13.0

Consumer Discretionary
12.2

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

12.5
13.3

Industrials
9.9
9.7
10.1

Consumer Staples
9.9
9.9
9.6

Energy
7.2
7.3

7.0

Utilities
3.2
3.3

2.0

Real Estate
3.0
3.1

2.0

Materials
2.8
2.9
2.7

Telecommunications
2.6
2.6

2.2

*SSgA S&P 500 S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Core

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.08 sectors

Index 3.11 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(5)

10th Percentile 198 40
25th Percentile 137 29

Median 80 21
75th Percentile 53 17
90th Percentile 40 15

*SSgA S&P 500 505 54

S&P 500 Index 507 55

Diversification Ratio
Manager 11%

Index 11%

Style Median 27%

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 49
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA S&P 500
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Core
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*SSgA S&P 500

S&P 500 Index

*SSgA S&P 500

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

29.5% (93) 35.6% (101) 23.6% (84) 88.7% (278)

3.6% (71) 3.8% (73) 3.8% (71) 11.2% (215)

0.1% (4) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (6)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.2% (168) 39.4% (176) 27.4% (155) 100.0% (499)

29.3% (93) 35.2% (100) 24.0% (86) 88.5% (279)

3.7% (72) 3.8% (74) 3.9% (73) 11.4% (219)

0.1% (5) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (8)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.0% (170) 39.1% (176) 27.9% (160) 100.0% (506)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

33.2%

(168)

33.0%

(170) 39.4%

(176)

39.1%

(176)

27.4%

(155)

27.9%

(160)

Bar #1=*SSgA S&P 500 (Combined Z: -0.05 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.04)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

2.7 2.6

12.3 12.3

9.9 9.9

7.2 7.3

13.0 12.8
14.6 14.7

9.9 9.8

3.2 3.3 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.1

21.4 21.2

Bar #1=*SSgA S&P 500

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 50
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
Boston Partners attempts to implement a disciplined investment process designed to find undervalued securities issued by
companies with sound fundamentals and positive business momentum. Boston Partners was funded 6/27/05. The first full
quarter for this portfolio is 3rd quarter 2005.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Boston Partners’s portfolio posted a 4.55% return for the
quarter placing it in the 29 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Value group for the quarter and in the 74 percentile for the
last year.

Boston Partners’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 1000
Value Index by 1.07% for the quarter and underperformed
the Russell 1000 Value Index for the year by 5.25%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $38,934,826

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,771,194

Ending Market Value $40,706,020

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 11-1/4
Year Years

A(29)
B(48)(64)

B(20)

A(74)

(16)

B(6)

A(75)

(33)

A(21)
B(36)(42)

B(19)
A(29)(41)

A(14)
B(26)

(74)

A(11)
B(38)

(70)

10th Percentile 5.87 17.73 10.91 17.50 13.48 8.04 8.87
25th Percentile 4.81 15.12 9.91 16.63 12.87 7.29 8.21

Median 3.78 13.71 8.99 15.88 12.20 6.63 7.46
75th Percentile 3.20 10.83 8.10 15.14 11.19 5.80 6.71
90th Percentile 2.03 9.91 7.08 14.05 10.61 4.74 5.50

Boston Partners A 4.55 10.94 8.10 16.85 12.75 7.92 8.80
S&P 500 Index B 3.85 15.43 11.16 16.37 13.17 7.24 7.72

Russell 1000
Value Index 3.48 16.20 9.70 16.15 12.34 5.85 6.83

Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Boston Partners

CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
7%

8%

9%

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 51
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

B(46)
A(73)

17
B(3)
A(68)70

B(27)
A(62)

31

A(20)
B(75)71

A(5)
B(59)35

B(32)
A(42)53

B(35)
A(44)

28

A(24)
B(31)75

A(9)
B(63)61

B(16)
A(28)61

10th Percentile 10.96 0.42 15.03 40.19 21.13 4.62 18.13 34.50 (32.84) 6.97
25th Percentile 9.18 (1.15) 13.73 36.85 19.12 2.42 16.01 26.82 (34.74) 4.19

Median 7.61 (2.56) 12.54 34.59 16.78 0.61 14.27 22.37 (35.88) 1.12
75th Percentile 5.79 (4.58) 11.36 32.38 15.08 (2.48) 12.55 19.65 (38.61) (1.81)
90th Percentile 4.30 (6.38) 8.98 30.80 12.71 (5.19) 11.75 15.46 (44.92) (6.22)

Boston Partners A 5.87 (3.75) 11.87 37.52 21.95 1.27 14.54 27.06 (32.69) 4.02
S&P 500 Index B 7.84 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00) 5.49

Russell 1000
Value Index 10.00 (3.83) 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 (36.85) (0.17)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Boston Partners S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Value

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

B(13)
A(42)

B(13)
A(42)

10th Percentile 1.57 14.28
25th Percentile 0.68 12.98

Median (0.37) 11.78
75th Percentile (1.10) 10.98
90th Percentile (2.18) 9.89

Boston Partners A (0.06) 12.11
S&P 500 Index B 1.46 13.94

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

B(12)

A(40)

B(11)
A(44)

B(15)
A(30)

10th Percentile 0.66 1.02 0.35
25th Percentile 0.26 0.94 0.16

Median (0.12) 0.85 (0.06)
75th Percentile (0.42) 0.79 (0.30)
90th Percentile (0.76) 0.71 (0.55)

Boston Partners A (0.02) 0.87 0.12
S&P 500 Index B 0.62 1.01 0.30

 52
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
(5 )

(4 )

(3 )

(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

4

Boston Partners

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
(5 )

(4 )

(3 )

(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

4

5

Boston Partners

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Russell 1000 Value Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

05 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Boston Partners

CAI Large Cap Value

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(34)

(56)
(42) (43)

10th Percentile 15.43 3.38 3.86 4.40
25th Percentile 14.88 2.67 3.37 3.73

Median 14.07 2.06 2.74 2.81
75th Percentile 13.23 1.65 2.20 2.29
90th Percentile 12.46 1.20 1.92 1.92

Boston
Partners 14.46 1.93 2.93 2.94

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(38)

(56)

(34)

10th Percentile 1.10 0.98 1.14
25th Percentile 1.07 0.98 1.10

Median 1.02 0.96 1.04
75th Percentile 0.96 0.95 0.97
90th Percentile 0.89 0.92 0.92

Boston Partners 1.04 0.96 1.07

 53
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

B(21)

A(64)

(50)

B(10)

A(67)

(14)

B(3)

A(40)

(69)

A(14)

B(24)

(50)

B(84)

A(92)

(29)

B(1)

A(15)

(71)

10th Percentile 97.55 16.93 2.40 15.79 2.98 (0.27)
25th Percentile 71.09 15.70 2.18 12.23 2.63 (0.43)

Median 57.31 14.70 1.91 10.56 2.44 (0.58)
75th Percentile 41.25 14.01 1.75 8.61 2.21 (0.76)
90th Percentile 30.81 13.24 1.53 7.10 2.10 (0.91)

Boston Partners A 48.55 14.31 1.94 15.46 2.00 (0.33)
S&P 500 Index B 78.83 16.98 2.72 12.52 2.11 (0.04)

Russell 1000 Value Index 57.24 16.19 1.79 10.41 2.57 (0.72)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Financials
23.2
23.4
23.4

Health Care
16.4

11.5
13.9

Information Technology
16.0

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

10.1
13.3

Energy
12.4

13.5
12.2

Industrials
10.8

9.8
10.3

Consumer Discretionary
7.9

4.5
8.0

Materials
7.3

2.9
3.2

Consumer Staples
2.9

8.9
7.7

Telecommunications
1.6

3.9
2.9

Utilities
1.3

6.5
4.0

Real Estate
0.4

5.1
1.1

Boston Partners Russell 1000 Value Index

CAI Large Cap Value

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.65 sectors

Index 3.16 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(29)

(36)

10th Percentile 166 34
25th Percentile 100 25

Median 67 20
75th Percentile 47 16
90th Percentile 34 13

Boston Partners 88 23

Russell 1000
Value Index 687 43

Diversification Ratio
Manager 26%

Index 6%

Style Median 31%

 54
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

31.1% (23) 31.1% (21) 17.1% (17) 79.3% (61)

7.7% (11) 6.6% (11) 5.5% (6) 19.9% (28)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.8% (3) 0.8% (3)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

38.9% (34) 37.7% (32) 23.4% (26) 100.0% (92)

29.3% (93) 35.2% (100) 24.0% (86) 88.5% (279)

3.7% (72) 3.8% (74) 3.9% (73) 11.4% (219)

0.1% (5) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (8)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.0% (170) 39.1% (176) 27.9% (160) 100.0% (506)

47.6% (93) 26.5% (69) 4.1% (28) 78.1% (190)

9.0% (134) 7.4% (158) 3.2% (88) 19.7% (380)

1.1% (52) 0.8% (42) 0.3% (16) 2.2% (110)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (3) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (3)

57.8% (279) 34.7% (272) 7.5% (132) 100.0% (683)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Value Core Growth

38.9%

(34)

33.0%

(170)

57.8%

(279)

37.7%

(32)

39.1%

(176)

34.7%

(272)

23.4%

(26)
27.9%

(160)

7.5%

(132)

Bar #1=Boston Partners (Combined Z: -0.33 Growth Z: -0.04 Value Z: 0.30)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.03)

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index (Combined Z: -0.72 Growth Z: -0.30 Value Z: 0.42)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

1.6
2.6

3.9

7.9

12.3

4.6
2.9

9.9
8.9

12.4

7.3

13.5

23.2

12.8

23.5

16.4
14.7

11.5
10.8

9.8 9.5

1.3

3.3

6.5
7.3

2.9 2.9

0.4

3.1

5.1

16.0

21.2

10.1

Bar #1=Boston Partners

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index

Value

Core

Growth

 55
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
For Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value
Holdings for Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Russell 1000 Value Index

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

37.5% (24) 29.7% (23) 15.3% (14) 82.5% (61)

7.2% (11) 5.7% (9) 3.1% (5) 16.1% (25)

0.5% (2) 0.5% (2) 0.3% (1) 1.4% (5)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

45.3% (37) 36.0% (34) 18.8% (20) 100.0% (91)

31.4% (92) 28.8% (98) 28.8% (96) 89.0% (286)

4.2% (86) 3.7% (74) 3.0% (52) 10.9% (212)

0.0% (3) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (4)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

35.7% (181) 32.5% (173) 31.8% (148) 100.0% (502)

50.1% (88) 23.2% (72) 5.2% (31) 78.5% (191)

10.7% (166) 6.2% (138) 2.1% (56) 19.0% (360)

1.4% (62) 0.9% (50) 0.2% (14) 2.6% (126)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

62.2% (316) 30.3% (262) 7.5% (101) 100.0% (679)

Boston Partners Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2014 2015 2016

Micro-Core

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

Boston Partners Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

 56
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

201607 201608 201609

4.55%

3.48%

1.07%

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

201607 201608 201609

1.38%

(0.24%)
(0.07%)

1.07%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.12% 1.73% 4.57% (1.27)% 0.05% 0.02% -

Miscellaneous 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -

Consumer Discretionary 8.55% 4.76% 3.73% 6.02% 0.13% (0.22)% -

Consumer Staples 2.53% 8.94% 3.34% 0.09% 0.23% 0.07% -

Energy 12.17% 13.13% 1.74% 2.25% 0.05% (0.07)% -

Financials 22.95% 26.59% 6.53% 5.05% (0.22)% 0.34% -

Health Care 17.18% 11.46% (1.84)% 0.98% (0.12)% (0.51)% -

Industrials 10.58% 9.84% 4.56% 5.40% 0.03% (0.10)% -

Information Technology 14.54% 9.73% 13.95% 13.19% 0.45% 0.09% -

Materials 7.98% 2.87% 5.42% 4.61% 0.07% 0.05% -

Telecommunications 2.17% 4.11% (6.03)% (4.84)% 0.17% (0.03)% -

Utilities 1.22% 6.83% 3.89% (5.72)% 0.54% 0.12% -

Non Equity 2.53% 0.00% - - - - (0.07)%

Total - - 4.55% 3.48% 1.38% (0.24)% (0.07)%

Manager Return

4.55%
=

Index Return

3.48%

Sector Concentration

1.38%

Security Selection

(0.24%)

Asset Allocation

(0.07%)

 57
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended September 30, 2016

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

201512 201603 201606 201609

10.94%

16.20%

(5.25%)

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(7%)

(6%)

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

201512 201603 201606 201609

(0.17%)

(4.77%)

(0.31%)

(5.25%)

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Year Ended September 30, 2016

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.03% 0.43% 4.57% (1.27)% 0.06% 0.02% -

Miscellaneous 0.00% 0.00% (0.06)% 0.00% (0.00)% 0.00% -

Consumer Discretionary 9.42% 5.10% 3.99% 5.06% (0.53)% (0.08)% -

Consumer Staples 2.20% 7.61% 29.71% 18.65% (0.12)% 0.27% -

Energy 11.26% 12.97% 10.99% 18.16% (0.14)% (0.79)% -

Financials 27.84% 28.62% 8.54% 7.02% (0.20)% 0.37% -

Health Care 16.61% 11.72% 8.75% 17.07% (0.02)% (1.41)% -

Industrials 9.51% 10.11% 6.37% 25.62% (0.04)% (1.69)% -

Information Technology 13.71% 10.80% 21.30% 29.00% 0.48% (0.93)% -

Materials 6.13% 2.77% 16.25% 30.37% 0.42% (0.69)% -

Telecommunications 2.16% 3.28% 24.62% 26.07% 0.03% (0.05)% -

Utilities 1.12% 6.58% 36.52% 18.08% (0.12)% 0.20% -

Non Equity 2.79% 0.00% - - - - (0.31)%

Total - - 10.94% 16.20% (0.17)% (4.77)% (0.31)%

Manager Return

10.94%
=

Index Return

16.20%

Sector Concentration

(0.17%)

Security Selection

(4.77%)

Asset Allocation

(0.31%)

 58
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Ebay Information Technology 1.22% 92 - 40.54% - 0.41% 0.37%

Bank Amer Corp Financials 2.44% 92 1.45% 18.35% 18.48% 0.40% 0.12%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.25% 92 2.26% 8.00% 8.00% 0.33% 0.09%

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Co ComInformation Technology 1.10% 92 0.34% 24.52% 24.52% 0.25% 0.15%

Merck & Co Inc Health Care 2.57% 92 1.59% 9.14% 9.14% 0.23% 0.05%

Eog Resources Energy 1.47% 92 0.40% 16.37% 16.16% 0.22% 0.09%

McKesson Corp Health Care 2.13% 92 - (10.52)% - (0.21)% (0.29)%

Alphabet Inc Cl A Information Technology 1.64% 92 - 13.63% - 0.20% 0.14%

General Dynamics Corp Industrials 1.78% 92 0.20% 11.43% 11.43% 0.20% 0.12%

Apple Inc Information Technology 1.02% 92 0.45% 18.62% 18.89% 0.18% 0.08%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Bank Amer Corp Financials 2.44% 92 1.45% 18.35% 18.48% 0.25% 0.12%

Exxon Mobil Corp Energy - - 3.60% - (6.08)% (0.23)% 0.36%

Intel Corp Information Technology - - 1.43% - 15.97% 0.22% (0.17)%

Qualcomm Inc Information Technology - - 0.67% - 28.95% 0.18% (0.15)%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.25% 92 2.26% 8.00% 8.00% 0.17% 0.09%

Cisco Sys Inc Information Technology - - 1.46% - 11.58% 0.16% (0.11)%

Procter & Gamble Co Consumer Staples - - 2.21% - 6.83% 0.15% (0.07)%

Citigroup Inc Financials 1.61% 92 1.27% 11.73% 11.82% 0.14% 0.03%

Merck & Co Inc Health Care 2.57% 92 1.59% 9.14% 9.14% 0.14% 0.05%

At&t Inc Telecommunications - - 2.52% - (4.97)% (0.12)% 0.21%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Ebay Information Technology 1.22% 92 - 40.54% - 0.41% 0.37%

Exxon Mobil Corp Energy - - 3.60% - (6.08)% - 0.36%

At&t Inc Telecommunications - - 2.52% - (4.97)% - 0.21%

General Electric Co Industrials - - 2.24% - (5.18)% - 0.20%

Wells Fargo & Co New Financials - - 2.14% - (5.70)% - 0.19%

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Co ComInformation Technology 1.10% 92 0.34% 24.52% 24.52% 0.25% 0.15%

Alphabet Inc Cl A Information Technology 1.64% 92 - 13.63% - 0.20% 0.14%

Flextronics Intl Ltd Ord Information Technology 1.11% 92 - 15.44% - 0.16% 0.13%

Pfizer Health Care - - 1.92% - (2.99)% - 0.12%

General Dynamics Corp Industrials 1.78% 92 0.20% 11.43% 11.43% 0.20% 0.12%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

McKesson Corp Health Care 2.13% 92 - (10.52)% - (0.21)% (0.29)%

Intel Corp Information Technology - - 1.43% - 15.97% - (0.17)%

Qualcomm Inc Information Technology - - 0.67% - 28.95% - (0.15)%

Express Scripts Hldg Co Health Care 1.28% 92 0.05% (6.95)% (6.95)% (0.09)% (0.13)%

Sanofi Sponsored Adr Health Care 1.01% 92 - (8.70)% - (0.09)% (0.12)%

Gilead Sciences Health Care 1.47% 92 - (5.06)% - (0.09)% (0.12)%

Cisco Sys Inc Information Technology - - 1.46% - 11.58% - (0.11)%

Johnson & Johnson Health Care 4.74% 92 2.67% (1.97)% (1.96)% (0.09)% (0.11)%

Verizon Communications Inc Telecommunications 2.12% 92 1.07% (6.03)% (5.98)% (0.13)% (0.11)%

Barrick Gold Corp Materials 0.48% 92 - (16.55)% - (0.09)% (0.10)%

 59
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
Atlanta believes that high quality companies produce consistently increasing earnings and dividends, thereby providing
attractive returns with moderate risk over the long-term. Performance prior to inception on 6/30/2010 is linked to the
composite strategy.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Atlanta Capital’s portfolio posted a 2.60% return for the
quarter placing it in the 100 percentile of the CAI Small
Capitalization group for the quarter and in the 28 percentile
for the last year.

Atlanta Capital’s portfolio underperformed the Russell 2000
Index by 6.45% for the quarter and outperformed the Russell
2000 Index for the year by 0.86%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $21,950,305

Net New Investment $-260,205

Investment Gains/(Losses) $570,144

Ending Market Value $22,260,244

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 6-1/4 Last 7 Years
Year Years

(100)

(25)

(28)
(35)

(16)

(61)

(36)

(65)

(12)

(77)

(14)

(79)

10th Percentile 10.78 19.80 10.79 19.98 17.51 16.45
25th Percentile 9.04 16.74 9.12 18.44 16.42 15.22

Median 7.69 13.49 7.28 16.74 15.19 14.02
75th Percentile 6.44 8.78 5.16 14.76 13.86 12.69
90th Percentile 5.41 5.40 2.37 13.29 12.48 11.28

Atlanta Capital 2.60 16.33 10.11 17.59 17.23 15.83

Russell 2000 Index 9.05 15.47 6.71 15.82 13.76 12.49

Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Atlanta Capital

CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28
6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 60
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

3935
4

70
6958

5669

8151 1
67

6764 6969

1
29

34
60

10th Percentile 14.86 3.80 10.36 52.61 22.77 5.11 35.51 49.83 (29.60) 20.21
25th Percentile 13.00 (0.08) 8.22 46.90 19.49 1.82 31.51 44.51 (33.01) 10.32

Median 9.94 (2.32) 5.65 42.33 16.47 (1.75) 28.25 33.93 (37.46) 1.39
75th Percentile 6.63 (5.10) 2.28 37.61 13.28 (5.70) 24.96 25.06 (42.30) (5.47)
90th Percentile 3.45 (8.08) (2.43) 34.67 10.51 (8.62) 22.04 17.68 (46.47) (11.41)

Atlanta Capital 11.06 5.14 3.49 41.51 11.96 10.81 26.10 27.17 (19.41) 6.76

Russell
2000 Index 11.46 (4.41) 4.89 38.82 16.35 (4.18) 26.85 27.17 (33.79) (1.57)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Atlanta Capital CAI Small Capitalization

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

25

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(4)

(3)

10th Percentile 4.13 17.09
25th Percentile 2.88 15.49

Median 1.83 14.24
75th Percentile 0.33 12.62
90th Percentile (1.05) 11.14

Atlanta Capital 5.20 19.41

(0.6)

(0.4)

(0.2)

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(7)
(3)

(24)

10th Percentile 1.04 0.95 0.88
25th Percentile 0.74 0.87 0.55

Median 0.41 0.80 0.30
75th Percentile 0.07 0.70 0.04
90th Percentile (0.24) 0.62 (0.23)

Atlanta Capital 1.22 1.08 0.56

 61
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

Atlanta Capital

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14
(5 )

0

5

10

Atlanta Capital

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Russell 2000 Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Atlanta Capital

CAI Small Capitalization

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(96)

(39)
(51)

(31)

10th Percentile 19.67 4.80 7.05 7.37
25th Percentile 18.51 3.66 5.46 5.65

Median 17.50 2.82 4.29 4.57
75th Percentile 16.58 1.97 3.46 3.66
90th Percentile 15.71 1.47 2.82 2.82

Atlanta Capital 14.62 3.17 4.27 5.32

0.75

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(97)

(69)

(96)

10th Percentile 1.09 0.97 1.14
25th Percentile 1.04 0.96 1.07

Median 0.99 0.94 1.01
75th Percentile 0.93 0.91 0.96
90th Percentile 0.87 0.86 0.91

Atlanta Capital 0.81 0.92 0.85

 62
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

(3)

(68)

(39)

(27)
(33)

(60)

(90)

(55) (56)

(26)

(42)

(56)

10th Percentile 2.74 36.17 3.97 20.37 1.95 0.70
25th Percentile 2.32 24.99 3.37 17.55 1.49 0.54

Median 2.04 19.13 2.19 13.91 1.17 0.03
75th Percentile 1.62 16.11 1.70 11.13 0.53 (0.33)
90th Percentile 1.14 14.57 1.46 9.14 0.38 (0.55)

Atlanta Capital 3.08 21.70 2.93 9.17 1.01 0.21

Russell 2000 Index 1.75 24.26 1.96 13.47 1.47 (0.08)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Industrials
25.4

14.1
16.7

Information Technology
18.6

18.0
21.5

Financials
16.6

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

17.4
16.6

Consumer Discretionary
16.2

12.7
13.7

Consumer Staples
8.0

3.0
2.8

Health Care
7.8

14.2
15.7

Materials
5.0
4.7
4.4

Energy
1.4

3.2
3.1

Real Estate
1.1

8.2
4.6

Utilities 3.8
1.1

Telecommunications 0.7

Atlanta Capital Russell 2000 Index CAI Small Capitalization

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.36 sectors

Index 3.03 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(84)

(80)

10th Percentile 310 79
25th Percentile 150 44

Median 96 31
75th Percentile 69 23
90th Percentile 49 16

Atlanta Capital 58 20

Russell 2000 Index 1961 368

Diversification Ratio
Manager 35%

Index 19%

Style Median 33%

 63
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Small Capitalization
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.9% (1) 12.8% (6) 20.1% (9) 34.8% (16)

8.0% (6) 35.8% (24) 21.5% (12) 65.2% (42)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.9% (7) 48.5% (30) 41.6% (21) 100.0% (58)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.1% (5) 2.7% (14) 3.1% (17) 6.9% (36)

21.6% (291) 33.5% (408) 24.7% (328) 79.8% (1027)

4.4% (303) 5.6% (374) 3.3% (197) 13.3% (874)

27.1% (599) 41.8% (796) 31.1% (542) 100.0% (1937)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Value Core Growth

9.9%

(7)

27.1%

(599)

48.5%

(30)

41.8%

(796)

41.6%

(21)

31.1%

(542)

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital (Combined Z: 0.21 Growth Z: 0.01 Value Z: -0.19)

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index (Combined Z: -0.08 Growth Z: -0.06 Value Z: 0.02)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU RAWMAT REALES TECH COMMUN PUBUTL

16.2

12.7

8.0

3.0
1.4

3.2

16.6 17.4

7.8

14.1

25.4

14.2

5.0 4.6

1.1

8.2

18.6 18.0

0.0 0.8 0.0

3.8

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 64
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
For Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Small Capitalization
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

2.9% (2) 13.3% (7) 17.5% (8) 33.7% (17)

7.5% (6) 34.3% (23) 23.2% (15) 65.0% (44)

0.4% (0) 0.8% (1) 0.1% (0) 1.3% (1)

10.8% (8) 48.4% (31) 40.7% (23) 100.0% (62)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.5% (7) 2.5% (13) 5.2% (25) 9.2% (45)

20.9% (283) 30.0% (405) 26.5% (358) 77.4% (1046)

4.8% (302) 5.2% (352) 3.4% (209) 13.4% (863)

27.3% (592) 37.7% (770) 35.1% (592) 100.0% (1954)

Atlanta Capital Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Atlanta Capital Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

 65
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

201607 201608 201609

2.60%

9.05%

(6.45%)

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(8%)

(7%)

(6%)

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

201607 201608 201609

0.37%

(6.73%)

(0.08%)

(6.45%)

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.35% 2.84% 3.46% (2.68)% 0.30% 0.07% -

Consumer Discretionary 16.31% 13.49% (0.43)% 4.00% (0.17)% (0.73)% -

Consumer Staples 8.39% 3.10% 0.05% 2.25% (0.35)% (0.19)% -

Energy 1.40% 2.94% (4.60)% 10.55% (0.03)% (0.22)% -

Financials 17.27% 23.02% 4.42% 8.21% (0.06)% (0.65)% -

Health Care 8.10% 13.64% 4.26% 13.64% (0.22)% (0.78)% -

Industrials 24.85% 14.05% 3.12% 9.25% 0.04% (1.54)% -

Information Technology 18.67% 17.34% 2.34% 16.26% 0.09% (2.54)% -

Materials 4.64% 4.65% 8.86% 12.24% 0.01% (0.15)% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.89% 0.00% (5.76)% 0.15% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 4.05% 0.00% (5.12)% 0.61% 0.00% -

Non Equity 3.15% 0.00% - - - - (0.08)%

Total - - 2.60% 9.05% 0.37% (6.73)% (0.08)%

Manager Return

2.60%
=

Index Return

9.05%

Sector Concentration

0.37%

Security Selection

(6.73%)

Asset Allocation

(0.08%)

 66
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended September 30, 2016

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

201512 201603 201606 201609

16.33%
15.47%

0.86%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

201512 201603 201606 201609

1.70%

(0.39%)
(0.44%)

0.86%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Year Ended September 30, 2016

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.09% 0.71% 3.46% (2.68)% 0.33% 0.08% -

Consumer Discretionary 15.23% 13.73% 8.38% 1.27% (0.24)% 1.08% -

Consumer Staples 7.97% 3.40% 22.99% 18.83% 0.15% 0.31% -

Energy 1.46% 2.81% (4.57)% (0.05)% 0.26% (0.12)% -

Financials 17.51% 25.27% 11.32% 16.48% (0.21)% (0.90)% -

Health Care 8.19% 14.48% 31.58% 8.59% 0.67% 1.77% -

Industrials 24.08% 12.98% 18.84% 20.74% 0.68% (0.62)% -

Information Technology 20.81% 17.66% 16.36% 25.65% 0.25% (1.61)% -

Materials 4.68% 4.03% 29.37% 37.03% 0.18% (0.39)% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.89% 0.00% 20.09% (0.02)% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 4.04% 0.00% 24.66% (0.35)% 0.00% -

Non Equity 3.21% 0.00% - - - - (0.44)%

Total - - 16.33% 15.47% 1.70% (0.39)% (0.44)%

Manager Return

16.33%
=

Index Return

15.47%

Sector Concentration

1.70%

Security Selection

(0.39%)

Asset Allocation

(0.44%)

 67
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended September 30, 2016

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Wex Inc Information Technology 2.03% 92 - 21.90% - 0.42% 0.24%

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 3.69% 92 - (9.96)% - (0.39)% (0.72)%

Sally Beauty Hldgs Inc Consumer Discretionary 2.83% 92 - (12.68)% - (0.37)% (0.62)%

Exponent Inc Industrials 2.60% 92 0.08% (12.27)% (12.27)% (0.35)% (0.58)%

Balchem Corp Materials 0.98% 92 0.12% 29.97% 29.97% 0.27% 0.16%

Advisory Brd Co Industrials 1.13% 92 0.10% 26.42% 26.42% 0.27% 0.16%

Bio Rad Labs Inc Cl A Health Care 1.87% 92 - 14.54% - 0.27% 0.10%

Caseys General Stores Consumer Staples 3.16% 92 - (8.47)% - (0.26)% (0.54)%

Fair Isaac Corp Information Technology 2.68% 92 0.22% 10.26% 10.26% 0.26% 0.03%

Inter Parfums Inc Consumer Staples 1.80% 92 0.03% 13.49% 13.49% 0.22% 0.07%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Sarepta Therapeutics Inc Health Care - - 0.06% - 222.02% 0.11% (0.10)%

Cepheid Health Care - - 0.14% - 71.35% 0.09% (0.08)%

Chemours Co Com Materials - - 0.11% - 94.65% 0.08% (0.07)%

Novavax Inc Health Care - - 0.11% - (71.39)% (0.08)% 0.09%

Finisar Corp Information Technology - - 0.12% - 70.19% 0.08% (0.07)%

Advanced Micro Devices Inc Information Technology - - 0.25% - 34.44% 0.07% (0.05)%

Genworth Financial A Financials - - 0.10% - 92.25% 0.07% (0.06)%

Cavium Inc Information Technology - - 0.17% - 50.78% 0.07% (0.06)%

Intersil Hldg Corp Cl A Information Technology - - 0.13% - 63.24% 0.07% (0.06)%

Exelixis Inc Health Care - - 0.13% - 63.76% 0.07% (0.06)%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Wex Inc Information Technology 2.03% 92 - 21.90% - 0.42% 0.24%

Balchem Corp Materials 0.98% 92 0.12% 29.97% 29.97% 0.27% 0.16%

Advisory Brd Co Industrials 1.13% 92 0.10% 26.42% 26.42% 0.27% 0.16%

Power Integrations Inc Information Technology 0.84% 92 0.09% 26.16% 26.16% 0.20% 0.11%

Raven Inds Inc Industrials 0.97% 92 0.05% 22.45% 22.45% 0.19% 0.11%

Bio Rad Labs Inc Cl A Health Care 1.87% 92 - 14.54% - 0.27% 0.10%

Novavax Inc Health Care - - 0.11% - (71.39)% - 0.09%

Stepan Co Materials 0.80% 92 0.08% 22.39% 22.39% 0.16% 0.09%

Inter Parfums Inc Consumer Staples 1.80% 92 0.03% 13.49% 13.49% 0.22% 0.07%

Olin Corp Materials - - 0.22% - (16.60)% - 0.06%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 3.69% 92 - (9.96)% - (0.39)% (0.72)%

Sally Beauty Hldgs Inc Consumer Discretionary 2.83% 92 - (12.68)% - (0.37)% (0.62)%

Exponent Inc Industrials 2.60% 92 0.08% (12.27)% (12.27)% (0.35)% (0.58)%

Caseys General Stores Consumer Staples 3.16% 92 - (8.47)% - (0.26)% (0.54)%

Morningstar Inc Financials 3.20% 92 - (2.80)% - (0.09)% (0.37)%

Blackbaud Inc Information Technology 2.97% 92 0.19% (2.12)% (2.12)% (0.07)% (0.31)%

Choice Hotels Intl Inc Consumer Discretionary 2.10% 92 - (4.93)% - (0.11)% (0.29)%

Aptargroup Inc Materials 2.72% 92 - (1.88)% - (0.04)% (0.29)%

Monotype Imaging Holdings In Information Technology 0.92% 61 0.05% (15.20)% (9.78)% (0.16)% (0.28)%

Graco Inc Industrials 1.56% 92 - (5.93)% - (0.10)% (0.24)%

 68
Sacramento Regional Transit District



In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u
ity

International Equity



International Equity
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
International Equity’s portfolio posted a 7.04% return for the quarter placing it in the 41 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S.
Equity Style group for the quarter and in the 33 percentile for the last year.

International Equity’s portfolio outperformed the Custom International Benchmark by 0.02% for the quarter and
outperformed the Custom International Benchmark for the year by 0.69%.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 16-1/4
Year Years

A(41)
B(62)

(41)

A(33)

B(62)

(40)

A(80)
B(80)(80)

B(80)
A(88)

(84)

B(85)
A(90)

(88)

B(91)
A(94)(94)

A(51)

B(93)(93)

10th Percentile 8.96 13.33 4.21 10.80 7.92 5.64 6.80
25th Percentile 7.80 10.74 3.27 9.94 6.99 4.61 5.66

Median 6.77 7.94 2.16 8.75 5.97 3.20 4.72
75th Percentile 5.77 5.40 0.74 7.76 4.89 2.60 3.82
90th Percentile 4.47 3.92 (0.39) 6.57 3.90 1.86 2.90

International
Equity A 7.04 9.54 0.52 6.77 3.80 1.66 4.64
MSCI

EAFE Index B 6.43 6.52 0.48 7.39 4.24 1.82 2.66

Custom International
Benchmark 7.03 8.85 0.39 7.09 4.03 1.68 2.58

Relative Returns vs
Custom International Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.5%)

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

International Equity

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
0%

5%

10%

15%

Custom International Benchmark

MSCI EAFE Index

International Equity

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 70
Sacramento Regional Transit District



International Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)
(60%)
(40%)
(20%)

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

A(25)
B(65)

31 B(62)
A(86)84 A(48)

B(61)55

B(47)
A(85)

63 B(70)
A(70)70

A(42)
B(60)60

B(84)
A(88)

84

B(60)
A(76)

60

A(21)
B(52)52

B(64)
A(86)

64

10th Percentile 8.43 4.92 (0.30) 28.92 23.51 (6.44) 17.43 48.53 (36.56) 24.12
25th Percentile 5.67 2.71 (2.06) 26.07 21.64 (9.49) 15.06 41.35 (40.10) 18.89

Median 3.14 0.48 (3.88) 22.49 19.25 (11.24) 11.62 33.82 (43.20) 13.55
75th Percentile 0.80 (2.53) (5.71) 18.50 16.97 (13.94) 9.02 29.20 (46.54) 9.73
90th Percentile (0.55) (4.70) (7.81) 15.53 14.91 (16.62) 6.27 25.12 (49.29) 6.45

International
Equity A 5.57 (4.17) (3.72) 16.66 17.28 (10.64) 6.83 28.99 (39.41) 7.68
MSCI

EAFE Index B 1.73 (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17

Custom International
Benchmark 4.82 (3.91) (4.23) 20.46 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Custom International Benchmark

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

International Equity MSCI EAFE Index CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Custom International Benchmark
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

B(86)
A(89)

B(86)
A(89)

10th Percentile 4.01 8.37
25th Percentile 3.05 7.08

Median 1.91 5.94
75th Percentile 0.89 4.77
90th Percentile (0.24) 3.52

International
Equity A (0.15) 3.78

MSCI EAFE Index B 0.20 4.12

(0.4)

(0.2)

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

B(83)

A(90)

B(86)
A(88) B(81)

A(91)

10th Percentile 1.22 0.53 1.07
25th Percentile 0.92 0.45 0.88

Median 0.58 0.38 0.52
75th Percentile 0.30 0.31 0.26
90th Percentile (0.08) 0.23 (0.04)

International Equity A (0.09) 0.25 (0.14)
MSCI EAFE Index B 0.16 0.27 0.15

 71
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*International Equity

MSCI EAFE

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

12.8% (232) 10.6% (269) 20.7% (281) 44.0% (782)

0.0% (1) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (5)

8.2% (261) 8.8% (279) 11.5% (260) 28.5% (800)

8.4% (1601) 10.0% (1426) 9.1% (985) 27.5% (4012)

29.3% (2095) 29.4% (1976) 41.3% (1528) 100.0% (5599)

19.8% (128) 16.0% (143) 27.7% (186) 63.6% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.1% (135) 10.8% (156) 13.6% (179) 36.4% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

31.9% (263) 26.8% (299) 41.3% (365) 100.0% (927)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

29.3%

(2095)
31.9%

(263)

29.4%

(1976)

26.8%

(299)

41.3%

(1528)

41.3%

(365)

Bar #1=*International Equity (Combined Z: 0.02 Growth Z: 0.03 Value Z: 0.01)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/FM

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.0 0.0

3.2
5.3

14.3
12.1 11.4

12.7

4.0 4.8

15.6

19.0

10.2
11.3

13.6 14.4

0.0 0.0
1.6

3.6

8.1 7.4
5.8

4.0

12.1

5.5

Bar #1=*International Equity

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE

Value

Core

Growth

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 72
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
For Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

*International Equity

MSCI EAFE

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Six and 1/4 Years Ended September 30, 2016

17.9% (107) 18.4% (109) 20.9% (150) 57.1% (366)

0.1% (1) 0.2% (2) 0.1% (0) 0.4% (3)

8.0% (112) 9.0% (132) 9.4% (133) 26.5% (377)

4.8% (629) 7.0% (831) 4.2% (376) 16.0% (1836)

30.8% (849) 34.6% (1074) 34.6% (659) 100.0% (2582)

20.2% (133) 19.6% (128) 24.9% (194) 64.8% (455)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.3% (1) 0.3% (1)

10.4% (136) 12.6% (160) 11.9% (169) 34.8% (465)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

30.6% (269) 32.2% (288) 37.1% (364) 100.0% (921)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

*International Equity Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Emerging/FM-Growth

Emerging/FM-Core

Emerging/FM-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

N. America-Growth

N. America-Core

N. America-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

*International Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

*9/30/16 portfolio characteristics generated using most recently available holdings (6/30/16) modified based on a "buy-and-hold" assumption (repriced and

adjusted for corporate actions). Analysis is then done using current market and company financial data.

 73
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
International Equity VS MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of September 30, 2016. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
3.3

7.3

Austria
0.2
0.2

Belgium
1.4
1.4

Brazil
2.2

Chile
0.3

China
5.0

Colombia
0.1

Cyprus

Czech Republic

Denmark
1.1

1.8

Egypt

Finland
0.5

1.0

France
6.8

9.7

Germany
5.8

9.0

Greece
0.1

Hong Kong
3.7

3.5

Hungary
0.1

India
3.6

Indonesia
1.1

Ireland
0.1

0.5

Israel
0.6
0.7

Italy
1.1

1.9

Japan
19.6

23.8

Luxembourg

Malaysia
0.9

Mexico
1.0

Netherlands
2.3

3.3

New Zealand 0.2

Norway
0.4

0.6

Peru

Philippines
0.4

Poland
0.3

Portugal 0.1

Russia
0.3

Singapore
0.5

1.3

South Africa
2.4

South Korea
4.7

Spain
1.2

3.0

Sweden
1.4

2.8

Switzerland
7.4

9.0

Taiwan
4.1

Thailand
0.7

Turkey
0.4

Ukraine

United Kingdom
13.9

18.9

United States
1.0

Percent of Portfolio

International Equity MSCI EAFE

Index Rtns

7.91%

16.66%

5.00%

11.37%

(1.70%)

13.96%

2.76%

-

(0.37%)

(6.27%)

21.55%

7.42%

6.36%

10.01%

0.99%

11.92%

10.81%

5.92%

9.54%

7.42%

(1.97%)

2.21%

8.60%

-

(1.52%)

(2.20%)

9.11%

12.44%

6.28%

1.09%

(5.22%)

3.39%

6.28%

8.90%

(0.15%)

6.39%

10.97%

9.32%

7.48%

2.62%

12.35%

7.32%

(5.26%)

-

3.98%

5.42%

Manager Total Return: 7.04%

Index Total Return: 6.43%

 74
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
SSGA’s objective is to provide the most cost-effective implementation of passive investing with stringent risk control and
tracking requirements through a replication method. Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA EAFE’s portfolio posted a 6.48% return for the quarter
placing it in the 59 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S. Equity
Style group for the quarter and in the 58 percentile for the
last year.

SSgA EAFE’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE by
0.04% for the quarter and outperformed the MSCI EAFE for
the year by 0.37%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $20,550,876

Net New Investment $-12,201,601

Investment Gains/(Losses) $899,468

Ending Market Value $9,248,743

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 4-1/4 Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(59)(62)
(58)(62)

(75)(80)

(66)(69)
(77)(80)

(81)(85)

10th Percentile 8.96 13.33 4.21 10.27 10.80 7.92
25th Percentile 7.80 10.74 3.27 9.34 9.94 6.99

Median 6.77 7.94 2.16 8.07 8.75 5.97
75th Percentile 5.77 5.40 0.74 6.93 7.76 4.89
90th Percentile 4.47 3.92 (0.39) 6.16 6.57 3.90

SSgA EAFE 6.48 6.88 0.77 7.41 7.64 4.49

MSCI EAFE 6.43 6.52 0.48 7.17 7.39 4.24

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.20%)

(0.15%)

(0.10%)

(0.05%)

0.00%

0.05%

0.10%

0.15%

0.20%

0.25%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

SSgA EAFE

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
0%

5%

10%

15%

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 75
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(62)(65) (59)(62) (57)(61)

(47)(47) (68)(70)

(58)(60)

(83)(84)

(59)(60)

(49)(52)

10th Percentile 8.43 4.92 (0.30) 28.92 23.51 (6.44) 17.43 48.53 (36.56)
25th Percentile 5.67 2.71 (2.06) 26.07 21.64 (9.49) 15.06 41.35 (40.10)

Median 3.14 0.48 (3.88) 22.49 19.25 (11.24) 11.62 33.82 (43.20)
75th Percentile 0.80 (2.53) (5.71) 18.50 16.97 (13.94) 9.02 29.20 (46.54)
90th Percentile (0.55) (4.70) (7.81) 15.53 14.91 (16.62) 6.27 25.12 (49.29)

SSgA EAFE 2.06 (0.56) (4.55) 22.80 17.57 (11.91) 7.98 32.05 (43.15)

MSCI EAFE 1.73 (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

SSgA EAFE CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(84)

(81)

10th Percentile 3.83 8.39
25th Percentile 2.84 7.09

Median 1.72 5.94
75th Percentile 0.73 4.79
90th Percentile (0.45) 3.52

SSgA EAFE 0.26 4.40

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(3)

(80)

(3)

10th Percentile 1.29 0.53 1.11
25th Percentile 0.95 0.45 0.86

Median 0.53 0.38 0.49
75th Percentile 0.24 0.31 0.22
90th Percentile (0.14) 0.23 (0.11)

SSgA EAFE 1.74 0.29 1.48

 76
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(30)(30)

(52)(52)

(61)(61)

(78)(78)

(20)(20)

(64)(64)

10th Percentile 43.25 18.54 2.91 14.15 3.49 0.78
25th Percentile 35.16 16.41 2.34 11.75 3.13 0.51

Median 26.57 14.57 1.71 10.01 2.67 0.18
75th Percentile 19.77 12.78 1.41 8.53 2.33 (0.20)
90th Percentile 14.22 11.79 1.22 7.15 1.95 (0.41)

SSgA EAFE 32.56 14.46 1.56 8.28 3.26 (0.02)

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 32.56 14.46 1.56 8.28 3.26 (0.02)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Financials
19.0
19.0

17.8

Industrials
14.4
14.4
14.4

Consumer Staples
12.7
12.7

10.9

Consumer Discretionary
12.1

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

12.1
13.1

Health Care
11.3
11.3

12.1

Materials
7.4
7.4

6.8

Information Technology
5.5
5.5

10.3

Telecommunications
5.3
5.3
5.2

Energy
4.8
4.8

5.3

Real Estate
4.0
4.0

1.8

Utilities
3.6
3.6

1.6

Miscellaneous 0.7

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.33 sectors

Index 3.33 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(1)

10th Percentile 337 53
25th Percentile 117 31

Median 73 23
75th Percentile 55 18
90th Percentile 44 14

SSgA EAFE 927 110

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 927 110

Diversification Ratio
Manager 12%

Index 12%

Style Median 30%

 77
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA EAFE
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

SSgA EAFE

MSCI EAFE

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

19.8% (128) 16.0% (143) 27.7% (186) 63.6% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.1% (135) 10.8% (156) 13.6% (179) 36.4% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

31.9% (263) 26.8% (299) 41.3% (365) 100.0% (927)

19.8% (128) 16.0% (143) 27.7% (186) 63.6% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.1% (135) 10.8% (156) 13.6% (179) 36.4% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

31.9% (263) 26.8% (299) 41.3% (365) 100.0% (927)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

31.9%

(263)

31.9%

(263)

26.8%

(299)

26.8%

(299)

41.3%

(365)

41.3%

(365)

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

5.3 5.3

12.1 12.1 12.7 12.7

4.8 4.8

19.0 19.0

11.3 11.3

14.4 14.4

3.6 3.6

7.4 7.4

4.0 4.0
5.5 5.5

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE

Value

Core

Growth

 78
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
SSgA EAFE VS MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of September 30, 2016. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
7.3

7.3

Austria
0.2

0.2

Belgium
1.4

1.4

Denmark
1.8

1.8

Finland
1.0

1.0

France
9.7

9.7

Germany
9.0

9.0

Hong Kong
3.5

3.5

Ireland
0.5

0.5

Israel
0.7

0.7

Italy
1.9

1.9

Japan
23.8

23.8

Netherlands
3.3

3.3

New Zealand
0.2

0.2

Norway
0.6

0.6

Portugal
0.1

0.1

Singapore
1.3

1.3

Spain
3.0

3.0

Sweden
2.8

2.8

Switzerland
9.0

9.0

United Kingdom
18.9

18.9

Percent of Portfolio

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE

Index Rtns

7.91%

16.66%

5.00%

(6.27%)

7.42%

6.36%

10.01%

11.92%

7.42%

(1.97%)

2.21%

8.60%

9.11%

12.44%

6.28%

6.28%

(0.15%)

9.32%

7.48%

2.62%

3.98%

Manager Total Return: 6.48%

Index Total Return: 6.43%

 79
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of September 30, 2016

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Nestle S A Shs Nom New Consumer Staples $186,672 2.0% 2.37% 245.76 21.47 2.94% 5.53%

Novartis Health Care $130,483 1.4% (4.21)% 207.05 15.79 3.53% 6.78%

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $129,498 1.4% (5.43)% 174.66 15.41 3.36% 8.02%

Toyota Motor Corp Consumer Discretionary $112,988 1.2% 15.88% 190.49 10.31 3.63% 0.50%

Hsbc Holdings (Gb) Financials $110,425 1.2% 22.21% 149.96 12.85 7.18% 0.40%

British American Tobacco Consumer Staples $88,516 1.0% (0.03)% 119.39 18.57 3.16% 11.60%

Bp Plc Shs Energy $80,814 0.9% 1.61% 110.58 16.62 6.26% 18.83%

Royal Dutch Shell A Shs Energy $78,811 0.9% (7.40)% 108.87 14.33 7.63% 15.60%

Total Sa Act Energy $78,388 0.8% (0.20)% 118.62 11.50 5.79% (2.55)%

Anheuser-Busch Inbev Sa Shs Consumer Staples $78,122 0.8% 0.29% 210.73 28.91 2.28% 5.30%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Nintendo Ltd Ord Information Technology $22,077 0.2% 84.80% 37.22 47.97 0.56% (14.00)%

Brother Industries Information Technology $3,042 0.0% 65.75% 4.83 13.53 2.04% 11.24%

South32 Ltd Common Stock Npv Materials $7,280 0.1% 61.78% 9.82 21.95 0.54% 7.20%

Zalando Consumer Discretionary $2,677 0.0% 54.96% 10.20 52.27 0.00% 26.25%

Fujitsu Information Technology $7,366 0.1% 47.38% 11.04 11.66 1.48% 10.74%

Hitachi High-Techs. Information Technology $2,024 0.0% 47.29% 5.46 14.96 1.62% 42.72%

Allied Mining & Proc. Materials $4,373 0.0% 46.10% 11.79 12.10 3.03% 2.15%

Lanxess Materials $4,217 0.0% 42.93% 5.69 19.56 0.90% 17.15%

Nsk Ltd Shs Industrials $3,313 0.0% 41.66% 5.59 11.79 3.31% (5.32)%

Stmicroelectronics N V Shs Information Technology $3,859 0.0% 41.01% 7.44 22.25 3.51% 35.39%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Ono Pharmaceutical Co Health Care $8,475 0.1% (35.40)% 16.33 21.58 1.28% 36.26%

Capita Plc Shs Industrials $4,301 0.0% (32.32)% 5.81 9.05 4.82% 3.58%

Cyberdyne Health Care $1,191 0.0% (30.47)% 2.14 379.27 0.00% -

Aggreko Plc Shs New Industrials $2,352 0.0% (26.83)% 3.17 13.29 2.84% 3.90%

Sp Telecom. Telecommunications $1,660 0.0% (25.55)% 5.60 18.53 1.68% 16.80%

Ingenico Group Sa Shs Information Technology $3,557 0.0% (25.15)% 5.37 16.57 1.67% 9.00%

Noble Group Ltd Shs Industrials $724 0.0% (24.98)% 1.48 4.44 6.25% (11.37)%

Taro Pharmaceutical Inds Ltd Shs Health Care $1,228 0.0% (24.10)% 4.73 8.75 0.00% 24.44%

First Wine Fund Telecommunications $1,781 0.0% (23.67)% 2.94 15.23 2.49% 17.68%

Pearson Plc Ord Consumer Discretionary $5,959 0.1% (22.75)% 8.04 12.09 6.91% (0.20)%

 80
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
JPMorgan adds value by using the best ideas of their regional specialist teams, overlaid by global sector research,
combined with the application of disciplined portfolio construction and formal risk control. The first full quarter of
performance is 1Q 2008.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
JP Morgan’s portfolio posted a 8.53% return for the quarter
placing it in the 16 percentile of the CAI Non-U.S. Equity
Style group for the quarter and in the 37 percentile for the
last year.

JP Morgan’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE by
2.10% for the quarter and outperformed the MSCI EAFE for
the year by 2.50%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $21,281,757

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,816,393

Ending Market Value $23,098,150

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 8-3/4
Year Years

(16)

(62)

(37)

(62)

(77)(80)

(68)
(80)

(70)
(85)

(49)

(89)

10th Percentile 8.96 13.33 4.21 10.80 7.92 3.47
25th Percentile 7.80 10.74 3.27 9.94 6.99 2.25

Median 6.77 7.94 2.16 8.75 5.97 1.05
75th Percentile 5.77 5.40 0.74 7.76 4.89 0.24
90th Percentile 4.47 3.92 (0.39) 6.57 3.90 (0.32)

JP Morgan 8.53 9.01 0.64 8.12 5.12 1.11

MSCI EAFE 6.43 6.52 0.48 7.39 4.24 (0.27)

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

JP Morgan

CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24
0%

5%

10%

15%

JP Morgan
MSCI EAFE

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 81
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)

(80%)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

3965 6962 5561

7747 2770

2860

8484

3760

3052

6464

10th Percentile 8.43 4.92 (0.30) 28.92 23.51 (6.44) 17.43 48.53 (36.56) 24.12
25th Percentile 5.67 2.71 (2.06) 26.07 21.64 (9.49) 15.06 41.35 (40.10) 18.89

Median 3.14 0.48 (3.88) 22.49 19.25 (11.24) 11.62 33.82 (43.20) 13.55
75th Percentile 0.80 (2.53) (5.71) 18.50 16.97 (13.94) 9.02 29.20 (46.54) 9.73
90th Percentile (0.55) (4.70) (7.81) 15.53 14.91 (16.62) 6.27 25.12 (49.29) 6.45

JP Morgan 3.92 (1.75) (4.28) 18.12 21.23 (9.73) 7.84 37.04 (40.98) 11.33

MSCI EAFE 1.73 (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38) 11.17

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

JP Morgan CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(73)

(72)

10th Percentile 3.83 8.39
25th Percentile 2.84 7.09

Median 1.72 5.94
75th Percentile 0.73 4.79
90th Percentile (0.45) 3.52

JP Morgan 0.82 4.88

(0.4)

(0.2)

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(68) (72) (62)

10th Percentile 1.29 0.53 1.11
25th Percentile 0.95 0.45 0.86

Median 0.53 0.38 0.49
75th Percentile 0.24 0.31 0.22
90th Percentile (0.14) 0.23 (0.11)

JP Morgan 0.33 0.32 0.35

 82
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0 2 4 6 8 10
(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

JP Morgan

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

JP Morgan

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

JP Morgan

CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(35)

(71)
(81) (84)

10th Percentile 17.04 3.06 4.76 5.23
25th Percentile 16.19 2.51 3.88 4.16

Median 15.44 1.86 3.24 3.40
75th Percentile 14.65 1.40 2.65 2.71
90th Percentile 13.68 0.96 2.00 2.10

JP Morgan 15.85 1.47 2.46 2.44

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(31)

(16)

(35)

10th Percentile 1.09 0.98 1.12
25th Percentile 1.04 0.97 1.06

Median 0.99 0.96 1.01
75th Percentile 0.93 0.94 0.96
90th Percentile 0.84 0.91 0.90

JP Morgan 1.03 0.98 1.04

 83
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Non-U.S. Equity Style
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

(6)

(30)

(41)

(52)
(57)

(61)

(38)

(78)

(42)

(20)

(53)

(64)

10th Percentile 43.25 18.54 2.91 14.15 3.49 0.78
25th Percentile 35.16 16.41 2.34 11.75 3.13 0.51

Median 26.57 14.57 1.71 10.01 2.67 0.18
75th Percentile 19.77 12.78 1.41 8.53 2.33 (0.20)
90th Percentile 14.22 11.79 1.22 7.15 1.95 (0.41)

JP Morgan 47.30 15.04 1.61 10.65 2.79 0.15

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 32.56 14.46 1.56 8.28 3.26 (0.02)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Financials
16.8

19.0
17.8

Consumer Discretionary
15.6

12.1
13.1

Industrials
12.8

14.4
14.4

Health Care
12.8

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.3
12.1

Information Technology
10.8

5.5
10.3

Consumer Staples
10.7

12.7
10.9

Materials
8.1

7.4
6.8

Energy
4.6
4.8

5.3

Telecommunications
3.3

5.3
5.2

Real Estate
3.2

4.0
1.8

Miscellaneous
1.3

0.7

Utilities 3.6
1.6

JP Morgan MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.37 sectors

Index 3.33 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(37)

(29)

10th Percentile 337 53
25th Percentile 117 31

Median 73 23
75th Percentile 55 18
90th Percentile 44 14

JP Morgan 88 30

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 927 110

Diversification Ratio
Manager 34%

Index 12%

Style Median 30%

 84
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
JP Morgan
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

MSCI EAFE

JP Morgan

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

14.8% (16) 10.1% (10) 30.8% (23) 55.7% (49)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.6% (7) 9.6% (9) 13.5% (12) 32.7% (28)

0.0% (0) 6.6% (6) 5.0% (4) 11.6% (10)

24.4% (23) 26.3% (25) 49.3% (39) 100.0% (87)

19.8% (128) 16.0% (143) 27.7% (186) 63.6% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.1% (135) 10.8% (156) 13.6% (179) 36.4% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

31.9% (263) 26.8% (299) 41.3% (365) 100.0% (927)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Value Core Growth

24.4%

(23) 31.9%

(263)

26.3%

(25)

26.8%

(299)

49.3%

(39)

41.3%

(365)

Bar #1=JP Morgan (Combined Z: 0.15 Growth Z: 0.08 Value Z: -0.07)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU RAWMAT REALES TECH PUBUTL

3.3
5.3

15.8

12.1
10.8

12.7

4.7 4.8

17.0
19.0

13.0
11.3

13.0
14.4

8.2 7.4

3.2 4.0

10.9

5.5

0.0

3.6

Bar #1=JP Morgan

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE

Value

Core

Growth

 85
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
JP Morgan
For Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Non-U.S. Eq. Style
Holdings for Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

MSCI EAFE IMI

JP Morgan

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Three Years Ended September 30, 2016

16.0% (13) 19.3% (16) 27.8% (23) 63.2% (52)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

9.9% (9) 8.5% (8) 9.9% (10) 28.3% (27)

2.0% (3) 3.1% (3) 3.4% (4) 8.5% (10)

27.9% (25) 31.0% (27) 41.1% (37) 100.0% (89)

19.4% (437) 19.9% (484) 25.0% (483) 64.3% (1404)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1)

11.6% (571) 12.2% (582) 11.9% (525) 35.7% (1678)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

31.0% (1008) 32.2% (1067) 36.9% (1008) 100.0% (3083)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

JP Morgan Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2014 2015 2016

Emerging-Growth

Emerging-Core

Emerging-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

JP Morgan Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2014 2015 2016

Growth

Core

Value

 86
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
JP Morgan VS MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of September 30, 2016. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
2.1

7.3

Austria 0.2

Belgium
2.0

1.4

China
3.7

Denmark
1.2

1.8

Finland 1.0

France
10.8

9.7

Germany
7.6

9.0

Hong Kong
6.6

3.5

India
1.2

Indonesia
0.8

Ireland 0.5

Israel
0.9

0.7

Italy 1.9

Japan
23.5

23.8

Netherlands
3.3
3.3

New Zealand 0.2

Norway 0.6

Portugal 0.1

Singapore 1.3

South Africa
1.2

South Korea
3.0

Spain 3.0

Sweden 2.8

Switzerland
9.6

9.0

Taiwan
1.5

United Kingdom
19.5

18.9

United States
1.3

Percent of Portfolio

JP Morgan MSCI EAFE

Index Rtns

7.91%

16.66%

5.00%

13.96%

(6.27%)

7.42%

6.36%

10.01%

11.92%

5.92%

9.54%

7.42%

(1.97%)

2.21%

8.60%

9.11%

12.44%

6.28%

6.28%

(0.15%)

6.39%

10.97%

9.32%

7.48%

2.62%

12.35%

3.98%

5.42%

Manager Total Return: 8.53%

Index Total Return: 6.43%

 87
Sacramento Regional Transit District



JP Morgan
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of September 30, 2016

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord Information Technology $524,952 2.3% 17.37% 205.55 9.59 1.31% 15.21%

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $511,148 2.2% (5.43)% 174.66 15.41 3.36% 8.02%

Novartis Health Care $485,632 2.1% (4.21)% 207.05 15.79 3.53% 6.78%

Hsbc Holdings (Hk) Financials $480,514 2.1% 22.96% 149.96 12.85 7.18% 0.40%

Vodafone Group Plc New Shs New Telecommunications $475,454 2.1% (5.35)% 76.66 33.10 5.16% 33.95%

Japan Tobacco Inc Ord Consumer Staples $471,430 2.0% 1.57% 81.35 17.53 3.11% (0.70)%

Anheuser-Busch Inbev Sa Shs Consumer Staples $457,796 2.0% 0.29% 210.73 28.91 2.28% 5.30%

Prudential Financials $441,587 1.9% 6.64% 45.78 10.89 2.88% 12.50%

Sumitomo Mitsui Finl Grp Inc Shs Financials $431,995 1.9% 19.46% 47.20 6.70 4.44% 2.51%

Royal Dutch Shell A Shs Energy $401,842 1.7% (7.40)% 108.87 14.33 7.63% 15.60%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

South32 Ltd Common Stock Npv Materials $25,169 0.1% 61.78% 9.82 21.95 0.54% 7.20%

Glencore International W/I Materials $175,274 0.8% 34.88% 39.67 31.72 0.00% (41.03)%

Komatsu Industrials $201,144 0.9% 33.17% 22.03 21.79 2.53% (4.05)%

Nxp Semiconductors Information Technology $168,691 0.7% 30.21% 35.30 14.65 0.00% 27.00%

Lafargeholcim Ltd Namen Akt Materials $258,889 1.1% 30.14% 32.87 18.34 2.36% 48.80%

Sands China Ltd Usd0.01 Reg’s’ Consumer Discretionary $221,293 1.0% 29.72% 35.01 25.08 5.91% 3.95%

Kering Sa Shs Consumer Discretionary $169,239 0.7% 24.87% 25.48 17.30 2.23% 13.47%

Bhp Billiton Ltd Shs Materials $264,118 1.1% 24.48% 55.00 27.01 1.78% 54.94%

Credit Suisse Group Ord Cl D Financials $72,239 0.3% 23.89% 27.40 14.41 5.51% 28.00%

Hsbc Holdings (Hk) Financials $480,514 2.1% 22.96% 149.96 12.85 7.18% 0.40%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Aggreko Plc Shs New Industrials $69,323 0.3% (26.83)% 3.17 13.29 2.84% 3.90%

Novo Nordisk B Health Care $280,649 1.2% (21.51)% 83.65 17.00 2.25% 11.50%

Sanofi Shs Health Care $309,695 1.3% (8.68)% 97.98 12.36 4.33% 5.35%

Teva Pharmaceutical Inds Ltd Adr Health Care $210,726 0.9% (7.81)% 48.64 8.13 2.97% (0.89)%

Royal Dutch Shell A Shs Energy $401,842 1.7% (7.40)% 108.87 14.33 7.63% 15.60%

Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd Shs Real Estate $196,538 0.9% (6.59)% 20.91 15.94 1.40% 4.00%

Tullow Oil Plc Shs Energy $33,760 0.1% (6.20)% 3.00 23.84 0.00% 10.00%

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $511,148 2.2% (5.43)% 174.66 15.41 3.36% 8.02%

Vodafone Group Plc New Shs New Telecommunications $475,454 2.1% (5.35)% 76.66 33.10 5.16% 33.95%

Novartis Health Care $485,632 2.1% (4.21)% 207.05 15.79 3.53% 6.78%

 88
Sacramento Regional Transit



DFA Emerging Markets
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
DFA Performance prior to 6/30/2013 is linked to published fund returns.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio posted a 8.09% return for
the quarter placing it in the 66 percentile of the CAI
Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds group for the quarter
and in the 54 percentile for the last year.

DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI
EM Gross by 1.07% for the quarter and outperformed the
MSCI EM Gross for the year by 1.60%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $12,537,203

Net New Investment $137,839

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,003,710

Ending Market Value $13,678,752

Performance vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Net)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 3-1/4 Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year Years

(66)
(42)

(54)
(73)

(31)
(44)

(29)
(42) (31)

(44)

(32)
(49) (26)

(50)

10th Percentile 10.85 25.75 3.24 4.13 3.24 6.63 4.68
25th Percentile 9.91 22.02 1.55 3.39 1.55 5.25 3.67

Median 9.00 19.33 (0.33) 1.29 (0.33) 3.37 2.62
75th Percentile 7.12 16.87 (1.46) 0.17 (1.46) 1.91 1.34
90th Percentile 5.36 13.46 (5.43) (2.80) (5.43) (1.91) (2.45)

DFA Emerging
Markets 8.09 18.81 1.13 2.87 1.13 4.55 3.56

MSCI EM Gross 9.15 17.21 (0.21) 1.58 (0.21) 3.39 2.61

Relative Return vs MSCI EM Gross

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2013 2014 2015 2016

DFA Emerging Markets

CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Net)
Annualized Three and One-Quarter Year Risk vs Return

5 10 15 20 25
(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM Gross

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 89
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)

(80%)
(60%)
(40%)
(20%)

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%
120%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

5377

6263
2541 6262

4459

6752

2271

2336

2846

6656

10th Percentile 29.19 (7.46) 2.62 5.56 25.54 (11.40) 25.12 94.66 (46.12) 48.23
25th Percentile 22.80 (11.01) (0.31) 1.80 21.75 (15.89) 22.90 82.12 (49.72) 45.09

Median 19.52 (12.79) (2.75) (0.74) 19.70 (18.02) 20.15 77.86 (53.38) 40.30
75th Percentile 16.62 (15.45) (5.38) (3.90) 15.32 (21.39) 18.81 72.60 (55.10) 35.78
90th Percentile 14.58 (24.74) (8.77) (6.59) 12.21 (22.72) 17.32 69.59 (58.13) 29.39

DFA Emerging
Markets 18.87 (14.33) (0.28) (2.31) 20.49 (20.65) 23.62 83.58 (50.66) 37.49

MSCI EM Gross 16.36 (14.60) (1.82) (2.27) 18.63 (18.17) 19.20 79.02 (53.18) 39.78

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EM Gross

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

DFA Emerging Markets CAI Emerging Equity MFs

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EM Gross
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

(6)

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(54)

(57)

10th Percentile 3.58 6.38
25th Percentile 2.45 4.98

Median 1.43 3.87
75th Percentile 0.03 2.40
90th Percentile (3.14) (0.92)

DFA Emerging
Markets 0.91 3.33

(0.6)
(0.4)
(0.2)

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(43)

(56)

(37)

10th Percentile 1.03 0.36 0.88
25th Percentile 0.74 0.28 0.70

Median 0.36 0.22 0.35
75th Percentile 0.01 0.14 0.02
90th Percentile (0.41) (0.05) (0.41)

DFA Emerging
Markets 0.47 0.19 0.46

 90
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Net)
Three and One-Quarter Years Ended September 30, 2016

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
(12 )

(10 )

(8 )

(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

DFA Emerging Markets

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0 5 10 15
(12 )

(10 )

(8 )

(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

DFA Emerging Markets

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

DFA Emerging Markets

CAI Emerging Equity MFs

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Net)
Three and One-Quarter Years Ended September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(54)

(99) (98) (98)

10th Percentile 19.37 8.06 10.06 10.20
25th Percentile 14.97 3.61 4.54 4.88

Median 13.50 2.82 3.97 4.12
75th Percentile 12.60 2.05 3.10 3.20
90th Percentile 11.91 1.39 2.67 2.65

DFA Emerging
Markets 13.03 0.76 1.71 1.75

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(52) (3) (54)

10th Percentile 1.18 0.96 1.43
25th Percentile 1.04 0.95 1.11

Median 0.97 0.92 1.00
75th Percentile 0.89 0.87 0.93
90th Percentile 0.84 0.69 0.88

DFA Emerging
Markets 0.95 0.98 0.96

 91
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds
as of September 30, 2016

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(99)

(82) (84)(87) (86)(84)
(78)

(70)

(15)(14)

(85)
(79)

10th Percentile 53.63 22.27 3.50 19.70 2.80 0.80
25th Percentile 36.46 16.35 2.25 18.31 2.15 0.49

Median 26.72 15.01 2.01 14.94 1.92 0.29
75th Percentile 16.95 13.61 1.67 13.20 1.65 0.04
90th Percentile 12.30 11.53 1.30 8.51 1.47 (0.41)

DFA Emerging Markets 5.33 13.13 1.41 13.01 2.44 (0.21)

MSCI EM - Emerging
Mkts (USD Gross Div) 16.25 12.34 1.53 13.34 2.53 (0.03)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Financials
19.6

24.3
25.7

Information Technology
18.7

23.0
29.0

Consumer Discretionary
11.9

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

9.8
12.2

Materials
10.0

6.7
4.4

Industrials
9.6

6.1
4.3

Consumer Staples
8.7

7.9
9.4

Energy
5.7

7.1
6.1

Telecommunications
4.2

6.7
5.7

Utilities
3.8

3.0
1.1

Health Care
3.7

2.6
0.9

Real Estate
3.3

2.8
1.1

Miscellaneous
0.8

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)

CAI Emerging Equity MFs

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.98 sectors

Index 2.28 sectors

Diversification
September 30, 2016

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(1)

10th Percentile 160 21
25th Percentile 76 17

Median 58 11
75th Percentile 38 7
90th Percentile 27 5

DFA Emerging
Markets 4352 279

MSCI EM - Emerging
Mkts (USD Gross Div) 827 84

Diversification Ratio
Manager 6%

Index 10%

Style Median 20%

 92
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
DFA Emerging Markets
As of September 30, 2016

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Emerging Equity MFs
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM IMI

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (1) 0.1% (1)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1)

34.4% (347) 33.3% (340) 32.2% (320) 99.9% (1007)

34.4% (347) 33.3% (342) 32.3% (322) 100.0% (1011)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

32.9% (895) 29.3% (908) 37.8% (894) 100.0% (2697)

32.9% (895) 29.3% (908) 37.8% (894) 100.0% (2697)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

34.4%

(347)

32.9%

(895)

33.3%

(342)

29.3%

(908)
32.3%

(322) 37.8%

(894)

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets (Combined Z: -0.21 Growth Z: -0.08 Value Z: 0.13)

Bar #2=MSCI EM IMI (Combined Z: -0.03 Growth Z: -0.02 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of September 30, 2016

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.0 0.0

5.7 5.9

10.2
11.6 10.8

7.5
6.3 6.4

23.2
21.8

2.9 3.5

7.2 7.3

3.3 3.0

7.8 7.1

2.0
3.7

20.5
22.2

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets

Bar #2=MSCI EM IMI

Value

Core

Growth

 93
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
DFA Emerging Markets VS MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of September 30, 2016. This chart is
useful because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of September 30, 2016

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Brazil
9.3

7.4

Chile
1.4

1.1

China
14.9

27.0

Colombia
0.5
0.5

Cyprus

Czech Republic
0.2
0.1

Egypt
0.1
0.2

Greece
0.3
0.3

Hong Kong
0.1

Hungary
0.3
0.3

India
13.2

8.5

Indonesia
3.4

2.7

Luxembourg

Malaysia
3.8

2.7

Mexico
4.3

3.7

Netherlands

Peru
0.1
0.4

Philippines
1.6

1.3

Poland
1.5

1.1

Qatar 0.9

Russia
1.2

3.7

South Africa
8.3

7.1

South Korea
15.2

14.8

Taiwan
15.0

12.1

Thailand
2.8

2.2

Turkey
1.8

1.2

Ukraine

United Arab Emirates 0.8

United Kingdom

United States
0.8

Percent of Portfolio

DFA Emerging Markets MSCI EM Gross

Index Rtns

11.37%

(1.70%)

13.96%

2.76%

-

(0.37%)

21.55%

0.99%

11.92%

10.81%

5.92%

9.54%

-

(1.52%)

(2.20%)

9.23%

1.09%

(5.22%)

3.39%

6.94%

8.90%

6.39%

10.97%

12.35%

7.32%

(5.26%)

-

6.09%

3.99%

5.42%

Manager Total Return: 8.09%

Index Total Return: 9.15%

 94
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of September 30, 2016

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord Information Technology $410,803 3.0% 17.37% 205.55 9.59 1.31% 15.21%

Tencent Holdings Limited Shs Par Hkd Information Technology $213,874 1.6% 20.98% 259.97 32.50 0.22% 31.60%

Taiwan Semicond Manufac Co L Shs Information Technology $178,779 1.3% 15.58% 150.97 13.73 3.29% 11.26%

Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg Co Ltd Spon Information Technology $130,726 1.0% 16.62% 150.97 13.73 3.29% 11.26%

China Construction Bank Shs H Financials $130,656 1.0% 12.32% 178.24 5.41 5.70% 2.13%

Hon Hai Precision Inds Ltd Ord Information Technology $105,230 0.8% 13.51% 43.35 10.29 4.60% 0.42%

China Mobile Limited Sponsored Adr Telecommunications $84,753 0.6% 7.92% 247.76 14.14 3.34% 6.59%

Industrial and Comm Bk of Cn Hkd Shs Financials $80,357 0.6% 13.07% 54.27 5.39 5.76% 1.90%

Itau Unibanco Holding Sa Pfd Shs Financials $79,014 0.6% 17.03% 32.11 9.69 4.06% 0.33%

Nasionale PERS Beperk Ord Cl H Consumer Discretionary $73,376 0.5% 13.17% 75.70 34.83 0.22% 35.80%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Tri Polyta Indo. Industrials $20 0.0% 400.00% 3.48 27.18 1.11% -

Jastrzebska Spolka Weglowa S Materials $3,139 0.0% 218.91% 1.62 21.68 0.00% (79.20)%

Em Technics Co. Information Technology $1,158 0.0% 208.33% 0.70 59.70 0.00% -

Chungwha Picture Tubes Ord Information Technology $643 0.0% 166.67% 0.35 (2.00) 0.00% -

Bh Information Technology $736 0.0% 157.14% 0.16 15.95 0.00% 97.99%

Tong Yang Moolsan Industrials $548 0.0% 150.00% 0.19 (127.39) 0.47% -

Pan-International Information Technology $2,255 0.0% 148.45% 0.48 17.22 1.20% -

Great New Wave Comming Consumer Discretionary $2,058 0.0% 140.00% 0.46 97.78 0.00% -

Kj Pretech Industrials $72 0.0% 137.50% 0.13 (35.09) 0.00% -

Megawide Construction Consumer Discretionary $392 0.0% 134.69% 0.65 17.21 0.00% 4.07%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Bolina Holding Industrials $53 0.0% (83.20)% 0.04 - 25.71% -

Philweb Corp Shs Consumer Discretionary $216 0.0% (76.39)% 0.14 13.56 11.78% -

Daewon Scn Materials $40 0.0% (66.67)% 0.05 302.22 0.00% -

Xpec Entertainment Information Technology $212 0.0% (61.78)% 0.18 24.00 0.36% -

Eletropaulo Eletrecidade Met Shs Utilities $2,762 0.0% (55.21)% 0.33 14.22 2.46% (46.09)%

Welspun India Consumer Discretionary $1,556 0.0% (51.13)% 0.79 6.22 1.35% -

Solco Biomedical Health Care $168 0.0% (50.00)% 0.09 (14.31) 0.00% -

Hyundai Merchant Marine Industrials $183 0.0% (50.00)% 1.31 (0.53) 0.00% 28.34%

Perisai Ptl.Teknologi Energy $253 0.0% (48.14)% 0.04 15.00 0.00% (11.17)%

Baoxin Auto Group Consumer Discretionary $233 0.0% (43.15)% 0.79 7.59 2.07% 49.73%

 95
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 F
ix

e
d

 In
c
o

m
e

Domestic Fixed Income



Metropolitan West
Period Ended September 30, 2016

Investment Philosophy
Metropolitan West Asset Management (MWAM) attempts to add value by limiting duration, managing the yield curve,
rotating among bond market sectors and using proprietary quantitative valuation techniques.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Metropolitan West’s portfolio posted a 0.80% return for the
quarter placing it in the 36 percentile of the CAI Core Bond
Fixed Income group for the quarter and in the 84 percentile
for the last year.

Metropolitan West’s portfolio outperformed the BB Barclays
Aggregate Idx by 0.35% for the quarter and underperformed
the BB Barclays Aggregate Idx for the year by 0.06%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $88,160,477

Net New Investment $-277,837

Investment Gains/(Losses) $708,071

Ending Market Value $88,590,711

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15-1/4
Year Years

(36)
(84)

(84)(83)

(80)(84)
(16)

(97)

(4)

(96)

(3)

(90)

(7)

(92)

10th Percentile 1.15 6.72 4.98 4.57 5.57 5.90 5.91
25th Percentile 0.94 6.11 4.74 4.08 5.01 5.65 5.71

Median 0.70 5.65 4.36 3.73 4.73 5.31 5.48
75th Percentile 0.52 5.29 4.22 3.44 4.46 5.08 5.26
90th Percentile 0.33 4.96 3.88 3.24 4.27 4.75 5.08

Metropolitan West 0.80 5.14 4.10 4.32 5.97 6.34 6.02

BB Barclays
Aggregate Idx 0.46 5.19 4.03 3.08 4.10 4.79 5.03

Relative Return vs BB Barclays Aggregate Idx

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

09 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.4
3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

BB Barclays Aggregate Idx

Metropolitan West

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 97
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

12/15- 9/16 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

9471

7572

4069

2285

4

97 9759

1

90

7

96

78

22
922

10th Percentile 7.04 1.51 7.21 (0.66) 8.11 8.78 9.35 17.43 6.50 7.39
25th Percentile 6.54 1.13 6.64 (1.10) 7.37 8.21 8.39 13.73 4.78 6.93

Median 6.15 0.84 6.19 (1.46) 6.15 7.89 7.56 10.71 0.96 6.46
75th Percentile 5.76 0.52 5.88 (1.84) 5.43 7.22 6.89 8.76 (2.45) 5.61
90th Percentile 5.56 (0.03) 5.35 (2.32) 4.74 6.43 6.57 7.10 (7.12) 4.30

Metropolitan
West 5.50 0.51 6.37 (1.03) 9.48 6.10 12.57 19.88 (3.11) 7.50

BB Barclays
Aggregate Idx 5.80 0.55 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 6.97

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs BB Barclays Aggregate Idx

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

06 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Metropolitan West CAI Core Bond FI

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs BB Barclays Aggregate Idx
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(3)

(3)

10th Percentile 1.87 6.07
25th Percentile 1.31 5.43

Median 0.86 4.94
75th Percentile 0.49 4.51
90th Percentile 0.18 4.18

Metropolitan
West 2.62 7.32

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(35)

(6)

(45)

10th Percentile 1.83 1.84 1.54
25th Percentile 1.53 1.73 1.22

Median 1.19 1.60 0.83
75th Percentile 0.94 1.49 0.51
90th Percentile 0.38 1.39 0.19

Metropolitan West 1.32 1.90 0.88

 98
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the relationship, sometimes called Information Ratio, between alpha (market-risk or "beta" adjusted
return) and residual risk (non-market or "unsystematic" risk). The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the
benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5
(0.5 )

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Metropolitan West

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5
(1.0 )

(0.5 )

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

Metropolitan West

Residual Risk

A
lp

h
a

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

01 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Bond FI

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Index
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended September 30, 2016

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(14)

(11)

(1) (2)

10th Percentile 3.15 0.89 1.37 1.41
25th Percentile 3.04 0.60 0.97 1.06

Median 2.93 0.35 0.70 0.71
75th Percentile 2.82 0.19 0.51 0.53
90th Percentile 2.70 0.15 0.40 0.40

Metropolitan
West 3.09 0.86 1.99 2.04

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

1.10

1.20

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(94)

(97)

(14)

10th Percentile 1.02 0.98 1.05
25th Percentile 0.98 0.97 1.02

Median 0.94 0.94 0.98
75th Percentile 0.89 0.88 0.94
90th Percentile 0.84 0.79 0.90

Metropolitan West 0.80 0.60 1.03

 99
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Bond Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Fixed Income Portfolio Characteristics
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Fixed Income
as of September 30, 2016

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Average Effective Coupon OA
Duration Life Yield Rate Convexity

(90)
(19)

(35)(29)

(49)(86)
(73)(61)

(90)(80)

10th Percentile 5.61 9.18 2.75 3.81 0.65
25th Percentile 5.47 8.00 2.40 3.55 0.28

Median 5.38 7.54 2.25 3.20 0.15
75th Percentile 5.18 7.00 2.05 2.88 0.06
90th Percentile 4.92 6.45 1.90 2.66 (0.14)

Metropolitan West 4.91 7.72 2.26 2.90 (0.15)

BB Barclays Aggregate Idx 5.51 7.82 1.96 3.09 0.02

Sector Allocation and Quality Ratings
The first graph compares the manager’s sector allocation with the average allocation across all the members of the
manager’s style. The second graph compares the manager’s weighted average quality rating with the range of quality ratings
for the style.

Sector Allocation
September 30, 2016

(10%) 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

US Trsy
29.1

23.8
36.3

RMBS
26.7

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

22.9
27.6

Corp (incl 144A)
23.7

40.4
26.0

ABS
7.8

4.4
0.5

Non-Agency RMBS
6.1

CMBS
5.6

4.1
1.7

CMOs
2.0

0.1

Gov Related 2.0
7.9

Other 0.9
0.1

Cash
(1.0 )

1.4

Metropolitan West CAI Core Bond Fixed Income

BB Barclays Aggregate Idx

Quality Ratings
vs CAI Core Bond Fixed Income

A-

A

A+

AA-

AA

AA+

AAA

Trsy

Weighted Average
Quality Rating

(52)

(8)

10th Percentile AA
25th Percentile AA

Median AA
75th Percentile AA-
90th Percentile A

Metropolitan West AA

BB Barclays
Aggregate Idx AA+

100
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Portfolio Characteristics Summary
As of September 30, 2016

Portfolio Structure Comparison
The charts below compare the structure of the portfolio to that of the index from the three perspectives that have the greatest
influence on return. The first chart compares the two portfolios across sectors. The second chart compares the duration
distribution. The last chart compares the distribution across quality ratings.

Sector Distribution

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

US
Trsy

29.1

36.3

RMBS

26.7 27.6

Corp
(incl

144A)

23.7
26.0

ABS

7.8

0.5

Non-Agency
RMBS

6.1

CMBS

5.6
1.7

CMOs

2.0

Other

0.1

Gov
Related

7.9

Cash

(1.0 )

P
e

rc
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

Metropolitan West

BB Barclays Aggregate

Duration Distribution

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

<0 0-1

11.2

3.3

1-2

22.4

16.1

2-3

14.1

20.7

3-5

28.1
25.6

5-7

5.4

11.0

7-10

7.3
8.8

>10

11.5

14.4

Years Duration

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Duration

Metropolitan West:

BB Barclays Aggregate:

4.91
5.51

Quality Distribution

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

AAA

64.2
70.5

AA

9.8
4.9

A

9.2 10.8

BBB

12.2 13.8

BB

2.9

B

1.2

CCC

0.1

CC C D

0.5

Quality Rating

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Quality

Metropolitan West:

BB Barclays Aggregate:

AA
AA+

101
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
e

fin
itio

n
s

Definitions



Risk/Reward Statistics

The risk statistics used in this report examine performance characteristics of a manager or a portfolio relative to a benchmark

(market indicator) which assumes to represent overall movements in the asset class being considered. The main unit of

analysis is the excess return, which is the portfolio return minus the return on a risk free asset (3 month T-Bill).

Alpha measures a portfolio’s return in excess of the market return adjusted for risk.  It is a measure of the manager’s

contribution to performance with reference to security selection.  A positive alpha indicates that a portfolio was positively

rewarded for the residual risk which was taken for that level of market exposure.

Beta measures the sensitivity of rates of portfolio returns to movements in the market index.  A portfolio’s beta measures the

expected change in return per 1% change in the return on the market.  If a beta of a portfolio is 1.5, a 1 percent increase in

the return on the market will result, on average, in a 1.5 percent increase in the return on the portfolio.  The converse would

also be true.

Downside Risk stems from the desire to differentiate between "good risk" (upside volatility) and "bad risk" (downside

volatility). Whereas standard deviation punishes both upside and downside volatility, downside risk measures only the

standard deviation of returns below the target. Returns above the target are assigned a deviation of zero. Both the frequency

and magnitude of underperformance affect the amount of downside risk.

Excess Return Ratio is a measure of risk adjusted relative return.  This ratio captures the amount of active management

performance (value added relative to an index) per unit of active management risk (tracking error against the index.)  It is

calculated by dividing the manager’s annualized cumulative excess return relative to the index by the standard deviation of

the individual quarterly excess returns.  The Excess Return Ratio can be interpreted as the manager’s active risk/reward

tradeoff for diverging from the index when the index is mandated to be the "riskless" market position.

Information Ratio measures the manager’s market risk-adjusted excess return per unit of residual risk relative to a

benchmark.  It is computed by dividing alpha by the residual risk over a given time period.  Assuming all other factors being

equal, managers with lower residual risk achieve higher values in the information ratio.  Managers with higher information

ratios will add value relative to the benchmark more reliably and consistently.

R-Squared indicates the extent to which the variability of the portfolio returns are explained by market action.  It can also be

thought of as measuring the diversification relative to the appropriate benchmark.  An r-squared value of .75 indicates that

75% of the fluctuation in a portfolio return is explained by market action.  An r-squared of 1.0 indicates that a portfolio’s

returns are entirely related to the market and it is not influenced by other factors.  An r-squared of zero indicates that no

relationship exists between the portfolio’s return and the market.

Relative Standard Deviation is a simple measure of a manager’s risk (volatility) relative to a benchmark.  It is calculated by

dividing the manager’s standard deviation of returns by the benchmark’s standard deviation of returns.  A relative standard

deviation of 1.20, for example, means the manager has exhibited 20% more risk than the benchmark over that time period.

A ratio of .80 would imply 20% less risk.  This ratio is especially useful when analyzing the risk of investment grade

fixed-income products where actual historical durations are not available.  By using this relative risk measure over rolling

time periods one can illustrate the "implied" historical duration patterns of the portfolio versus the benchmark.

Residual Portfolio Risk is the unsystematic risk of a fund, the portion of the total risk unique to the fund (manager) itself and

not related to the overall market.  This reflects the "bets" which the manager places in that particular asset market.  These

bets may reflect emphasis in particular sectors, maturities (for bonds), or other issue specific factors which the manager

considers a good investment opportunity.  Diversification of the portfolio will reduce or eliminate the residual risk of that

portfolio.

103



Risk/Reward Statistics

Sharpe Ratio is a commonly used measure of risk-adjusted return. It is calculated by subtracting the "risk-free" return

(usually 3 Month Treasury Bill) from the portfolio return and dividing the resulting "excess return" by the portfolio’s risk level

(standard deviation). The result is a measure of return gained per unit of risk taken.

Sortino Ratio is a downside risk-adjusted measure of value-added.  It measures excess return over a benchmark divided by

downside risk.  The natural appeal is that it identifies value-added per unit of truly bad risk.  The danger of interpretation,

however, lies in these two areas:  (1) the statistical significance of the denominator, and (2) its reliance on the persistence of

skewness in return distributions.

Standard Deviation is a statistical measure of portfolio risk.  It reflects the average deviation of the observations from their

sample mean.  Standard deviation is used as an estimate of risk since it measures how wide the range of returns typically is.

The wider the typical range of returns, the higher the standard deviation of returns, and the higher the portfolio risk.  If returns

are normally distributed (ie. has a bell shaped curve distribution) then approximately 2/3 of the returns would occur within

plus or minus one standard deviation from the sample mean.

Total Portfolio Risk is a measure of the volatility of the quarterly excess returns of an asset.  Total risk is composed of two

measures of risk:  market (non-diversifiable or systematic) risk and residual (diversifiable or unsystematic) risk.  The purpose

of portfolio diversification is to reduce the residual risk of the portfolio.

Tracking Error is a statistical measure of a portfolio’s risk relative to an index.  It reflects the standard deviation of a

portfolio’s individual quarterly or monthly returns from the index’s returns.  Typically, the lower the Tracking Error, the more

"index-like" the portfolio.

Treynor Ratio represents the portfolio’s average excess return over a specified period divided by the beta relative to its

benchmark over that same period.  This measure reflects the reward over the risk-free rate relative to the systematic risk

assumed.

Note: Alpha, Total Risk, and Residual Risk are annualized.

104



C
a

lla
n

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
/E

d
u

c
a

tio
n

Callan Research/Education



Ρεσεαρχη ανδ Εδυχατιοναλ Προγραmσ

Τηε Χαλλαν Ινστιτυτε προϖιδεσ ρεσεαρχη τηατ υπδατεσ χλιεντσ ον τηε λατεστ ινδυστρψ τρενδσ ωηιλε ηελπινγ τηεm λεαρν τηρουγη χαρεφυλλψ στρυχ−

τυρεδ εδυχατιοναλ προγραmσ. ςισιτ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη το σεε αλλ οφ ουρ πυβλιχατιονσ, ορ φορ mορε ινφορmατιον χονταχτ Αννα Wεστ ατ 

415.974.5060 / ινστιτυτε≅χαλλαν.χοm. 

Νεω Ρεσεαρχη φροm Χαλλαν�σ Εξπερτσ

Βυιλτ το Λαστ: Στρατεγιχ Γυιδανχε φορ Εφφεχτιϖε Ινϖεστ−

mεντ Χοmmιττεεσ | Χαλλαν οφφερσ ουρ ηιγη−λεϖελ στρατεγιχ 

αδϖιχε φορ ινϖεστmεντ χοmmιττεεσ, τουχηινγ ον mεmβερσηιπ, 

investment policy statements, review processes, and idu−

χιαρψ τραινινγ ανδ ονγοινγ εδυχατιον.

10 Τιπσ Φροm Συχχεσσφυλ Ινϖεστmεντ Χοmmιττεεσ | Χαλ−

λαν Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ Ρον Πεψτον ανδ Χονσυλταντ Βραδψ 

Ο�Χοννελλ, ΧΦΑ, ΧΑΙΑ, οφφερ 10 τιπσ βασεδ ον τηειρ ωορκ ωιτη 

συχχεσσφυλ ινϖεστmεντ χοmmιττεεσ.

Ρισκψ Βυσινεσσ | Χαλλαν ρε−

σεαρχη τηατ φουνδ ινϖεστορσ 

οϖερ τηε λαστ 20 ψεαρσ ηαϖε 

ηαδ το τακε ον τηρεε τιmεσ ασ mυχη ρισκ το εαρν τηε σαmε 

return electriied the institutional investing community. We in−

τερϖιεωεδ ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ ανδ ϑυλια Μοριαρτψ, ΧΦΑ, αβουτ ηοω 

τηε ρεσεαρχη ωασ δονε ανδ ιτσ ιmπλιχατιονσ.

Μαναγινγ DΧ Πλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ: Α Φιδυχιαρψ Ηανδβοοκ 

Lori Lucas, CFA, covers responsibilities for DC plan idu−

χιαριεσ, ινχλυδινγ ινϖεστmεντ στρυχτυρε, ινϖεστmεντ πολιχψ 

στατεmεντσ, ΘDΙΑ οϖερσιγητ, ανδ mαναγερ περφορmανχε.

Ετηιχσ 101 φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Προφεσσιοναλσ | Χαλλαν Χηαιρ−

mαν ανδ ΧΕΟ Ρον Πεψτον ουτλινεσ ηισ τηουγητσ ον ηοω το 

χρεατε, ινστιλλ, ανδ mαινταιν ετηιχαλ στανδαρδσ φορ ινϖεστmεντ 

προφεσσιοναλσ. Ηισ αδϖιχε: τηε ριγητ χυλτυρε χρεατεσ τηε βεστ 

ενϖιρονmεντ το mαινταιν τηεσε στανδαρδσ. Φιρmσ σηουλδ δε−

ϖελοπ ετηιχαλ γυιδελινεσ τηατ αρε βασεδ ον πρινχιπλεσ, νοτ 

ρυλεσ, σινχε τηε φορmερ οφφερ βεττερ γυιδανχε φορ εmπλοψεεσ 

αχροσσ τηε οργανιζατιον.

2016 Νυχλεαρ Dεχοmmισσιονινγ Φυνδινγ Στυδψ | Α ρεπορτ 

βψ ϑυλια Μοριαρτψ, ΧΦΑ, χοϖερσ 

27 ινϖεστορ−οωνεδ ανδ 27 πυβλιχ 

ποωερ υτιλιτιεσ ωιτη αν οωνερσηιπ 

ιντερεστ ιν τηε 99 οπερατινγ νυχλε−

αρ ρεαχτορσ (ανδ 10 οφ τηε νον−οπ−

ερατινγ ρεαχτορσ) ιν τηε Υ.Σ.

Ηοω Γρεεν Ισ Ψουρ Βονδ? | Χαλλαν Αναλψστ Ρυφαση Λαmα 

tackles the area of green bonds, which are ixed income in−

struments issued speciically to support or inance environ−

mενταλ ινιτιατιϖεσ.

Περιοδιχαλσ

Ρεαλ Ασσετσ Ρεπορτερ, Συmmερ/Φαλλ 2016 | This edition ex−

πλορεσ ιφ τηε βοοm ιν χοmmερχιαλ ρεαλ εστατε mαψ βε ενδινγ.

Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ, Συmmερ 2016 | Αυτηορ Γαρψ Ροβ−

ερτσον δισχυσσεσ τηε ρεχεντ συργε ιν πριϖατε εθυιτψ φυνδραισ−

ινγ, αν ινδιχατιον τηατ σοmε ινϖεστορσ αρε εσταβλισηινγ α δε−

fensive hedge as the ive-year bull market pulls in its horns.

DΧ Οβσερϖερ, 2νδ Θυαρτερ 2016 | Callan’s Deined Contri−
βυτιον Πραχτιχε Τεαm ουτλινεσ α φραmεωορκ το εϖαλυατε DΧ 

transaction fees. We explain how common they are, what 
τηεψ τψπιχαλλψ χοστ, ανδ ηοω τηεψ αρε γενεραλλψ παιδ.

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Μονιτορ, 2νδ Θυαρτερ 2016 | ϑιm ΜχΚεε, δι−

ρεχτορ οφ Χαλλαν�σ Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ρεσεαρχη γρουπ, δισχυσσεσ 

τηε αππεαλ οφ mοmεντυm−βασεδ ινϖεστινγ στρατεγιεσ ιν τηε 

χυρρεντ χλιmατε οφ χονσιδεραβλε εχονοmιχ υνχερταιντψ.

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ  

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Εδυχατιον

3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2016

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

  
Στυδψ

2016 Νυχλεαρ Dεχοmmισσιονινγ 

Φυνδινγ Στυδψ

ΝDΤ Φυνδ Βαλανχεσ, Αννυαλ Χοντριβυτιονσ,  

ανδ Dεχοmmισσιονινγ Χοστ Εστιmατεσ  

ασ οφ Dεχεmβερ 31, 2015



�Wε τηινκ τηε βεστ ωαψ το λεαρν σοmετηινγ ισ το τεαχη ιτ. 

Εντρυστινγ χλιεντ εδυχατιον το ουρ χονσυλταντσ ανδ σπεχιαλιστσ 

ενσυρεσ τηατ τηεψ ηαϖε α τοταλ χοmmανδ οφ τηειρ συβϕεχτ 

mαττερ. Τηισ ισ ονε ρεασον ωηψ εδυχατιον ανδ ρεσεαρχη ηαϖε 

been cornerstones of our irm for more than 40 years.” 

Ρον Πεψτον, Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ

 

 
Εϖεντσ

Μισσ ουτ ον α Χαλλαν χονφερενχε ορ ωορκσηοπ? Εϖεντ συmmα−

ριεσ ανδ σπεακερσ� πρεσεντατιονσ αρε αϖαιλαβλε ον ουρ ωεβσιτε:  

ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/ΧΙΙ/ 

Μαρκ ψουρ χαλενδαρσ φορ ουρ φαλλ Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπ, Οχτοβερ 

25 ιν Νεω Ψορκ ανδ Οχτοβερ 26 ιν Χηιχαγο, ανδ ουρ Νατιοναλ 

Χονφερενχε, ϑανυαρψ 23�25, 2017, ατ τηε Παλαχε Ηοτελ ιν Σαν 

Φρανχισχο.

Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον αβουτ εϖεντσ, πλεασε χονταχτ Βαρβ 

Γερρατψ: 415.274.3093 / γερρατψ≅χαλλαν.χοm

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ  
Εδυχατιοναλ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ, βεττερ κνοων ασ τηε �Χαλλαν 

College,” provides a foundation of knowledge for industry profes−

σιοναλσ ωηο αρε ινϖολϖεδ ιν τηε ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον−mακινγ προ−

χεσσ. Ιτ ωασ φουνδεδ ιν 1994 το προϖιδε χλιεντσ ανδ νον−χλιεντσ αλικε 

with basic- to intermediate-level instruction. Our next session is:

Ιντροδυχτιον το Ινϖεστmεντσ

Σαν Φρανχισχο, Απριλ 18−19, 2017

Σαν Φρανχισχο, ϑυλψ 25−26, 2017

Χηιχαγο, Οχτοβερ 24−25, 2017

Τηισ σεσσιον φαmιλιαριζεσ φυνδ σπονσορ τρυστεεσ, σταφφ, ανδ ασσετ 

mαναγεmεντ αδϖισορσ ωιτη βασιχ ινϖεστmεντ τηεορψ, τερmινολογψ, 

ανδ πραχτιχεσ. Ιτ λαστσ ονε−ανδ−α−ηαλφ δαψσ ανδ ισ δεσιγνεδ φορ ιν−

dividuals who have less than two years of experience with asset-
mαναγεmεντ οϖερσιγητ ανδ/ορ συππορτ ρεσπονσιβιλιτιεσ. Τυιτιον φορ 

the Introductory “Callan College” session is $2,350 per person. 
Τυιτιον ινχλυδεσ ινστρυχτιον, αλλ mατεριαλσ, βρεακφαστ ανδ λυνχη ον 

each day, and dinner on the irst evening with the instructors.

Χυστοmιζεδ Σεσσιονσ

The “Callan College” is equipped to customize a curriculum to 
meet the training and educational needs of a speciic organization.
Τηεσε ταιλορεδ σεσσιονσ ρανγε φροm βασιχ το αδϖανχεδ ανδ χαν 

take place anywhere—even at your ofice.

Λεαρν mορε ατ ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/χολλεγε/ ορ 

χονταχτ Κατηλεεν Χυννιε: 415.274.3029 / χυννιε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Υνιθυε πιεχεσ οφ ρεσεαρχη τηε 

Ινστιτυτε γενερατεσ εαχη ψεαρ50+

Τοταλ αττενδεεσ οφ τηε �Χαλλαν 

College” since 19943,500 Ψεαρ τηε Χαλλαν Ινστιτυτε  

ωασ φουνδεδ1980

Αττενδεεσ (ον αϖεραγε) οφ τηε 

Ινστιτυτε�σ αννυαλ Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε500

Εδυχατιον: Βψ τηε Νυmβερσ

≅ΧαλλανΑσσοχ  Χαλλαν Ασσοχιατεσ



D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

Disclosures



 

List of Callan’s Investment Manager Clients 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 
 
Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously. We recognize that there are numerous potential conflicts of interest 
encountered in the investment consulting industry and that it is our responsibility to manage those conflicts effectively and in the best interest of our 
clients.  At Callan, we employ a robust process to identify, manage, monitor and disclose potential conflicts on an on-going basis.   
 
The list below is an important component of our conflicts management and disclosure process.  It identifies those investment managers that pay Callan 
fees for educational, consulting, software, database or reporting products and services.  We update the list quarterly because we believe that our fund 
sponsor clients should know the investment managers that do business with Callan, particularly those investment manager clients that the fund sponsor 
clients may be using or considering using. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a more detailed description of the services and products that Callan 
makes available to investment manager clients through our Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting 
Group.  Due to the complex corporate and organizational ownership structures of many investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm 
relationships are not indicated on our list.  
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of the most currently available list at any time. Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information 
regarding the fees paid to Callan by particular fund manager clients.  Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively 
by Callan’s Compliance Department. 
 

 

Quarterly List as of  

September 30, 2016 

Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Page 1 of 2 

Manager Name 
1607 Capital Partners, LLC 
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC 
Acadian Asset Management LLC 
ACR – Alpine Capital Research 
AEGON USA Investment Management 
AEW Capital Management 
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 
AllianceBernstein 
Allianz Global Investors  
Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America 
American Century Investment Management 
Amundi Smith Breeden LLC 
Analytic Investors 
Angelo, Gordon & Co. 
Apollo Global Management 
AQR Capital Management 
Ares Management LLC 
Ariel Investments, LLC 
Aristotle Capital Management, LLC 
Artisan Holdings 
ASB Capital Management Inc. 
Ativo Capital Management 
Atlanta Capital Management Co., LLC 
Aviva Investors Americas 
AXA Investment Managers 
Babson Capital Management 
Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited  
Baird Advisors 
Bank of America 
Baring Asset Management 
Baron Capital Management, Inc. 
Barrow, Hanley, Mewhinney & Strauss, LLC 
BlackRock 
BMO Asset Management, Corp. 
BNP Paribas Investment Partners 
BNY Mellon Asset Management 
Boston Partners  

Manager Name 
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 
Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC 
Brown Brothers Harriman & Company 
Brown Investment Advisory & Trust Company 
Cambiar Investors, LLC 
Capital Group 
CastleArk Management, LLC 
Causeway Capital Management 
Chartwell Investment Partners 
ClearBridge Investments, LLC  
Cohen & Steers Capital Management, Inc. 
Columbia Threadneedle Investments 
Columbia Wanger Asset Management 
Columbus Circle Investors 
Conestoga Capital Advisors 
Corbin Capital Partners, L.P. 
Cornerstone Capital Management 
Cramer Rosenthal McGlynn, LLC 
Credit Suisse Asset Management 
Crestline Investors, Inc. 
D.E. Shaw Investment Management, LLC 
Delaware Investments 
DePrince, Race & Zollo, Inc. 
Deutsche Asset  Management 
Diamond Hill Investments 
Duff & Phelps Investment Mgmt. Co. 
Eagle Asset Management, Inc. 
EARNEST Partners, LLC 
Eaton Vance Management 
Epoch Investment Partners, Inc. 
Fayez Sarofim & Company 
Federated Investors 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management 
Fiera Capital Global Asset Management 
First Eagle Investment Management, LLC 
First Hawaiian Bank Wealth Management Division 
Fisher Investments 



 

  Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Page 2 of 2 

Manager Name 

Fort Washington Investment Advisors, Inc. 

Franklin Templeton Institutional 

Fred Alger Management, Inc. 

Fuller & Thaler Asset Management, Inc. 

GAM (USA) Inc. 

GE Asset Management 

GMO 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management 

Grand-Jean Capital Management 

Guggenheim Investments 

GW&K Investment Management 

Harbor Capital Group Trust 

Hartford Funds 

Hartford Investment Management Co. 

Henderson Global Investors 

Hotchkis & Wiley Capital Management, LLC 

HSBC Global Asset Management 

Impax Asset Management Limited 

Income Research + Management, Inc. 

Insight Investment Management Limited 

Institutional Capital LLC 

INTECH Investment Management, LLC 

Invesco 

Investec Asset Management 

Investment Counselors of Maryland, LLC 

Janus Capital Management, LLC 

Jarislowsky Fraser Global Investment Management 

Jensen Investment Management 

J.P. Morgan Asset Management 

KeyCorp 

Lazard Asset Management 

Legal & General Investment Management America 

Lincoln National Corporation 

LMCG Investments, LLC 

Longview Partners 

Loomis, Sayles & Company, L.P. 

Lord Abbett & Company 

Los Angeles Capital Management 

LSV Asset Management 

MacKay Shields LLC 

Man Investments Inc. 

Manulife Asset Management 

Martin Currie Inc. 

McDonnell Investment Management, LLC 

MFS Investment Management 

MidFirst Bank 

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited 

Montag & Caldwell, LLC 

Morgan Stanley Investment Management 

Mountain Lake Investment Management LLC 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 

Neuberger Berman 

Newton Investment Management (fka Newton Capital Management) 

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. 

Northern Trust Asset Management 

Nuveen Investments, Inc. 

OFI Global Asset Management 

Old Mutual Asset Management 

Opus Capital Management Inc. 

Manager Name 

O’Shaughnessy Asset Management, LLC 

Pacific Alternative Asset Management Co. 

Pacific Current Group 

Pacific Investment Management Company 

Parametric Portfolio Associates 

P/E Investments 

Peregrine Capital Management, Inc. 

PGIM 

PineBridge Investments 

Pinnacle Asset Management L.P. 

Pioneer Investments 

PNC Capital Advisors, LLC 

Principal Global Investors 

Private Advisors, LLC 

Putnam Investments, LLC 

QMA (Quantitative Management Associates) 

RBC Global Asset Management 

Regions Financial Corporation 

RidgeWorth Capital Management, Inc. 

Riverbridge Partners LLC 

Rockefeller & Co., Inc. 

Rothschild Asset Management, Inc. 

Russell Investments 

Santander Global Facilities 

Schroder Investment Management North America Inc. 

Scout Investments 

SEI Investments 

Shenkman Capital Management, Inc. 

Smith, Graham & Co. Investment Advisors, L.P. 

Smith Group Asset Management 

Standard Life Investments Limited 

Standish 

State Street Global Advisors 

Stone Harbor Investment Partners, L.P. 

Systematic Financial Management 

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. 

Taplin, Canida & Habacht 

The Boston Company Asset Management, LLC 

The Hartford 

The London Company 

The TCW Group, Inc. 

Tri-Star Trust Bank 

UBS Asset Management 

Van Eck Global 

Versus Capital Group 

Victory Capital Management Inc. 

Vontobel Asset Management, Inc. 

Voya Financial 

Voya Investment Management (fka ING) 

Waddell & Reed Asset Management Group 

WCM Investment Management 

Wasatch Advisors, Inc. 

WEDGE Capital Management 

Wellington Management Company, LLP 

Wells Capital Management 

Western Asset Management Company 

William Blair & Company 

 



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 10/03/2016Limited Access

A5XB  SACRT - ATLANTA CAPITAL MGMT

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 09/30/2016

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

22,340,728.51 22,260,244Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 14

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited. (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 22,340,728.51 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost
(143658)

3 0.00 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are  prohibited (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited. (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (143652)6 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales. (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options. (143657)8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (143659)

9 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents. (143656)10 2.64 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (143670)11 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (143660)12 7.86 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

13 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (143661)14 2.01 % Maximum 5.00%

MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (1 of 4)



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 10/03/2016Limited Access

A5XD  SACRT - METWEST

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 09/30/2016

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

97,888,229.96 88,590,096Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 8

144A and Private Placement
The Fund is not permitted to hold any Private Placements excluding 144a (143666)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 97,888,229.96 Value Pass

Asset_Type
A5XD: Flag all prohibited security types (143665)3 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset-Backed Commercial Paper - Minimum Quality of A2/P2 (157603)4 0 Num Bkts Maximum 0
MAX = 0
MIN =
WMAX = 0
WMIN =

Pass

Credit Quality
Minimum Quality must be at lesst 80% Baa or above (157604)5 94.50 % Minimum 80.00%

MAX =
MIN = 80.00%
WMAX =
WMIN = 80.00%

Pass

No Commercial Paper rated < A2/P2 at time of purchase (143662)6 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Weighted Average Credit Rating of the Fund must be A or better (143663)7 23.05 Rank Minimum 20
MAX =
MIN = 20
WMAX =
WMIN = 20

Pass

Industry
The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (2 of 4)



Page 1 of 2

Pass

Date Run: 10/03/2016Limited Access

A5Z8  SACRT - ROBECO

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 09/30/2016

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

40,773,348.38 40,706,870Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 14

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited. (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 40,773,348.38 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost
(143658)

3 2.71 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are  prohibited (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited. (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (143652)6 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales. (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options. (143657)8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (143659)

9 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents. (143656)10 4.31 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (143670)11 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (143660)12 11.17 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

13 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (143661)14 3.14 % Maximum 5.00%

MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (3 of 4)



Page 2 of 2

Pass

Date Run: 10/03/2016Limited Access

A5Z8  SACRT - ROBECO

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 09/30/2016

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

40,773,348.38 40,706,870Base Currency USD

Alerts:

Warnings:

Passes:

This report was prepared for you by State Street Bank and Trust Company (or its affiliates, “State Street”) utilizing scenarios, assumptions and reporting formats as mutually agreed 

between you and State Street.  While reasonable efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this report, there is no guarantee, representation or 

warranty, express or implied, as to its accuracy or completeness.  This information is provided “as-is” and State Street disclaims any and all liability and makes no guarantee, 

representation, or warranty with respect to your use of or reliance upon this information in making any decisions or taking (or not taking) any actions.  State Street does not verify the 

accuracy or completeness of any data, including data provided by State Street for other purposes, or data provided by you or third parties.  You should independently review the report 

(including, without limitation, the assumptions, market data, securities prices, securities valuations, tests and calculations used in the report), and determine that the report is suitable for 

your purposes.  

State Street provides products and services to professional and institutional clients, which are not directed at retail clients.  This report is for informational purposes only and it does not 

constitute investment research or investment, legal or tax advice, and it is not an offer or solicitation to buy or sell any product, service, or securities or any financial instrument, and it 

does not transfer rights of any kind (except the limited use and redistribution rights described below) or constitute any binding contractual arrangement or commitment of any kind.  You 

may use this report for your internal business purposes and, if such report contains any data provided by third party data sources, including, but not limited to, market or index data, you 

may not redistribute this report, or an excerpted portion thereof, to any third party, including, without limitation, your investment managers, investment advisers, agents, clients, 

investors or participants, whether or not they have a relationship with you or have a reasonable interest in the report, without the prior written consent of each such third party data 

source.  You are solely responsible and liable for any and all use of this report.

Copyright © 2016 State Street Corporation, All rights reserved.

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment 3 (4 of 4)



 

 
3 
 

11838935.1 

REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                   Page 1 of 2 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

19 12/14/16 Retirement Action 11/21/16 

 

Subject:  Selection of a Chair and Vice Chair for all Common Retirement Board 
Meetings (ALL). (Bonnel) 

ISSUE 
 
Selection of a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to Preside Over Retirement 
Board Meetings.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Adopt Resolution 16-12-___, Selecting a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to 
Preside Over Retirement Board Meetings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On January 12, 2004, the Sacramento Regional Transit (RT) Governing Board 
established five separate Retirement Boards to conduct business related to RT's 
Retirement Plans on behalf of their members. Each of the five Retirement Boards have 
three officer positions: Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary. This structure remains in effect 
and serves the Boards well. In many circumstances, the five Boards meet together in 
common, joint meetings.  To ensure the orderly and efficient manner of all Retirement 
Board meetings, as well as to ensure continuity in execution of the business of the 
Boards, Pension Plan staff recommends that each of the five Boards collectively select 
a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to preside over all regular and special Board 
meetings for so long as the Common Chair and Common Vice Chair agree to perform 
such duties, and for so long as each Board continues to agree on such selection.   
 
Staff recommends each Board re-appoint and authorize the 2017 Common Chair and 
Common Vice Chair to preside over Board meetings as follows: 
 
1) Re-appoint the RT Governing Board member assigned to the Retirement Board to 

continue to serve as Common Chair for purposes of presiding over meetings of any 
one or more of the five Boards;  

Approved:  Presented: 

Final, 12/06/2016   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 



 

 
3 
 

11838935.1 

 

REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER                                   Page 2 of 2 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

19 12/14/16 Retirement Action 11/21/16 

 

Subject:  Selection of a Chair and Vice Chair for all Common Retirement Board 
Meetings (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
2) Re-appoint RT's General Manager to serve as Common Vice Chair to preside over 

meetings of any one or more of the five Boards in the absence or other unavailability 
of the Common Chair; 

 
3) Provide for this selection of a Common Chair and Common Vice Chair to remain in 

effect until December 31, 2017 or until either officer resigns from such role or until 
any one of the five Boards no longer agrees to such selection as evidenced by a 
majority vote of that Board. 

 
  

  
 



 

 
3 
 

11838935.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-12-_____ 
 

Adopted by the MCEG Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees 
Who Are Member of MCEG on this date: 

 
 
 

December 14, 2016 
 
 
SELECTING A COMMON CHAIR AND COMMON VICE CHAIR TO PRESIDE OVER 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETINGS  
 
 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF MCEG AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT, this Retirement Board hereby selects and re-appoints Andy Morin to serve 
as Common Chair, in which role he shall preside over all regular and special meetings 
of this Board; and 

 
THAT, this Retirement Board hereby selects and re-appoints Henry Li to serve as 

Common Vice Chair, in which role he shall preside over all regular and special meetings 
of this Board in the absence or unavailability of the Common Chair; and 

 
THAT, these selections of this Retirement Board will remain in effect through 

2017 or until the Common Chair and/or Common Vice Chair resigns from such role or 
until any one of the other four Retirement Boards no longer agrees to such common 
selection as evidenced by a majority vote of that Board, in which case the Chair and 
Vice Chair of common meetings of two or more Retirement Boards shall be selected by 
those Retirement Board Directors present at each such common meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 
A T T E S T: 
 
Roger Thorn, Secretary 
 
 
By: 

Mark Lonergan, Chair 
 

 Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary  
 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

20 12/14/16 Retirement Information 11/21/16 

 

Subject: Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 12/06/2016   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\December 14, 2016\#20 SACRT RB QRBM IPUpdate from 

Staff on Pension Tasks.DOC 

11491478.1 

ISSUE 
 
Presentation regarding the roles and responsibilities of various District staff members and Legal 
Counsel related to administration of the Pension Plans (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In March 2014, staff proposed that the Sacramento Regional Transit District create and fill a new 
position, Pension and Retiree Services Administrator, that would be dedicated to and paid for by 
the Pension Plans.  The position was filled with the hiring of Valerie Weekly in November 2014.  
The transition of various pension administration duties previously performed by District-funded 
positions to the new position has been ongoing since that time.  
 
This presentation by Donna Bonnel, Pension Plan Administrator, and the attached documents are 
provided to ensure the Boards have a greater understanding of the various duties of RT staff and 
consultants (including the Retirement Boards’ Legal Counsel) as related to administration of the 
Pension Plans. 
 
Attachment A – Pension Administration Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
Attachment B – RT Staff Costs (Excluding the Pension and Retiree Services Administrator) 

Attributable (but Not Charged) to RT Pension Plans  
Attachment C – Summary of Legal Services Provided for the Quarter Ending September 30, 

2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  1 11286012.1 

 

 

Pension Administration 
Staff Roles and Responsibilities 

 

Plan Administration 
Customer Relations: 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Retirement Meetings Director, Human Resources 
Pension and Retirement Services 

Administrator (PRSA) 

Research and address benefit 
discrepancies 

Pension and Retirement Services 
Administrator (PRSA) 

Pension Analyst 

Disability Retirements PRSA Director, HR 
Conduct Educational Sessions PRSA Pension Analyst 
Respond to all Employee and 
Retiree inquiries 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Creation of Pension Estimates Pension Analyst PRSA 

Processing Employee and Retiree 
Deaths 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Administration of Active and Term 
Vested Retirement Process, 
including: 
 

 Notifications 

 Lost Participant Process (TV) 

 Collection of all required 
documents 

 Legal/Compliance Review 

 Approval by General Manager 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Converting Employees to Retirees 
in SAP 

Pension Analyst Sr. HR Analyst - HRIS 

Lost participant process for 
returned checks/stubs 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

48-Month Salary Calculations Pension Analyst Payroll Supervisor and PRSA 

Distribution of employee required 
contributions (per contract or 
PEPRA): 

 Send notification 

 Collect documentation 

 Lost participant process 

 Apply interest  

 Process check 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Conduct Lost Participant Searches Pension Analyst PRSA 

Administer Retiree Medical Pension Analyst Sr. HR Analyst 

Managing Stale Dated and Lost 
Check Replacement 

Payroll Analyst and Senior 
Accountant 

Payroll Supervisor 

Copies of Retiree Pay Stubs and 
1099R’s 

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor 

Printing, Stuffing, and Mailing Pay 
Stubs 

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor 

Verification of Retiree Wages: 
gross pay, net wages, no pre-tax 

Administrative Technician (HR) 
and Payroll Analyst 

PRSA and/or Payroll Supervisor 

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
Attachment A



  2 11286012.1 

 

deductions, taxes 

 
 
Plan Documents: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Negotiation of Benefits, Provisions Director, Labor Relations To be determined 

Incorporate Negotiated 
Benefits/Provisions into Plan 
Documents 

Deputy Chief Counsel, RT Chief Counsel, RT 

Interpretation of Provisions Pension and Retiree Services 
Administrator (PRSA) and Deputy 

Chief Counsel, RT 
Chief Counsel, RT 

Guidance to Staff regarding legal 
changes that affect Plans 

Pension and Retiree Services 
Administrator (PRSA) and  
Deputy Chief Counsel, RT 

Chief Counsel, RT 

 
Vendor Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Legal Services (Hanson Bridgett) 
Contract Procurement  

PRSA and Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources and 

Director, Finance 

Actuarial Services (Cheiron) 
Contract Procurement 

PRSA and Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources and 

Director, Finance 

Retirement Board Policy 
Development and Administration 

PRSA and Senior Accountant 
 

Hanson Bridgett and Cheiron 

Director, Human Resources or  
Director, Finance 

 
Hanson Bridgett and Cheiron 

 
Retirement Board Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Creation of Agenda/IPs Staff Presenting Issue to Board n/a 

Creation and Distribution of 
Retirement Board Packages 

PRSA Director, Human Resources 

Management of Retirement Board 
Meetings 

Assistant Secretary to the 
Retirement Boards 

PRSA 

Training of Staff/Board Members PRSA Staff/Vendor SME 

New Retirement Board Member 
Training 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant Staff/Vendor SME 

 



  3 11286012.1 

 

 
Semi-Annual/Annual/Bi-Annual Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Valuation Study PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Experience Study PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Fiduciary Liability Insurance PSRA Director, Human Resources 

OPEB Valuation Study 
 

PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Responses to Public Records Act 
Requests 

Director, Human Resources PRSA 

Statement of Investment Objectives 
and Policy Guidelines management 

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

 
 
Contract Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Adherence to contract provisions 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources or 

Director, Finance 

Payment of Invoices Sr. Accountant or Director, Human 
Resources 

Director, Finance 

Contract Management, including 
RFP process 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources or 

Director, Finance 

 
Asset Management: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Asset Rebalancing Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Account Reconciliations Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Cash Transfers Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Fund Accounting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Investment Management Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Financial Statement Preparation Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Annual Audit Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

State Controller’s Office Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

U.S. Census Bureau Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Work with Contractors (Investment 
advisors (Callan), Custodian (State 
Street), Fund Managers, Auditors, 
and Actuary (Cheiron)) 

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Review Monthly Asset Rebalancing Director, Finance CFO 

 
 



Pension administration costs charged to the Plans

Time Period: July 1, 2016 to September 30, 2016

Sum of Value TranCurr

WBS Element Source object name Period Total

SAXXXX.PENATU Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 1 153.98       

2 76.99          

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 1 1,136.52    

2 811.80       

3 2,029.50    

Human Resources / Moua, Geu 2 151.74       

Human Resources / Ung, Elaine 1 106.40       

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 1 2,206.40    

2 1,182.00    

3 2,127.60    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 1 32.92          

2 65.84          

3 65.83          

SAXXXX.PENATU Total 10,147.52  

SAXXXX.PENIBEW Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 2 76.99          

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 1 527.67       

2 487.08       

3 365.31       

Human Resources / Moua, Geu 2 37.94          

Human Resources / Ung, Elaine 2 53.20          

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 1 472.80       

2 512.20       

3 748.60       

SAXXXX.PENIBEW Total 3,281.79    

SAXXXX.PENSALA Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 1 1,231.85    

2 904.65       

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 1 2,273.04    

2 3,409.56    

3 1,461.24    

Human Resources / Moua, Geu 2 1,175.99    

Human Resources / Ung, Elaine 1 88.66          

2 106.41       

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 1 3,546.00    

2 3,230.80    

3 2,876.20    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 1 164.58       

2 142.21       

SAXXXX.PENSALA Total 20,611.19  

SAXXXX.PENSION Board Support / Brooks, Cynthia 1 76.52          

Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 1 2,040.48    

Attachment B



SAXXXX.PENSION Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 2 2,020.86    

3 2,472.12    

Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 1 115.49       

2 134.73       

3 153.98       

Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer 1 993.08       

2 1,269.19    

3 1,107.04    

Human Resources / Bonnel, Donna 1 1,278.94    

2 3,344.92    

3 3,541.68    

Human Resources / Humphrey, Isis 1 1,087.67    

2 2,648.24    

3 2,790.11    

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 1 6,616.17    

2 6,981.48    

3 7,996.23    

Human Resources / Moua, Geu 2 644.90       

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 1 1,773.00    

2 3,546.00    

3 3,546.00    

Legal / Lonergan, Kathleen 3 138.28       

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 1 98.75          

VP Business Serv/CFO / Bernegger, Brent 1 244.63       

2 856.17       

3 1,100.79    

SAXXXX.PENSION Total 58,617.45  

Grand Total 92,657.95  



  

 
12753088.2 

HANSON BRIDGETT LLP & 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT RETIREMENT BOARDS 

 
LEGAL SERVICES SUMMARY 

 
Set forth below is a broad summary report of significant legal matters addressed by 
Hanson Bridgett LLP for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Boards 
during the Quarter ended September 30, 2016. 

1. Weekly client conference calls and internal conferences on pending matters, 
upcoming Board meetings and follow-up from prior Board meetings. 

2. Preparation for and participation in Quarterly and Special Retirement Board 
Meetings, including review and markup of agenda materials and related 
Board Chair conference calls. 

3. Finalize new actuarial services contract. 

4. Provide counsel regarding potential forfeiture of pension funds under PEPRA. 

5. Review preliminary valuation and experience study results. 

6. Provide legal support for negotiation and execution of new investment fund 
manager contract. 

7. Provide legal support for amendment of investment fund manager contract.  

8. Analyze issues relative to and review proposed new group trust agreements. 

9. Provide fiduciary and legal analysis related to appointment of Retirement 
Board members. 

10. Analyze issues relative to separation of Pension Plan assets and allocation of 
employer contributions. 

11. Advise on pending service retirement.  

12. Analyze import of new holdings in PEPRA and ERISA cases. 

13. Assist staff with analysis of potential under-and over-payments.   

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/   Shayna M. van Hoften 

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
        Attachment C



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

21 12/14/16 Retirement Information 11/21/16 

 

Subject:  AB 1234 Local Government Ethics Training (ALL).  (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final, 12/06/2016   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
  J:\Retirement Board\2016\IP's\December 14, 2016\#21 [HB edits] 12.14.16 Ethics Training.DOC 

 
12879516.1  

ISSUE 
 
AB 1234 Local Government Ethics Training (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Information Only. (Training Session) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Under AB 1234, most local public officials are required to take an ethics training course to 
educate them on the ethical standards required of any individual who works in local 
government.  This training is required within one year of an official's appointment and must be 
repeated at least every two years.  This requirement extends to Retirement Board Members.  
The Boards last received the training in December, 2014.   
 

Shayna van Hoften, General Counsel for the Retirement Boards, and her colleague Catherine 
Groves will provide this two-hour ethics training.  Materials will be distributed at the training. 
 
 
 
 
 


	- SACRT 12 14 16 Quarterly Combined Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	#13 8-31-16 MCEG Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.4-9)
	#14 9-14-16 MCEG Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.10-12)
	#15 Receive & File MCEG.pdf (p.13-24)
	12-14-16 Administrative Reports - Salary.pdf (p.1-4)
	12-14-16 Administrative Reports - Salary Attachments 1-9.pdf (p.5-13)

	#16 DFA Investment Performance Review.pdf (p.25-66)
	12-14-16 DFA Fund Manager Review.pdf (p.1-2)
	12-14-16 DFA Fund Manager Review Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-43)
	Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Funds
	Relationship Summary:�Sacramento Regional Transit District Pension Funds
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Firm Update
	Dimensional Fund Advisors
	Leading Financial Economists and Researchers
	Experienced Teams Help Ensure Consistency�
	Global Investment Team, �One Dynamic Process 
	Dimensional Global Investment Solutions
	Slide Number 11
	Dimensions of Expected Returns
	Dimensions of Expected Returns
	Yearly Observations of Premiums
	Historical Observations of Five-Year Premiums
	Slide Number 16
	Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio
	Portfolio Construction: �Security Selection and Weighting
	Refining the Universe
	Managing Momentum 
	Trading Costs Matter
	Integrated Portfolio Implementation
	Characteristics
	Sector Allocations
	Country Allocations
	Top 10 Holdings
	Emerging Markets Environment
	Performance
	Slide Number 29
	Fees
	Client Service Team
	Presenter’s Biography
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Standardized Performance Data & Disclosures
	Index Descriptions
	Index Descriptions
	Index Descriptions


	#17 SSGA Investment Performance Review.pdf (p.67-136)
	12-14-16 SSgA Fund Manager Review.pdf (p.1-2)
	12-14-16 SSgA Fund Manager Review Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-71)

	#18 Receive & File Investment Performance Reports (ALL).pdf (p.137-267)
	12-14-16 Investment Performance.pdf (p.1-3)
	12-14-16 Investment Performance Attachment #1.pdf (p.4-16)
	12-14-16 Investment Performance Attachment #2.pdf (p.17-128)
	12-14-16 Investment Performance Attachment #3.pdf (p.129-132)

	#19 Selection of  Common Chair (MCEG).pdf (p.268-270)
	#20 Quarterly Update from Staff.pdf (p.271-277)
	#20 SACRT RB QRBM IPUpdate from Staff on Pension Tasks.pdf (p.1)
	Attachment A -Pension Administration Chart 2016.pdf (p.2-4)
	Attachment B - 12-14-16 Pension Administration Detail.pdf (p.5-6)
	Modified copy of (Draft V2) Sacramento RegionalTransit Retirement Boards Legal Task Summary - Q3 2016.pdf (p.7)

	#21 12.14.16 Ethics Training.pdf (p.278)

